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Management's Responsibility

To the Board of Assiniboine Regional Health Authority:

Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the accompanying financial statements, including responsibility for
significant accounting judgments and estimates in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and ensuring that
all information in the annual report is consistent with the statements. This responsibility includes selecting appropriate accounting
principles and methods, and making decisions affecting the measurement of transactions in which objective judgment is required.

Iu discharging its responsibilities for the integrity and fairness of the financial statements, management designs and maintains the
necessary accounting systems and related internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are authorized, assets are
safeguarded and financial records are properly maintained to provide reliable information for the preparation of financial statements.

The Board of Directors and Audit Committee are composed entirely of Directors who are neither management nor employees of the
Health authority. The Board is responsible for overseeing management in the performance of its financial reporting responsibilities, and
for approving the financial information included in the annual report. The Board fulfils these responsibilities by reviewing the financial
information prepared by management and discussing relevant matters with management and external auditors. The Audit Committee
has the responsibility of meeting with management and external auditors to discuss the internal controls over the financial reporting
process, auditing matters and financial reporting issues. The Committee is also responsible for recommending the appointment of the
health authority's external auditors.

Meyers Norris Penny LLP, an independent firm of Chartered Accountants, is appointed by the Board to audit the financial statements
and report directly to them; their report follows. The external auditors have full and free access to, and meet periodically and separately
with, both the Committee and management to discuss their audit findings.

June 15, 2010

Ch‘fé‘f‘Executi\ﬁ Officer Chié}'F{nancia] Officer
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Assiniboine Regional Health Authority

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the year ended March 31, 2010

Invested in Internally
Capital assets  Restricted  Unrestricted 2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year 3,353,085 30,700 4,445,709 7,829,494 6,426,908
Transfer to (from) deferred contributions - - 2,778 2,778 5,388
Investment in capital assets 36,201 (36,201} - - -
Internally restricted assets - 125,074 - 125,074 119,241
Excess of revenues over expenses (222,210} - 1,543,773 1,321,563 1,304,091
Elderly Persons Housing adjustments - - (57,451) (57,451) (26,134)
Balance, end of year 3,167,076 119,573 5,934,809 9,221,458 7,829,494

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Assiniboine Regional Health Authority

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Contributed services

A number of individuals donate significant amounts of time to the Authority’s activities. No amount is reflected in the
statements for donated services since no objective basis is available to measure the value of such services.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost 13 determined by the first-in, first-out method.
Capital assets

Capital assets are initially recorded at cost. Amortization is provided using the straight-line method at rates intended to
amortize the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives.

Method Rate
Buildings straight-line 10-50 years
Equipment, computers, vehicles, ambulance equipment straight-line 5-10 years
Land improvements straight-line 15 years

Pre-retirement obligations

The Authority applies the accounting recommendations for employee future benefits contained in Section 3461 of the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants’ Handbook.

Long-lived assets

Long-lived assets consist of capital assets with finite useful lives. Long-lived assets held for use are measured and
amortized as described in the applicable accounting policies.

The Authority performs impairment testing on long-lived assets held for use whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of an asset, or group of assets, may not be recoverable. Impairment losses are recognized
when undiscounted future cash flows from its use and disposal are less than the asset’s carrying amount. Impairment is
measured as the amount by which the asset’s carrying value exceeds its fair value. Any impairment is included in
operations for the year.

Basis of consolidation

The following entities have been consolidated into these financial statements as at March 31, 2010 respectively:

Hamiota District Health Centre Inc. Lilac Residence (East Wing)
Hamiota District Health Centre Inc. Lilac Residence (North Wing)
Morley House of Shoal Lake Elderly Persons Housing

Morley House of Shoal Lake Lakeshore Lodge

Pioneer Lodge Inc.

Riverdale Personal Care Home Inc. Westwood Lodge

Tiger Hills Villa Inc.

The financial statements of the above entities are prepared in accordance with the accounting principles required by
Manitoba Housing. The differences in accounting policies nsed by the above entities and Assiniboine Regional Health
Authority would not result in significant changes to these consolidated financial statements.

8
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Assiniboine Regional Health Authority

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010}

9, Long-term debt {continued)
Principal repayments for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2011 172,772
2012 183,702
2013 195,316
2014 207,713
2015 221,004
Thereafier 1,387,733

2,368,240

In prior years, the Authority entered into long-term loan agreements with various financial institutions to provide debt
financing to the Authority. The Province of Manitoba continues to pay the principal and interest on this long-term debt.
During the 2005 fiscal vear, this long-term debt was assumed by the Province of Manitoba and was recognized as borrowings
in the Public Accounts (Special Purpose Financial Statements) of the Province of Manitoba as at April 1, 2004,

Accordingly, since the Province of Manitoba has recognized the long-term debt as its borrowings, the Authority has restated
the long-term debt as deferred contributions in its financial statements.

0. Deferred contributions

Expended and unexpended deferred contributions represent restricted capital funding received. Expended deferred
contributions related to capital assets represent the unameortized amount of funds received for the purchase of capital assets
and the repayment of capital debt. The amortization of capital deferred contributions is recorded as revenue in the
statement of operations.

Unexpended deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods represent unspent externally restricted grants for
equipment, major repairs, construction and other expenses.

Other deferred contributions represent donations that were received from other sources restricted by site or by program for
the purchase of capital assets or other items, as per the donor’s request.

Changes in the deferred contributions balance are as follows:

Expended Unexpended Other 2010 2009
Balance, beginning of vear 093,839,353 4,048,284 2,729,683 100,617,320 84,710,648
Funding Manitoba Health 806,361 1,520,252 - 2,326,613 23,834,439
Donations received - - 932,874 932,874 793,715
Interest carned - 665 67,427 68,092 114,351
Other funding - 1,450,776 - 1,450,776 1,501,958
Capital asset purchases 4,750,650 (869,172) (731,938) 3,149,540 17,115,545
Operating expenses - (3,111,914) (210,275) (3,322,189)  (2,328,182)
Amortization (4,095,093) (1,47%) - (4,096,568) (3,978,371)
Principal payments on long-term debt (806,361) - - (806,361) (21,072,773)
Reclassification 35,542 (21,433) - 14,109 (74,010)
Balance, end of year 94,530,452 3,015,983 2,787,771 100,334,206 100,617,320
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Assiniboine Regional Health Authority

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

18.  Capital disclosures

The Authority considers its capital to be its net assets. The Authority’s objectives when managing its capital are to

safeguard its ability to operate as a going concern so it can continue to provide services to its members. An Annual Health

Plan including operating and capital budgets is developed and monitored to ensure the Authority’s capital is maintained at

an appropriate level.

If the retainable surplus exceeds 2% of the annual in globe operating budget, as approved by the Authority, the sarplus in

excess of 2% is an obligation payable to Manitoba Health. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010, the Authority was in

compliance with this requirement.

The Authority operates a number of elderly persons housing facilities which are subject to capital requirements as part of

Canada Housing and Mortgage Corporation {CMHC) and Manitoba Housing.

Under the terms of agreements with Manitoba Housing and CMHC, replacement reserve accounts are to be credited with

amounts as determined in consultation with Manitoba Housing. These funds, along with accumulated interest, must be

held in a separate bank account and/or invested only in accounts or instruments insured by the Canada Deposit Insurance

Corporation, or as may otherwise be approved by Manitoba Housing or CMHC from time to time. The funds in the

account may only be used as approved. Withdrawals are credited to interest first and then principal.

Pursuant to the operating agreements with Manitoba Housing for Riverdale Personal Care Home Inc. Westwood Lodge,

Tiger Hills Villa Inc. and Hamiota District Health Centre Inc. Lilac Residence (North Wing) elderly persons housing

facilities, on a cumulative basis for all Manitoba Housing properties, any excess subsidy funding provided to the Authority

is to be repaid. Where a cumulative deficiency exists for Manitoba Housing properties, the shortfall is the responsibility of

Manitoba Housing subject to Manitoba Housing approval of project costs.

19. Disclosure of allocated expenses
The Authority has allocated expenses amongst departments as follows:
Community- Community-
Acute  Long-term  pased health Long-term  based health
care care services 2010 Acute care care services 2009
Administration 887,660 853,984 - 1,741,644 847,522 817,147 - 1,664,669
Housekeeping 1,709,472 1,212,952 - 2,922,424 1,605,106 1,139,990 - 2,745,096
Laundry 393,550 861,766 - 1,255,316 372,545 830,532 - 1,203,077
Plant Operations 3,414,631 1,207,273 - 4,621,904 3,443,940 1,196,904 - 4,640,844
Plant Maintenance 1,444,353 988,050 - 2,432,403 1,440,953 1,015,672 - 2,456,625
Nursing 1,399,061 781,887 - 2,180,948 1,322,769 792,281 - 2,115,050
Food Services 2,400,250 6,590,301 43,454 9,034,005 2274466 6,206,685 37,165 8,518,316
11,648,977 12,496,213 43,454 24,188,644 11307,301 11,999211 37,165 23,343,677
18
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
360 Main Street

Suite 2300

Winnipeg MB R3C 373
Canada

Tel: 204-942-0051
Fax: 204-947-9390
www.deloitte.ca

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Brandon Regional Health Authority

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of Brandon Regional Health
Authority as at March 31, 2010 and the consolidated statements of operations, changes in net
assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Authority’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Brandon Regional Health Authority as at March 31, 2010 and the results

of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles.

Qp[mii’» + (owche | LF

Chartered Accountants

Winnipeg, Manitoba
June 21, 2010
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Brandon Regional Health Authority
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at March 31 2010 2009
(Restated - Note 17)
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash $ 8,202,853 § 10,822,801
Accounts receivable (Note 3) 5,527,256 3,929,164
Inventories 2,040,309 1,427,950
Prepaid expenses 2,069,823 1,744,373
Due From Manitoba Health - Vacation 7,224,269 7,224,269
Due From Manitoba Health - Vacation Non-Devolved Facilities 190,916 788,820
25,255,426 25,937,377
DUE FROM Manitoba Health - Pre-retirement 9,191,179 9,191,179
DUE FROM Manitoba Health - Pre-retirement Non-Devolved Facilities 199,105 826,654
LOAN RECEIVABLE - Brandon YMCA (Note 4) 320,000 -
INVESTMENTS (Note 5) 3,272,884 3,829,230
CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 6) 110,526,071 102,123,735
$ 148,764,665 $ 141,908,175
LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 12,432,578 $ 10,106,035
Bank advances (Note 7) 836,707 926,708
Employee Future Benefits - Vacation 10,708,947 9,891,343
Due to Non-Devolved Facilities - Employee Future Benefits - Vacation 190,916 788,820
Current portion of long term debt (Note 8) 117,699 110,515
24,286,847 21,823,421
EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS - Pre-retirement 14,695,556 12,474,540
DUE TO NON-DEVOLVED FACILITIES - Employee Future Benefits - Pre-retirement 199,105 826,654
LONG TERM DEBT (Note 8) 525,848 643,546
DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS (Note 9)
Expenses of future periods 1,741,829 1,539,192
Capital assets 102,964,965 97,986,025
144,414,150 135,293,378
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets (Note 10) 1,745,084 1,723,555
Internally restricted (Note 11) 4,048,769 3,784,734
Externally restricted (Note 11) 28,280 28,242
Unrestricted (1,471,618) 1,078,266
4,350,515 6,614,797
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 13)
$ 148,764,665 $ 141,908,175
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Brandon Regional Health Authority
Consolidated Statement of Operations

For the year ended March 31 2010 2009
REVENUE
Manitoba Health operating income
Income as per Funding Document (excluding funding related to Capital and Interest) $ 161,034,947 $ 166,056,547
One Time Funding 3,343,398 1,598,015
Retroactive Salary Payments 901,343 956,589
Recovery of Non Global Items (258,374) 346,779
Other Manitoba Health Income 4,643,194 4,654,327
Total Manitoba Health Funding (Note 12) 169,664,508 173,612,257
Non-insured income 8,679,551 8,121,443
Other Income 3,613,430 3,316,131
Amortization of deferred contributions 9,699,380 9,436,065
Capital revenue - Non Devolved Facilities 126,583 346,764
Ancillary revenue 3,768,156 3,610,896
195,551,608 198,443,556
EXPENSES
Acute Care Services 108,078,456 111,935,883
Long Term Care Services 26,687,410 24,913,244
Medical Remuneration - All Programs 14,921,691 15,881,169
Community Based Mental Health Services 13,487,000 12,752,374
Community Based Home Care Services 7,541,373 6,888,692
Community Based Health Services 6,763,700 5,972,799
Land Ambulance 577,644 577,644
RHA Administration Costs 4,449,384 3,256,678
Amortization of capital assets 8,203,065 8,011,216
Capital payments - Facilities 126,583 346,764
Interest on long term debt 49,014 87,575
Other operating expenses 3,500,348 1,376,217
Ancillary expenses 3,358,799 3,080,651
197,744,467 195,080,906

Excess (Shortfall) of revenue
over expenses $ (2,192,859) $ 3,362,650

ALLOCATION OF EXCESS (SHORTFALL) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES:

Investment in Capital Assets - Manitoba Health Activities $ (557,576) $ (586,591)
Unrestricted - Manitoba Health Activities (1,724,023) 3,781,763
Investment in Capital Assets - Non Manitoba Health Activities (451,247) (451,247)
Internally Restricted - Non Manitoba Health Activities 539,948 618,685
Externally Restricted 39 40
$ (2,192,859) $ 3,362,650

2
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For the year ended March 31

Brandon Regional Health Authority
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Invested
in Internally Externally 2010 2009
Capital Assets Restricted Restricted Unrestricted Total Total
Note 10 Note 10 Note 10
BALANCE, beginning of year $ 1,723,555 § 3,784,734 $ 28,242  $ 1,078,266 $ 6,614,797 $ 3,181,473
Excess (Shortfall) of revenue over expenses (1,008,823) 539,948 39 (1,724,023) (2,192,859) 3,362,650
Net change in investment in capital assets 1,030,351 (239,369) - (790,982) - -
Change in fair value of investments classified as
available-for-sale - (36,544) - (34,879) (71,423) 70,674
BALANCE, end of year $ 1,745,084 $ 4,048,769 $ 28,281 $ (1,471,618) 3 4,350,515 3 6,614,797
3
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For the year ended March 31

Brandon Regional Health Authority
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2010

2009

(Restated - Note 17)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess (Shortfall) of revenue over expenses $ (2,192,859) $ 3,362,650
ltems not affecting cash
Amortization of capital assets 8,203,065 8,011,216
Amortization of deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods (2,505,138) (2,445,642)
Amortization of deferred contributions related to capital assets (7,194,242) (6,990,423)
Net Change to employee future benefits 2,221,016 1,117,683
Changes in non-cash operating working capital items 536,823 3,549,150
(931,335) 6,604,634
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt of deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods 2,732,900 2,380,147
Receipt of deferred contributions related to capital assets 12,148,057 5,374,674
Repayment of bank advances (90,001) (173,198)
Repayment of long term debt (110,514) (103,769)
14,680,442 7,477,854
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets (16,605,401) (5,223,029)
Loan Recievable - Brandon YMCA (320,000) -
Redemption of Investments 556,346 (62,704)
(16,369,055) (5,285,733)
(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH (2,619,948) 8,796,755
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 10,822,801 2,026,046
CASH, END OF YEAR $ 8,202,853 $ 10,822,801
Supplementary information
Interest paid 49,014 87,575
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Brandon Regional Health Authority
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31 2010

1

PURPOSE OF THE ORGANIZATION

The Brandon Regional Health Authority ("Authority") was incorporated under the laws of Manitoba on January 6, 1997. The Authority
commenced activity on April 1, 1998. The Authority is principally in-volved in providing health care services to the community of
Brandon and surrounding regions. The Authority is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act and accordingly is exempt from
income taxes, provided certain requirements of the Income Tax Act are met.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Authority has elected to use the exemption provided by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) permitting
not for profit organizations not to apply sections 3862 and 3863 of the CICA Handbook which would otherwise have applied to
the financial statements of the Authority for the year ended March 31, 2010. The Authority applies the requirements of Section
3861 of the CICA Handbook.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Canadian generally accepted accounting
prinicples and reflect the following significant accounting policies:

Change in Accounting Policies

On April 1, 2009, the Authority adopted the changes made to Sections 1540, 4400, 4430 and 4460 and the new recommendations
of Section 4470 of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants ("CICA") Handbook.

Section 1540 Cash Flow Statement has been amended to include not-for-profit organizations within its scope. As a result, investing
and financing activities are now presented separately.

Section 4400 Financial Statement Presentation by Not-for-profit Organization has been amended in order to eliminate the
requirement to treat net assets invested in capital assets as a separate component of net assets and, instead, permit a not-for-profit
organization to combine investment in capital assets with unrestricted net assets when no investment in capital assets is internally
restricted. It also clarifies that revenues and expenses must be recognized and presented on a gross basis when a not-for profit
organization is acting as a principal in transactions.

Section 4430 Capital Assets Held by Not-for-profit Organizations has been amended to specify that smaller organizations that
capitalize their capital assets shall capitalize all classes of capital assets and amortize and write down those assets in accordance
with relevant Handbook Sections.

Section 4460 Disclosure of Related Party Transactions by Not-for-profit Organizations has been amended to make the language in
Section 4460 consistent with related party transactions, Section 3840.

Section 4470 Disclosure of Allocated Expenses by Not-for-profit Organizations establishes disclosure standards for a not-for-profit
organization that classifies its expenses by function and allocates its expenses to a number of functions to which the expenses
relate.

The adoption of these new standards had no significant impact on the financial statements.
Basis of Reporting

The Authority provides health care services through devolved and contract facilities. All significant inter-divisional transactions of
these organizations have been eliminated.

The assets, liabilities, and operations of the following devolved organizations have been included in these financial statements:

Brandon Regional Health Centre

Child and Adolescent Treatment Centre
Community and Home Care Health Services
Community Mental Health Services
Fairview Home

Rideau Park Personal Care Home
Westman Laundry
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Brandon Regional Health Authority
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31 2010

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of Reporting (continued)

The health care services provided by the contract facilities are delivered under the control of the Authority as the major funder. The
financial position and results of operations of these related organizations (The Salvation Army Dinsdale Personal Care Home and
Westman Regional Laboratory Services Inc.) have not been consolidated. Instead a summary of their financial information has been
included in these notes (Note 14).

Revenue recognition

The Authority follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions which include donations and government grants.

Under the Health Insurance Act and regulations thereto, the Authority is funded primarily by the Province of Manitoba in accordance
with budget arrangements established by Manitoba Health. Operating grants are recorded as revenue in the period to which they
relate. Grants approved but not received at the end of an accounting period are accrued. Where a portion of a grant relates to a
future period, it is deferred and recognized in that subsequent period. These financial statements reflect agreed arrangements

approved by Manitoba Health with respect to the year ended March 31, 2010.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable, if the amount to be received can be reasonably
estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Externally restricted contributions other than endowment contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related
expenses are recognized. Contributions restricted for the purchase of capital assets are deferred and amortized into revenue on
straight line basis, at a rate corresponding with the amortization rate for the related capital assets.

Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are recognized. Unrestricted
investment income is recognized as revenue when earned.

Revenue from preferred accommodation and marketed services is recognized when the goods are sold or the service is provided.
Contributed services

A substantial number of volunteers contribute a significant amount of their time each year. Because of the difficulty of
determining the fair value, contributed services are not recognized in the financial statements.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at average cost, except pharmacy inventory which is valued at the actual cost using the first in, first out
method.

Investments
Investments are classified as available-for-sale financial assets and are comprised of bonds and guaranteed investment
certificates, which are recorded at fair value based on bid prices at year-end. Purchases and sales of investments are recorded at

the trade date and transaction costs are expensed as incurred and recorded in the Statement of Operations. Changes in
unrealized gains and losses are reflected as direct increase or decrease in net assets.
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Brandon Regional Health Authority
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31 2010

2

9)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and their subsequent measurement is dependent on
their classification as described below. Their classification depends on the purpose, for which the financial instruments were
acquired or issued, their characteristics and the Authority's designation of such instruments.

Classification

Cash - Held for trading

Accounts receivable - Loans and Receivables

Investments - Available for Sale

Due From Manitoba Health - Vacation - Loans and Receivables

Due From Manitoba Health - Vacation - Non-Devolved Facilities - Loans and Receivables

Due From Manitoba Health - Pre-retirement - Loans and Receivables

Due From Manitoba Health - Pre-retirement - Non-Devolved Facilities - Loans and Receivables
Loan receivable - Loans and Receivables

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - Other Liabilities

Bank advances - Other Liabilities

Employee Future Benefits - Vacation - Other Liabilities

Due to Non-Devolved Facilities - Employee Future Benefits - Vacation & Pre-retirement - Other Liabilities
Long term debt - Other Liabilities

Available for Sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale, or that are
not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity or held-for-trading investments. Available-for-sale financial assets are
carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses included in the consolidated statement of changes in net assets until realized
when the cumulative gain or loss is transferred to other income.

Held for trading

Held for trading financial assets are financial assets typically acquired for resale prior to maturity or that are designated as held for
trading. They are measured at fair value at the date of the statement of financial position. Fair value fluctuations including interest
earned, interest accrued, gains and losses realized on disposal and unrealized gains and losses are included in investment income.
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are accounted for at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Other liabilities

Other liabilities are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest method and include all financial liabilities.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of cash, accounts receivable, loan receivable, due from the Manitoba Health —vacation and vacation for
non-devolved facilities, bank advances, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and employee future benefits - vacation
approximates their carrying values due to their short-term maturity.

The fair value of due from the Manitoba Health — Pre-retirement, Pre-retirement Non-devolved Faciliites,

Empolyee future benefits - Pre-retirement and due to non-devolved facilities - Employee future benefits -Pre-retirement, cannot

be determined as there are no specific terms of repayment.

Unless otherwise noted, it is management’s opinion that the Entity is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risk
arising from these financial instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Capital assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Contributed capital assets are recorded at fair value at the date of contribution.
Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to expense. Betterments which extend the estimated useful life of an asset are
capitalized. When a capital asset no longer contributes to the Authority's ability to provide services, its carrying amount is written

down to its residual value.

Capital assets, excluding vehicles are amortized on a straight-line basis using the following annual rates:

Parking lots 10%
Buildings 2.5% -6.67%
Building service equipment/equipment 5% - 20%

Vehicles are amortized an a declining balance basis using 30% as the annual rate and are included in building service
equipment/equipment.

Compensated absences

Compensation expense is accrued for all employees as entitlement to these payments is earned, in accordance with the Authority's
benefit plans for vacation.

Pre-Retirement entitlement obligation

The Authority has recorded an accrual based on an actuarial valuation that includes employees who qualify at the fiscal year-end
date and an estimate for the remainder of the employees who have not yet met the criteria below. Funding for the retirement
entitlement prior to March 31, 2004 is recoverable from Manitoba Health. Effective April 1, 2004, any increase in the entitlement
is the responsibility of the Brandon Regional Health Authority.

The benefits paid during the year by the Authority amounted to $ 1,279,331 (2009 - $1,087,770.) and are included in the statement
of operations. The service costs for the year were $2,222,016 (2009 - $288,447).

Healthcare Employees Pension Plan

The Authority's contractual commitment, based on an actuarial valuation, for the pre-retirement entittlement for members of the
Healthcare Employees Pension Plan is to pay out four days of salary for each year of service upon retirement if the employee
complies with one of the following conditions:

- have ten years service and have reached the age of 55 or

- qualify for the "eighty" rule which is calculated by adding the number of years service to the age
of the employee

- retire at or after age 65

- terminate employment at any time due to permanent disability

Civil Service Superannuation Plan

The Authority's contractual commitment, based on an actuarial valuation, for the pre-retirement entitlement for members of the
Civil Service Superannuation Plan is to pay out, at retirement to employees who have reached the age of 55 and have nine or
more years of service, the following severance pay:

- one week of severance pay for each year of service up to 15 years of service
- two weeks of additional severance pay for each increment of five years service past the 15 years of
service up to 35 years of service

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the Authority's accrued pre-retirement entitlements include mortality

and withdrawal rates, a discount rate of 6.70% (2009 -6.70%) and a rate of salary increase of 3.50% (2009 - 3.50%) plus age
related merit/promotion scale with nil for disability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Due From Manitoba Health - Employee Future Benefits

The amount recorded as a receivable from the Province for pre-retirement costs was initially determined based on the value of the
corresponding actuarial liability for pre-retirement costs as at March 31, 2004. Subsequent to March 31, 2004, the Province has
included in its on-going annual funding to the Authority, an amount equivalent to the change in pre-retirement liability, which
includes annual interest accretion related to the receivable. The receivable will be paid by the Province when it is determined that
the funding is required to discharge the related pre-retirement liabilities.

Due to/from Manitoba Health
In Globe Funding

In Globe funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for Regional Health Authority programs unless otherwise specified as
Out of Globe funding. This includes volume changes and price increases for the five service categories of Acute Care, Long Term
Care, Community and Mental Health, Home Care and Emergency Response and Transport. All additional costs in these five
service categories must be absorbed within the global funding provided.

Any operating surplus greater than 2% of budget related to In Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the statement of
financial position as a payable to Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba Health & Healthy Living reviews the financial
statements. At that time Manitoba Health determines what portion of the approved surplus maybe retained by the Authority, or
repaid to Manitoba Health.

Under Manitoba Health policy the Regional Health Authority is responsible for In Globe deficits, unless otherwise approved by
Manitoba Health.

Out of Globe Funding
Out of Globe funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for specific programs.

Any operating surplus related to Out of Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the statement of financial position as a payable
to Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba Health reviews the financial statements. At that time Manitoba Health determines
what portion of the approved surplus may be retained by the Authority, or repaid to Manitoba Health.

Conversely, any operating deficit related to Out of Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the statement of financial position
as a receivable from Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba Health & Healthy Living reviews the financial statements. At
that time, Manitoba Health determines their final funding approvals which indicate the portion of the deficit that will be paid to the
Authority. Any unapproved costs not paid by Manitoba Health are absorbed by the Authority.

Future accounting changes

The Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) will be replacing Canadian generally accepted accounting principles with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for publicly accountable profit-oriented enterprise with January 1, 2011 as the changeover
date. While these standards are not developed with reference to not-for-profit organization, the AcSB has agreed that a not-for-profit
organization can apply IFRS if that approach meets the needs of the users of its financial statements. Accordingly the Authority will
have the option use IFRS.

In March 2010, the AcSB issued an Exposure Draft which provides not-for-profit organizations in the private sector the option to
follow accounting principles that are not substantively different from the current accounting policies for not-for-profit organizations.
These new standards would be effective for financial years beginning on or after January 1, 2012. The current standards applicable
to not-for-profit organizations will remain in effect until organizations have adopted the new standards.

Capital Management

The Entity’s objective when managing capital is to maintain sufficient capital to cover its costs of operations. The Entity’s capital
consists of net assets.

There were no changes in the Entity’s approach to capital management during the period.
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2010 2009
Manitoba Health
Retroactive Salary Increases $ 1,223,133 $ 577,451
PreRetirement Funding 2,205,500 -
Other Operations 1,311,173 2,266,718
Out of Globe - 2006/07 16,506 16,506
Out of Globe - 2007/08 114,243 34,273
Out of Globe - 2008/09 (254,220) (363,799)
Out of Globe - 2009/10 (360,970) -
4,255,365 2,531,149
Patients 634,331 634,516
Government of Canada - Goods and Services Tax 335,055 197,353
BRHC Foundation , BGH Auxiliary and Westman Laboratory - 937,565
Sundry 1,041,014 992,541
6,265,765 5,293,124
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (738,509) (1,363,960)
3 5,527,256 $ 3,929,164

LOAN RECEIVABLE

On August 31, 2009 the Authority advanced the Brandon YMCA $320,000 to establish and operate a day care facility. Interest is
at the rate of three and one-half percent (3.5%), calculated from the date of advance compounded semi-annually. The term of the
loan is thirteen (13) years. During the first three years from and after the advance date the borrower pays interest only. During
the remaining ten (10) years the borrower will make equal quarterly payments of Principal and Interest in the amount of $9,561.

INVESTMENTS
2010
Cost Fair Value
Government of Canada Bonds $ 44591 $ 43,619
Other Bonds 3,118,068 3,201,306
Other 27,959 27,959
$ 3,190,618 $ 3,272,884
2009
Cost Fair Value
Government of Canada Bonds $ 41,647 $ 46,392
Other Bonds 3,129,318 3,288,452
Other 477,880 494,386
$ 3,648,845 $ 3,829,230

The fair values of the investments are based on the year end quoted market bid price.

10
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6 CAPITAL ASSETS

2010
Accumulated Net Book
Cost Amortization Value
Land & parking lots $ 4,703,945 1,100,597 3,603,348
Buildings 109,857,694 38,896,123 70,961,571
Building service equipment/equipment 94,452,065 74,371,445 20,080,620
Construction in Progress 15,880,532 - 15,880,532
$ 224,894,236 114,368,165 110,526,071
2009
Accumulated Net Book
Cost Amortization Value
Land & parking lots $ 4,599,513 1,757,986 2,841,527
Buildings 109,749,726 35,462,092 74,287,634
Building service equipment/equipment 90,778,635 68,987,656 21,790,979
Construction in Progress 3,203,595 - 3,203,595
$ 208,331,469 106,207,734 102,123,735

7 BANK ADVANCES

The bank advances have been authorized by the Province of Manitoba . Interest is paid monthly based on an interest rate of

prime plus 1.00%. The amount available for operating credit is $8,500,000.

8 LONG TERM DEBT 2010 2009
City of Brandon
6.5% unsecured loan, repayable $159,529 annually, including
interest, maturing 2015. 643,547 $ 754,061
Less current portion (117,699) (110,515)
525,848 $ 643,546

The fair value of the Authority's long term debt is $669,485 as at March 31, 2010 ($790,615 - 2009) calculated using discounted
cash flow analysis based on incremental borrowing rates currently available for similar terms and maturities.

Principal payments due in the next five years are as follows:

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015

117,699
125,349
133,497
142,174
124,827

1"
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a)

DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS
Expenses of future periods

Deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods represent unspent externally restricted grants for equipment and
construction projects.

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,639,192 $ 1,727,395
Add amount received 2,732,900 2,380,147
Less amount transferred to deferred contributions
related to capital assets (25,125) (122,708)
Less amount amortized to revenue in the year (2,505,138) (6,990,423)
Balance, end of year $ 1,741,829 $ (3,005,589)

Capital assets

Deferred capital contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized amount and unspent amount of grants and
donations received for the purchase of capital assets. The amortization of capital contributions is recorded as revenue in the
statement of operations.

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 97,986,025 $ 99,479,066
Additional contributions received 12,148,057 5,374,674
Add amount transferred from expenses of future periods 25,125 122,708
Less amounts amortized to revenue in the year (7,194,242) (6,990,423)
Balance, end of year $ 102,964,965 $ 97,986,025

The balance of unamortized capital contributions related to capital assets consists of the following:

2010 2009
Unamortized capital contributions used to
purchase assets $ 106,292,710 $ 08,143,694
(Overspent) contributions (3,327,745) (157,669)
$ 102,964,965 $ 97,986,025

12
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11

DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS - Capital Assets (Continued)

During the 2006 fiscal year, the Province of Manitoba assumed the long term and third party debt of the Authority and was
recognized as borrowings in the Public Accounts of the Province of Manitoba. Accordingly, the Authority has classified the

long term debt and short term financing as deferred contributions. The following long term debt related to third party's is included
in deferred contributions:

2010 2009

School of Nursing Building

5.75% mortgage, repayable $27,241 semi-annually,

including interest, maturing 2019. The mortgage is

secured by land and buildings. $ 378,645 $ 409,996

Fairview Home

6% mortgage, repayable $3,907 monthly,

including interest, maturing 2018. The mortgage is

secured by land and buildings. 314,833 342,177

Fairview Home

7 1/2% mortgage, repayable $2,778 monthly,

including interest, maturing 2023. The mortgage is

secured by land and buildings. 282,255 294,259

INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS
Invested in capital assets is calculated as follows:

2010 2009

(Restated - Note 17)

Capital assets $ 110,526,071 $ 102,123,735
Funds held by Manitoba Health
Amounts financed by:

Deferred contributions (106,292,710) (98,143,694)
Accounts Payable (1,008,023) (575,716)
Loan and mortgage payable (1,480,254) (1,680,769)
$ 1,745,084 $ 1,723,555

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Internally Restricted

The Board of Directors has restricted net assets related to non Manitoba Health activities of $ 4,048,769 (2009 - $3,784,734).
The revenue earned on these restricted assets is used for the operations of these non Manitoba Health activities and for
possible capital asset purchases.

Externally Restricted

Net assets are restricted for scholarship purposes and are subject to externally imposed restrictions that the assets be
maintained permanently. Investment income from this fund is restricted for a scholarship.

13
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Manitoba Health REVENUE

2010 2009
Allocation per Funding Document $ 162,071,971  $ 168,320,284
Add: MAHCP Accrual 78,698 315,391
CUPE Accrual 45,360 161,000
HEB Extended Health Premiums 593,622 -
MGEU Lab Market Adjustment - 411,704
MGEU Community - 68,494
Maternity Leave Top Up 183,661 -
Waiting Lists Initiative Funding 92,713 409,421
Colonoscopy Funding 120,000 87,500
STI Funding - 51,000
Accelerated 09/10 Funding - 623,500
Proctor Funding - 40,154
2008/09 Targeted Funding - 202,401
PCH Funding 369,559 163,909
One Time Funding - HIN1 435,054 -
One Time Funding - Immunization 58,563 -
One Time Funding - PreRetirement 2,205,500 -
Total Funding Approved by Manitoba Health 166,254,701 170,854,758
Add: Other Income
Non-Global Reconciliation (258,374) 346,779
Separately Funded Programs 62,011 20,130
Fee for Service Income 4,643,194 4,654,327
Less: Amounts recorded in Deferred Contributions (1,037,024) (2,263,737)
Total Revenue from Manitoba Health $ 169,664,508 $ 173,612,257

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Authority has entered into various operating lease commitments. The amounts payable over the next five years are
as follows:

2011 2,185,047
2012 2,116,484
2013 1,938,732
2014 1,501,937
2015 865,245

The Authority is subject to individual legal actions arising in the normal course of business. It is not expected that these legal

actions will have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Authority.

Effective January 1, 2003 the Authority joined in the Healthcare Insurance Reciprocal of Canada ("HIROC"). HIROC is a
pooling of the public liability insurance risks for its members. All members of the pool pay annual premiums which are
actuarially determined. All members are subject to reassessment for losses, if any, experienced by the pool for the years

in which they were members, and these losses could be material. No reassessments have been made to March 31, 2010.

14
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PENSION PLAN

The majority of the employees of the Authority are members of the Healthcare Employees Pension Plan (HEPP), which is a multi-
employer defined benefit pension plan. HEPP plan members will receive benefits based on the length of service and on the average
of annualized earnings calculated on the best five of the eleven consecutive years prior to retirement, termination or death, that
provide the highest earnings. The costs of the benefit plan are not allocated to the individual health entities within the related group.
As a result, individual entities within the related group are not able to identify their share of the underlying assets and liabilities.
Therefore, the plan is accounted for as a defined contribution plan.

Pension assets consist of investment grade securities. Market and credit risk on these securities are managed by HEPP. Pension
contributions are at 6.8% of basic annual earnings up to the Canada Pension Plan ceiling plus 8.4% of basic earnings in excess
of the Canada Pension Plan ceiling contributed by employees. The funding objective is for employer contributions to HEPP to
remain a constant percentage of employee's contributions.

The most recent actuarial valuation filed with the Manitoba Pension Commission for the plan was at December 31, 2007, and
indicated that the plan was fully funded. Changes in market conditions and other assumptions may affect the funded status. The
next actuarial valuation to be filed with the Manitoba Pension Commission will be as at December 31, 2010. Actual Authority
contributions to HEPP made during the year on behalf of its employees amounted to $ 5,932,207 (2009 - $5,361,178) and are
included in the statement of operations.

The remaining employees of the Authority are eligible for membership in the provincially operated Civil Service Superannuation Fund.
The pension liability for Authority employees is included in the Province of Manitoba's liability for the Civil Service Superannuation
Fund. Accordingly, no provision is required in the financial statements relating to the effects of participation in the pension plan by
the Authority and its employees.

NON-DEVOLVED FACILITIES

The Authority has a contract arrangement with The Salvation Army Dinsdale Personal Care Home, which provides long term care in
the community of Brandon. In addition, the organization carries out the charitable, educational, religious and other benevolent
objects and purposes of the Salvation Army. The organization is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act.

Until December 2005 the Authority had the responsibility of providing management services to Westman Regional Laboratory. At
that time the management was transferred to Diagnostic Services of Manitoba (DSM). Transition of the operations of Westman
Laboratory was completed in 2010. The operations of Westman Lab are consolidated in the financial statements of DSM and
therefore will no longer be noted in the Authority's statements.

The Authority does recognize that since there is economic dependence of Dinsdale Personal Care Home accounting control does
exist between the Authority and this organization. In light of this, management of the Authority has provided a financial summary of
this organization. All revenues received by the Authority on behalf of Dinsdale Personal Care Home are reflected in the Authorities
revenues and payments issued to this entity are recorded as expenses.

Financial statements of Dinsdale Personal Care Home are available upon request.

The Salvation Army Dinsdale Personal Care Home

2010 2009

FINANCIAL POSITION
Total assets $ 3,067,026 $ 2,980,755
Total liabilities $ 2,856,320 $ 2,787,672
Total net assets 210,706 193,083

$ 3,067,026 $ 2,980,755
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Total revenues $ 4,535,473 $ 4,227,912
Total expenses (4,529,300) (4,218,651)
Net operating surplus (deficit) $ 6,173 $ 9,261

15
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COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the prior year's figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.

RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR PERIODS

The prior years figures have been restated to reflect assets not transferred to DSM that should have been recorded in the
Authority. The net effect of the restatement for the year ended March 31, 2009 is to increase the assets and deferred contributions

by $130,040.

Balance at March 31, 2009 previously stated

Adjustment
Balance at March 31, 2009 as restated

Deferred Capital

Capital Assets Contributions
101,993,695 (98,013,654)
130,040 (130,040)
102,123,735 (98,143,694)

16
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KPMG LLP Telephone (204) 957-1770

Chartered Accountants Fax (204) 957-0808
Suite 2000 - One Lombard Place Internet www.kpmg.ca
Winnipeg MB R3B 0X3

Canada

AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Governing Council of The Salvation Army in Canada

We have audited the statement of financial position of The Salvation Army Dinsdale Personal Care
Home as at March 31, 2010 and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows
for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Home’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Home as at March 31, 2010 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as
a whole. The current year's supplementary information included in the schedule is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
supplementary information has been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Kins 42
e

Chartered Accountants

Winnipeg, Canada
June 17, 2010

KPMG LLP, is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of
independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss cooperative.
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE
HOME

Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

2010 2009
Assets
Current assets:
Cash (note 5) $ 308,764 $ 254,166
Accounts receivable 25,039 17,915
Inventory 30,561 23,670
Prepaid expenses 1,289 5,450
Employee benefits recoverable from Brandon Regional
Health Authority [note 7(a)] 190,916 190,916
Due from Brandon Regional Health Authority (note 4) 126,488 161,768
683,057 653,885
Employee future benefits recoverable from Brandon Regional
Health Authority [note 7(b)] 199,105 199,105
Cash held for restricted purposes (note 5) 136,163 -
Resident trust deposits 14,009 14,371
Property, plant and equipment (note 6) 2,034,692 2,113,394

$ 3,067,026 $ 2,980,755
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE
HOME

Statement of Operations

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

BRHA Contributed and 2010 2009
services  other services Capital Total Total
Revenue:
Brandon Regional Health
Authority (note 11) $ 3,249,194 - 3 - $ 3,249,194 $ 2,970,673
Donations and fundraising - 14,456 - 14,456 12,381
Residential charges 964,178 - - 964,178 912,288
Amortization of deferred
contributions (note 8) 11,473 - 122,632 134,105 143,529
Ministry grant (note 13) - 70,000 - 70,000 60,000
Interest income - 6,489 - 6,489 13,208
Red Shield Appeal (note 14) - 65,000 - 65,000 65,000
Other 24,328 7,723 - 32,051 50,833
4,249,173 163,668 122,632 4,535,473 4,227,912
Expenses:
Salaries 2,815,929 52,473 - 2,868,402 2,736,678
Employee benefits 622,042 5,205 - 627,247 525,453
Administration (note 14) - 65,000 - 65,000 50,000
Health and education levy 60,843 — — 60,843 57,193
Other supplies and expenses (note 13) 537,175 55,124 - 592,299 511,676
Physical plant 163,982 - - 163,982 180,024
Interest on long-term debt (note 9) 24,347 - - 24,347 29,661
Amortization of property, plant
and equipment — — 127,180 127,180 127,966
4,224,318 177,802 127,180 4,529,300 4,218,651
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenses $ 24855 $ (14,134) $ (4,548) $ 6,173 $ 9,261

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE

HOME

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

Invested in Internally
property, plant restricted 2010 2009
and equipment funds Unrestricted Total Total
Balance, beginning of year $ 71,705 $§ 178360 $  (56,982) $ 193,083 $ 183,822
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenses (4,548) (14,134) 24,855 6,173 9,261
Transfer of property maintenance
account (note 5) - 11,450 - 11,450 -
Inter-fund transfer 9,611 (7,072) (2,539) - -
Balance, end of year $ 76,768 $ 168,604 $  (34,666) $ 210,706 $ 193,083

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE
HOME

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

2010 2009
Operating activities:
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 6,173 $ 9,261
Transfer of property maintenance account cash balance
(note 5) 11,450 -
Transfer of capital deposit account cash balance
(note 5) 125,092 -

Items not affecting cash:

Amortization of capital assets 127,180 127,966
Amortization of deferred contributions (134,105) (143,529)
135,790 (6,302)

Changes in non-cash working capital balances:

Accounts receivable (7,124) 7,757
Prepaid expenses 4,161 (363)
Inventory (6,891) 5,751
Trust - residents (878) (593)
Accrued pre-retirement entitlement obligation 39,623 (2,274)
Accrued vacation payable 28,460 1,918
Due from (to) Brandon Regional Health Authority 35,280 (220,097)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (32,214) 10,668
196,207 (203,535)

Financing activities:
Additional deferred contributions received 150,775 168,359
Repayments of long-term debt (107,743) (103,420)
43,032 64,939

Investing activities:

Capital asset purchases (48,478) -
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 190,761 (138,596)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 254,166 392,762
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 444,927 $ 254,166
Supplementary cash flow information:

Interest paid $ 24,347 $ 29,661

Interest received 6,489 13,208

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of cash and cash held for restrictive purposes.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE
HOME

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2010

Purpose of organization:

The Salvation Army Dinsdale Personal Care Home (the Home or the Ministry Unit) provides long-
term care in the community of Brandon. The Home is owned and operated by the Governing Council
of the Salvation Army in Canada (the Governing Council) pursuant to the Province of Manitoba Acts
and Regulations governing supervisory and personal care homes, and licensed under the provisions
of the Brandon Regional Health Authority (BRHA) and is associated with The Salvation Army
Territorial Headquarters (THQ), the primary charitable entity of the Salvation Army Canada &
Bermuda Territory (the Territory). In addition, the Home carries out the charitable, educational,
religious and other benevolent objects and purposes of the Salvation Army. The Home is a registered
charity under the Income Tax Act and accordingly is exempt from income taxes. The Ministry Unit is
a controlled entity of The Governing Council; however it is not currently included in its financial
statements. A project is currently underway to allow the publication of consolidated financial
statements reflecting operating units in Canada and Bermuda by 2011.

1. Continuity of operations:

The ability of the Home to continue as a going concern, to realize the carrying value of its
assets and to discharge its liabilities when due is dependent on the Home continuing to operate
at a break-even or surplus position in future years, and the continued support of the Brandon
BRHA.

2, Significant accounting policies:

(a) Basis of presentation:

The accounts are maintained on the accrual method of reporting income and expenses.

(b) Revenue recognition:

The Home follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Restricted
contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are
incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable
if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably
assured. Contributions restricted for the purchase of property, plant and equipment are
deferred and amortized into revenue on a straight-line basis, at a rate corresponding with
the amortization rate for the related property, plant and equipment.

The Home is funded primarily by the Province of Manitoba in accordance with budget
arrangements established by BRHA. Operating grants are recorded as revenue in the
period to which they relate. Grants approved but not received at the end of a period are
accrued. Where a portion of a grant relates to a future period, it is deferred and recognized
in that subsequent period.
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE
HOME

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

2. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(c) Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Contributed property, plant and
equipment are recorded at fair value at the date of contribution. Repairs and maintenance
costs are charged to expense. Betterments which extend the estimated useful life of an
asset are capitalized. When an asset no longer contributes to the Home’s ability to provide
services, its carrying amount is written down to its residual value. Property, plant and
equipment are amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the

assets:

Asset

Building

Equipment and furnishings 5-10years

Computer equipment

(d) Operating fund surpluses:

Approved operating fund surpluses are repayable to the BRHA.

(e) Pre-retirement entitlement obligation:

The Home has a contractual commitment to pay out to employees four days salary per

year of service upon retirement subject to meeting certain criteria:

e have ten years service and have reached the age of 55 or

e qualify for the “eighty” rule which is calculated by adding the number of years service to

the age of the employee.

The Home has recorded an accrual based on an actuarial valuation that includes
employees who qualify at each period end and an estimate for the remainder of the

employees who have not yet met the criteria above.

(f) Employee future benefits recoverable from BRHA:

Funding for vacation entitlement and pre-retirement obligations is provided by Manitoba
Health through BRHA as part of its regular budget in the period in which the expenditures
are made. Vacation entitlements and pre-retirement entitlements that will be funded by
BRHA have been recorded in the statement of financial position as recoverable from

BRHA.
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE
HOME

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

2. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(g) Internally restricted net assets:

Internally restricted net assets consists of donations, bequests and other contributions
received by the Home and by The Salvation Army on behalf of the Home. It is drawn upon
to cover costs not covered by funding from BRHA. As at March 31, 2009, $53,000 was
owed by the unrestricted fund to the internally restricted fund and was repaid during the

year.

(h) Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those

estimates.

(i) Financial instruments:

Financial assets and liabilities held-for-trading are measured at fair value with gains and
losses recognized in excess of revenue over expenses. Financial instruments classified as
held-to-maturity, loans and receivables and other liabilities are measured at amortized cost.
Available-for-sale financial instruments are measured at fair value, with unrealized gains

and losses recognized directly in unrestricted net assets.

Cash and cash held for restricted purposes are designated as held-for-trading. Resident
trust deposits, accounts receivable, due from BRHA and employee future benefits
recoverable from BRHA are classified as loans and receivables. Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities, accrued vacation payable, resident trust accounts payable and long-term
debt are classified as other liabilities. The Home does not have held-to-maturity or

available-for-sale financial instruments.

Except for held-for-trading designated financial instruments, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets or liabilities are
accounted for as part of the respective asset or liability’s carrying value at inception and
amortized over the expected life of the financial instrument using the effective interest
method. For held-for-trading financial assets and liabilities, transaction costs are recorded

in the statement of operations as incurred.
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE
HOME

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

2. Significant accounting policies (continued):

The Home has adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) Handbook
Section 3861, Financial Instruments - Disclosure and Presentation. In accordance with the
Accounting Standards Board’s decision to exempt not-for-profit organizations from the
disclosure requirements with respect to financial instruments contained within Section
3862, Financial Instruments - Disclosures, and Section 3863, Financial Instruments -
Presentation, the Home has elected not to adopt these standards in its financial statements

(i) Allocation of fundraising/general administration expenses:

The Home classifies expenses on the statement of operations by function. The Home does

not allocate expenses between functions in the statement of operations.
(k) New accounting standards:

(i) Amendments to accounting standards that apply to not-for-profit organizations:

Effective April 1, 2009, the Home adopted the CICA amendments to Section 4400 of
the CICA Handbook. Amongst other items, these amendments eliminate the
requirements to show net assets invested in capital assets as a separate component of
net assets, clarify the requirement for revenue and expenses to be presented on a
gross basis when the not-for-profit organization is acting as principal and require a
statement of cash flows. As a result of adoption of these recommendations, the Home
has changed the presentation of the statement of operations for the year ended

March 31, 2010.

(i) Amendments to Section 1000, Financial Statement Concepts:

Effective April 1, 2009, the Home adopted the CICA amendments to Section 1000 of
the CICA Handbook. These amendments clarified the criteria for recognition of an
asset or liability, removing the ability to recognize assets or liabilities solely on the basis
of matching of revenue and expense items. Adoption of these recommendations had

no effect on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2010.

Page 1217



THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE
HOME

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

3. Financial instruments:
Interest rate risk:
Interest rate risk is the risk to the Home’s earnings that arises from fluctuations in interest rates
and the degree of volatility of these rates. The Home does not use derivative instruments to
reduce this risk.
Credit risk:
Credit risk arises from the potential that a counterparty will fail to perform its obligations.
However, most of the Home’s accounts receivable are amounts due from government funding
authorities, which minimizes credit risk.
Fair value:
The fair value of accounts receivable, resident trust deposits, due from BRHA, employee
benefits recoverable from BRHA, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, resident trust
accounts payable and accrued vacation payable approximate their carrying value due to their

short-term maturity.

The fair value of long-term debt approximates the carrying value as management believes the
interest rates are comparable to market values.

4, Due from (to) Brandon Regional Health Authority:

2010 2009

Amounts receivable from BRHA $ 126,488 $ 161,768

5. Cash and cash equivalents:

The Ministry Unit maintains a chequing account with the Royal Bank of Canada for its
operations, as well as several deposit accounts held with THQ of Divisional Headquarters
(DHQ). Under the Salvation Army’s policies, all ministry units invest surplus funds with THQ,
rather than with external financial institutions. THQ accounts bear interest at prevailing market
rates based on the type of account.
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE
HOME

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

5.

Cash and cash equivalents (continued):

Cash and cash equivalents held at March 31 were as follows:

2010 2009
Operating bank account $ 213,037 $ 48,087
THQ general deposit account 79,806 20,366
Other 15,921 185,713
308,764 254,166
THQ capital deposit account 127,188 -
DHQ property maintenance account 8,975 -
136,163 -

$ 444,927 $ 254,166

Funds held in the general deposit account are available for withdrawal on demand and may be
used for the general operating needs of the Home.

Effective April 1, 2009, the Home was required to reflect its capital deposit account (CDA) held
at THQ and its property maintenance account held at DHQ in the financial records in
preparation for the publication of consolidated financial statements of the Salvation Army
Canada & Bermuda Territory. The opening balance of the property maintenance account as of
April 1, 2009 has been recorded as a transfer to internally restricted funds in the statement of
changes in net assets. The capital deposit account has been recorded as a direct increase in
deferred contributions (note 8(b)). The capital deposit account and property maintenance
accounts opened the year with balances of $125,092 and $11,450.

Funds held in the capital deposit account represent funds that are restricted for capital
purposes (i.e., acquisition, repair and replacement of long-lived assets); however, these funds
can be withdrawn for operating purposes with the agreement of DHQ, provided the foreseeable
capital needs of the Home have been met.

Funds held in property maintenance accounts represent funds that have been set aside by the

Ministry Unit and are available for building repairs and maintenance, property and liability
insurance and property taxes.
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE
HOME

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

6. Property, plant and equipment:

2010 2009

Accumulated Net book Net book

Cost amortization value value

Land $ 133,615 $ - $ 133,615 $ 133,615

Buildings 4,218,592 2,380,076 1,838,516 1,959,273
Equipment and

furnishings 607,784 545,223 62,561 20,506

$ 4,959,991 $ 2,925,299 $ 2,034,692 $ 2,113,394

Title to the Home’s land and buildings is held by the Governing Council of the Salvation Army,

which owns and operates the Home.

7. Employee benefits:

(a) Vacation payable:

The BRHA funds a portion of the vacation pay benefits of the Home, which is limited to the
amount established at March 31, 2004 of $190,916. This amount is included in employee
benefits recoverable from BRHA in the statement of financial position. Each year the Home

is expected to fund the change in the liability from its annual funding.

(b) Pre-retirement entitlement obligation:

The Home has undertaken an actuarial valuation as of March 31, 2010 of the accrued pre-
retirement entittement obligation. The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in
measuring the Home’s accrued pre-retirement entitlement obligation include mortality and

withdrawal rates, a discount rate of 4.9 percent (2009 - 6.7 percent), a rate

of salary

increase of 4 percent (2009 - 3.5 percent) plus age related merit/promotion scale and a

factor ranging from 0 - 3.00 percent (2009 - 0 - 2.28 percent) for disability.

The amount of funding which will be provided by BRHA for these pre-retirement benefits of
$199,105 was initially determined based on the accrued pre-retirement entitlement
obligation at March 31, 2004, and was recorded as employee future benefits recoverable
from BRHA. The Home is responsible for funding the pre-retirement entitlement obligation
accumulated after March 31, 2004, including the interest accretion, through its annual

funding from BRHA.
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE
HOME

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

7. Employee benefits (continued):

The employee future benefits recoverable from BRHA has no specified terms of
repayment.

The fair value of the employee future benefits recoverable from BRHA approximates its
carrying value as the interest component described above is comparable to current market
rates.

8. Deferred contributions:

(a)

(b)

Expenses of future periods:

Deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods represent unspent externally
restricted funds for major repairs:

2010 2009

Balance, beginning of year $ 69,947 $ 35,987

Add funding received in current year 18,840 51,992

Less: Major repairs (11,473) (18,032)
Other (12,000) —

(4,633) 33,960

Balance, end of year $ 65,314 $ 69,947

Property, plant and equipment:

Deferred capital contributions related to property, plant and equipment represent the
unamortized amount and unspent amount of donations and grants received for the
purchase of property, plant and equipment and replacement of equipment. The
amortization of deferred capital contributions is recorded as revenue in the statement of
operations.

2010 2009

Balance, beginning of year $ 244,160 $ 254,281
Add:

Payments of mortgage principal (note 9) 107,743 103,420

Major equipment funding 21,960 21,960

Transfer of capital deposit account (note 5) 127,188 -

Other 12,136 (10,004)
Less:

Amounts amortized to revenue (122,632) (125,497)

146,395 (10,121)

Balance, end of year $ 390,555 $ 244,160
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE
HOME

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

8.

10.

Deferred contributions (continued):

The Home has an outstanding loan of $285,447 (2009 - $317,163) payable to the Province
of Manitoba. The Province has committed to fund payments of interest and principal on this
loan, but does so directly, and does not include these amounts in funding provided directly
to the Home. As the Province is funding the payment of principal and interest directly, the
loan is not presented as a separate liability on the statement of financial position, but was
recognized as an increase in deferred capital contributions when first incurred.

Long-term debt:

2010 2009
Canada Mortgage Housing Corporation, mortgage
payable, interest at 4.31%, repayable $15,058
monthly interest and principal, maturing 2021 $ 1,649,500 $ 1,757,243
Current portion (112,436) (107,833)
$ 1,537,064 $ 1,649,410

The Province of Manitoba, via the BRHA, provides funding for all payments of principal [note
8(b)] and interest on this debt. Interest expense, net of subsidies received from Manitoba
Housing for fiscal 2010 was $24,247 (2009 - $29,661). Principal payments expected in the

next five years are as follows:

2011 $ 112,436
2012 117,195
2013 122,578
2014 127,780
2015 133,347
Thereafter 1,036,164
$ 1,649,500

Invested in property, plant and equipment:
2010 2009
Property, plant and equipment $ 2,034,692 $ 2,113,394

Amounts financed by:

Deferred contributions, excluding unspent CDA (note 8) (263,367) (244,160)
Long-term debt (1,649,500) (1,757,243)
Relating to capital assets within internally restricted funds (45,057) (40,286)
$ 76,768 $ 71,705

Page 1222



THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE
HOME

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

1.

12.

Revenue - Brandon Regional Health Authority:

2010 2009

Total approved funding $ 3,397,737 $ 3,114,893
Less funding allocated to deferred contributions:

Equipment (21,960) (21,960)

Maijor repairs (18,840) (18,840)

Mortgage principal (107,743) (103,420)

Funding for operations $ 3,249,194 $ 2,970,673

Pension plan:

Substantially all of the employees of the Home are members of the Healthcare Employees
Pension Plan - Manitoba (the Plan), which is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan
available to all eligible employees of the participating facilities. Plan members will receive
benefits based on their length of service and on their average of annualized earnings
calculated on the best five of the eleven consecutive years prior to retirement, termination, or
death, that provide the highest earnings. The costs of the benefit plan are not allocated to the
individual facilities. As a result, individual participating facilities are not able to identify their
share of the underlying assets and liabilities and, accordingly, the Plan is accounted for as a
defined contribution plan.

Variances between actuarial funding estimates and actual experience may be material and any
differences are generally to be funded by the participating members. The most recent actuarial
valuation of the Plan as at December 31, 2007 reported the Plan had a solvency deficiency of
$61,050,000 that will be funded over five years commencing calendar 2008 out of current
contributions in each respective year. A change in underlying actuarial assumptions could
cause a change in the actuarial value of accrued pension benefits and required service
contributions. Contributions to the Plan made during the year by the Home on behalf of its
employees amounted to $165,038 (2009 - $154,124) and are included in the statement of
operations.
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE
HOME

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

13.

14.

Internally restricted fund balance:

The internally restricted fund balance comprises the following:

2010 2009
Property maintenance deposit $ 8,975 $ -
Other 159,629 178,360

$ 168,604 $ 178,360

Ministry grant revenue of $70,000 has been recorded in contributed services (internally
restricted) with an offsetting charge to BRHA services for management support services
received during the year ended March 31, 2010 (2009 - $60,000).

Related party transactions:

During the year, the Home had the following transactions with The Salvation Army:

2010 2009
Red Shield Appeal revenue designated for supervision $ 65,000 $ 65,000
Territorial Headquarters supervision expense 65,000 50,000
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THE SALVATION ARMY DINSDALE PERSONAL CARE

HOME

Schedule - Expenses

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

2010 2009
Salaries:
Activity $ 90,261 $ 86,376
Administration 102,370 139,262
Dieticians 297,530 288,057
Housekeeping 156,403 148,875
In-service director 47,870 39,042
Laundry 63,792 59,502
Nursing 1,938,601 1,811,562
Physical plant and equipment 119,102 111,407
$ 2,815,929 $ 2,684,083
Employee benefits $ 622,042 $ 521,243
Health and education levy $ 60,843 $ 57,193
Other supplies and expenses:
Activity $ 2,438 $ 2,198
Drug capitation 27,118 26,970
Administration 144,192 78,011
Housekeeping 21,655 22,111
In-service education 2,594 1,450
Laundry and linen 77,149 73,207
Nursing 70,338 77,187
Nutritional services 136,930 127,627
Plant maintenance 54,761 43,890
$ 537,175 $ 452,651
Physical plant:
Heat and lights $ 73,984 $ 83,488
Insurance 2,741 2,434
Property taxes 52,791 50,850
Water and sewer 20,470 24,143
Major repairs 11,472 19,109
Property 2,524 -
$ 163,982 $ 180,024
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KENDALL & PANDYA

Chartered Accountants Partners.... David Kendall, FCA *

300-31 Main St., P.O. Box 175, Flin Flon, MB R8A 1M7 (204) 687-8211 Fax 687-2957 Manisha Pandya, CA *
118 Cree Road, Thompson, MB R8N 0C1 (204) 778-7312 Fax 778-7919

* Operating as professionnal corporations

AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Chairperson and Board of Directors

We have audited the statement of financial position of Nor-Man Regional Health Authority Inc. as
at March 31, 2010 and the Statements of Operations, Net Assets, Deferred Contributions, and
Cash Flow for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Health
Authority’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Nor-Man Regional Health Authority Inc. as at March 31, 2010 and the results of its

operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generalily
accepted accounting principles.

Flin Flon, MB /<W g /%M

June 14, 2010 Chartered Accountants
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NOR-MAN REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT MARCH 31, 2010

ASSETS
Notes 2010
CURRENT ASSETS
Accounts receivable 2a $ 1,525,134
Due from Manitoba Health 2b 8,020,427
Inventories 448,780
Prepaid expenses 396,518
10,390,859
DUE FROM MANITOBA HEALTH 2c 2,654,372
CAPITAL ASSETS 5 30,937,648
$43,982,879
LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank indebtedness $ 6,805,357
Accounts payable 3,777,364

Due to Diagnostic Services Manitoba (DSM) - Benefit credits -
Accrued vacation benefit entitlements 3,770,244
Current portion of capital lease 50,771

Current portion of long-term debt 219,504
14,623,240
LONG-TERM DEBT 10 2,293,086
CAPITAL LEASE 12 100,890
DUE TO MANITOBA HEALTH 6,551,946
DUE TO DSM - PRE-RETIREMENT OBLIGATION 382,098
ACCRUED PRE-RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS 6 4,117,475
DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS 3
Expenses of future periods 2,216,414
Capital assets 26,917,736
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 4 3,032,570
Restricted f 6,607
Unrestricted (16,259,185)
$43,982,879

COMMITMENTS (Note 11)

Approved by the Board:

See accompanying notes.
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$ 1,504,356
5,455,943
420,839
634,596
8,015,734
2,654,372
32,740,558

$43,410,664

$ 1,513,984
3,932,127
257,520
3,887,000
47,946
302,576
9,941,153

2,630,937
151,661
4,600,000
290,828
3,567,943

1,401,478
28,730,941

3,335,421
6,077

(11,245,775)
$43.410,664



NOR-MAN REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2010

2010 2009
REVENUE
Manitoba Health - Note 7 $75,583,086 $70,127,513
Non-insured income 6,642,419 8,680,601
Other income 2,293,698 4,944,727
Amortization of deferred contributions 3,446,843 3,223,505
Ancillary revenue 1,645,118 1,309,457
89,611,164 88,366,803
EXPENSES
Acute care 35,165,535 36,411,362
Long-term care 10,762,422 10,161,290
Medical remuneration 15,204,855 13,288,341
Community services co-ordination 638,588 714,307
Community based mental heaith 1,625,119 1,352,167
Community based home care 5,170,681 4,971,564
Community based health 4,032,420 3,835,451
Land ambulance 2,705,142 2,603,913
Unallocated Regional health authority costs 5,206,125 4,662,971
Amortization of capital assets 3,423,067 3,211,311
Interest on capital lease 8,593 12,875
Northern Patient Transportation 7,734,744 6,982,568
Pre - retirement 817,742 664,496
Rosaire House Addictions Centre 742,306 707,452
Long-term care - Aging in Place 27,202 -
Ancillary expenses 1,662,354 1,587,366
94,926,895 91,167,434
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES 5,31 1 $ (2,800,631)

See accompanying notes.
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NOR-MAN REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2010

Investment in

Capital 2010 2009
Assets Restricted Unrestricted Total Total
Balance, beginning of year  $3,335,421 $6,077 $(11,245,775) $(7,904,277) $(5,103,646)
(Deficit) from operations (302,851) 530 (5.013,410) {5,315,731) (2,800,631)
Balance, end of year $3.032,570 $6.607  $(16.250,185) $13,.220,008)  $(7.904,277)
See accompanying notes.
NOR-MAN REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
STATEMENT OF DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2010
EXPENSES OF FUTURE PERIODS

Funds in Reserve

For Major Repairs Capital

and Improvements Donations  Grants Total Assets
Balance, beginning of year $130,838 $182,536 $1,088,104 $1,401,478 $28,730,941
Contributions 8,160 0 0 8,160 1,523,741
Transfer of funds from

Donations for capital assets 0 (36,420) 0 (36,420) 109,897

Donations 0 94,849 0 94,849 0
Amortization - capital 0 0 0 0 (3,446,843)
Grants 0 0 748,347 748,347 0
Balance, end of year —5138,908 $240.965 __$1.836.451 _$2.216414  $26,917,736

See accompanying notes.
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NOR-MAN REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

AS AT MARCH 31, 2010

2010 2009
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ (5,315,731) $(2,800,631)
Items not affecting cash
Amortization of capital assets 3,423,067 3,211,311
Amortization of deferred
contributions (3,446,843) (3,223,505)
Change in non-cash working capital (1,879,728) (270,613)
Change in pre-retirement liability (549,532) (326,279)
(7.768,767) (3,409.717)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets (316,834) (987,972)
Construction in progress expenditures (2,384,144) (2,106,072)
Increase in long-term debt 2,729,797 4,668,122
Receipt of contributions
relating to capital assets 1,633,639 3,862,865
Receipt of contributions relating to
expenses of future periods 814,936 357,171
2,477,394 5,794,114
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (5,291,373) 2,384,397
CASH (BANK INDEBTEDNESS),
beginning of year (1.513.984) (3.898.381)
CASH (BANK INDEBTEDNESS),
end of year $ (6.805,357) $(1,513,984)

See accompanying notes.
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NOR-MAN REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2010

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF THE ORGANIZATION

NOR-MAN Regional Healthy Authority Inc. (the “Authority”) is a corporation without share
capital continued under The Regional Health Authorities and Consequential Amendments
Act, Statues of Manitoba 1996 c.53. The Authority operates health care F\program_s and
services in a geographic region that extends from'Grand Rapids/Grand Rapids First
Nation in the southeast to Flin Flon in the northwest. Pukatawagan is also part of the
Regi_iqn. The Authority delivers its services through hospitals and other health care
facilities. Hospitals are located in Flin Flon, The Pas, and Snow Lake. The Authority is a
registered charity under the Income Tax Act and accordmgl¥, is exempt from income
taxes, provided requirements of the Income Tax Act are met.

ASSUMPTION OF RESPONSIBILITY FOR FACILITIES AND OPERATING AUTHORITY
Pursuant to certain terms and conditions under various transfer agreements, the Authority
took over management of facilities consisting of land and buildings together with
equ%pmen.t, other assets, liabilities and general operating authorify as of April 1, 1997 from
the following previously independently operating boards:

o The Board of Directors of the Flin Flon General Hospital, Flin Flon Personal Care
Corporation and Northem Lights Manor

o The Board of Directors of The Pas Health Complex
o The Board of Directors of the Snow Lake Medical Nursing Unit

o Manitoba Health (Community Services)

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAPf)for not for profit organizations and reflect the
following policies:
(a) CONTRIBUTED SERVICES

Because of the difficulty of determining the fair value, contributed services are not
recognized in the financial statements.

(b) INVENTORY
Medical, drugs and other supplies are valued at the lower of average invoice cost and net
realizable value. The Health Authority’s disclosure is in compliance with new CICA
section 3031.

(c)PRE-RETIREMENT ENTITLEMENT OBLIGATIONS

The Authority applies the accounting recommendations for employee future benefits
contained in Section 3461 of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants’ Handbook.
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NOR-MAN REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2010

(d) REVENUE RECOGNITION

(e)

()

(9)

The Authority follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions which include
donations and government grants.

Under the Health Insurance Act and Regulations thereto, the Authority is funded primarily by
the Province of Manitoba in accordance with budget arrangements established by the Ministry
of Health. Operating grants are recorded as revenue in the period to which they relate.
Grants approved, but not received, at the end of an accounting period are accrued. Where a
por_tlodn of a grant relates to a future period, it is deferred and recognized in that subsequent
period.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable, if the
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Externally restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related
expenses are recognized. Externally restricted donations are recognized as direct increases
in deferred contributions. Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the year
in which related expenses are recognized. Unrestricted investment income is recognized as
revenue when earned.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Purchased cadpital assets are recorded at cost. Contributed capital assets are recorded at fair
value at the date of contribution. Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to expense.
Improvements and betterments which extend the estimated useful life of an asset are
capitalized. When a capital asset has diminished its usefulness in providing the service, its
carrying amount is written down to its residual value.

The Authority has adopted the policy of amortizing its capital assets on a straight-line basis
using the following annual rates:

Land improvements 2.5%
Buildings 2.5%
Equipment 10.0%
Computer equipment 20.0%

No amortization is provided for construction in progress until the project is complete or until
the principal retirement of related debt commences.

EXTERNAL RESTRICTIONS

Net assets are restricted for endowment purposes, and are sutgject to e_xternal1ly imposed
restrictions that the assets be maintained permanently in the St. Paul Residents Trust Fund.
Investment income from this fund is restricted for residents’ expenses.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Entity's objlc_active when managing capital is to maintain sufficient capital to cover its costs
of operations. The Entity’s capital consists of net assets.

The Entity’'s capital management E'olic is to meet capital needs with working capital
advances from Manitoba Health and Healthy Living.

The Entity met its externally imposed capital requirements.

There were no changes in the Entity’s approach to capital management during the period.
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NOR-MAN REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2010

(h) REVENUE FROM MANITOBA HEALTH

(i)

In Globe Funding

In Globe funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for Regional Health Authority
programs unless otherwise specified as Out of Globe funding. This includes volume changes
and price increases for the five service categories of Acute Care, Long Term Care,
Community and Mental Health, Home Care and Emergency Response and Transport. All
additional costs in these five service categories must be absorbed from within the global
funding provided.

Any operating surplus greater than 2% of budget related to In Globe funding arrangements is
recorded on the statement of financial position as a payable to Manitoba Health until such
time as Manitoba Health reviews the financial statements. At that time Manitoba Health
determines what portion of the approved surplus may be retained by the Authority, or repaid
to Manitoba Health.

Under Manitoba Health policy the Regional Health Authority is responsible for In Globe
deficits, unless otherwise approved by Manitoba Health.

Out of Globe Funding
Out of Globe funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for specific programs.

Any operating surplus related to Out of Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the
statement of financial position as a payable to Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba
Health reviews the financial statements. At that time Manitoba Health determines what
portion of the approved surplus may be retained by the Authority, or repaid to Manitoba
Health.

Conversely, any operating deficit related to Out of Globe funding arrangements is recorded on
the statement of financial position as a receivable from Manitoba Health until such time as
Manitoba Health reviews the financial statements. At that time, Manitoba Health determines
their final funding approvals which indicate the portion of the deficit that will be paid to the
Authority. Any unapproved costs not paid by Manitoba Health are absorbed by the Authority.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and liabilities are initially recorded at fair value. Measurement in subsequent
periods depends on the financial instrument's classification. Financial instruments are
classified into one of the following five categories: held for trading; available for sale; held to
maturity; loans and receivables; and other financial liabilities. All financial instruments
classified as held for trading or available for sale are subsequently measured at fair value with
any change in fair value recorded in net earnings and other comprehensive income,
respectively. All other financial instruments are subsequently measured at amortized cost.
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NOR-MAN REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2010

The Health Authority has designated its financial instrument’s as follows:

Cash is classified as a financial asset held for trading and is measured at fair value with
gains and losses recognized in the statement of operations and net assets for the current
period.

Accounts receivable, and the amounts due from the Province of Manitoba are classified as
loans and receivables. These financial assets are recorded at their amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method with gains and losses recognized in the statement of
operations and net assets in the period the gain or loss occurs.

Accounts payable, and accrued vacation benefit entitlements are classified as other financial
liabilities. These financial liabilities are recorded at their amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method with gains and losses recognized in the statement of operations and net
assets in the period the gain or loss occurs.

Unless otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that The Health Authority is not exposed
to significant interest, currency or credit risk arising from these financial instruments.

The Health Authority has continued to apply section 3861, Financial Instruments —
Disclosures and Presentation in place of Sections 3862 and 3863.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of bank indebtedness, accounts receivable, due from Manitoba Health (Note
2b), accounts payable, due to DSM, and accrued vacation benefit entitlements approximates
their carrying values due to short-term maturity.

The carrying value of the due from Manitoba Health (Note 2¢) approximates its fair value, as
the annual interest accretion is funded.

ACCOUNTING POLICY CHANGES IN THE CURRENT YEAR

Not-For-Profit Organizations
The CICA amended a number of standards applicable to not-for-profit organizations
(NFPOs).

CICA 4400 Financial Statement Presentation by Not-For-Profit Organizations was amended
to:
¢ eliminate the requirement to treat net assets invested in capital assets as a separate
component of net assets and, instead, permit a not-for-profit organization (NFPO) to
present such an amount as a category of internally restricted net assets when it
chooses to do so;
» clarify that revenues and expenses must be recognized and presented on a gross
basis when a not-for-profit organization is acting as a principal in transactions;
make Section 1540 Cash Flow Statements applicable to NFPOs; and
make Section 1751 Interim Financial Statements applicable to NFPOs that prepare
interim financial statements in accordance with GAAP.
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NOR-MAN REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2010

Section 4430 Capital Assets Held by Not-For-Profit Organizations was amended to provide
additional guidance with respect to the appropriate use of the scope exemption for smaller
entities.

Section 4460 Disclosure of Related Party Transactions by Not-For-Profit Organizations was
amended to make the language in Section 4460 consistent with Section 3840 Related Party
Transactions.

Section CICA 4470 Disclosure of Allocated Expenses by Not-For-Profit Organizations
establishes disclosure standards for not-for-profit organizations that choose to classify their
expenses by function and allocate expenses from one function to another. The main
features of the new section are:

e A requirement for an organization that allocates its fundraising and general support
expenses to other functions to disclose the policies adopted for the allocation of
expenses among functions, the nature of expenses being allocated and the basis on
which such allocations have been made; and

* A requirement for an organization to disclose the amounts allocated from each of its
fundraising and general support functions and the amounts and functions to which
they have been allocated.

These new requirements are effective April 1, 2010 and will only require additional
disclosure in the financial statements.

(k) USE OF ESTIMATES/MEASUREMENT UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
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NOR-MAN REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2010

1. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The Authority is funded primarily by the Province of Manitoba in accordance with budget
arrangements established by the Ministry of Health.

2. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE/DUE FROM MANITOBA HEALTH

2010 2009
(a) Accounts Receivable
Ambulance $ 608,018 $ 523,643
Residents 638,153 909,032
Employees computer loans 86,529 95,405
SoyapmentofCanec e S
undry
’ ] ’ ]
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 33,493) 257 153)
(b) Due from Manitoba Health
Out of Globe - 2007 - $1,922,002
Out of Globe - 2008 787,214 915,801
Out of Globe - 2009 1,526,672 1,564,061
Out of Globe — 2010 873,306 -
Recovery from Saskatchewan
payable to Manitoba - 2005 - (891,946
payable to Manitoba - 2007 - (1,500,000
Ancillary Programs o 65,535 (23,021
Trades Wage Standardization 38,692 38,692
2009 — 2010 Matemity Leave Top-Up 31,405 -
Facility SugFort Settlement — 2009 41,190 -
Trades Settlement — 2009 4,224 -
2009 — 2010 Extended Health Benefit 184,926 -
Professional Technical Market Supplement - 109,204
Caﬂtal Operating — TPHC Dialysis - 377,040
PCH Sta mgi . 201,162 77,470
Patient Safety Officer - 5,270
CHA - Q4 _ 32,649 21,436
Vacation benefit entitlements 2,839,934 2,839,934
Capital Projects — Cash Payments 301,291 -
H1 N1 239,938 -
Pre Screening Interview (1,877) -
2009 - 2010 re-retlremen{hProgram 625,000 -
2009 — 2010 SK Health 13™ Payment 229,166 -
: $8,020.427 $5.455,943
(c) Due from Manitoba Health
Pre-retirement obligation entitlements 2,654.3 $2,654,372

The amount recorded as a receivable from the Province for pre-retirement costs was
initially determined based on the value of the corresponding actuarial liability for pre-
retirement costs as at March 31, 2004. Subsequent to March 31, 2004, the Province has
included in its ongoing annual funding to Norman Regional Health Authority Inc., an
amount equivalent to the change in the pre-retirement liability, which includes annual
interest accretion related to the receivable. The receivable will be paid by the Province
Y‘Vhbel'nt it is determined that the funding is required to discharge the related pre-retirement
iabilities.
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NOR-MAN REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2010

3. DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS

(a)
(i)

(i)

(iif)

(b)

Expenses of future periods

Funds in reserve for major repairs and improvements . _

Deferred contributions related to funds in reserve for major repairs and improvements
represent unspent externally restricted funds from the Province for major repairs and
improvements to buildings.

Donations
Deferred contributions related to donations represent externally restricted unspent
amounts of donations for various purposes.

Grants
Deferred contributions related to grants represent externally restricted unspent amounts
of grants for various programs.

Related to capital assets

Deferred capital contributions represent the unamortized amounts of grants received for
the purchase of capital assets. The amortization of capital contributions is recorded as
revenue in the statement of operations.

4. NET ASSETS INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Net assets invested in capital assets are calculated as follows:
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2010 2009
Capital assets $ 30,937,648 $ 32,740,558
Amounts financed by:
Eefen{ed codnttl;itbutlons (26,8{13 :/,gzg; (28,5;2,%61; g
ong-term de ( : ( :
5. CAPITAL ASSETS 2009
Accumulated Net
Cost Amortization Book Value
Land and land improvements 599,060 $ 294,735 $ 304,325
Buildin%s 46,650,038 22,137,865 24,512,173
Computer equipment 1,614,900 1,325,872 289,028
Equipment 5,215,021 2,770,963 2,444,058
Enargy Rowd Tt Ooarant 5232000 0 5735000
nergy Retro Fit Guarantee
$59,269,993 $26,529.435 $32.740.558
2010
Accumulated Net
ost Amortization Book Value
Land and land improvements $ 599,060 $ 303,127 $ 295,933
Buildings 49,034,182 24,752,871 24,281,311
Computer equipment 1,511,287 1,433,875 77,412
Equipment 5,666,114 3,087,718 2,578,396
bt o lae
nergy Retro Fit Guarantee
$60.515.239 $29,577.591 $30,937,648



NOR-MAN REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2010

ACCRUED PRE-RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS
2010 2009

Members of the Health Employees
Pension Plan and Civil Service

Superannuation Plan $4.117,475 $3.567.943

The Authorit?l s contractual commitment, based on an actuarial valuation, for the pre-retirement
entitlement for members of the Healthcare Employees Pension Plan and the Civil Service
Superannuation Plan is to pay out four days of salary per year of service upon retirement if the
employee complies with one of the following conditions:

(i)  bhave ten years service and have reached the age of 55 or

(i)  qualify for the “eighty” rule which is calculated by adding the number of years service to the age of
the employee

(iii) retire at or after age 65

(iv) terminate employment at any time due to permanent disability

The Authority undertook an actuarial valuation May 6, 2010 of the accrued retirement entitlements as at
March 31, 2010. The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the Authority’s accrued
retirement entitlements include mortality and withdrawal rates, a discount rate of 4.9% (2009 — 6.7%)
and a rate of salary increase of 4.0% (2009 - 3.5%) plus age related merit/promotion scale with no
provision for disability.

Funding for the retirement obligation is recoverable from Manitoba Health on an out of globe basis in an
amount equal to the amount receivable at March 31, 2004 of $2,654,372.

REVENUE FROM MANITOBA HEALTH

Revenue as per Manitoba Health’s March 15/10 funding document $77,243,366
Other Manitoba Health Revenue — One Time

Various (1,032)

RN (EP) Nursing Station (70,000)

Repayment on LT Debt 240,000

Surge Capacity (2,727)

Ancillary Programs (628,595)

09/10 Debt Servicing Payable to MB Health (82,070)

09/10 Infusion Pump Payment Received (469,730)

FFPCH Mortgage (2,172)

Ceiling Lifts (12,000) (1,028,326)
Add: Accruals approved by Manitoba Health:

09/10 Medical Remuneration 955,376

08/09 Facility Support 41,190

08/09 Trades 4,224

09/10 Maternity Leave Top-up 31,405

09/10 Extended Health Benefit 184,926

TP Dialysis — Bad Debt (232,040)

07/08 Immunization Funding (67,771)

09/10 H1N1 Invoice 179,042

09/10 Immunization Funding 40,585

09/10 PCH Staffing Q3 97,483

09/10 PCH Staffing Q4 103,678

09/10 Pre-Retirement Funding 625,000 1,973,098

Page 1297



8.

NOR-MAN REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2010

Deduct:

Payments on prior year receivables (1,374,306)

Other — RN (EP) Funding (23.100) (1,397,406)
Capital - Recognized as Deferred Contributions

Basic Equipment (136,000)

Basic Equipment (to be adjusted in 10/11) (56,892)

Principal — Acute (456,440)

Principal - LTC (192,618)

Reserve —LTC (8,160)

Interest — Acute (166,276)

Interest — LTC (9.105) (1,025,491)
Capital — Projects (Cash Reimbursement)

IT Small Project (79,782)

Capital Project — Grand Rapids Nursing Station (94,678)

Capital Project — St. Paul's (7.695) (182,156)
Revenue from Manitoba Health $75,583,086

PENSION PLAN

Most of the employees of the Authority are members of the Healthcare Employees Pension Plan (the
“Plan”), which is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan available to all eligible employees.
Plan members will receive benefits based on the length of service and on the average annualized
eamings calculated on the best five of the eleven consecutive years prior to retirement, termination
or death, that provide the highest earnings. The costs of the benefit plan are not allocated to the
individual entities within the related group. As a result, individual entities within the related group are
not able to identify their share of the underlying assets and liabilities. Therefore the plan is
accounted for as a defined contribution plan in accordance with the requirements of the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountant's Handbook section 3461.

Pension assets consist of investment grade securities. Market and credit risk on these securities are
managed by the Plan by placing plan assets in trust and through the Plan investment policy.
Pension expense is based on Plan management's best estimate, in consultation with its actuaries, of
the amount, together with the 5% of basic annual earnings up to the Canada Pension Plan ceiling
contributed by employees, required to provide a high level of assurance that benefits will be fully
represented by fund assets at retirement, as provided by the Plan. The funding objective is for
employer contributions to the Plan to remain a constant percentage of employee’ contributions.

Variances between actuarial funding estimates and actual experience may be material and any
differences are generally to be funded by the participating members. The most recent actuarial valuation
of the plan as at December 31, 2004, indicates that the plan is fully funded. Actual contributions to the
plan made during the year by the Authority on behalf of its employees amounted to $2,272,492 (2009 -
$2,166,649) and are included in the statement of operations.

Some of the employees of the Authority are eligible for membership in the provincially operated Civil
Service Superannuation Plan. The pension liability for Authority employees is included in the Province of
Manitoba’s liability for Civil Service Superannuation Fund. Accordingly, no provision is required in the
financial statements relating to the effects of participating in the plan by the Authority and its employees.
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NOR-MAN REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2010

9. RELATED ENTITIES

The Pas Health Complex Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) is a non-profit voluntary association whose
purpose is the betterment of health care at The Pas Health Complex facilities. While there is no formal
relationship between the Authority and this registered Charitable Foundation, the aims and objectives
coincide. The Authority regularly provides the Foundation with a listing of project/equipment requirements
for the Foundation to consider in their annual funding process. During the year the Authority received
donated equipment valued at $1,737 (2009 - $42,131).

10. ENERGY RETROFIT/MANUFACTURER’S LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LOAN

In the 2007-2008 fiscal year, the Health Authority entered into an agreement with the Government of
Canada, Department of Natural Resource to receive Energy Retro-Fit Assistance. Under the terms of the
agreement, MCW Custom Energy Solutions Ltd (MCW) manages and contracts the work to be performed
with the amounts, net of the grants, funded by Manufacturers Life Insurance Company (Manufacturers).
The Health Authority pays a monthly amount equivalent to the energy savings to Manufacturers with MCW
providing an annual payment to the Health Authority for any deficiency of estimated energy savings to
actual energy savings.

Although this project is expenditure neutral, the asset and loan have been reflected in these financial
statements to ensure payments to third parties are adequately reflected. An expected payout of
September, 2021 is implicit in this project with interest at the rate of 6.3%.

11. COMMITMENTS
(@) The Authority has entered into a 5 year operating lease at $60,000 per annum and two 15 year

operating leases totalling $211,200 per annum for buildings housing some of its operations.
Annual lease payments over the next five years are as follows:

2011 $211,200
2012 $211,200
2013 $211,200
2014 $211,200
2015 $211,200

Aggregate future minimum operating lease payments total $2,383,200.

(b) The Authority, on behalf of the Province of Manitoba, is making payments of principal and interest
related to Province of Manitoba long-term debt. The $3,138,790 principal balance is reflected as
deferred contributions related to capital assets. Funding is received from the Province for the
principal and interest payments. Principal payments are estimated over the next five years as

follows:
2011 $763,360
2012 $718,349
2013 $606,340
2014 $582,688
2015 $577,680
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NOR-MAN REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2010

12. CAPITAL LEASE

The Authority has entered into a 6 year capital lease with the Royal Bank of Canada to purchase beds

costing $294,532. Lease payments of $4,846 per month include interest at 5.74%. Lease principal
payments over the next five years are as follows:

2011 $ 50,771
2012 $ 53,764
2013 $47,126
2014 $ 0
2015 $ 0

Aggregate future capital lease payments total $164,764 including $13,103 of imputed expenses.
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Management’s Responsibility

To the Board of Directors of Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.:

Management has respensibility for preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements. This responsibility
includes selecting appropriate accounting principles and making objective judgments and estimates in accordance with

Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

In discharging its responsibilities for the integrity and fairness of the consolidated financial statements, management
designs and maintains the necessary accounting systems and related internal controls to provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are authorized, assets safeguarded and financial records are properly maintained to provide reliable

information for the preparation of financial statements.

The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee are composed primarily of Directors who are neither management nor
employees of the Organization with the exception of one board member. The Audit Committee is appointed by the
Board to review the consolidated financial statements in detail with management and to report to the Board prior to their .

approval of the consolidated financial statements for publication.

Meyers Norris Penny LLP, an independent firm of Chartered Accountants, is appointed by the Board of Parkland
Regional Health Authority Inc. to audit the consolidated financial statements and report directly to them; their report
follows. The external auditors have full and free access to, and meet periodically and separately with, both the Audit

Committee and management to discuss their audit findings.

Management y Management
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Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of the Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. as at March
31, 2010 and the consolidated statements of changes in net assets, operations and cash flows for the year then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Organization’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation,

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. as at March 31, 2010 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year

then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Kraa ,D P
Brandon, Manitoba M '*Ua/o‘” nArns -‘/"W“(j

June 17, 2010 Chartered Accountants

1461 Princess Ave., Brandon, Manitoba, R74 7L7, Phone: (204) 727-0661, 1-800-446-0890

2
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at March 31, 2010

Affiliates Devolved 2010 2009
Assets

Current
Cash 1,071,417 2,147,774 3,219,191 9,123,649
Current investments (Note 6) - 163,685 163,685 101,955
Accounts receivable (Note 4) 130,130 1,637.838 1,767,968 1,841,171
Due from Manitoba Health (Note 5) - 2,593,923 2,593,923 822,745
Inventory 121,703 1,375,228 1,496,931 1,369,661
Prepaid expenses 48,209 432,587 480,796 597,136
Inter-facility (998,370) 998,370 - -
373,089 9,349,405 9,722,494 13,856,317
Capital assets (Note 7} 8,120,508 74,728,738 82,849,246 82,955,280
Trust assets 36,538 35,610 72,148 35,767
Manitoba Health receivable—employee benefits obligation (Note 9} 1,634,175 8,533,598 10,167,773 10,167,773
10,164,310 92,647,351 102,811,661 107,015,137

Continued on next page

The accompanying notes are an integrod part of these financial siatements.
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at March 31, 2010

Affiliates Devolved 2010 2009
Continued from previous page
Liabilities
Current
Lines of credit - 778,966 778,966 70,000
Accounts payable and accruals 1,275,591 7,425,344 8,700,935 9,511,112
Employee benefits payable (Note 9) 1,324,461 8,721,158 10,045,619 9,364,874
2,600,052 16,925,468 19,525,520 18,945,986
Other long-term liabilities (Note &) - 518,314 518,314 52,919
Deferred benefits entitlement (Note 9) 718,135 3,624,587 4,342,722 3,277,335
Deferred contributions (Note 72) 7.916,569 74,920,733 82,837,302 84,221,728
Trust liabilities 36,538 33,610 72,148 33,767
8,671,242 79,099,244 87,770,486 87,587,749
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets (Note 1.3) 505,439 2,302,039 2,807,478 2,843,570
Internally restricted net assets 269,269 410,008 679,277 604,920
Unrestricted net assets (1,881,692) (6,089,407) (7,.971,100) (2,967,088
(1,106,984) (3.377.360) (4,484,345) 481,402
10,164,310 92,647,351 102,811,661 107,015,137
Approved on behalf of the Board
e Director e s s - Piréetot’

The accompanying hotes are an integral part of these financial stcatements.
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the vear ended March 31, 2010

Internally
Invested in restricied for 2010 2009
capital assets capital purposes Unrestricted Total Total
Balance, beginning of year 2,843,570 604,920 (2,967,088) 481,402 (2,429,658)
Reclassification (Note 18) (35,616) 35,616 - - 2,618,205
Restated 2,807,954 640,536 (2,967,088) 481,402 188,547
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
Over expenses (389,749) 78,865 (4,654,863) (4,965,747) 292,855
Investment in capital assets 391,996 (40,124) {351,872) - -
Internal transfers (2,723) - 2,723 - -
Balance, end of year 2,807,478 679,277 (7,971,100) (4,484,345) 481,402

The accompanying nofes are an infegral part of these financial stotements.
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the year ended March 31, 2010

Affiliates Devolved 2010 2009

Revenues
Manitoba Health operating income (Note 10} 13,087,665 103,808,599 116,896,264 109,232,766
Patient income 2,359,427 5,674,939 8,034,366 7,774,502
Other income 381,979 3,686,054 4,068,033 4,106,885
Amortization of deferred contributions 344,627 3,917,345 4,261,972 4,056,533
16,173,698 117,086,937 133,260,635 125,170,686

Expenses
Acute care 5,745,451 49,234,499 54,979,950 49,570,941
Long-term care 10,275,194 28,489,804 38,764,998 36,512,033
Community and mental health - 11,075,448 11,075,448 10,227,190
Homecare 99,054 12,527,368 12,626,422 11,909,778
Emergency response and transport - 5,538,570 5,538,570 4,883,074
Regional health costs (Note 11) - 2,894,496 2,894,496 2,106,180
Medical rermuneration —non global - 5,500,142 5,500,142 4,811,185
Pre-retirement 232,431 1,923,796 2,156,227 469,374
Amortization of capital assets . 433,204 4,256,925 4,690,129 4,385,892
Interest on long-term obligations ‘ - - - 2,184

16,785,334 121,441,048 138,226,382 124,877,831

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses (611,636) (4,354,111) (4,905,747) 292,855

The accomparying hotes are an integral part of these finoncial statements.
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2010

Affiliates Devolved 2010 2009
Cash provided by (used in)
Operations
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses (611,636) (4,354,111) (4,965,747) 292,855
Items not involving cash:
Proceeds on disposal of capital assets - - - (377)
Amortization of capital assets 433,204 4,256,925 4,690,129 4.385,892
Amortization of deferred contributions (344,627) (3,917,345) (4,261,972) {4,056,533)
(523,059)  (4,014,531)  (4,537,590) 621,637
Changes in non-cash operating working capital
Temporary investments - (61,730} (61,730) 18,818,566
Lines of credit - 708,966 708,966 57,385
Due (to) from Manitoba Health - (1,771,178) (1,771,178) 1,683,793
Other working capital 68,997 1,394,626 1,463,623 557,746
68,997 270,684 339,681 21,117,490
Financing and Investing
Purchase of capital assets (617,021) (3,999,115) (4,616,136) (5,419,402)
Disposal of capital assets - 32,041 32,041 45,459
Disposal of investments - - - (2,510}
Disposal of cash upon devolution (201,771) 201,771 - -
Deferred contributions 567,846 2,309,700 2,877,546 (13,675,964)
Interfacility (309,223) 309,223 - -
Repayment of long-term debt - - - (80,450)

(560,169) (1,146,380)  (1,706,549) (19,132,867}

Increase (decrease) in cash during the year (1,014,231) (4,890,227) (5,904,458) 2,606,260
Cash, beginning of year 2,085,648 7,038,001 9,123,649 6,517,389
Cash, end of year 1,071,417 2,147,774 3,219,191 9,123,649

The accompanving Rotes are an integral part of these financial statenents.
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

1.  Organization

The Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. is a non-profit organization incorporated without share capital under the
laws of the Province of Manitoba, The Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. is involved in the provision of health
care services to persons resident in the Parkland Region.

The Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. is a registered charity and, as such, is exempt from income tax and may
issue income tax receipts to donors.

2. Change in accounting policies
Disclosure of allocated expenses by not-for-profit organizations

In September 2008, the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants issued new recommendations for disclosures
regarding allocated expenses by not-for-profit organizations. CICA Handbook Section 4470 Disclosure of Allocated
Expenses by Not-for-prafit Organizations requires disclosure by not-for-profit organizations that allocate general support
expenses to other functions and of the policies adopted for the allocation of such expenses among functions, the nature of
the allocated expenses, and the basis on which allocations are made. The section also requires disclosure of the amounts
allocated from each of its general support functions and the amounts and functions to which they have been allocated.

This new Section is effective for annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after January I, 2009.
The Parkland Regional Health Authority has applied this new recommendation for consolidated financial statements
dated March 31, 2010,
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

3. Significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and
include the following significant accounting policies:

Basis of accounting

These financial statements were prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis recognizes revenues as they
become available and measurable; expenses are recognized, as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipts of goods
or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay.

The financial statements include the accounts of all controlled not-for-profit organizations of the Parkland Regional
Health Authority Inc. All significant inter-departmental transactions have been eliminated.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the following not-for-profit operations have been included in these
financial statements:

Devolved facilities:

Dauphin Regional Health Centre
Robtlin District Health Centre

Gilbert Plains Health Centre

Grandview Hospital District

Dauphin & Pistrict Ambulance Service
Roblin & District Ambulance Service
Grandview Personal Care Home
Parkiand Regicnal Hospital Laundry Lid.
MecCreary/Alonsa Health Centre

Ste. Rose Ambulance Service

Swan Valley Ambulance Service

Swan Valley Lodge

Swan Valley Health Centre

Swan River Valley Personal Care Home
Benito Health Centre

Waterhen Ambulance Service
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended March 31, 2010

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Affiliates:

Hépital Général — Ste. Rose — General Hospital
Winnipegosis — Mossey River Personal Care Home Inc.
Winnipegosis General Hospital

St. Paul’s Home (Inc.)

Dr. Gendreau Personal Care Home Inc.

The McCreary/Alonsa Health Centre devolved to the Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. April 1, 2009,

The Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. also receives funding from independent organizations, which organize
fundraising drives in various geographical areas exclusively for the use of the Parkland Regional Health Authority Ing, or
its related entities. The extent of any funding provided by these independent entities is solely at the discretion of the
board of directors of the independent entities.

A number of facilities within the Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. receive donations from charitable foundations.
As there is no control, significant influence or economic interest between the Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.
and these foundations, no financial information regarding these foundations is reported or disclosed in the financial
statemnents of the Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.
Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and replacement cost. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis,

Capital asseis

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Amortization is provided using the straight-line method at rates intended to amortize
the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives.

Buildings 20 to 40 years
Equipment 4 to 20 years

10
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Long-lived assets

Long-lived assets consist of capital assets with finite useful lives. Long-lived assets held for use are measured and
amortized as described in the applicable accounting policies.

The Organization performs impairment testing on fong-lived assets held for use whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset, or group of assets, may not be recoverable. Impairment losses
are recognized when undiscounted future cash flows from its use and disposal are less than the asset’s carrying amount.
Impairment is measured as the amount by which the asset’s carrying value exceeds its fair value. Any impairment is
included in operations for the year.

Quoted market prices and prices for similar items are used to measure fair value of long-lived assets,
Benefits obligation

The Health Authority applies the accounting recommendations for employee fisture benefits contained in Section 3461 of
the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountant’s Handbook. 'The pre-retirement benefits are determined by actuarial
valuation.

Revenue recognifion

The Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Restricted
contributions are recognized as revenus in the year in which the related expenses are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are
recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is
reasonably assured.

Contributed services

A number of individuals donate significant amounts of time to the Organization’s activities. No amount is reflected in the
statements for donated services since no objective basis is available to measure the value of such services.

Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period.

Accounts receivable are stated after evaluation as to their collectability and an appropriate allowance for doubtful
accounts is provided where considered necessary. Provisions are made for slow moving and obsolete inventory.
Estimates are made for amortization, based on the useful lives of capital assets, amounts due from Manitoba Health,
revenue from Manitoba Health and In-Globe and Out-of-Globe funding that is not yet approved. Retirement obligations
are based on actuarial valuations.

These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in
operations in the periods in which they become known,
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

Significant accountiné policies (continued)

In January 2003, the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants’ (“CICA™) issued new recommendations for the recognition
and measurement of financial instruments, and amendments to the existing presentation and disclosure standards, effective for
financial statements with fiscal years beginning on or after October 1, 2006. On January 1, 2007, the Organization implemented
these new standards, the main requirements of which are set out below:

Financial instruments

Held for trading:
The Organization has classified the following financial assets and liabilities as held for trading: cash and lines of credit. These
instruments are initially recognized at their fair value.

Loans and receivables:

The Organization has classified the following financial assets as loans and receivables: accounts receivable and current
investments. These assets are initially recognized at their fair value approximated by the instrument’s initial cost in a transaction
between unrelated parties. Transactions to purchase or sell these items are recorded on the trade date, and transaction costs are
immediately recognized in operations.

Other financial liabilities:

The Organization has classified the following financial liabilities as other financial liabilities: accounts payable and accruals.
These liabilities are initially recognized at their fair value approximated by the instrument’s initial cost in a transaction between
unrelated parties. Transactions to purchase or sell these items are recorded on the trade date, and transaction costs are
immediately recognized in operations. Total interest expense, calculated using the effective interest rate method, is recognized
in operations.

Financial assef impairment:
The organization assesses impairment of all its financial assets, except those classified as held for trading. Impairment is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying value and its fair value. Any impairment, which is not considered

temporary, is included in current year operations.
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

4. Accounts receivable 2010 2009
Accrued interest 649 11,484
Ambulance 196,669 195,396
Ambulance - Health Canada First Nations Inuit Health 208,116 216,008
Dauphin General Hospital Foundation 22,722 22,205
Dr. Gendreau Memorial PCH Foundation Inc. 472 -
Employee Education Advances 40,195 106,883
Health Sciences Centre — Provincial Dialysis Program 32,319 23,684
National Industrial Communications 45,264 -
Other 885,201 736,563
Province of Manitoba - 80,000
QA Adjusting Company 138.924 68,613
Residents/ Patients 187.948 205,867
Prevost Foundation Inc. 6,777 -
St. Paul’s Home Auxillary - 16,610
St. Paul’s Home Foundation Inc. - 38,336
Swan Valley Health Facilities Foundation Inc. 2,712 46,941
Swan Valley Shipper’s Association - 26,201
University of Manitoba - 23,380

1,767,968 1,841,171
13
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5.

Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

Due from Manitoba Health 2010 2009
Current years Operating Funding 2,542,355 1,091,788
Out of Globe — 2009/2010 89,173
Out of Globe — 2008/2009 (415,875) (368.224)
Out of Globe — 2007/2008 - (455,606)
Approved Capital Funding 93,892 271,394
Ambulance Interfacility Transfers and Lifeflights 284,378 283,193
2,593,923 822,745

In-Globe Funding

In-Globe funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for Regional Health Authority programs unless otherwise specified
as Out-of-Globe funding. This includes volume changes and price increases for the five service categories of Acute Care,
Long-Term Care, Community and Mental Health, Home Care and Emergency Response and Transport. All additional costs in
these five service categories must be absorbed from within the global funding provided.

Any operating surplus greater than 2% of budget related to In-Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the statement of
financial position as a payable to Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba Health reviews the financial statements. At that
time Manitoba Health determines what portion of the approved surplus may be retained by the Authority, or repaid to
Manitoba Health.

Under Manitoba Health policy the Regional Health Authority is responsible for In-Globe deficits, unless otherwise
approved by Manitoba Health.

Out-of-Globe Funding

Out-of-Globe funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for specific programs.

Any operating surplus related to Out-of-Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the statement of financial position as a
payable to Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba Health reviews the financial statements. At that time Manitoba Health
determines what portion of the approved surplus may be retained by the Authority, or repaid to Manitoba Health.

Conversely, any operating deficit related to Out-of-Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the statement of financial
position as a receivable from Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba Health reviews the financial statements. At
that time, Manitoba Health determines their final funding approvals, which indicate the portion of the deficit that will be
paid to the Authority. Any unapproved costs not paid by Manitoba Health are absorbed by the Authority.

14
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

6. Investments

2010 2009
Royal Bank money market funds earning an annual rate 102,094 101,955
of .01%. Fair market value of fund is 102,094,
Royal Bank money market funds earning an annual rate
of .03%. Fair market value of fund is 61,591. 61,591 -
163,685 101,955
Amount due within one year included in current investments (163,685) (101,955)
7. Capital assets
2010 2009
Accunmlated Net Book Net Book
Cost  Amortization Value Value
Land 603,643 - 603,643 581,013
Buildings 112,230,688 42,593,711 69,636,977 70,063,428
Equipment " 38,436,258 26,654,815 11,781,443 10,674,918
Construction in progress 827,183 - 827,183 1,635,921

152,097,772 69,248,526 82,849,246 82,955,280

8. Other long-term liabilities

Other Tong-term liability consists of the accrued retirement entitlement due to Diagnostic Services of Manitoba. The
pension plan disclosure has been provided in note 9,
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

9. Benefits obligation :
The Health Authority recorded pre-retirement, accrued vacation, statutory holiday and overtime salary liability as
benefits obligation. Funding for the entitlement as at March 31, 2004 is recoverable from Manitoba Health.

Accrued retirement entitlement

The Health Authority has a contractual commitment to pay out to employees four days salary per year of service upon
retirement if they comply with the following conditions:

i) have ten years service and have reached the age of 55 or

ii) qualifies for the “eighty™ rule which is calculated by adding the number of years service to the age of the
employee

ii) retires at or after age 65 or

iv) terminates employment at any time due to permanent disability

The Health Authority has recorded an accrual amount based on an actuarial valuation that includes employees who
qualify at the year-end balance sheet date and an estimaie for the remainder of the employees who have not yet met the
criteria above. Funding for the retirement entitlement accrued prior to March 31, 2004 is recoverable from Manitoba
Health on an Out-of-Globe basis in the year of payment.

Each year, the Health Authority updates an actuarial valuation of the accrued retirement entitlements. The significant
actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the accrued retirement entitlements include mortality and withdrawal rates, a
discount rate of 4.90% (6.70% in 2009) and a rate of salary increase of 4.0% (3.5% in 2009) plus age related
merit/promotion scale with nil disability.

Pension plan

Most of the employees of the Authority are members of the Healthcare Employees Pension Plan {the "Plan"), which is a
multi-emiployer defined benefit pension plan available to all eligible employees. Plan members will receive benefits
based on the length of service and on the average annualized earnings calculated on the best five of the eleven
consecutive years prior to retirement, termination or death, that provide the highest eamings. The costs of the benefit
plan are not allocated to the individual entities within the related group. As a result, individual entities within the related
group are not able to identify their share of the underlying assets and liabilities. Therefore, the Plan is accounted for as a
defined contribution- plan in accordance with the requirements of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants'
Handbook section 3461,

Pension assets consist of investment grade securities. Market and credit risk on these securities are managed by the Plan
by placing assets in trust and through the Plan investment policy. Pension expense is based on Plan management's best
estimates, in consultation with its actuaries, together with the 6.8% (6.8% in 2009) of basic annual earnings up to the
Canada Pension Plan ceiling contributed by employees and 8.4% (8.4%% in 2009) thereafter, required to provide a high
level of assurance that benefits will be fully represented by fund assets at retirement, as provided by the Plan. The
funding objective is for the employer contributions to the Plan to remain a constant percentage of employees'
contributions.

Variances between actuarial funding estimates and actual experience may be material and any differences are generally
to be funded by the participating members. The most recent actuarial valuation of the Plan as at December 31, 2007,
indicates a solvency deficiency which will be funded by special payments to the Plan over the next five years out of
current contributions in those years. Should these special payments not be sufficient in returning the Plan to solvency,
contribution rate increases or pension benefit reductions may be necessary.

Actual contributions to the Plan made during the year by the Authority on behalf of its employees amounted to
$3,937,796 (2009 - $3,866,382) and are included in the statement of operations,
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

10. Manitoba Health operating income 2010 2009
Revenue as per Manitoba Health’s final funding document 111,547,705 108,729,505
Add: Salary and Benefit Settlements 1,827,463 687,795

Supply Funding 434,000 -
Pandemic Funding 348,462 -
Dauphin Emergency Department Enhancement Initiative 177,000 -
Dauphin Role Study Funding 79,100 -
Patient Safety Funding 76,660 -
Medical Remuneration Adjustments 60,000 60,000
Renal Unit Expansion 40,247 40,377
Mentorship Funding 13,832 -
Aboriginal Health 7,900 -
Reclaiming Hope Suicide Prevention Funding 4,750

Critical Incident Project Management Funding - 41,800
Provincial Data Network Funding - 14,100
Relationships by Objective Funding - 7,619

114,617,119 109,581,196

Add/Deduct: Non-Global surplus receivable for 2009/10 97,945 (415,875)

Total funding approved by Manitoba Health 114,715,064 109,165,321

Add separately funded programs:
Emergency Services Billings 1,801,833 1,520,466
Philippine Nurse Recruitment 367,147 8,285
Non Global Prior Year Adjustments 308,032 451,455
Immunization Program 115,431 109,932
STI/HIV Control - 106,100
Chronic Disease Prevention Initiative 82,368 76,025
Community Health Needs Assessment 51,787 98,777
Risk Factor and Complication Assessment Funding 4,016 16,680
Board expenses 3,806 10,274
Telepsychiatry Clinics - 6,794

117,449,484 111,570,109

Deduct:  Amounts recorded as deferred contributions for:

- Long-term debt (244,463) (634,661)
- Equipment funding - (482,304)
- Major repairs (37,495) (37,493%)
- Capital interest on loans reclassified to deferred contributions (246,262) (1,182,883)
- Ostomy Program (25,000) -
Revenue from Manitoba Health 116,896,264  109,232.766
17
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

11.

12.

Regional Health Authority Inc. costs

2010 2009

Corporate office salaries 1,216,403 1,121,717
Corporate office benefits 220,564 182,721
Expenses paid on behalf of facilities 262,433 141,890
Board expenses 129,640 112,009
Recruitment 101,902 89,105
Medical Remuneration - Global 324,224 233,883
Pandemic Expenses 302,575 -
Community Health Needs Assessment 51,787 -
Other 284,968 224 855
2,894,496 2,106,180

Deferred contributions

Deferred contributions represent capital funding received from Manitoba Health or donations received from other sources
restricted for the purchase of depreciable capital assets and/or future expenses.

Donation Unexpended Expended 2010 2009

Balance, beginning of year 340,907 2,619,440 80,171,710 83,132,057 98,371,997
Reclassification (27,221 27,221 (32.334) (32,334)  (2,648,133)
Capital asset additions (232,387) (1,750,699) 4,189,073 2,205,987 3,302,442
Capital asset disposals - - 294 294 (18,704)
Capital funding - 1,030,212 (12,000) 1,018,212 (12,098.,621)
Interest and donations 336,127 2,607 - 338,734 233266
Amortization - - (4,261,972) (4.261,972)  (3,843,689)
Other operating expenses (131,724) (54,693} (122) (186,539) (166,501)
Balance, end of year 285,702 1,874,088 80,054,649 82,214,439 83,132,057
Deferred revenue 622,863 . 1,089,671
82,837,362 84,221,728
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended March 31, 2010

13. Invested in capital assets

Affiliates Devolved 2010 2009
Capital Assets 8,120,508 74,728,738 82,849,246 82,955,280
Amounts financed by:
Deferred contributions and revenue related to -
capital assets (7,911,466) (74.302,973) (82,214.439) (83,132,059
Cash — capital 276,908 643,134 920,042 1,205,031
Temporary investments — capital - 61,591 61,591 -
Accounts receivable — capital 349 531,438 531,787 341,144
Due from Manitoba Health — capital - 93,892 93,892 271,594
Prepaid expenses — capital - - - 344
Accounts payable — capital - (47,071) (47,071) (163,252)
Due from operating account 19,140 593,290 612,430 1,365,488
505,439 2,302,039 2,807,478 2,843,570

14. Financial instruments

The Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.’s financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable, temporary
investments, accounts payable, amounts due to (from) Manitoba Health and long-term debt. Unless otherwise noted, it is
management’s opinion that the Parkland Regiconal Health Authority Inc. is not exposed to significant interest, currency or

credit risks arising from these financial instruments.

Fuair Value

The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, temporary investments, lines of credit, accounts payable, amounts due
to (from) Manitoba Health and accrued liabilities approximate their fair values due to the short-term maturities of these
items. The carrying amounts of the organization’s investments and loans approximate their fair values as the investments

and loans have currently prevailing interest rates.
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Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended March 31, 2610

15.  Allocation of expenses

The Parkland Regional Health Authority has allocated the following expenses:

2010 . 2009
Acute Long Term Care | Cemmunity Total Acute | Long Term Care Community Total
Education 33345 29,705 20,876 83,926 24,937 22133 15,315 62,405
Human Resources 285972 254,372 175,594 715,938 262,151 219.401 173,826 655,378
Information Tech 784,757 262,567 219,791 1,267,115 627,580 224.666 155,593 1,007,839
Laundry Services 325,777 346,056 - 1,071,833 543,624 550,637 - 1,094 261
Quality Assurance 35,288 31,200 21,687 88,145 45281 40,073 27,848 113,262
1,665,109 1,123,900 437,948 3,226,957 1,503,573 1,056,93C 372,582 2,933,085

16. Economic dependence

The Parkland Regional Health Authority Inc. received 88% of its total revenue for the year ended March 31, 2010 from
Manitoba Health.

17.  Comparative amounts
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.
18.  Reclassification
An adjustment was made by St. Paul’s Home Inc. to reclassify restricted net assets from invested in capital assets,
19. Related party transactions
The Authority is responsible for the overall management of the health care services provided in the Parkland region.
Programs for hospital and personal care home services are delivered in the region by the Health Authority. The Health
Authority transacts business on a regular basis with organizations and agencies as described in Notes 3, 6, 8, 9, 11, and 12,
20.  Capital disclosures
The Authority considers its capital to be its net assets. The Authority’s objectives when managing its capital are to
safeguard its ability to operate as a going concern so it can continue to provide services to its residents, An Annual Health
Plan including operating and capital budgets is developed and monitored to ensure the Authority’s capital is maintained at
an appropriate level,
If the retainable surplus exceeds 2% of the annual in globe operating budget, as approved by the Authority, the surplus in
excess of 2% is an obligation payable to Manitoba Health. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010, the Authority was in

a deficit position. For the affiliates, if the retainable surplus exceeds 1.5% of the annual in globe operating budget, as
approved by the Authority, the surplus in excess of 1.5% is an obligation payable to Parkland Regional Health Authority.
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Regional Health Authorty N Office régional de la santé
Central Manitoba Inc. du Centre du Manitoba inc.

CORPORATE OFFICE

180 Centennalre Drive

Southport MB RoH 3No

Tel 204 428 2720

Fa 204428 2779

Toll Free 1 800 RHA 6509
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180, rue Centennalre
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MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY Teléc + 204 478 1379

N° 800: 1 800 RHA 6509
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She web: www tha centra mb ca

Regional Health Authority — Central Manitoba Inc

Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, including responsibilty for significant accounting judgements and estimates in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and ensuring that all
information in the annual report is consistent with the statements. This responsibility includes
selecting appropriate accounting principles and methods, and making decisions affecting the
measurement of transactions in which objective judgement is required

In discharging its responsibilities for the integrity and faimess of the consolidated financial
statements, management designs and maintains the necessary accounting systems and related
internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are authorized, assets are
safeguarded and financial records are properly maintained to provide reliable information for the
preparation of financial statements.

The Board of Directors and Audit Committee are composed entirely of Directors who are neither
management nor employees of the Authority The Board is responsible for overseeing
management in the performance of its financial reporting responsibilities, and for approving the
financial information included in the annual report  The Board fulfils these responsibilities by
reviewing the financial information prepared by management and discussing relevant matters with
management. The Audit Committee has the responsibility of meeting with management and
extemal auditors to discuss the intemal controls over the financial reporting process, auditing
matters and financial reporting issues. The Committee is also responsible for recommending the
appointment of the Authority's extemal auditors

Meyers Norris Penny LLP an independent firm of Chartered Accountants, is appointed by the
Board to audit the consolidated financial statements and report directly to them; their report follows

The external auditors have full and free access to, and meet periodically and separately with, both
the Committee and management to discuss their audit findings

June 8, 2010

Ken Klassen
Vice President inance
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Regional Health Authority — Central Manitoba Inc.

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of Regional Health Authority —
Central Manitoba Inc. as at March 31, 2010 and the consolidated statements of operations,
consolidated changes in net assets and the consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Authority as at March 31, 2010 and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The supplemental information presented in Schedules 1a-3 are presented for the purpose
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
supplemental information has been subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Portage la Prairie, Manitoba a ﬁ

June 8, 2010 Chartered Accountants
BEST PraXlty CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS & BUSINESS ADVISORS
ey MEVBER - 780 SASKATCHEWAN AVE.W., PORTAGE LA PRAIRIE, MB R1N OM?7
REPGRT ON BUSINESS PioEALALLIANCE OF 1-866-939-6117 PH.(204) 239-6117 FAX (204) 857-3972 mnp.ca
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REGIONAL H ALTH AUTHORITY - CENTRAL MANITOBA INC.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2010

2010 2009
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash and short term investments $ 23,351,629 20,441,935
Accounts receivable, net 2,764,811 3,225,04
Accounts receivable Manitoba Health (Note 3) 1,656,251
Inventories 1,226,408 1,155,690
Prepaid expenses 1,078,380 998,188
Due from Manitoba Health - vacation entitlements 7,775,928 7,775,928
37,853,407 33,596,782
NON-CURRENT
Due from Manitoba Health - retirement entitiements 9,106,000 9,106,000
Capital assets (Note 4) 81,153,207 80,562,663
Other assets 202,585 472,323
$ 128,315,199 123,737,768
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 14,295,324 14,405,858
Accounts payable - Manitoba Health (Note 3) - 778,278
Accrued vacation benéefit entitlements 10,918,319 9,996,841
Current ortion of lon term debt Note 5 246,015 230,364
25,459,658 25,411,341
NON CURRENT
Accrued retirement benefit entitlements 12,650,164 11,488,803
Lon term debt Note 5 2,255,09 2,425,709
14,905,255 13,914,512
DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS (Note 6)
Expenses of future periods 3,454,975 4,050,269
Ca ital assets 76,526,267 76,186,983
79,981,242 80,237,252
NET ASSE S
Invested in capital assets (Note 7) 2,126,029 1719,795
Contract facilities (Note 8) 319,357 1036 741
Internally restricted (Note 9) 232,397 270170
Unrestricted 5,291,261 1,147,957
7,969,044 4,174,663
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES ote 10 128,315,199 123,737,768
APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECT R
Director
Director
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REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY - CENTRAL MANITOBA INC.
Consolidated Statement of Operations
March 31, 2010

2010 2009
REVENUE
Manitoba Health (Note 11) $ 181,311,424 $ 164,798,291
Other government departments 84,331 85,457
Non-global patient and resident income 13,552,290 12,693,044
Other income 6,407,757 6,174,284
Amortization of deferred contributions - expenses of future periods 2,982,893 2,608,993
Amortization of deferred contributions - capital and foundations 5,243,717 5,004,007
Interest and donations 110,987 331,468
Ancillary operations (Schedule 1a) 2,537,448 2,394,893
212,230,847 194,090,437
EXPENSES
Acute care services 72,112,536 64,928,419
Long term care services 52,762,892 49,559,572
Medical remuneration 15,109,690 13,199,760
Community based therapy services 2,637,680 2,199,944
Community based mental health services 9,554,481 8,111,538
Community based home care services 18,593,957 17,806,330
Community based health services 7,299,939 6,560,328
Land ambulance 7,313,718 6,470,814
Regional Health Authority undistributed 12,254,122 12,056,865
Interest on long term debt 301,730 279,290
Pre-retirement leave 2,469,914 3,121,180
Amortization of capital assets 5,361,384 5,115,743
Major repairs 537,251 429,614
Donations to foundations - 10,000
Ancillary operations (Schedule 1a) 2,089,399 1,974,560
208,398,693 191,823,957
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES $ 3,832,154 $ 2,266,480
ALLOCATION OF EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES
Capital and donations to foundations $ (654,918) $ (551,350)
Interest and donations 110,987 331,468
Ancillary operations 448,049 420,333
Health care operations 3,928,036 2,066,029
TOTAL $ 3,832,154 $ 2,266,480
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REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY - CENTRAL MANITOBA INC.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets
March 31, 2010

Invested in Contract Internally 2010 2009
Capital Assets  Facilities Restricted Unrestricted Total Total
(Note 8)
Balance beginning of year before restatement $ 1,719,795 $ 1,036,741 $ 270,170 $ 1,147,957 $ 4,174,663 $ 1,775,365
Prior penod adjustment - - - - - 139,421
Balance as restated 1,719,795 1,036,741 270,170 1,147,957 4,174,663 1,914,786
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses (216,188) (319,327) - 4,367,669 3,832,154 2,266,480
Repayment of non-Manitoba Health funded long term debt 231,467 (7,102) - (224,365) - -
Investment in capital assets 390,955 (390,955) (29,375) - (29,375) -
Changes to internally restricted funds - - (8,398) - (8,398) (6,603)
Balance end of year $ 2,126,029 $ 319,357 $ 232,397 $ 5,291,261 $§ 7,969,044 3 4174 663
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REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY - CENTRAL MANITOBA INC.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
March 31, 2010

2010 2009
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess of revenue over expenses 3,832,154 $ 2,266,480
ltems not affecting cash
Amortization of capital assets 5,482,527 5,239,335
Amortization of deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods (3,059,148) (2,732,299)
Amortization of deferred contributions related to capital assets (5,266,339) (5,027,360)
Changes in non-cash operating working capital items (2,235,744) 4,727,389
(1,246,550) 4,473,545
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in accrued vacation and retirement entitlements 2,082,839 1,691,935
Change in internally restricted funds (37,773) (6,603)
Prior period adjustment - net assets - 139,421
Principal payments on long term debt (231,467) (213,015)
Proceeds from issuance of new debt 76,500 90,000
Increase in deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods 2,463,855 3,691,253
Increase in deferred contributions related to capital assets 5,605,623 6,144,464
9,959,577 11,437,455
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets (6,073,071) (6,572,070)
Change in other assets 269,738 (309,058)
(5,803,333) (6,881,128)
INCREASE IN CASH AND SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS 2,909,694 9,029,872
CASH AND SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 20,441,935 11,412,063

CASH AND SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS, END OF YEAR $ 23,351,629 $ 20,441,935
SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paid $ 431,676 % 421,983
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REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY - CENTRAL MANITOBA INC.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

NATURE OF BUSINESS

Regional Health Authority - Central Manitoba Inc. (the Authonty) was incorporated under the laws of Manitoba on
January 2, 1996. The Authority commenced activity on Aprit 1, 1997. The Authority is principally involved in
providing health care services to the central region of Manitoba The Authority is a registered charity under the
Income Tax Act and accordingly is exempt from income taxes, provided certain requirements of the Income Tax
Act are met.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Management has prepared the financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles for not-for-profit organizations. The following is a summary of significant accounting policies for the
Authority:

a) Basis of reporting

The Authority provides health care services through devolved and contract facilities. The contract facilities
include Salem Home Inc., Tabor Home Inc., Eden Mental Health Centre, Rock Lake Health District and Prairie
View Lodge, inc..

The health care services provided by the contract facilities are delivered under the control of the Authority as the
majority funder. Accordingly, the financial position and results of operations of these related organizations are
consolidated in the financial statements of the Authority. A financial summary of these contract facilities is
provided in Schedules 2 and 3.

All significant inter-company and inter-divisional transactions have been eliminated. Transactions with non
controlled contract entities and certain non-devolved ambulance services have not been consolidated and the
transactions are recorded as a purchased service.

b) Revenue recognition

The Authority follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions which include government grants and
donations.

Under the Health Insurance Act and regulations thereto, the Authority is funded primarily by the Province of
Manitoba in accordance with budget arrangements established by Manitoba Health Operating grants are
recorded as revenue in the period to which they relate. Grants approved but not received at the end of an
accounting period are accrued. Where a portion of a grant relates to a future period, it is deferred and
recognized in that subsequent period. These financial statements reflect agreed arrangements approved by
Manitoba Health with respect to the year ended March 31, 2010.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the amount to be received
can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Externally restricted contributions other than endowment contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in
which the related expenses are recognized. Contributions restricted for the purchase of capital assets are
deferred and amortized into revenue on a straight-line basis, at a rate corresponding with the amortization rate
for the related capital assets.

Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are
recognized. Unrestricted investment income is recognized as revenue when earned.

c) Contributed services

A substantial number of volunteers contribute a significant amount of their time each year. Due to the difficulty of
determining the fair value, contributed services are not recognized in the financial statements
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REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY - CENTRAL MANITOBA INC.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

d) Inventories

Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on the first in first out
basis.

e) Capital assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Contributed capital assets are recorded at fair value at the date
of contribution. Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense. Betterments which extend the estimated
useful life of an asset are capitalized. When a capital asset no longer contributes to the Authority's ability to
provide services, its carrying value is written down to its residual value.

Capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis using the following annual rates:

Buildings 2%
Major equipment 10% - 20%

Construction in progress is recorded at cost. When the specific project is completed, all capitalized costs are
transferred to capital assets.

f) Vacation pay

The Authority records the accrued vacation pay entitlement liability. Funding for the entitlement is recoverable as
a component of salary cost funding for the subsequent year.

g) Retirement entitlement obligations

The Organization applies the accounting recommendations for employee future benefits contained in section
3461 of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants' Handbook.

h) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
period. Actual results could differ from management's best estimates as additional information becomes available
in the future.

i) Long-lived assets

Long-lived assets consist of capital assets with finite useful lives. Long-lived assets held for use are measured
and amortized as described in the applicable accounting policies

The Authority performs impairment testing on long-lived assets held for use whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the camrying value of an asset, or group of assets may not be recoverable.
Impairment losses are recognized when undiscounted future cash flows from it's use and disposal are less than
the asset's value. Any impairment is included in excess of revenue over expenses.

J) Financial ilnstruments
Held for trading:

Any financial instrument whose fair value can be reliably measured may be designated as held for trading on
initial recognition or adoption of CICA 3855 Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement, even if that
instrument would not otherwise satisfy the definition of held for trading. The Authority has classified the following
financial assets and liabilities as held for trading: cash and short term investments and other assets. These
instruments are initially recognized at their fair value

Held for trading financial instruments are subsequently measured at their fair value. Net gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value including interest income are recognized immediately in the statement of operations.
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REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY - CENTRAL MANITOBA INC.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2010

accounts receivable due from Manitoba Health, due from Manitoba Health - vacation entitlements and due from
Manitoba Health - retirement entitiements. These assets are initially recognized at their fair value which is the

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at their amortized cost, using the effective interest method
Under this method, estimated future cash receipts are exactly discounted over the asset's expected life, or other

measured at initial recognition less principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the
effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount and the maturity amount, and less any

The Authority has classified the following financial liabilities as other financial liabilities: accounts payable,

entittements. These liabilities are initially recognized at their fair value which approximates their cost due to the

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Under this method, estimated future cash payments are exactly discounted over the liability’s expected life, or
other appropriate period, to its net carrying value. Amortized cost is the amount at which the financial liability is
measured at initial recognition less principal repayments, and plus or minus the cumulative amortization using
the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount. Net gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized in the statement of operations upon derecognition

The Authority as part of its operations carries a number of financial instruments. It is managements' opinion that
the Authority is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks from these instruments except as

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Loans and receivables:

The Authority has classified the following financial assets as loans and receivables: accounts receivable,
same as their cost due to the current nature of the asset.

appropriate period, to its net carrying value. Amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset is
reduction for impairment or uncollectability. Net gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
recognized into the statement of operations upon derecognition or impairment.

Other financial liabilities:

accrued liabilities, wages payable, accrued vacation benefit entitlements and accrued retirement benefit
current nature of these liabilities.

or impairment.

otherwise noted.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE/PAYABLE - MANITOBA HEALTH

Accounts Receivable/Payable - Manitoba Health includes the following:

Current year's operating funding
Medical year end adjustments
Pre-retirement funding
Orthopaedic wait list funding

Wage standardization
Employer share health benefit
H1N1 costs reimbursement
Personal care home staffing
Other program

Medical year end adjustment - 2006/2007
Medical year end adjustments - 2007/2008
Medical year end adjustments - 2008/2009
Approved capital projects

2010 2009
$ (1,622,290) $ (1,712,446)
2,200,000 -
2.457.800 1,076,043
186,145 1,310,769
818,775 -
649,700 -
520,207 -
184,021 614,861
5,403,358 1,289,227
(808,982) (816,915)
(1,298,110) (1,305,731)
(1,701,692) -
61,677 55,141
$ 1,656,251 $ (778278)
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REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY - CENTRAL MANITOBA INC.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2010

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE/PAYABLE - MANITOBA HEALTH (continued)

In Globe Funding

In Globe funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for Regional Health Authority programs unless
otherwise specified as Out of Globe funding. This includes volume changes and price increases for the five
service categories of Acute Care, Long Term Care, Community and Mental Health, Home Care and Emergency
Response and Transport. All additional costs in these five service categories must be absorbed from within the
global funding provided by Manitoba Health.

Any operating surplus greater than 2% of budget related to In Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the
statement of financial position as a payable to Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba Health reviews the
financial statements. At that time, Manitoba Health determines what portion of the approved surplus may be
retained by the Authority, or repaid to Manitoba Health.

On a one-time basis, for the 2009-2010 operating year only, Manitoba Health has given the Authority permission
to retain surplus amounts in excess of 2% of in globe funding.

Under Manitoba Health policy, the Regional Health Authority is responsible for In Globe deficits, unless otherwise
approved by Manitoba Health.

Out of Globe Funding
Out of Globe funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for specific programs.

Any operating surplus related to Out of Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the statement of financial
position as a payable to Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba Health reviews the financial statements. At
that time, Manitoba Health determines what portion of the approved surplus may be retained by the Authority, or
repaid to Manitoba Health.

Conversely, any operating deficit related to Out of Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the statement of

financial position as a receivable from Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba Health reviews the financial

statements. At that time, Manitoba Health determines their final funding approvals which indicate the portion of
the deficit that will be paid to the Authority. Any unapproved costs not paid by Manitoba Health are absorbed by
the Authority.

CAPITAL ASSETS
2010
Accumulated Net Book
Cost Amortization Value
Land $ 1,076,204 $ - $ 1,076,204
Buildings 101,409,362 37,058,566 64,350,796
Major equipment 60,447,062 44,720,855 15,726,207
$ 162,932,628 $ 81,779,421 $ 81,153,207
2009
Accumulated Net Book
Cost Amortization Value
Land $ 1,037,305 $ - $ 1,037,305
Buildings 101,017,873 35,106,196 65,911,677
Major equipment 54,821,466 41,207,785 13,613,681
$ 156,876,644 $ 76,313,981 $ 80,562,663
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY - CENTRAL MANITOBA INC.

5.

LONG TERM DEBT

CMHC mortgage payable in monthly blended instaliments of $14,795
bearing interest at 4 170% due June 1, 2020. Secured by land and buildings
with a net book value of $1,536,084.

CMHC mortgage payable in monthly blended installments of $486 bearing
interest at 5.875% due August 1, 2017. Secured by land and buildings with a
net book value of $13,832.

CMHC mortgage payable in monthly blended installments of $5,683 bearing
interest at 5.42% due November 1, 2017. Secured by land and buildings with
a net book value of $261,679.

CMHC mortgage payable in monthly blended installments of $7,768 bearing
interest at 10.0% due June 1, 2014. Secured by land and buildings with a
net book value of $420,771.

CMHC mortgage payable in monthly blended installments of $887 bearing
interest at 7.875% due August 1, 2020. Secured by land and buildings with a
net book value of $17,476.

Mortgage payable in monthly blended instaliments of $505 bearing interest
at prime, due 2024. Secured by land and building with a net book value of

o smm

Mortgage payable in monthly blended instaliments of $650 bearing interest
at prime, due 2028. Secured by land and building with a net book value of
$110,500.

Less: current portion

Estimated principal repayment requirements for the next five years are as follows:

2011 246,015
2012 257,667
2013 269,318
2014 281,969
2015 293,621
Page 9
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2010 2009

$ 1,481,131 1,594,853
35,116 38,798
427,877 471,844
322,956 381,382
75,930 80,498

75,041 -
83,055 88,698
2,501,106 2,656,073
246,015 230,364
$ 2,255,091 2,425,709




REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY - CENTRAL MANITOBA INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

6. DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS

a) Expenses of future periods

Deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods represent unspent externally restricted donations
and grants received for future expenditures including capital assets. Amortization is recorded as revenue in the
statement of operations and matched with expenditures incurred with these funds.

Balance, beginning of year
Additional contributions received
Amount transferred to capital assets
Less amounts amortized to revenue

b) Capital assets

2010 2009
$ 4,050,269 $ 3,001,315
3,161,788 4,846,146
(697,934) (1,154,893)
(3,059,148) (2,732,299)
$ 3454975 § 4,050,269

Deferred capital contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized amount of grants and
donations received for the purchase of capital assets. The amortization of capital contributions is recorded as

revenue in the statement of operations.

Balance, beginning of year

Additional contributions received

Amount transferred from expenses of future periods
Less amounts amortized to revenue

7. NET ASSETS - INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS
a) Invested in capital assets is calculated as follows:

Capital assets

Amounts financed by:
Deferred contributions
Long term debt
Working capital

b) Change in net assets invested in capital assets is calculated as follows:

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses

Amortization of deferred contributions related to capital assets
Amortization of capital assets

Repayment of non Manitoba Health funded long term debt

Investment in capital assets

Amounts funded by deferred contributions
Amounts funded with debt
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2010 2009
$ 76,186,983 $ 75,069,879
4,907,689 4,989,571
697,934 1,154,893
(5,266,339) (5,027,360)
$ 76,526,267 $ 76,186,983
2010 2009
$ 81,153,207 $ 80,562,663
(76,526,267)  (76,186,983)
(2,501,106) (2,656,073)
195 188
$ 2126029 $ 1,719,795
010 2009
$ 5266339 $ 5,027,360
(5,482,527) (5,239,335)
(216,188) (211,975)
231,467 213,015
6,073,071 6,572,070
(5,605,616) (6,144,458)
(76,500) (90,000)
390,955 337,612
$ 406234 $ 338652




REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY - CENTRAL MANITOBA INC.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

8. NET ASSETS - CONTRACT FACILITIES

Contract facilities - net assets represent the net assets, other than invested in capital assets, of the contract

facilities that have been consolidated in the financial statements of the Authority.

The amounts are as follows:

2010 2009
Internally restricted $ 152,894 $ 144,060
Externally restricted 15,757 14,774
Unrestricted 150,706 877,907
$ 319,357 $ 1,036,741

9. NET ASSETS - INTERNALLY RESTRICTED

The board of directors has restricted $232,397 (2009 - $270,170) in net assets to be used for the purchase of

specified capital assets.

10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

a) The Authority is subject to individual legal actions arising in the normal course of business. The effect of any
contingent claims relating to these legal actions is not determinable at the date of the audit report.

b) The Healthcare Insurance Reciprocal of Canada ("HIROC") is an organization that pools the public liability
insurance risks of all its members. The Authority may be subject to reassessment for losses, if any, experienced
by the pool for the years in which it was a member, and these losses could be material. No reassessments have

been made to March 31, 2010.

11. MANITOBA HEALTH REVENUE
Manitoba Health revenue includes the following:

2010 2009

Revenue as per final approved budget $ 174,610,882 $ 163,231,363
Province of Manitoba loan principal (625,313) (302,610)
Amounts recorded as deferred contributions (70,626) (777,426)

173.914.943 162,151,327
Current year's estimated out of globe amounts (117,657) (19,090)
One time funding - pre-retirement 2,200,000
One time funding - contract settlements 154,930 1,077,562
One time funding - wait list 2,622,300 1,308,691
One time funding - EMS Inter-facility transfer 931,915 546,730
One time funding - medical remuneration (1,684,789) (1,712,446)
One time funding - personal care home staffing guideline 1,042,842 471,924
One time funding - H1N1 852,948
One time funding - HEBP Extended Health Employer 818,775 -
One time funding - other 575,217 973,593

$ 181,311,424

$ 164,798,291

12. RELATED PARTY AND ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The Authority receives in excess of 80% of its total revenue from Manitoba Health and is economically

dependent on Manitoba Health for its continued operations.

13. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT FOR FOUNDATIONS

The Authority has not disclosed the inter-relationships nor the degree of economic dependence with its
Foundations because none of the large number of organizations that make up this group are controlled by the
Authority and the organizations are individually immaterial to the Authority as a whole.
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REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY - CENTRAL MANITOBA INC.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

14. RETIREMENT ENTITLEMENT OBLIGATIONS
a) Accrued Retirement Entitlement

The Authority's contractual commitment, based on an actuarial valuation, for the pre-retirement entitlement for all
employees, is to pay out four days of salary per year of service upon retirement if the employee complies with
one of the following conditions:

i) have ten years service and have reached age 55 or

ii) qualify for the "eighty” rule which is calculated by adding the number of years of service to the age of
the employee or

iiil) retire at or after age 65 or

iv) terminate employment at any time due to permanent disability

The Authority undertook an actuarial valuation of the accrued retirement entitlements. The significant actuarial
assumptions adopted in measuring the Authority's accrued retirement entitlements include mortality and
withdrawal rates, a discount rate of 3.9% (4.2% in 2009) and a rate of salary increase of 4.0% (3.5% in 2009)
plus age related merit / promotion scale with actuarial derived provisions for disability.

Funding for the retirement obligation at March 31, 2004 in the amount of $9,106,000 has been set up as a non-
current receivable from the Province. The amount recorded as a receivable from the Province for pre-retirement
costs was initially determined based on the value of the corresponding actuarial liability for pre-retirement costs
as at March 31, 2004. Subsequent to March 31, 2004, the Province has included in its ongoing annual funding to
the Organization, an amount equivalent to the change in the pre-retirement liability, which includes annual
interest accretion related to the receivable. The receivable will be paid by the Province when the organization
requires the funding to discharge the related pre-retirement liabilities.

b) Pension Plan

Most of the employees of the Authority are members of the Healthcare Employees Pension Plan (the "Plan"),
which is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan available to all eligible employees. Plan members will
receive benefits based on the length of service and on the average annualized earnings calculated on the best
five of the eleven consecutive years prior to retirement, termination or death, that provide the highest earmings.
The costs of the benefit plan are not allocated to the individual entities within the related group. As a result,
individual entities within the related group are not able to identify their share of the underlying assets and
liabilities. Therefore, the plan is accounted for as a defined contribution plan in accordance with the
requirements of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants' Handbook section 3461

Pension assets consist of investment grade securities. Market and credit risk on these securities are managed
by the Plan by placing assets in trust and through the Plan investment policy. Pension expense is based on Plan
management's best estimates, in consultation with its actuaries of the amount, together with the 6.8% of basic
annual earnings up to the Canada Pension Plan ceiling and 8 4% of earning in excess of the ceiling, contributed
by employees, required to provide a high level of assurance that benefits will be fully represented by fund assets
at retirement, as provided by the Plan. The funding objective is for the employer contributions to the Plan to
remain a constant percentage of employee' contributions.

Variances between actuarial funding estimates and actual experience may be material and any differences are
generally to be funded by the participating members. The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan as at
December 31, 2008, indicates a deficiency of actuarial value of net assets over actuarial present value of
accrued pension benefits of $388,367,000 as well as a solvency deficiency of $869,695,000. Actual contributions
to the plan made during the year by the Authority on behalf of its employees amounted to $5,460,000 (2009 -
$5,085,000) and are included in the statement of operations.

Some of the employees of the Authority are eligible for membership in the provincially operated Civil Service
Superannuation Plan. The pension liability for Authority employees is included in the Province of Manitoba's
liability for Civil Service Superannuation Fund. Accordingly, no provision is required in the financial statements
relating to the effects of participating in the plan by the Authority and its employees.
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REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY - CENTRAL MANITOBA INC.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

15. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Authority defines its capital as the amounts included in the Net Asset balances.

The Authority's objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that
it can continue to provide the appropriate level of care and service to the region.

The Authority sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes to economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets
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REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY - CENTRAL MANITOBA INC. Schedule 1a
Statement of Operations - Ancillary Operations
March 31, 2010

Elderly
Person's Retail Contract
Housing Handivan Pharmacy Facilities 2010 2009
REVENUE
Outside sources $ 983,369 $ 49,323 $ 1,192,183 $ 213696 $ 2,438,571 $ 2,248,235
Amortization of deferred contributions 87,928 6,886 - 4,063 98,877 146,658
1,071,297 56,209 1,192,183 217,759 2,537,448 2,394,893
EXPENSES
Operating 639,286 22,798 906,428 127,464 1,695,976 1,581,893
Amortization of capital assets 104,613 12,467 - 4,063 121,143 123,592
Interest on long term debt 129,946 - - - 129,946 142,693
Major repairs 138,155 4179 - - 142,334 126,382
1 012,000 39,444 906,428 131,527 2,089,399 1,974,560
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES $ 59,297 § 16,765 $ 285,755 $§ 86,232 $ 448,049 $ 420,333
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REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY - CENTRAL MANITOBA INC.

Statement of Operations - Elderly Person's Housing

March 31, 2010

Schedule 1b

Regency Rotary Crescent Centennial Boyne
House Park Lodge Apartments Towers 2010 2009
REVENUE
Rental income $ 313741 $ 175830 $ 41947 $ 127952 $ 176,517 $ 835987 $ 812,135
MHRC subsidy 42,064 2,691 1,673 24,965 62,058 133,351 133,351
Amortization of deferred contributions 16,193 41,231 2,084 5,204 23,216 87,928 94,156
Other 4,750 3,638 960 1,575 3,108 14,031 13,156
376,748 223,390 46,564 159,696 264,899 1,071,297 1,052,798
EXPENSES
Purchased services 21,425 21,424 10,032 15,048 1,908 69,837 70,694
Interdepartmental services 18,096 19,296 4,896 5,808 21,078 69,174 80,100
Salaries and benefits - - - - 21,494 21,494 15,413
Mortgage interest 63,419 6,048 2,137 24,030 34,312 129,946 142,694
Property taxes 38,744 17,135 8,283 24,815 17,752 106,729 104,132
Insurance 5,000 3,000 1,000 4,000 4,300 17,300 17,300
Major repairs 8,798 40,772 1,973 4,249 20,463 76,255 82,484
Maintenance 39,966 29434 3158 4,156 48 790 125,504 106,386
Reserve for major repairs 10,300 22,700 4,100 9,600 15,200 61,900 61,700
Electricity 49,614 14,382 10,917 25,504 39,971 140,389 132,267
Natural gas - 22,681 - - 5,562 28,243 27,767
Water and sewer 15,746 11,216 2,162 5,309 7,529 41,962 40,913
Professional fees - audit 800 800 800 800 800 4,000 4,000
Telephone 6,414 2,094 - - 810 9,318 7,485
Supplies 2,291 1125 17 206 1,697 5,336 16,229
Amortization of capital assets - building 55,242 3,390 2,184 19,745 20,733 101,294 101,298
Amortization of capital assets - equipment 3,360 379 - (420) - 3,319 5,033
339,215 215,876 51,659 142,850 262,399 1,012,000 1,015,895
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES $ 37533 § 7,514 $ (5,095) $ 16,846 $ 2,500 $ 59,297 $ 36,903
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REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY - CENTRAL MANITOBA INC. Schedule 2
Statement of Financial Position - Segmented
March 31, 2010
Devolved Contract 2010 2009
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash and short term investments $ 19630416 $ 3,721,213 $ 23,351,629 $ 20,441,935
Accounts receivable, net 3,234,891 (470,080) 2,764,811 3,225,041
Accounts receivable - Manitoba Health 1,656,251 - 1,656,251 -
Inventories 1,136,340 90,068 1,226,408 1,155,690
Prepaid expenses 1,038,022 40,358 1,078,380 998,188
Due from MBH - vacation entitlements 6,674,688 1,101,240 7,775,928 7,775,928
33,370,608 4,482,799 37,853,407 33,596,782
NON-CURRENT
Due from MBH - retirement entitlements 7,845,000 1,261,000 9,106,000 9,106,000
Capital assets 72,021,617 9,131,590 81,153,207 80,562,663
Other assets - 202,585 202,585 472,323
$ 113,237,225 $ 15077974 $ 128,315,199 $ 123,737,768
LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 12,396,134 $ 1,899,190 $ 14,295,324 $ 14,405,858
Accounts payable - Manitoba Health - - - 778,278
Accrued vacation benefit entitlements 9,413,593 1,604,726 10,918,319 9,996,841
Current portion of long term debt 236,015 10,000 246,015 230,364
22,045,742 3,413,916 25,459,658 25,411,341
NON-CURRENT
Accrued retirement benefit entittiements 10,980,893 1,669,271 12,650,164 11,488,803
Long term debt 2,106,995 148,096 2,255,091 2,425,709
13,087,888 1,817,367 14,905,255 13,914,512
DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS
Expenses of future periods 2,901,325 553,650 3,454,975 4,050,269
Capital assets 68,405,777 8,120,490 76,526,267 76,186,983
71,307,102 8,674,140 79,981,242 80,237,252
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 1,272,835 853,194 2,126,029 1,719,795
Internally restricted - contract - 319,357 319,357 1,036,741
Internally restricted 232,397 - 232,397 270,170
Unrestricted 5,291,261 - 5,291,261 1,147,957
6,796,493 1,172,551 7,969,044 4,174,663
$ 113,237,225 $ 15077974 $ 128,315,199 $ 123,737,768

Page 16

Page 1359



REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY - CENTRAL MANITOBA INC. Schedule 3
Statement of Operations - Segmented
March 31, 2010
Devolved Contract 2010 2009
REVENUE
Manitoba Health $158,629,807 $ 22,681,617 $181,311,424 $ 164,798,291
Other government departments 84,331 - 84,331 85,457
Non-global patient / resident income 9,706,713 3,845,577 13,552,290 12,693,044
Other income 5,636,580 771,177 6,407,757 6,174,284
Amortization of deferred contributions - expenses of future periods 2,830,180 152,713 2,982,893 2,608,993
Amortization of deferred contributions - capital 4,716,880 526,837 5,243,717 5,004,007
Interest and donations 98,518 12,469 110,987 331,468
Ancillary operations 2,319,689 217,759 2,537,448 2,394,893
184,022,698 28,208,149 212,230,847 194,090,437
EXPENSES
Acute care services 70,409,075 1,703,461 72,112,536 64,928,419
Long term care services 34,968,921 17,793,971 52,762,892 49,559,572
Medical remuneration 13,108,529 2,001,161 15,109,690 13,199,760
Community based therapy services 2,637,680 - 2,637,680 2,199,944
Community based mental health services 3,866,938 5,687,543 9,554,481 8,111,538
Community based home care services 18,593,957 - 18,593,957 17,806,330
Community based health services 7,157,034 142,905 7,299,939 6,560,328
Land ambulance 7,313,718 - 7,313,718 6,470,814
Regional Health Authority undistributed 12,254,122 - 12,254,122 12,056,865
Interest on long term debt 301,730 - 301,730 279,290
Pre-retirement leave 1,978,246 491,668 2,469,914 3,121,180
Amortization of capital assets 4,744,015 617,369 5,361,384 5,115,743
Major repairs 488,849 48,402 537,251 429,614
Donations to foundations - - - 10,000
Ancillary operations 1,957,871 131,528 2,089,399 1,974,560
179,780,685 28,618,008 208,398,693 191,823,957
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES $ 4242013 $ (409,859) $ 3,832,154 $ 2,266,480
ALLOCATION OF EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER
EXPENSES
Capital / donations to foundations $ (515984) $ (138,934) $ (654,918) $ (551,350)
Interest and donations 98,518 12,469 110,987 331,468
Ancillary operations 361,818 86,231 448,049 420,333
Health care operations 4,297,661 (369,625) 3,928,036 2,066,029
TOTAL $ 4242013 $ (409,859) $ 3,832,154 $  2,266.480
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2010

The accompanying consalidated financial statements are the responsibility of management and
have been approved by the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority. The consoclidated financial
statements were prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepied accounting
principles and of necessity include some amounts that are based on estimates and judgements.

To discharge its responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of financial reporting, management
maintains a system of internal accounting controls comprising written policies, standards and
procedures, a formal authorization structure, and satisfactory processes for reviewing internal
controls. This system is designed to provide management with reasonable assurance that
transactions are in accordance with governing legislation, are properly authorized, reliable
financial records are maintained, and assets are adequately accounted for and safeguarded.

Ernst & Young LLP provides an independent audit of the consolidated financial statements.
Their examination is conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards and includes tests and other procedures, which allow them to report on the fairness
of the consolidated financial statements prepared by management.

Arlene Wilgosh Paul A. Kochan, FCA
President & Chief Executive Officer Vice-President & Chief Financial Officer
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AUDITORS' REPORT

‘T'o the Directors of
Winnipeg Regional ITealth Authority

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of thc Winnipeg
Regional Health Awthority |"the Authority”| as at March 31. 2010 and the
consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the
year then ended. These consolidated [inancial statements are the responsibility of
the Authority's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated
financial statement presentation.

[n our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present [airly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Authority as at March 31, 2010 and
the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian gencrally accepted accounting principles.

The financial statements for the preceding year were audited by other chartered
accountants.

é:‘u,u,z‘: ¢ ?m’uf AL
Winnipcg, Manitoba,

June 9, 2010. Chartered Accountants

EHERNST&SYOUNG
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY

Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the year ended March 31, 2010
{in thousands of dollars})

2010 2009
REVENUE
Manitoba Health operating income $ 2,077,237 $ 1,951,466
Other income {Schedule 1) 117,453 108,082
Amortization of deferred contributions, capital 65,641 58,972
Recognition of deferred contributions, future expenses 12,822 2,430
2,273,153 2,120,950
EXPENSES
Direct operations 1,893,5M 1,765 710
Interest 747 786
Amortization of capital assets 67,173 651,848
1,961,451 1,828,344
FACILITY FUNDING
Long term care facility funding (Schedule 2) 267,854 249,045
Community health agency funding (Schedule 3} 34,770 31,439
Adult day care facility funding (Schedule 4) 3,094 2,754
Long term care community therapy services 715 691
GRANT FUNDING
Grants to facilities and agencies {Schedule 5} 19,300 19,091
2,287,184 2,131,364
OPERATING DEFICIT {14,031) (10,414)
NON-INSURED SERVICES
Non-insured services income 72,447 63,227
Non-insured services expenses 66,797 56,711
NON-INSURED SERVICES SURPLUS 5,650 6,516
GEFICIT FOCR THE YEAR $ (8,381) % {3,898)

Director

Director
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at March 31, 2010

{in thousands of dollars)

2010 2009
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash and cash equivalents 11,587 3 37,302
Accounts receivable (Note 5) 125,859 116,127
Inventory (Note 6) 43,771 18,738
Prepaid expenses 13,519 11,338
Investments (Note 9) 6,402 12,787
Employee benefits recoverable from Manitoba Health (Note 7) 78,675 78,675
279,813 274,967
CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 8, 14) 1,139,535 1,055,592
OTHER ASSETS
Employee future benefits recoverable from Manitoba (Note 22) 82,302 82,302
Investments (Note 9) 24,753 15,796
Specific purpose funds (Note 10) 45,077 48,547
Nurse recruitment and retention fund (Note 11) 4,242 4,358
1,575,722 $ 1,481,562
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 12) 14,597 $ 192,373
Demand loans {(Note 13) 29,000 -
Employee benefits payable (Note 7) 92,324 99,004
Current portion of long term debt (Note 14) 46,040 47,097
361,961 338,474
LONG TERM DEBT AND DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS
Long term debt (Note 14) 20,785 22431
Employee future benefits payable (Note 22) 143,324 120,899
Specific purpose funds (Note 10) 45,077 48,547
Deferred contributions (Note 16) 953,149 891,288
Nurse recruitment and retention fund (Note 11) 4,242 4,358
1,166,577 1,087,523
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 18)
NET ASSETS 47,184 55,565
1,575,722 $ 1,481,562

2
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the year ended March 31, 2010

{in thousands of dollars)

2010 2009
. Internally
Inve:stment 'n Unrestricted Restricted
Capital Assets Total Total
(Note 17) MNet Assets MNet Assets
(Schedule 6)
Balance, beginning of year $ 73,920 | % (43.221)( $ 24,866 | $ 55,565 59,463
Met (deficit) surplus (6,079) (3,905) 1,603 (8,381) (3,898)
Purchase of capital assets 13,764 (12,857) (907) - -
Met asset restrictions - (1,412) 1,412 - -
Balance, end of year $ 81,605 | % (61,395)( $ 26,974 | $ 47,184 55,565
3
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended March 31, 2010

(in thousands of dollars)

2010 2009
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Deficit for the year (8,381) (3,898)
ltems not affecting cash
Amortization of capital assets 74,555 68,217
Amortization of deferred contributions related
to capital assets (68,476) {62,166)
Recognition of deferred contributions related to future expenses (12,887) (3,297)
Net change in employee future benefits 15,745 10,338
556 9,194
Changes in non-cash operating working capital items (34,722) 4,327)
Deferred contributions received - future expenses 22470 10,162
(11,696) 15,029
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Deferred contributions received - capital assets 120,754 100,600
Proceeds of demand loans 30,000 -
Demand loans repayments (1,000) -
Proceeds of long term debt - 45,109
Long term debt repayments (2,703) (9,040)
147,051 136,669
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets (158,498) (140,193)
Increase in investments (2,572) {1,958)
(161,070) (142,151)
(DECREASE) INCREASE (25,715) 9,547
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 37,302 27,755
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 11,587 37,302
Comprised of:
Cash 10,884 33,859
Cash equivalents 703 3,443
Total 11,587 37,302
Supplementary Information:
Interest paid 3,115 5,048

4
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at March 31, 2010

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

1. NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (“the Authority”, “WRHA") was established on
December 1, 1999. The Authority provides community health services directly through its
operations of Home Care, Mental Health and Public Health and provides acute care services
through its Health Sciences Centre, Deer Lodge Centre, Grace General Hospital and Pan Am
Clinic sites. Acute care services are also provided by Concordia Hospital, Seven Oaks General
Hospital, Victoria General Hospital (“the Community Hospitals”) and the three non-devolved
hospitals, Misericordia Health Centre, Riverview Health Centre, Inc., St. Boniface General
Hospital (“the Other Hospitals®), and the Manitoba Adolescent Treatment Centre ("MATC").
Volunteer Enterprises of the Health Sciences Centre Inc. ("VENT”) operates services within the
WRHA and their results are included in these financial statements. Long term care, community
health and other health services are delivered in the region through non-proprietary and
proprietary personal care homes and community health agencies as well as through a number
of not-for-profit organizations.

The Authority is a not-for-profit organization under the Income Tax Act and accordingly is
exempt from income taxes, provided certain requirements of the Income Tax Act are met.

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

During the previous year, the Authority was assessing the impact of revisions to the 4400 series of
the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA”) Handbook, and certain sections that
relate to not-for-profit organizations, to its cumrent reporting practices. With respect to
presentation, the Authority will continue to disclose net assets invested in capital assets although
the CICA amendment has made the disclosure optional. CICA section 1540, Cash Flow
Statements, is now applicable to not-for-profit organizations. The Authority will continue its
presentation of a statement of cash flows under the guidelines of this section. Management has
determined that CICA Section 4470, Disclosure of Allocated Expenses for Not-for-Profit
Organizations, does not apply to the Authority as its expenses are not allocated to more than one
function. These changes were adopted effective April 1, 2009 and, as noted, did not impact the
financial statement presentation by the Authority.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles.
a) The reporting entity

The scope of the Authority’s operations is classified into these three distinct segments:

i. Direct Operations provided through:

— Direct Ownership — Home Care services, Mental Health services, Public
Health services, Primary Care services, Acute Care services (Health
Sciences Centre, Deer Lodge Centre, Grace General Hospital and Pan Am
sites), and Medical Remuneration.

— Agreement — the Community Hospitals by means of agreements to further
regionalization and operating agreements.

5
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at March 31, 2010

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

— Non-devolved Other Hospitals and MATC - by means of operating
agreements

ii. Longterm care and community health services — provided through non-proprietary and
proprietary personal care homes and community health agencies by means of service
purchase agreements.

iii. Other health services — provided through various agencies by means of grant funding
mechanisms.

b) Definition of controlled entity

The Authority is the majority funder of the Community Hospitals, the Other Hospitals and
MATC, which act as the Authority’s agents in providing health care services mandated by
the Province of Manitoba. These health care services are delivered under the control of
the Authority from an accounting perspective. This determination of control is based
largely on the fact that the Community Hospitals’, the Other Hospitals’, MATC's and
VENT's purposes are integrated with that of the WRHA such that they and the WRHA have
common and complementary objectives. Moreover, due to the existence of operating
agreements between the Authority and the Community Hospitals, Other Hospitals and
MATC, the WRHA has the ability to determine their strategic operating, investing and
financing policies.

As permitted by Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, the controlled
Community Hospitals, Other Hospitals and MATC have been consolidated into the
Authority’s financial statements due to the nature of the agreements in existence, while the
controlled Seven Oaks General Hospital Foundation Inc. and St Boniface General Auxiliary
Inc. have not since they are not directly involved in the delivery of health care services.
Note 21 provides a financial summary of these controlled non-consolidated entities.

Revenue recognition

The Authority follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions:

i. Operating contributions — recorded as revenue in the period to which they relate.

ii. Unrestricted conftributions — recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably
assured.

iii. Externally restricted contributions — recognized as revenue in the year in which the
related expenses are recognized.

iv. Contributions restricted for the purchase of capital assets are defemred and amortized

into revenue on a straight-line basis, at a rate comresponding with the amortization rate
for the related capital assets.

6
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at March 31, 2010

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

d)

f)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

v. Contributions approved but not received at the end of an accounting period are
accrued. Where a portion of a contribution relates to a future period, it is deferred and
recognized in that subsequent period.

The Authority is funded by the Province of Manitoba using Manitoba Health funding
mechanisms. These financial statements use funding mechanisms approved by Manitoba
Health for the year ended March 31, 2010.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of highly liquid instruments, such as certificates of
deposit, term deposits, treasury notes and other money market instruments, which
generally have original maturities of less than three months from the date of issuance.

Inventory

Inventory consists of medical supplies, drugs, linen and other supplies that are measured at
the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula. Inventory is expensed when sold or put into use.

Capital assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Contributed capital assets are recorded at
fair value at the date of contribution. Capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis
using an annual rate of:

Buildings 2-20%

Furniture & equipment 5-33%

Computer hardware and software 10-20%

Leasehold improvements over the life of the lease

Interest on the debt associated with construction in progress projects is capitalized as
incurred.

g) Surplus retention and use policy

h)

Non-proprietary personal care homes, and community health agencies are eligible to retain
insured services surpluses based on an agreed upon formula. The non-retainable portion
of the surplus is recorded on their statement of financial position as a payable to WRHA.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. The
amounts estimated by management include amortization of capital assets, employee future
benefits payable and allowance for doubtful accounts.

7
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at March 31, 2010

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

i)

)

Internally restricted net assets

The Authority has allocated some of the net assets to future capital purchases through
internal restrictions by the Boards of Directors.

Financial instruments
Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counterparty will fail to perform its obligations.
The Authority's accounts receivable are comprised mostly of amounts due from the
Govemment of Manitoba and from the facilities that it funds, minimizing credit risk. The
Authority also has some credit risk associated with an interest rate swap. This risk is
minimized by entering into the agreement with a major Canadian financial institution.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of change in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and other price risk.

The Authority is exposed to market risks through the derivative instruments entered into.
The Authority uses derivative instruments only for risk management purposes and not for
generating trading profit. As such, any change in cash flows associated with derivative
instruments due to their exposure to market risks is designed to be offset by changesin
cash flows related to the risk being hedged.

The Authority’s primary market risk exposure is interest rate risk. This interest rate risk is
the risk arising from fluctuations in short term interest rates and the volatility of those rates
on the issuance of floating rate debt. The Authority mitigates this risk by retaining the
ability to convert all floating rate bomrowings to fixed rate borrowings. The Authority has
entered into an interest rate swap to manage a proportion of total debt that is subject to
variable rates.

The Authority has minimal exposure to foreign exchange and other price risks.

Financial assets and liabilities

Under the standards, financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair
value and are subsequently accounted for based on their classification as described below.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were
acquired and their characteristics.

8
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at March 31, 2010

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

Financial instruments (continued)

Except in very limited circumstances, the classification is not changed subsequent to initial
recognition.

Classification
Cash and cash equivalents Held for trading
Specific purpose funds Held for trading
Nurse recruitment and retention fund Held for trading
Derivative instruments Held for trading
Investments (bonds, money market, GICs,

and mutual funds) Held for trading
Investments (mortgage) Loans and receivables
Accounts receivable Loans and receivables
Employee benefits recoverable from

Manitoba Health Loans and receivables
Employee future benefits recoverable from

Manitoba Health Loans and receivables
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Other liabilities
Demand loans Cther liabilities
Employee benefits payable Other liabilities
Long-term debt Other liabilities
Specific purpose funds Other liabilities
Nurse recruitment and retention fund Cther liabilities

The carrying value of accounts receivable, employee benefits recoverable from Manitoba
Health, employee future benefits recoverable from Manitoba Health, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities and employee benefits payable approximates their fair value due to the
short-term nature of these instruments. The camying value of specific purpose funds and
nurse recruitment and retention fund approximates their fair value due to the held for
trading classification of the underlying investments.

Held for trading

Held for trading financial assets are financial assets typically acquired for resale prior to
maturity or that are designated as held for trading upon initial recognition. They are
measured at fair value at the balance sheet date. Fair value fluctuations including interest
eamed, interest accrued, gains and losses realized on disposal and unrealized gains and
losses are included in investment income.

{ ocans and receivables

Loans and receivables are accounted for at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

9
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at March 31, 2010

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

k)

Financial instruments (continued)
Other liabilities

Other liabilities are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest method and
include all financial liabilities, other than derivative instruments.

Effective interest method

The Authority uses the effective interest method to recognize interest income or expense,
which includes transaction costs or fees, premiums or discounts earned or incurred for
financial instruments.

Derivative financial instruments

The Authority is using a derivative instrument to manage exposure to changes in interest
rates. The Authority’'s objective for holding this derivative is to minimize risk using the most
efficient methods to eliminate or reduce the impacts of this exposure.

The Authority entered into an interest rate swap to manage the interest rate cash flow
exposure associated with certain debt obligations. The contract has an effect of converting
the floating rate of interest on certain debt to a fixed rate.

Under this swap, the Authority agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals,
the difference between fixed contract rates and floating-rate interest amounts calculated by
reference to the agreed notional amounts, as well as, amounts reflecting the amortization
of principal amounts.

This derivative is measured at fair value at the end of each year and the unrealized gains
or losses arising from remeasurement are recorded and presented under interest expense
in the consolidated statement of operations and in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

It is the Authority's policy not to speculate on derivative instruments; thus, these
instruments are purchased for risk management purposes.

Investments

Bonds, money market and mutual fund investments are classified as held for trading and
are stated at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses, representing the change in the
difference between the fair value and the cost of these investments at the beginning and
end of each year, are reflected in other income in the consolidated statement of operations.
Fair value of investments is determined based on quoted market prices. The Authority
recognizes their investments based on settlement date.

The mortgage is classified as loans and receivables and is measured at amortized cost.

10
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at March 31, 2010

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
m) Due to/from Manitoba Health
in Globe funding

In Globe funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for Regional Health Authority
programs unless otherwise specified as Out of Globe funding. This includes volume
changes and price increases for the five service categories of Acute Care, Long Term
Care, Community and Mental Health, Home Care, and Emergency Response and
Transport. All additional costs in these five service areas must be absorbed from within the
global funding provided.

Any operating surplus greater than 2% of budget related to In Globe funding arrangements
is recorded on the statement of financial position as a payable to Manitoba Health until
such time as Manitoba Health reviews the financial statements. At that time, Manitoba
Health determines what portion of the approved surplus may be retained by the Authority,
or repaid to Manitoba Health.

Under Manitoba Health policy, the Authority is responsible for In Globe deficits, unless
otherwise approved by Manitoba Health.

Out of Globe funding
Out of Globe funding is funding approved by Manitoba Health for specific programs.

Any operating surplus related to Out of Globe funding arrangements is recorded on the
statement of financial position as a payable to Manitoba Health until such time as Manitoba
Health reviews the financial statements. At that time, Manitoba Health determines what
portion of the approved surplus may be retained by the Authority, or repaid to Manitoba
Health.

Conversely, any operating deficits related to Out of Globe funding arrangements are
recorded on the statement of financial position as a receivable from Manitoba Health until
such time as Manitoba Health reviews the financial statements. At that time, Manitoba
Health determines their final funding approvals which indicate the portion of the deficit that
will be paid to the Authority. Any unapproved costs not paid by Manitoba Health are
absorbed by the Authority.

4. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS ISSUED AND NOT YET APPLIED

There are no further policies that have been pronounced but not yet effective that would be
applicable to the Authority.
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at March 31, 2010

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2010 2009
Manitoba Health - operating, capital and fee for service $ 97,978 $ 90 489
Accounts receivable from other Province of Manitoba Departments 1,435 1,420
Facility advances and receivables 8,959 5578
Patient related and other 27,681 26,034
Allowance for doubtful accounts (10,194) (7,394)

$ 125,859 $ 116,127

6. INVENTORY

2010 2009
Held for Held for
Sale Intemal Use Total Total
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,228 $ 17,510 $ 18,738 $ 18,212
Amount purchased in year 527 190,153 190,680 151,498
Amount expensed in year (479) (165,279) (165,758) (151,302)
Amount written down in year (163) (12) (175) (60)
Writedowns reversed in year 11 275 286 390
Balance, end of year $ 1,124 $ 42,647 $ 43,771 $ 18,738

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Authority records a provision for employee benefits including accrued vacation, overtime, and
statutory holiday entitlements. Prior to March 31, 2004 changes in the liability related to employee
benefits were recoverable from Manitoba Health. Manitoba Health advised that changes subsequent
to March 31, 2004 are no longer recoverable and must be included in the current year operations.

An analysis of the changes in the employee benefits recoverable from Manitoba Health is as follows:

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 78,675 $ 78,675
Balance, end of year $ 78,675 $ 78,675
An analysis of the changes in the employee benefits payable is as follows:
Balance, beginning of year $ 99,004 $ 92,802
(Decrease) increase in vacation/overtime/stat holiday entitlements (6,680) 6,202
Balance, end of year $ 92,324 $ 99,004
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at March 31, 2010

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

8. CAPITAL ASSETS 2010 2009
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Value
Land $ 18,296 $ - $ 18,296 $ 16,534
Buildings 1,104,706 (395,521) 709,185 676,971
Furniture & equipment 760,814 (607.,430) 153,384 150,327
Computer hardware and software 94,423 (38,423) 56,000 57,702
Leasehold improvements 47,593 (8,712) 38,881 11,877
Construction in progress 163,789 - 163,789 142,181

$2,189621 $ (1,050,086) $ 1,139,535 $ 1,055,592

The Authority has capitalized interest on some projects up until they are substantially complete.
The amount of interest capitalized in the year was $372 (2009 - $2,334).

9. INVESTMENTS

2010 2009
Money market investments $ 703 $ 3,443
Govemment bonds 39,147 37,075
Corporate bonds (rated A or better) 23,434 25,000
Guaranteed Investment Certificates (GICs) 2,005 1,220
Mutual funds - 47
Mortgage 1,078 1,597
66,367 68,382

Less: amounts included with cash and cash equivalents (703) (3,443)

Less: amounts included with specific purpose funds (34,509) (36,356)

(35,212) (39,799)

Less: amounts maturing/ redeemable within one year, included
in current assets (6,402) (12,787)
$ 24,753 $ 15,796

Investments are carried at fair value using quoted market prices, except for the mortgage, which is at
amortized cost.

The mortgage of $1,078 (2009 - $1,597) is to Parkade Inc., a corporation without share capital whose
Member is the same as that of the St. Boniface General Hospital. Interest is charged at the rate of
4.2% per annum and mortgage payments are $48 per month including principal and interest. Under
the current terms it is estimated the mortgage will retire by March 15, 2012. The mortgage covers the
parkade structure and the leasehold title for the land on which the parkade is situated. The fair value
of the mortgage is estimated at $1,104 (2009 - $1,640). The fair value was determined using
estimated market rates available to the Authority for the same or similar instruments.
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at March 31, 2010

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

10.

INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The Authority manages the liquidity risk associated with its investments by limiting the types of eligible
investments. Corporate bonds are limited to a rating of A or higher and money market investments are
limited to R1 or better.

The Authority is exposed to the effects of future changes in the prevailing level of interest rates.
Changes in the market interest rates have a direct effect on the fair value of the Authority's
investments. The Authority mitigates the interest rate risk exposure of its Govemment and Corporate
bonds and GICs by staggering maturity dates. As of March 31, 2010, the maturity dates are as
follows:

Government Comorate GICs Effective Yield
Within 1 year $ 4074 $ 1512 % 572 3.60%
2 to 5 years 17,520 17,677 1,433 4.43%
5to 10 years 9,523 3,279 - 4.38%
Over 10 years 8,030 966 - 4.97%

$ 39147 $ 23434 % 2,005

Money market investments are not exposed to significant interest rate risk due to the short-term
maturity of these investments. Investments in mutual funds are not exposed to significant interest rate
risk.

SPECIFIC PURPOSE FUNDS

Cash and cash equivalents and investments held for specific purposes include the following:

2010 2009
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,568 $ 12,191
Investments, at fair value 34,509 36,356

$ 45,077 $ 48,547

The Authority maintains numerous research and trust accounts designated for specific purposes. An
analysis of the changes in these funds is as follows:

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 48,547 $ 46,851
Grants, bequests and donations 32,361 28 557
Investment income 1,843 1,769
Disbursements (37,674) (28,630)
Balance, end of year $ 45,077 $ 48 547

Certain of the funds designated for specific purposes are subject to extemally imposed restrictions
stipulating that the principal be maintained intact, or that the principal be used for specifically stated
purposes.
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at March 31, 2010

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

1.

12.

13.

NURSE RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION FUND

In 2000, Manitoba Health had established a $7 million Nurse Recruitment and Retention Fund in order
to assist with the implementation of recruitment and retention strategies for nurses throughout
Manitoba. The Authority holds, invests and disburses funds on behalf of the Nurse Recruitment and
Retention Committee. The Fund is administered by a tri-partite committee comprised of the Regional
Health Authorities of Manitoba, Manitoba Health, and the Manitoba Nurses Union. The Authority can

only disburse funds authorized by the committee.

Cash and cash equivalents held for the Nurse Recruitment and Retention Fund include the following:

2010 2009
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,242 $ 4 358
Investments are carried at fair value using quoted market prices.
An analysis of the changes in the Nurse Recruitment and Retention Fund is as follows:
Balance, beginning of year $ 4,358 $ 2,847
Additions to fund 3,724 3,961
Interest eamed on investment - 51
Fund expenditures (3,840) (2,501)
Balance, end of year $ 4,242 $ 4 358
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

2010 2009
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 148,927 $ 137,609
Accrued salaries 44,143 47 543
Accrued interest on long term debt - 455
Holdbacks on construction contracts 1,527 6,766

$ 194,597 $ 192373

DEMAND LOANS

The demand loans represent two interest free cash advances from Manitoba Health. The first interest
free demand loan has a balance at March 31, 2010 of $19,000 (2009 - $nil) and was issued on
October 31, 2009 in the amount of $20,000 with a repayment schedule of $1,000 per annum. The
second interest free demand loan has a balance at March 31, 2010 of $10,000 (2009 - $nil) and was
issued on January 13, 2010 in the amount of $10,000 with repayment at Manitoba Health's request.

The fair value of this debt approximates carrying value as it is due on demand.
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at March 31, 2010

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

14. LONG TERM DEBT

0.585% Banker's Acceptance, maturing April 14, 2010
Health Sciences Centre Tecumseh Street Parkade
Fair value $38,319 (2009 - $38,252)

7.38% Mortgage payable, maturing August 31, 2018
Monthly principal and interest payments $157

Nutrition & Food Services
Fair value $13,072 (2009 - $13,998)

5.8% Bank Loan, maturing September 30, 2014
Monthly principal and interest payments $87

St. Boniface General Hospital Atrium

Fair value $10,717 (2009 - $10,841)

0.617% Banker's Acceptance, maturing April 27, 2010
Health Sciences Centre Emily Street Parkade
Fair value $6,154 (2009 - $6,857)

Government of Canada, Technology 2000 Inc. loan
St. Boniface Hospital
Fair value $nil (2009 - undeterminable)

Prime plus 0.25% Term Loan, maturing 2015
Monthly principal and interest payments $4

Grace General Hospital Hospice
Fair value $221 (2009 - $271)

Prime less 0.5% Term Loan, maturing 2011
Monthly principal and interest payments $7
Concordia Energy Saving Project

Fair value $58 (2009 - $136)

2010

2009

38,319

11,806

10,267

6,154

21

58

38,252

12,782

10,708

6,857

522

271

136

Less amounts due within one year,
included in current liabilities

66,825

(46,040)

69,528

(47,097)

5

20,785

$

22,431

The fair value of long term debt has been calculated using discounted cash flow analysis based on
incremental borrowing rates currently available for similar terms and maturities.
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at March 31, 2010

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

14.

15.

LONG TERMDEBT (Continued)

The Technology 2000 Inc. loan was from the Government of Canada, through the Western Economic
Diversification Program. The loan was forgiven in October 2009 as the result of the conclusion of a
settlement agreement with Western Economic Diversification Canada. WED agreed to forgive the
outstanding loan balance of $502 and the associated interest payable of $455.

The 5.8% Bank Loan maturing on September 30, 2014 is secured by an assignment of existing and
future leases and rents related to the St. Boniface Hospital Atrium. In accordance with the terms of
the loan agreement, the Hospital cannot sell, transfer, assign, mortgage, lease, encumber, or
otherwise dispose of any building or land associated with the Atrium without the lender's consent.

The HSC Tecumseh Street Parkade loan has been secured with the Tecumseh Street Parkade which
at March 31, 2010 had a net book value of $42,215 (2009 - $43,006). The HSC Emily Street Parkade
loan has been secured with the Emily Street Parkade which at March 31, 2010 had a net book value
of $5,408 (2009 - $5,858). The assigned results of the HSC Parking Operations have also been
secured against both of the parkade loans.

The principal repayments over the next five fiscal years are as follows:

2010/11 $ 46,040
2011412 1,675
201213 1,790
201314 1,914
2014415 2,018

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Authority has entered into an interest rate swap to convert a floating interest rate debt instrument
into a fixed interest rate debt instrument for the Emily Street Parkade at the Health Sciences Centre.
The notional amount of this swap at March 31, 2010 is $6,154 maturing on July 23, 2017 with a fixed
rate of 4.105%. The fair value of this swap has been calculated at $23 (2009 - ($60)), resulting in a
derivative asset of $23 (2009 - ($60)).

This derivative is measured at fair value at the end of each year and the unrealized gains or losses
arising from remeasurement are recorded and presented under interest expense in the consolidated
statement of operations and in accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

The counterparty to this contract is a major Canadian financial institution. The Authority does not
anticipate any material adverse effect on its financial position resulting from the involvement in this
type of contract, nor does it anticipate non-performance by the counterparty given their high credit
rating.
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at March 31, 2010

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

16. DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS

2010 2009

Deferred contributions, future expenses
- operating expenses $ 30,688 $ 19,086
- contract settlement expenses - 2,715
30,688 21,801
Deferred contributions, capital 922,461 869 487
Deferred contributions, total $ 953,149 $ 891,288

a) Deferred contributions, future expenses

Deferred contributions related to future expenses represent the unspent amount of funding received
for the Authority's operating expenses. The recognition of deferred contributions, future expenses is
recorded as revenue in the statement of operations.

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 21,801 $ 16,509
Amount received during the year 22,470 10,162
Transferred to deferred contributions, capital (696) (1,573)
Less: amount recognized as revenue - Programs (12,822) (2,430)
Less: amount recognized as revenue - Non-insured services (65) (867)
Balance, end of year $ 30,688 $ 21,801

b) Deferred contributions, capital

Deferred contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized and unspent amount of
funding received for the purchase of the Authority's capital assets. The amortization of deferred
contributions, capital is recorded as revenue in the statement of operations.

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 869,487 $ 829480
Amount received during the year 120,754 100,600
Transferred from deferred contributions, future expenses 696 1,573
Less: amount amortized to revenue — Programs (65,641) (58,972)
Less: amount amortized to revenue — Non-insured services (2,835) (3,194)
Balance, end of year $ 922,461 $ 869487
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at March 31, 2010

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

16. DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS (continued)

b) Deferred contributions, capital (continued)

In prior years, the Authority entered into long term loan agreements with various financial institutions
to provide debt financing to the Authority. The Province of Manitoba continues to pay the principal
and interest on this long term debt. During the 2005 fiscal year, this long term debt was assumed by
the Province of Manitoba and was recognized as borrowings in the Public Accounts (Special Pumpose
Financial Statements) of the Province of Manitoba as at Aprl 1, 2004. Accordingly, since the
Province of Manitoba has recognized the long term debt as its borrowings, the Authorty has
incorporated the following long term debt as part of its deferred contributions balance:

2010 2009
Demand bank loans for capital projects in anticipation
of the future issuance of long term debt by Manitoba
Health, Prime less 1.0% to Prime plus .5% $ 29,167 $ 45 396
Sinking fund debentures, Series 91, 10.00%, maturing June 11, 2011
Health Sciences Centre 25,000 25,000
Sinking fund debentures, Series E, 8.69%, maturing May 30, 2016
St. Boniface General Hospital 51,500 51,500

$ 105,667 $ 1218986

At March 31, 2010 the value of the sinking fund assets and accumulated interest aggregated $44 ,824
(2009 - $41,975). Annual payments are made by the Authority/Manitoba Health from cash held in
trust, which at March 31, 2010 was $2,112 (2009 - $2,112).

The scheduled principal repayments over the next five fiscal years are as follows:

2010/11 $ 3,017

2011412 28,255

201213 5723

201314 4,206

201415 4,166
19
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As at March 31, 2010

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

17. INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Investment in capital assets represents the amount of capital assets internally funded and is
calculated as follows:

2010 2009
Capital assets $ 1,139,535 $ 1,055,592
Amounts financed by:
Deferred contributions $ (922,461) $ (869,487)
Loans and accounts payable (135,469) (112,185)
Investment in capital assets $ 81,605 $ 73,920
Change in investment in capital assets is calculated as follows:
2010 2009
a) Excess of expenses over revenues
Amortization of capital assets included in programs $ (67173) % (61,848)
Amortization of capital assets included in non-insured
services (7,382) (6,369)
Amortization of deferred contributions related to capital
assets included in programs 65,641 58 972
Amortization of deferred contributions related to capital
assets included in non-insured services 2,835 3,194
$ (6,079) % (6,051)
b) Purchase of capital assets $ 158,498 $ 140193

Amounts funded by:

Capital contributions received in the year (120,754) (100,600)

Capital contributions transferred from future expenses (696) (1,573)
Change in capital contributions receivable, loans and

accounts payable (23,284) (52,896)

$ 13,764 $ (14 876)

o

Change in investment in capital assets 7,685 $ (20,927)
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As at March 31, 2010

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

18. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

19.

20.

a) The Authority is subject to legal actions arising in the normal course of business. It is not
expected that these legal actions will have a material adverse effect on the financial
position of the Authority.

b) At March 31, 2010, annual lease payments for the various premises occupied by the
Authority over the next five fiscal years are as follows:

2010/11 $10,451

2011712 10,237
2012/13 10,027
2013/14 9,363
2014/15 7,810

c) At March 31, 2010, the Authority had capital commitments of approximately $19,527 (2009 -
$38,876) and equipment purchase commitments of approximately $11,900 (2009 - $14,629).

d) The Authority has entered into various operating lease commitments. The minimum amounts
payable over the next five fiscal years are as follows:

2010/11 $4,118

20117112 4,241

201213 3,509

2013/14 2,001

2014/15 875
HIROC

On July 1, 1987, a group of health care organizations (“subscribers”), formed Healthcare
Insurance Reciprocal of Canada ("HIROC”). HIROC is registered as a Reciprocal pursuant to
provincial Insurance Acts, which pemit persons to exchange with other persons reciprocal
contracts of indemnity insurance. HIROC facilitates the provision of liability insurance coverage
to health care organizations in the provinces of Ontario, Manitoba, Saskatchewan and
Newfoundland. Subscribers pay annual premiums, which are actuarially determined, and are
subject to assessment for losses in excess of such premiums, if any, experienced by the group
of subscribers for the years in which they were a subscriber. No such assessments have been
made to March 31, 2010.

ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE
The Authority received approximately 91% (2009 - 92%) of its total revenue from Manitoba
Health and is economically dependent on Manitoba Health for continued operations. This

volume of funding transactions is normal within the industry, as regional health authorities are
primarily funded by their respective provincial Ministries of Health.
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As at March 31, 2010

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

21. RELATED ENTITIES

The Authority provides community health services through operations directly owned by the
Authority as well as through other organizations and agencies via a variety of agreements
(Notes 1 and 3a). Transactions between the related parties are recorded at the exchange
amount, which approximates fair value. For accounting purposes the relationships with these
organizations and agencies are as follows:

a) Controlled entities

The Community Hospitals, Other Hospitals, MATC and VENT are controlled (Note 3b) and
have been consolidated into the Authority’s financial statements.

The consolidated entities within the Authority exercise control over the following entities by
virtue of their ability to detemmine their operating, investing, or financing policies. The
following entities are controlled, but not consolidated:

Seven Oaks General Hospital Foundation Inc.
St. Boniface General Auxiliary Inc.

These entities were incorporated under the Corporations Act of Manitoba, are registered
charities for the purposes of the Income Tax Act and accordingly are exempt from income
taxes. The aim of these entities is to advance the welfare of their respective hospitals and
patients.

A financial summary of these entities is as follows:

2010 2009
Financial Position
Total assets $ 1,453 $ 1,791
Total liabilities & deferred contributions 149 153
Total net assets $ 1,304 $ 1,638
Results of Operations
Total revenues $ 1,758 $ 1,417
Total expenses 1,037 1,015
Surplus from operations $ 720 3 402
Cash Flows
(Used in) from operating activities $ (225) % 306

Used for financing & investing activities 180 60
(Decrease) increase in cash {(45) 3% 366

id
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at March 31, 2010

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

21. RELATED ENTITIES (continued)

a) Controlled entities (continued)

b)

During the year, the entities listed contributed $1,324 (2009 - $264) to various facilities
within the Authority. The Authority incurred expenses of $nil (2009 - $nil) with the listed
entities. As at March 31, 2010, various facilities within the Authority had aggregate amounts
of $40 (2009 - $908) receivable from and $nil (2009 - $nil) payable to the entities above.

Significant influence

The consolidated entities within the Authority exercise significant influence over a number
of hospital foundations and other similar organizations by virtue of their ability to affect the
entities’ strategic operating, investing, and financing policies. These entities were
incorporated under the Corporations Act of Manitoba, are registered charities for the
purposes of the Income Tax Act and accordingly are exempt from income taxes. The aim of
these entities is to advance the welfare of their respective Hospitals and patients.

During the year, these entities contributed $3,056 (2009 - $9,559) to various facilities within
the Authority. The Authority incurred expenses of $nil (2009 - $nil) with the above entities.
As at March 31, 2010, various facilities within the Authority had aggregate amounts of $704
(2009 - $2,785) receivable from and $32 (2009 - $nil) payable to the entities above.

Economic interest

The consolidated entities within the Authority have an economic interest in a number of
organizations that support the hospital by virtue of the organizations holding resources that
must be used to produce revenue for the consolidated entities within the Authority.

During the year, these entities contributed $3,210 (2009 - $3,451) to various facilities within
the Authority. The Authority incurred expenses of $nil (2009 - $134) with the above entities.
As at March 31, 2010, various facilities within the Authority had aggregate amounts of $604
(2009 - $1,317) receivable from and $nil (2009 - $nil) payable to the entities listed.

In addition to these entities, the Authority has an economic interest in proprietary and non-
proprietary personal care homes and community health agencies. Funding is provided to
these entities through service purchase agreements to deliver service on behalf of the
Authority. Schedules 2, 3, and 4 disclose the funding provided to these entities for the
delivery of service. As at March 31, 2010, the Authority had aggregate amounts of $786
(2009 - $nil) receivable from and $14,261 (2009 - $12,178) payable to proprietary and non-
proprietary personal care homes and community health agencies.
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22. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS
a) Accrued retirement entitlement

Based upon collective agreements and/or non-union policy, employees are entitled to a
pre-retirement leave benefit if they are retiring in accordance with the provisions of the
applicable group pension plan. The Authority’'s contractual commitment is to pay based
upon one of the following (dependent on the agreement/policy applicable to the employee):

1. Four days of salary per year of service upon retirement if the employee complies with
one of the following conditions:
i. has 10 years service* and has reached the age 55
ii. qualifies for the “eighty” rule which is calculated by adding the number of years of
service to the age of the employee
iii. retires at or after age 65
iv. terminates employment at any time due to permanent disability

*Non-union policy requires 5 years service for staff not covered by a collective
agreement.

2. One week of pay for each year of service up to 15 years of service and two weeks of
additional pay for each five years past the 15 years of service up to 35 years of service
upon retirement if the employee complies with the following conditions:

i. has 9 or more years of service
ii. has reached the age of 55

3. One week of pay for each year of accumulated service or portion thereof to a maximum
of fifteen weeks pay upon retirement if the employee complies with the following
conditions:

i. has 10 or more years of service
ii. has reached the age of 55

4. Payment or pre-retirement leave equivalent to the number of unused sick leave days
accumulated during the last 5 years service plus 256% of the unused sick days
accumulated prior to the last 5 years of service mulliplied by the daily rate of the
employee’s permanent or regular position in effect on the employee's last day of service
payable upon:

i. Retirement, death, or termination of service caused by a transfer of departmental
function.
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22. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (continued)

a)

b)

Accrued retirement entitlement (continued)

The Authority undertook an actuarial valuation of the pre-retirement leave benefit for
accounting purposes as at December 31, 2009, projected to March 31, 2010. The
significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the Authority's accrued retirement
entittements include mortality and withdrawal rates, a discount rate of 4.9% (2009 - 6.7%)
and a rate of salary increase of 4.0% (2009 - 3.5%) plus age related merit/promotion scale
with no provision for disability.

The amount of funding which will be provided by Manitoba Health for pre-retirement
entittement obligations has been capped at the amount owing as at March 31, 2004 and has
been recorded as a receivable on the statement of financial position. Manitoba Health has
indicated that payment of this receivable, when required, is guaranteed by the Province.
Any changes from the March 31, 2004 liability amount are reflected in the statement of
operations.

2010 2009

Employee future benefits recoverable from
Manitoba Health $ 82,302 $ 82302

An analysis of the changes in the employee benefits payable is as follows:

Balance, beginning of year $ 120,899 $ 116,764
Net increase in pre-retirement entitiements 22,425 4135
Balance, end of year $ 143,324 $ 120,899

Pension plan

Most of the employees are members of the Healthcare Employees Pension Plan (the
“Plan™), which is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan available to all eligible
employees. The Authority is a Signatory Board and Settlor of the Plan and as such all of
the relevant financial information is contained within the financial information of the Plan.
Plan members will receive benefits based on the length of service and on the average
annualized earnings calculated on the best five of the eleven consecutive years prior to
retirement, termination or death, that provide the highest earnings. The costs of the benefit
plan are not allocated to the individual entities within the related group. As a result,
individual entities within the related group are not able to identify their share of the
underlying assets and liabilities. Therefore the plan is accounted for as a defined
contribution plan in accordance with the requirements of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants’ Handbook section 3461.
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22. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (continued)

b) Pension Plan (continued)

The Plan’s assets consist of investment grade securities. Market and credit risk on these
securities are managed by the Plan through the use of multiple professional investment
advisors who are guided by the Plan investment policy. Pension expense is based on Plan
management’s best estimates, in consultation with its actuaries, of the amount, together
with the 5% of basic annual eamings up to the Canada Pension Plan ceiling contributed by
employees, required to provide a high level of assurance that benefits will be fully
represented by fund assets at retirement, as provided by the Plan. The funding objective is
for employer contributions to the Plan to remain a constant percentage of employees’
contributions.

Variances between actuarial funding estimates and actual experience may be material and
any differences are generally to be funded by the participating members. The most recent
actuarial valuation for funding purposes occurred on December 31, 2007. This valuation
indicated that the plan was fully funded. The plan is required to have its next actuarial
valuation for funding purposes on or before December 31, 2010. Actual contributions to the
plan made during the year by the Authority on behalf of its employees amounted to $62,390
(2009 - $58,598) and are included in the statement of operations.

Some employees are eligible for membership in the provincially operated Civil Service
Superannuation Plan. The pension liability for Authority employees is included in the
Province of Manitoba's liability for Civil Service Superannuation Fund. Accordingly, no
provision is required in the financial statements relating to the effects of participating in the
plan by the Authority and its employees.

Some employees are eligible for membership in the multi employer City of Winnipeg
Employees’ Benefits Program which includes the Civic Employees’ Pension Plan. The Civic
Employees’ Pension Plan is a defined benefit pension plan operated by the City of
Winnipeg. During the year, the Authority expensed $599 (2009 - $235) for current year's
contributions.

Some employees are eligible for membership in the multi employer Home Care Workers’
Benefit Trust, which includes the Manitoba Home Care Pension Plan. The Manitoba Home

Care Pension Plan is a defined contribution pension plan. During the year, the Authority
expensed contributions to the pension plan of $1,201 (2009 - $1,160).
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at March 31, 2010

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

23.

24,

25.

CAPITAL DISCLOSURES

The Authority's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide health care services to the community. The
capital position of the Authority is managed through its net assets, deferred contributions and
loans.

The Authority relies mainly on govemment funding to finance its operations. The funds provided
by government are allocated to the various programs based on the priorities identified by the
Authority’s Board of Directors.

During the year, the Board of Directors internally restricted $1,412 (2009 - $2,093) of unrestricted
net assets to be used for future capital purchases. Internally restricted amounts are not available
for other purposes without approval of the Board of Directors.

The Authority also receives restricted contributions from government, private companies and
individuals. Contributions received but not spent by the end of an accounting period are
deferred and recognized in the appropriate period. During the year ended March 31, 2010, the
Authority complied with the extemal restrictions imposed by its funders.

The Authority has entered into borrowing facilities to finance the purchase of capital assets.
These facilities contain financial covenants. For all borrowing facilities, the Authority is to ensure
that the proceeds of external financing arranged to refinance project loans will be first utilized to
repay relevant project loans. Additionally, for the Emily Street Parkade and Tecumseh Street
Parkade Loans, the Authority is required to maintain a Debt Service Coverage ratio, of not less
than 110%. During the year ended March 31, 2010, the Authority complied with the financial
covenants imposed by its financial institution.

CHANGE IN ESTIMATE

In order to obtain consistency throughout the consolidated sites, the WRHA has implemented
one standard rate for the estimate of benefits on the Vacation, Statutory Holidays, and Overtime
liability. This change in estimate has led to a reduction of the employee benefits payable and
the direct operations expenses by $13,688 in the current year.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the prior year's figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's
presentation.
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY

Schedule 1 - Other Income
For the year ended March 31, 2010
(in thousands of dollars)

2010 2009
Separately funded primary health programs $ 4,225 % 4,142
Other government revenue 8,441 7,793
Patient and resident income 36,146 35,273
Radiology fee for service 10,345 9,155
Recoveries 48,034 43,373
Investment income 645 1,289
Miscellaneous income 9,617 7,057
Total $ 117,453 $ 108,082

28

Page 1412



WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Schedule 2 - Long Term Care Facility Funding

For the year ended March 31, 2010
(in thousands of dollars)

2010 2009
Non-Proprietary Personal Care Homes
Bethania Mennonite Personal Care Home $ 6,397 % 5,953
Calvary Place Personal Care Home 5,075 4 659
Convalescent Home of Winnipeg 3,436 3,039
Donwood Manor Personal Care Home 5,453 4915
Foyervalade 6,985 6,286
Fred Douglas Lodge 6,497 5,713
Golden Links Lodge 3,968 3,513
Golden West Centennial Lodge 4,846 4414
Haly Farmily Nursing Home 12,841 11,232
Lions Personal Care Centre 4,874 4449
LutherHome 3,805 3,501
Meadowood Manor 3,838 3,565
Middlechurch Home of Winnipeg 9,298 8,506
Park Manaor Personal Care Home 4,316 4 065
Pembina Place Mennonite Personal Care Home 2,831 2572
Sharon Home 9,286 9,493
St. Joseph's Residence 4,738 4,330
Taché Centre 16,631 15,023
West Park Manor 6,292 5,782
Supportive Housing 7,091 5,697
iscellaneous Funding Adjustrnents 763 541
Total $ 129,263 $ 117,218
Proprietary Personal Care Homes
Central Park Lodge - Beacon Hill $ 8,294 % 7,068
Central Park Lodge - Charleswood Care Centre 6,753 6,525
Central Park Lodge - Heritage Lodge 4,005 3,838
Central Park Lodge - Kildonan Personal Care Home 6,034 5,691
Central Park Lodge - Maples Personal Care Home 9,366 8,963
Central Park Lodge - Parkview Place 13,309 12,257
Central Park Lodge - Poseidon Care Centre 9,847 9,434
Extendicare - Oakview Place 10,505 9,921
Extendicare - Tuxedo Villa 8,970 8,414
Golden Door Geriatric Centre 3,445 3,233
River East Personal Care Home 5,697 5476
St Morbert Nursing Home 3,696 3,547
Yista Park Lodge 4,437 4,322
Miscellaneous Funding Adjustrnents 542 500
Taotal $ 94,900 % 90,089
Rural Proprietary Personal Care Homes
Central Park Lodge - Walley view $ 4,045 % 3,866
Extendicare - Hillcrest Place 4,449 4,235
Extendicare - Red River Place 4,786 4,598
St. Adolphe Personal Care Home 1,880 1,838
Tudor House Personal Care Home 3,573 3418
Miscellaneous Funding Adjustrnents 1 -
Taotal $ 18,744 % 17,955
Residential Care
St Amant Centre $ 24 947 % 23,783
Taotal $ 267,854 % 249 045

The facility funding reported on this schedule reflects approximately 73% (2009 - 74%) of the personal care homes' total annual budget.
The rernainder of the budget is funded directly by the facility through Residential Charges.

In 2010, Drug Capitation Fees of $2,181 were paid directly by the WRHA on hehalf of the Non-Proprietary and Proprietary personal
care homes (2008 - $2,190).
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Schedule 3 - Community Health Agency Funding

For the year ended March 31, 2010
(in thousands of dollars)

2010 2009
Aboriginal Health & Wellness Centre $ 1,134 % 1,061
Centre de Sante 2,550 2,172
Hope Centre Health Care Incorporated 998 936
Klinic Incorporated 5,925 5,108
Main Street Project Inc. 1,796 1,736
MFL Occupational Health and Safety Inc. 773 742
Mount Carmel Clinic 7,346 6,705
Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc. 3,376 2,739
Nor'West Co-op Community Health Centre, Inc. 1,330 1,187
Rehabilitation Centre for Children, Inc. 2,863 2,672
Sexuality Education Resource Centre Manitoba, Inc. 1,032 895
Women's Health Clinic, Inc. 3,030 3,060
Clinique Y ouville Clinic Inc. 2,588 2,421
Miscellaneous Funding Adjustments 29 5
Total $ 34,770 $ 31,439

30

Page 1414



WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Schedule 4 - Adult Day Care Facility Funding

For the year ended March 31, 2010
(in thousands of dollars)

2010 2009
Convalescent Home of Winnipeg $ 55 $ 38
Fred Douglas Lodge 201 190
Golden Links Lodge 92 55
Golden West Lodge 173 162
Holy Family Nursing Home 260 192
Independent Living Resource Centre 109 107
Lions Personal Care Centre 166 163
Lions Place - Charleswood 299 268
Lions Place - Concordia 195 189
Lions Place - 610 Portage 232 223
Luther Home 101 94
Middlechurch Home of Winnipeg 261 198
Extendicare - Oakview Place 152 145
Park Manor Personal Care Home 150 109
Sharon Home 82 638
South Y M/YWCA 163 170
Taché Centre 402 382
Miscellaneous Funding Adjustments 1 1
Total $ 3,094 $ 2,754
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY

Schedule 5 - Grants to Facilities and Agencies
For the year ended March 31, 2010
{in thousands of dollars)

Aboriginal Seniors Resource Centre $

Age & Opportunity Centre Inc.

ALS House

Alzheimer's Society of Manitoba
Betelstadur Housing Co-op

Bethania Personal Care Home
Bethel Place

Bonivital Council for Seniors
Broadway Seniors Resource Council Inc.
Canadian Mental Health Association
Canadian Polish Manor

Central Speech & Hearing Clinic Inc.
Charleswood Senior Centre

Chez Nous Inc.

City of Winnipeg - Emergency Services
Clubhouse of Winnipeg Inc.

CNIB

Columbus Manor

Community Therapy Services
Creative Retirement Manitoba
Donwood Manor

Doray Enterprises

Fort Garry Services Inc.

Foyer Vincent Inc

Friends Housing Inc.

Good Neighbours Senior Centre Inc.
Gwen Secter Creative Living Centre
Hospice & Palliative Care Manitoba
Jewish Child and Family

Jocelyn House

Keewatin Inkster ifarmeny Brooklandsiwestan Community Resource)
Kingsford Haus Co-op Ltd.

La Federation de Franco MB
L'Accueil Colombien Inc.
Lindenwoods

Lions Club

Luther Home Care

Manitoba Association of Multipurpose Senior Centres
Manitoba Cardiac Institute (Reh-fit)
Manitoba Eastern Star Chalet
Manitoba Housing Authority
MacDonald Youth Services

McClure

Meals on Wheels of Winnipeg Inc.
Metropolitan Kiwanis Courts
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2010 2009
169 169
610 627
408 408
65 65
7 7
18 18
38 38
39 39
39 39
982 982
14 18
101 101
46 46
19 19
5,894 6,230
378 357
12 12
19 19
209 199
46 46
118 111
332 332
38 38
19 19
94 94
128 128
58 58
83 83
36 36
285 285
95 95
12 12
17 17
18 18
100 100
37 37
- 114

4 4
750 762
12 12
360 360
324 315
12 12
159 159
101 101



WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Schedule 5 - Grants to Facilities and Agencies {continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2010
{in thousands of dollars)

2010 2009
Middlechurch Home of Winnipeg 47 47
Park Manor Personal Care Home 82 -
Pembina Place (formery Deaf Certre Manitoba Inc.) 37 37
Rainbow Society 267 282
River East Council for Seniors 62 62
Rose & Max Rady Jewish Community Centre 17 17
Ruperts Land Caregiver Services 56 52
S.5.C.0.P.E. Incorporated 102 162
Salvation Army 248 278
Salvation Army - Grace Hospital 1,000 1,000
Sara Riel Inc. 840 840
Seniors Home Help Inc. 75 75
Seneca House 374 374
Serena Manitoba Inc. 12 12
Seven Oaks Seniors Link (formerly North Winnipeg Community Council) 39 39
Seven Oaks Wellness Centre 727 597
Society for Manitobans with Disabilities 1,452 1,452
South Winnipeg Senior Resource Council Inc. 59 51
St. James/Assiniboia Senior Centre Inc. 94 89
Stay Young Centre 18 18
Transcona Council for Seniors 43 43
United Way 250 -
University of Manitoba - Medical Info Line for the Elderly 33 33
University of Manitoba - Dental Services 45 45
University of Manitoba Dentistry - PCH Program 255 160
University of Manitoba 316 176
University of Manitoba - Smile Plus 77 32
Villa Cabrini Inc. 38 38
Villa Nova 12 12
Villa Tache 30 30
Wiillow Centre 12 12
Wolseley Family Centre 97 97
YWIYMCA of Winnipeg 182 182
Miscellaneous Funding Adjustments (3) 6
Total $ 19,300 $ 19,091
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY

Schedule 6 - Internally Restricted Net Assets

For the year ended March 31, 2010
{in thousands of dollars)

2010 2009
Internally Restricted Net Assets
Seven Ozks Health
L::;;T Tﬂ:hp;':h cg’;:‘i’;ﬂ'a Grace Capital ‘2:":;? Ancillaries & 5;':‘:? T::r:f;" Msericordia Sr'n;‘:::ﬁ‘;e Total Intemally Total
Assets Assets Assets Assets Assets Wellness Internally | Restricted |~NCWaY Fundl oo ctricted Restricted
Institute "
Restricted
Balance, beginning of year $ 1204 (¢ 510 [¢ 1030 |§ 3088 |§ 1353 |$ 3799 |$ -|$ 3007|$ 4,229 |$ 655 |$ 24866 | |$ 24014
Met surpius - - 24 - - 53 2,176 203 {1,012) 159 1,603 770
Purchase of capital assets - - - {19} (192} (656) - - - (40} (907) (201
MNet Asset Restrictions 693 - - - - 719 - - - - 1412 2,093
Balance, end of year $ 1897 |§ 510 |[§ 1054 |§ 3069 |8 1161 |8 3915|% 2176 |$ 3,300 |$ 3217 |$ 6675 % 26974 | (¢ 24868
M
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY

Supplementary Information

WRHA Statement of Operations including all Acute Care Operations
By Nature of Expense

For the year ended March 31, 2010

(unaudited)
(in thousands of dollars)

2010 2009
REVENUE
Manitoba Health operating income $ 2,077,237 $ 1,951,466
Other income (schedule 1) 117,453 108,082
Amortization of deferred contributions, capital 65,641 58972
Recognition of deferred contributions, future expenses 12,822 2430
2,273,153 2,120,950
EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 1,232,762 1,151,702
Medical remuneration 180,303 168,742
Printing, stationery and office supplies 6,547 6,543
Housekeeping, laundry and linen 17,067 17,804
Utilities, insurance and taxes 39,91 38,711
Food and dietary supplies 20,298 21,974
Medical and surgical supplies 111,775 110,078
Pharmaceutical supplies 55,084 52,158
Diagnostic supplies 23,098 21,586
Miscellaneous and other 56,316 55942
Repairs and maintenance 56,839 53,221
Referred out services 57,917 50,665
Radiology fee for service costs 13,159 12,449
Interest 747 786
Amortization of capital assets 67,173 61,848
Employee future benefits 22,425 4135
Non-acute care facility and grant funding 325,733 303,020
2,287,184 2,131,364
OPERATING DEFICIT (14,031) (10,414)
NON-INSURED SERVICES
Non-insured services income 72,447 63,227
Non-insured services expenses 66,797 56,711
NON-INSURED SERVICES SURPLUS 5,650 6,516
DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR $ (8,381) $ (3,898)
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Supplementary Information

WRHA Statement of Operations including all Acute Care Operations

By Program

For the year ended March 31, 2010
{unaudited)

{in thousands of dollars)

2010 2009
REVENUE
Manitoba Health operating income $ 2,077,237 1,951,466
Other income {schedule 1) 117,453 108,082
Amortization of deferred contributions, capital 65,641 58,972
Recognition of deferred contributions, future expenses 12,822 2,430
2,273,153 2,120,950
EXPENSES
Program costs

Anaesthesia 14,195 14,590
Breast health 2,504 2,600
Cardiac sciences 67,065 60,649
Child health 98,426 84,384
Child adolescent & mental health 18,898 17,581
Critical care 52,953 49,230
Diagnostic imaging 64,030 60,998
Diagnostic imaging - Radiology Fee for Service 13,069 12,411
Emergency 83,143 76,638
Family medicine 36,585 35,112
Genetics 1,346 1,179
Health Links 6,562 5,829
Laboratories 74,672 69,887
Medicine 104,981 96,646
Renal health 56,753 53,227
Mental health 39,089 36,717
Oncology 8,038 7,602
Oral health 502 494
Palliative care 9,286 8 951
Psychology 4,024 3,749
Rehab/Geriatrics 59,748 57,454
Surgery 207,049 197,657
Tele-health 2,445 2,411
Women's health 49,359 52,499
Long term care 62,742 58,400
Residents and interns 30,037 26,575
Other diagnostic & therapeutic services 42,763 38,615
Pharmacy 34,546 33,323
Community based home care services 184,151 174,229
Community based mental health services 16,797 14,809
Community based primary health services 38,344 29,905
Separately funded primary health programs 8,609 8,030
1,492,711 1,392,381
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY

Supplementary Information

WRHA Statement of Operations including all Acute Care Operations

By Program (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2010
{unaudited)

{in thousands of dollars)

2010 2009
Indirect service costs
Corporate and support services 69,903 71,236
Clinical and non-clinical support services 89,019 83,525
Information services 52,979 47,151
Facility services 145,578 141,647
Marketed services a0 83
Research and education services 9447 10,111
367,016 353,753
Other costs
Non-acute care facility and grant funding 325,733 303,020
Aboriginal services & strategies 2,190 2,216
Other costs 9,189 13,225
Employee future benefits 22,425 4,135
Interest 747 786
Amortization of capital assets 67,173 61,848
427,457 385,230
2,287,184 2,131,364
OPERATING DEFICIT (14,031) (10,414)
NON-INSURED SERVICES
Non-insured services income 72,447 63,227
Non-insured services expenses 66,797 56,711
NON-INSURED SERVICES SURPLUS 5,650 6,516
OPERATING AND NON-INSURED DEFICIT $ (8,381) $ (3,898)
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WINNIPEG REGIONAL HEALTH AUTHORITY
Supplementary Information

As at March 31, 2010

(unaudited)

(amounts in thousands of dollars)

ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

The Canadian Institute of Health Information (CIHI) defines a standard set of guidelines for the
classification and coding of financial and statistical information for use by all Canadian health service
organizations. The Authority adheres to these coding guidelines.

The most cumrent definition of administrative costs determined by CIHI includes: General
Administration (including Acute/Long Term Care/Community Administration, Patient Relations,
Community Needs Assessment, Risk Management, Quality Assurance, and Executive costs),
Finance, Human Resources, Labour Relations, Nurse/Physician Recruitment and Retention, and
Communications.

The administrative cost percentage indicator (administrative costs as a percentage of total operating
costs) adheres to CIHI definitions.

Administrative costs and percentages for the Authority (including hospitals, non-proprietary personal
care homes and community health agencies) are:

2010 2009

{Restated)
Administrative costs $ 92,753 $ 90,244
Administrative cost % 3.9% 4.1%

The figures presented are based on data available at time of publication. Restatements are made in
the subsequent year to reflect final data and changes in the CIHI definition, if any.
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Tel/Tél.: 204 956 7200 BDO Canada LLP/s.r.I.
Fax/Téléc.: 204 926 7201 700 - 200 Graham Avenue

Toll-free/Sans frais: 800 268 3337 Winnipeg MB R3C 4L5 Canada
www.bdo.ca

Auditors' Report

To the Directors of
BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.

We have audited the statement of financial position of BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE
HOME, INC. as at March 31, 2010 and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash
flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Home's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Home's operations as at March 31, 2010 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Chartered Accountants

Winnipeg, Manitoba
May 21, 2010

BDO Canada LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO Canada s.r.l., une société canadienne a responsabilité limitée, est membre de BDO International Limited, société de droit anglais, et fait partie du réseau
international de sociétés membres indépendantes BDO.
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BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended March 31

2010

2009

(Restated - Note 2)

Total Total
Balance, as previously reported $ 231,950 $ 509,413
Change in Accounting Policy (Note 2) (278,717) (225,778)
Balance, as restated (46,767) 283,635
Deficiency of revenue over expenditures for the year (247,478) (207,553)
Changes in reserve - (122,849)
Balance, end of year $ (294,245) $ (46,767)
The accompanying summary of significant policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 4
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BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.
Statement of Operations

For the year ended March 31

2010

2009

(Restated - Note 2)

Revenue
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority $ 6,413,942 $ 5,969,467
Residential charges 2,600,754 2,510,656
Other income (Page 23) 198,572 196,917
CMHC subsidy - 23,099
9,213,268 8,700,139
Expenditures
Accrued vacation pay increase 7,590 63,299
Drugs and medical supplies 142,661 129,846
Employee benefits 1,136,261 947,788
Food 343,266 321,798
Health and education tax levy 131,395 124,968
Other supplies and expenses 768,248 784,647
Salaries 6,355,222 6,142,778
Utilities and taxes 329,963 339,629
9,214,606 8,854,753
Deficiency of revenue over expenditures
before amortization and other item (1,338) (154,614)
Amortization
Deferred contributions (Note 9) 171,989 203,559
Capital assets (241,078) (256,498)
(69,089) (52,939)
Deficiency of revenue over expenditures before other item (70,427) (207,553)
Other Item
Legal settlement and related legal fees (177,051) -
Deficiency of revenue over expenditures for the year $ (247,478) $ (207,553)
The accompanying summary of significant policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 5
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BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended March 31

2010

2009

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Deficiency of revenue over expenditures for the year $
Adjustments for
Amortization of capital assets
Change in pre-retirement entitlement receivable
Change in accrued pre-retirement entitlement
Net decrease in deferred contributions
Changes in reserve

(Restated - Note 2)

Changes in non-cash working capital (Note 11)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Repayment of long-term debt

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of capital assets (net of donations)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
during the year

Bank indebtedness, beginning of year

Bank indebtedness, end of year

(247,478) $  (207,553)
241,078 256,498
68,098 (19,332)
(68,098) 19,332
(123,729) 14,539
- (122,849)
(130,129) (59,365)
373,159 50,112
243,030 (9,253)
- (119,945)
(106,623) -
136,407 (129,198)
(516,600) (387,402)
$ (380,193) $ (516,600)

The accompanying summary of significant policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

For the year ended March 31, 2010

Revenue Recognition

The Home follows the deferral method of accounting for
contributions which include donations and government grants.

Under the Health Insurance Act and regulations hereto, the Home is
funded primarily by the Province of Manitoba in accordance with
budget arrangements established by the Winnipeg Regional Health
Authority ("WRHA"). Operating grants are recorded as revenue in
the period to which they relate. Grants approved but not received at
the end of an accounting period are accrued. Where a portion of a
grant is related to a future period, it is deferred and recognized in
that subsequent period. These financial statements reflect agreed
arrangements approved by the WRHA with respect to the year
ended March 31, 2010.

With respect to actual operating results, certain adjustments to
funding will be made by the WRHA after completion of their review
of the Home's accounts. Any adjustments will be reflected in the
year the final statement of recommended costs is received from the
WRHA.

a) Deficits - The WRHA shall not be responsible for past or future
deficits of the Home in providing the services and debt service
charges for any debt incurred resulting from operating deficits
unless the parties otherwise mutually agree. The WRHA shall
not be responsible for the costs incurred by the Home other than
those set forth in the service purchase agreement.

b) Surpluses - In July 2009 the WRHA agreed that the Home could
retain 100% of surpluses for the next 5 years. After that time,
the Home may unconditionally retain the greater of 50% of its
operating surplus in any fiscal year and 2% of the global budget
indicated in its funding letter from the WRHA for such fiscal
year. Any surplus beyond the foregoing levels shall be remitted
to the WRHA on demand.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when
received or receivable if the amount to be received can be
reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Externally restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the
year in which the related expenses are recognized. Contributions
restricted for the purchase of capital assets are deferred and
amortized into revenue on a straight-line basis, at a rate
corresponding with the amortization rate for the related capital
assets.

Revenue from the residential services and marketed services is
recognized when the goods are sold or the service is provided.
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BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

For the year ended March 31, 2010

Inventories

Employee Future Benefits

Contributed Services

Capital Assets

Use of Estimates

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value,
cost being determined on a first-in, first-out basis.

Pre-retirement entitlement, pension and other employee future
benefit costs are determined using the projected benefit method
prorated on years of service and based on best estimate
assumptions. Commencing with the 2004-2005 fiscal year, out of
globe funding for these costs is not provided by Manitoba
Health/WRHA.

A substantial number of volunteers contribute a significant amount
of their time each year. Due to the difficulty of determining the fair
value, contributed services are not recognized in the financial
statements.

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Contributed capital
assets are recorded at fair value at the date of contribution. Repairs
and maintenance costs are charged to expense. Betterments which
extend the estimated useful life of an asset are capitalized. When a
capital asset no longer contributes to the Home's ability to provide
services, its carrying amount is written down to its residual value.

Capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis using the
following annual rates:

Building 2-10%
Computer equipment 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-20%
Intangible assets 10%
Land improvements 4-6.7%

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
management's best estimates as additional information becomes
available in the future.
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BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

For the year ended March 31, 2010

Financial Instruments

Restricted Cash

The 0 utilizes various financial instruments. Unless otherwise noted,
it is management's opinion that the 0 is not exposed to significant
interest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial
instruments and the carrying amounts approximate fair values.

All transactions related to financial instruments are recorded on a
settlement date basis.

The 0 classifies its financial instruments as follows based on the
purpose for which the asset was acquired and follows the disclosed
accounting policy for each category.

Assets/Liability Category Measurement
Restricted cash and

investments Held for trading Fair value
Accounts receivable

and due from related

parties Loans and receivables Amortized cost
Vacation entitlement

receivable Loans and receivables Amortized cost
Retirement obligation

receivable Loans and receivables Amortized cost

Bank indebtedness Other financial liabilities Amortized cost
Accounts payable
and accrued liabilities
Due to related parties
Accrued vacation
entitlements

Accrued retirement

Other financial liabilities Amortized cost
Other financial liabilities Amortized cost

Other financial liabilities Amortized cost

obligation Other financial liabilities Amortized cost

° Held for trading items are carried at fair value, with
changes in their fair value recognized in the statement of
operations.

° Other financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost,

using the effective interest method.

° Loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost, using
the effective interest rate method, less any provision for
impairment.

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.

Restricted cash and investment balances represent assets
segregated for use for replacement reserves or debenture
repayment reserves.
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BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

For the year ended March 31, 2010

New Accounting
Pronouncements

Recent accounting pronouncements that have been issued but are
not yet effective, and have a potential implication for the 0, are as
follows:

Future for Not-for-Profit Organizations (NPQO)

In October 2009, the Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) tentatively
decided that it will propose a choice between the accounting
standards for private enterprises plus the current NPO accounting
standards appropriately modified to fit with those standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards or Public Sector
Accounting Board standards (PSAB) with NPO standards added. The
PSAB agreed that there was sufficient support to develop an NPO
series of standards to add onto the PSAB standards similar to the
current NPO standards, but appropriately modified to fit with PSAB
standards. The two boards are working together and intend to issue
an Exposure Draft for comment in the first half of 2010. Until the
Boards make a final decision, all NPOs will continue to follow the
current Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants Handbook -
Accounting.

The Home continues to monitor the developments in this area and

evaluate the implications of the potential changes in financial
reporting standards.

10

Page 1444



BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

1. Entity Definition

Bethania Mennonite Personal Care Home, Inc. is incorporated under the laws of the Province
of Manitoba. The Home is principally involved in providing licensed personal care services.
The Home is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act and accordingly is exempt from
income taxes, provided certain requirements of the Income Tax Act are met. Bethania is a
Mennonite organization that demonstrates Christian love by compassionately offering a
continuum of wellness, housing and personal care services for older adults.

Effective April 1, 2005, all assets of Bethania Mennonite Personal Care Home, Inc. -
Memorial Fund were transferred to Bethania Mennonite Memorial Foundation Inc.

These financial statements present the financial position and results of operations of the
personal care home operated as Bethania Mennonite Personal Care Home, Inc. As such, the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2010 do not include the assets, liabilities,
equity, revenues and expenses of Bethania Mennonite Memorial Foundation Inc.

2. Changein Accounting Policy

During the year, the Home changed its accounting policy to amortize deferred contributions at
the same rate as funded assets for which deferred contributions exist. The Home determined
that the previous policy to match annual amortization of all assets to the deferred
contributions understated the effect of the annual charge to operations for the use of the
assets. As a result of the change in policy, deferred contributions and unrestricted net assets
were retroactively adjusted for the change in the accounting policy, the deficiency of revenue
over expenditures decreased by $52,939 reported and the comparative figures for the year
ended March 31, 2009 have been adjusted as follows:

As previously

reported Adjustment Restated
Deferred contributions $ 1,103,149 $ 278,717 $ 1,381,866
Net assets (deficiency) 231,950 (278,717) (46,767)
Deficiency of revenue over expenditures
for the year (154,614) (52,939) (207,553)
Amortization of deferred contributions 256,498 (52,939) 203,559
11
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BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

3. Restricted Cash and Investments

2010 2009
Restricted cash $ 145,592 $ 62,190
Guaranteed Investment Certificates 93,802 172,352

$ 239,394 % 234,542

The fair value of cash on deposit is equal to its carrying value. The GICs have an effective
interest rate of 4.42 to 5.12% (2009 - 4.01 to 5.12%) with the latest maturing in June 2012.
The fair value of the GICs is based on the year end quoted market bid price.

4. Accounts Receivable

2010 2009
Receivable from residents $ 16,782 $ 14,940
Accrued interest receivable 3,274 4,179
Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation - 15,507
Other 28,987 6,076
GST rebate receivable 21,364 22,415

$ 70,407 $ 63,117

5. Due from (to) Related Parties

2010 2009
285 Pembina Inc. $ 4203 $ 1,913
ArlingtonHaus Inc. 2,366 1,346
BethaniaHaus Inc. 1,688 6,732
KingsfordHaus Inc. 20 -
Autumn House 20 -
Pembina Place Mennonite Personal Care Home, Inc. 83,520 21,164
Bethania Mennonite Memorial Foundation Inc. - 25,693

$ 91,817 $ 56,848

Bethania Housing & Projects Inc. $ (47,646) $ (27,352)
Bethania Mennonite Memorial Foundation Inc. (44,856) -

$ (92,502) $ (27,352)

12
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BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

5. Due from (to) Related Parties (continued)

Amounts due from (to) related parties are non-interest bearing with no specific terms of
repayment.

During the year, the Home had the following transactions with related organizations:

2010 2009
Salary reimbursement income $ 383,752 % 60,000
Salary reimbursement expense 184,952 -
Maintenance fee recovery 22,990 28,888

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange
amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related
parties. All parties are related by common control.

6. Accrued Vacation Entitlements

The Home records a provision for accrued vacation entitlements. Prior to March 31, 2004
changes in the liability related to vacation were recoverable from Manitoba Health. At that
date, Manitoba Health advised that subsequent to March 31, 2004 all funding related to past
and future vacation entitlement costs would be included in in-globe funding and that the
maximum liability to be recognized by Manitoba Health to facilities would be capped at March
31, 2004 levels. Accordingly, each year as vacation entitlements are paid and earned by the
Home's employees, the related vacation entitlement receivable is collected and re-
established up to this maximum amount.

An analysis of the changes in the vacation entitlements receivable from Manitoba Health is as

follows:

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 497,632 $ 497,632
Net changes in vacation entitlements receivable - -
Balance, end of year $ 497,632 $ 497,632

An analysis of the changes in the accrued vacation entitlements is as follows:

Balance, beginning of year $ 475,403 $ 412,104
Net change in accrued vacation entitlements 7,590 63,299
Balance, end of year $ 482,993 $ 475,403

13
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BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

7. Capital Assets

2010 2009

Accumulated Accumulated

Cost Amortization Cost  Amortization

Land $ 193 - 9% 1% -

Land improvements 340,263 294,971 340,263 280,359

Building 4,904,909 3,406,793 4,879,360 3,253,887

Computer equipment 337,093 335,051 337,093 304,262
Furniture, fixtures

and equipment 3,806,915 3,513,524 3,725,841 3,470,753

Intangible assets 10,208 - 10,208 -

Deferred software licenses 5,518 - 5,518 -

$ 9,404,907 $ 7,550,339 $ 9,298,284 $ 7,309,261

Cost less accumulated
amortization $ 1,854,568 $ 1,989,023

Amortization of capital assets for the year ended March 31, 2010 is $241,078 (2009 -
$256,498).

8. Accounts Payable and accrued liabilities

2010 2009
Trade accounts payable $ 162,703 $ 170,049
Accrued liabilities 61,413 34,600
Salaries and employee benefits payable 288,259 336,885
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 392,575 113,140

$ 904,950 $ 654,674

14
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BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

9. Deferred Contributions

Capital Assets
Deferred capital contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized amount
of donations and grants received for the purchase of capital assets. The amortization of
capital contributions is recorded as revenue in the statement of operations.

Changes in the deferred contribution balance are as follows:

2010 2009
(Restated - Note 2)

Balance, beginning of year, as previously stated $ 1,218,692 $ 1,009,723
Change in Accounting Policy (Note 2) - 225,778
Balance, beginning of year, restated 1,218,692 1,235,501
Funding for principal repayments on debenture 27,216 126,547
Transfer from replacement reserves 106,632 85,388
Long-term debt principal reductions (27,208) (25,185)
Amounts amortized to revenue (171,989) (203,559)
Balance, end of year (carried forward) $ 1,153,343 $ 1,218,692

Unspent Equipment Funding
Unspent equipment funding related to equipment replacement represents the unspent
amount of funding received for the purchase of equipment. Equipment funding is not
recorded as revenue in the statement of operations.

2010 2009

Balance, beginning of year $ 81,937 $ 95,573

Contributions - Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 25,900 25,900

Interest allocation 6,407 7,837
Transfer to deferred contributions

- capital asset purchases (91,844) (47,373)

Balance, end of year (carried forward) $ 22,400 $ 81,937
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BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

9. Deferred Contributions (continued)

2010 2009
Capital assets (brought forward) $ 1,153,343 $ 1,218,692
Unspent equipment funding (brought forward) $ 22,400 $ 81,937

Unspent Major Repairs Funding
Unspent major repairs funding related to equipment repairs represent the unspent amount
of funding received for the replacement of equipment. Major repairs funding is not
recorded as revenue in the statement of operations.

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 72,285 $ 28,813
Contributions - Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 14,424 80,345
Interest allocation - 1,143
Transfer to deferred contributions
- capital asset purchases (14,779) (38,016)
Balance, end of year $ 71,930 $ 72,285
Insurance Reserve
Balance, beginning of year $ 8952 $ 7,440
Contributions - Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 1,512 1,512
Balance, end of year 10,464 8,952
Total deferred contributions balance $ 1,258,137 $ 1,381,866

The long-term debt that has been incorporated in deferred contributions includes the

following:
2010 2009
CMHC Mortgage - interest at 7 7/8%, requiring
monthly principal and interest payments of $5,217
funded by the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority,
secured by a first charge against land and building,
maturing July 1, 2020 $ 447,052 $ 474,259
16

Page 1450



BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

10. Commitments and Contingencies

11.

12.

a)

b)

c)

Bethania Mennonite Personal Care Home, Inc. has signed a borrowing resolution covering
capital expenditures of $2,575,090 for Pembina Place Mennonite Personal Care Home
Inc. The borrowing resolution is secured by a letter of comfort from Manitoba Health.

The nature of the Home's activities is such that there is usually litigation pending or in
prospect at any time. With respect to potential claims at March 31, 2010, management
believes the Home has valid defences and appropriate insurance coverage in place. In the
event any claims are successful, management believes that such claims are not expected
to have a material effect on the Home's financial position.

On July 1, 1987, a group of health care organizations ("subscribers"), formed Healthcare
insurance Reciprocal of Canada ("HIROC"). HIROC is registered as a reciprocal pursuant
to provincial Insurance Acts, which permit reciprocal contracts of indemnity insurance.
HIROC facilitates the provision of liability insurance coverage to health care organizations
in the provinces of Ontario, Manitoba, Saskatchewan and Newfoundland. Subscribers pay
annual premiums, which are actuarially determined, and are subject to assessment for
losses in excess of such premiums, of any experienced by the group of subscribers for the
years in which they were a subscriber. No such assessments have been made to March
31, 2010. The Home is a named insured under the WRHA policy with HIROC.

Changes in Non-cash Working Capital

2010 2009
Restricted cash and investments $ (4,852) $ 161,704
Accounts receivable (7,290) 3,915
Inventories 3,552 23,635
Prepaid expenses (6,298) 966
Due from (to) related parties 30,181 (81,674)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 250,276 (121,733)
Accrued vacation payable 7,590 63,299
Legal settlement payable 100,000 -

$ 373,159 $ 50,112

Bank Indebtedness

The Home has a line of credit with The Royal Bank to a maximum of $500,000 which carries
an interest rate of Royal Bank prime. The line of credit is secured by a general assignment of
accounts receivable.
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BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

13. Employee Future Benefits

a) Accrued retirement obligation

Based upon collective agreements and/or non-union policy, employees of the Home are
entitled to a pre-retirement leave benefit if they are retiring in accordance with the
provisions of the applicable Home Group Pension Plan. The Home's contractual
commitment is to pay based upon the following:

Four days (pro-rated) of salary per year of service upon retirement if the employee
complies with one of the following conditions:

i. has 10 years service and has reached the age 55

ii. qualifies for the "eighty" rule which is calculated by adding the number of years of
service to the age of the employee

iii. retires at or after age 65
iv. terminates employment at any time due to permanent disability

The Home undertook an actuarial valuation of the pre-retirement leave benefit for
accounting purposes as at March 31, 2010. The significant actuarial assumptions adopted
in measuring the Home's accrued retirement entitlements include mortality and withdrawal
rates, a discount rate of 4.9% (2009 - 6.7%) and a rate of salary increase of 4.0% (2009 -
3.5%) plus age related merit/promotion scale with no provision for disability.

The amount recorded as a receivable from the Province for pre-retirement costs was
initially determined based on the value of the corresponding actuarial liability for pre-
retirement costs as at March 31, 2004. Subsequent to March 31, 2004, the Province has
included in its ongoing annual funding to the Home, an amount equivalent to the change in
the pre-retirement liability, which includes annual interest accretion related to the
receivable. The receivable will be paid by the Province when required.

Commencing in 2006/07, the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority assumed responsibility
for funding the annual increase in the obligation each year. This amount will also be paid
when required and the WRHA holds funding to meet this obligation.

2010 2009

Employee future benefits recoverable from
Manitoba Health $ 652,360 $ 652,360
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 122,949 54,851

$ 775,309 $ 707,211
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BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

13. Employee Future Benefits (continued)

a)

b)

Accrued retirement entitlement (continued)

An analysis of the changes in the employee benefits payable is as follows:

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 534,942 $ 554,274
Net change in pre-retirement entitlements 68,098 (19,332)
Balance, end of year $ 603,040 $ 534,942

Pension plan

Substantially all of the employees of the Home are members of the Healthcare Employees
Pension Plan (a successor to the Manitoba Health Organization Inc. Plan (the "Plan"))
which is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan available to all eligible employees
of the participating members of the Plan. Plan members will receive benefits based on the
length of service and on the average of annualized earnings during the best five years of
the last ten years prior to retirement, termination or death, that provides the highest
earnings.

Pension assets consist of investment grade securities. Market and credit risk on these
securities are managed by the Plan by placing plan assets in trust and through the Plan
investment policy.

Pension expense is based on Plan management's best estimates, in consultation with its
actuaries, of the amount, combined with the contributions by employees, required to
provide a high level of assurance that benefits will be fully represented by fund assets at
retirement, as provided by the Plan. The funding objective is for employer contributions to
the Plan to remain a constant percentage of employees' contributions.

Variances between actuarial funding estimates and actual experience may be material
and any differences are generally to be funded by the participating members. The most
recent actuarial valuation of the Plan as at December 31, 2008 indicates the Plan is in a
deficit. The board of the Plan is evaluating what actions, if any, may be required to align
the assets and liabilities, which may include contribution rate increases and/or benefit
reductions. Contributions to the Plan made during the year by the Home on behalf of its
employees amounted to $370,437 (2009 - $310,557) and are included in the statement of
operations.
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BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

14.

15.

Funding of Future Employee Benefits

Effective April 1, 2004 Manitoba Health directed all health care facilities (including non-profit
personal care homes) to discontinue establishing a receivable from Manitoba Health for the
funding of future employee benefits given that the responsibility for payment of same would
be transferred to the WRHA. Contrary to the long-standing practice prior to April 1, 2004, the
WRHA has since directed all health care facilities to record the future employee benefits
liability, but not the corresponding receivable. Commencing in 2007, the WRHA has agreed
to fund the change in accrued pre-retirement liability for the WRHA funded portions; however,
they did not agree to fund changes in accrued vacation pay.

The Home has taken the position that Unfunded Future Employee Benefits (which include
Pre-retirement Leave and Vacation Accrual) should be recoverable from the WRHA.

The Home's position is based on the fact that employee benefits are negotiated centrally by
the Labour Relations Secretariat, and the Service Purchase Agreement explicitly states that
the level of funding will be commensurate with any settlement agreed to by the Labour
Relations Secretariat.

Based on this understanding, the corresponding responsibility for the future funding of the
these benefits should be recognized by Manitoba Health to the WRHA and the WRHA to
Winnipeg non-profit personal care homes (including Bethania Mennonite Personal Care
Home, Inc.).

The Home has expressed considerable concern to the WRHA regarding the impact of the
policy change referred to above, and the manner in which Employee Future Benefit liabilities
are to be funded and recorded in the Home's Audited Financial Statements.

Capital Management

The Home considers its capital to comprise its Net Assets balance. There have been no
changes to what the organization considers to be its capital since the previous period.

The Home manages its capital to ensure it retains sufficient resources to enable it to meet its
obligations for resident care. The determination of this amount is based on historical expense
requirements relative to funding commitments.
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BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

16. Financial Risk Management

The 0 is exposed to different types of risk in the normal course of operations, including credit
risk and market risk. The 0's objective in risk management is to optimize the risk return trade-
off, within set limits, by applying integrated risk management and control strategies, policies
and procedures throughout the O's activities.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument fails to discharge an obligation
and causes financial loss to another party. Financial instruments which potentially subject the
0 to credit risk consist principally of accounts receivable.

The 0's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral or other
credit enhancements is as follows:

2010 2009
Accounts receivable and related party receivables $ 162,224 $ 119,965
Vacation entitlements receivable 497,632 497,632
Retirement obligations receivable 775,309 707,211

$ 1,435,165 $ 1,324,808

Accounts receivable: The 0 is not exposed to significant credit risk as the receivable is spread
among a broad client base and payment in full is typically collected when it is due. The 0
establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts that represents its estimate of potential credit
losses. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on management’s estimates and
assumptions regarding current market conditions, customer analysis and historical payment
trends. These factors are considered when determining whether past due accounts are
allowed for or written off.

Vacation entitlements receivable and retirement obligations receivable: The 0 is not exposed
to significant credit risk as these receivables are from the Province of Manitoba and the
Regional Health Authority.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate
risk, foreign exchange risk and other price risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. The 0 is not exposed to significant interest rate risk. Its
restricted cash is held in short-term or variable rate products and its bank indebtedness is
also at variable rates.
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BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

16.

17.

Financial Risk Management (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

The 0 is not exposed to significant foreign currency risk as it does not have any financial
instruments denominated in foreign currency and the number of transactions in foreign
currency are minimal and the 0 is not exposed to other price risk.

Fair Value

The carrying values of cash (bank indebtedness), accounts receivable, vacation entitlements
receivable and retirement obligations receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities
approximate their fair value due to the relatively short periods to maturity of these items or
because they are receivable or payable on demand.

Comparative Figures

Certain of the prior year's figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's
presentation.
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BETHANIA MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME, INC.
Schedule of Supplementary Information

For the year ended March 31 2010 2009

Other Income

BethaniaHaus meal recoveries $ 10,693 $ 8,993
Dietary recoveries 50,018 44,680
Shared service recoveries 137,861 143,177
Investment income - 67

$ 198,572 $ 196,917
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AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Member of Centre Taché Centre

We have audited the statement of financial position of Centre Taché Centre as at March 31, 2010 and
the statements of operations and changes in fund balances and cash flows for the year then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation's management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinien on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditihg standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test ba‘sis.
“evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

| In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Corporation as at March 31, 2010 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial staterments taken as
a whole. The current year's supplementary information included in the schedule is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in alf material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements {aken as a whole.

Y724 L2
e

Chartered Accountants

Winnipeg, Canada
April 30, 2010

KPMG LL® is a Canadian limited liahility parinership and a mamber firm of the KPMG )
network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG Intemational, a Swiss cooperative.
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP
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CENTRE TACHE CENTRE

Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

2010 2009
Asseis
Current assets: _
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,730,370 $ 3,394,770
- Accounts receivable ' 100,300 60,694
Employee benefits recoverable from Winnipeg
Regional Health Authority (note 3) 921,099 921,099
Receivable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (note 4) 1,094,509 520,317.
Inventory 66,853 56,294
Prepaid expenses 107,092 119,126
6,020,223 5,072,300
Residents" funds in trust (note 5} 32,214 27,823
Future employee pre-retirement benefits recoverable from
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (note 3) 1,784,858 1,423,245
Capital assets (note 6) 8,278,742 ' 8,487,843
Leasehold estate (note 7) 69,143 72,477
~Other assets : 1,000 1,000
$ 16,186,180 . $ 15,084,688
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Exhibit 1

Page 2
2010 2009
Liabilities, Deferred Contributions and Fund Balances
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 296,452 3 186,671
Accrued liabilities 2,518,013 2,190,090
Advances from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (note 9) 457,680 207,238
Current portion of mortgages payable (note 10) 102,859 94 544
3,375,004 2,678,541
Residents' funds in trust {note 5) 32,214 27,823
Future employee pre-retirement benefits payable (note 3) 2,165,288 1,803,676
Mortgages payable (note 10) 3,016,841 3,119,703
5,214,344 4,951,202
8,589,348 7,629,743
Deférred contributions for (note 11):
Expenses of future periods 14,405 13,264
- Capital assets 5,443,153 5,606,568
5,457,558 5,619,832
Fund balances:
Capital Fund (note 12) 106,827 56,549
Internally restricted fund (note 13) 2,032,447 1,778,564
: 2,139,274 1,835,113
3 16,186,180 $ 15084 688

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

On behalf of the Board of Directors:

Date A ]
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CENTRE TACHE CENTRE

Exhibit 2

Page 3
Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balances
Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009
Operating Fund Internally
Restricted
Supportive and Ancillary
Adult Day Housing Operaticns Capital 2010 20039
Operating Prograrm Program Funds Fund Total Total
Revenue:
Winnipeg Regional Health
Authority $ 16,608,432 405,034 667,200 - - $ 17,680,666 $ 15892546
Resident and service fees 4,841,593 40,228 242,804 - - 5,124,625 4,683,182
21,450,025 445,262 916,004 - - 22,805,291 20,575,728
Amortization of deferred
contributions (note 11) - . - - 476,610 476,610 471,491
Offset income:
Cafeteria 144,438 - - - - 144,438 152,144
Interest 870 - - 18,328 - 18,998 64,075
Donations 10,102 300 - 57,365 - 67,767 61,424
Fundraisers - - - 8,241 - 8,241 6,497
Parking 69,849 - 2,662 - - 72,511 67,855
Shared services (note 14) 356,708 - - - - 356,708 291,029
Grants : 10,350 - - - ~ 10,350 15,103
Recoveries:
General 200,671 - 1,378 - - 202,049 331,039
Ancillary operations (note 11) - - - 3.210 - 3,210 6,004
792,788 300 4,040 87,144 - 884,272 995,260
22,242,813 445,562 914,044 87,144 476,610 24,166,173 22,042 479
Expenses:
Amortization - - - - 489,745 489,746 478,708
Salaries and wages 15,663,128 208,771 645,113 - - 16,517,012 14,793,733
Employee benefits 3,015,400 40,950 120,095 - - 3,176,445 2,810,954
QOther supplies and expenses 426,865 2972 24,037 8,320 - 452,194 420,378
Medical and surgical supplies 361,579 - - - - 361,579 326,596
Drugs 7,460 - - - - 7,450 5,279
Food costs 661,648 29,017 137,668 - - 828,333 728,797
Utilities 591,010 - - - - 594,010 632,332
- Telephone and sundry 08,784 4,197 9,449 - - 112,430 125,715
Travel 109,602 137,047 364 - - 247,313 230,565
Professional and other fees 149,450 - 1,734 - - 151,184 113,810
Advertising and public relations 10,404 - - - - 10,404 14,026
Insurance 40,347 - - - - 40,347 38,385
Equipment 355,561 156 9,075 - - 364,792 314,375
Buildings and grounds 255,865 - - - - 255,865 456,117
Interest 242,688 - - - - 242,688 250,376
Ancillary operations - - - 3,210 - 3,210 6,094
21,990,091 423,110 947,535 11,530 489,746 23,862,012 21,748,238
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenses before the : .
undernoted 252,722 22,452 (33.491) 75,614 (13,136} 304,161 256,241
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority
prior year adjustment - - - - - - (2,224)
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority
future employee benefits
recoverable {payable) (note 3) 361,813 - - - - 361,613 (22,522)
Future employee pre-refirement
benefits obligation (note 3) {361,613} - - - - (361,613) 22522
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenses ‘ 252,722 22,452 {33,491) 75,614 (13,136) 304,161 204,017
Fund balances, beginning of year - - - 1,778,564 56,549 1,835,113 1,541,096
Transfer to Capital Fund {63,414) - - - 63,414
Transfer of operating surplus {189,308) - - 189,308 - - -
Transfer of Aduit Day Program
surplus . (22,452) - 22,452 - - -
Transfer of Supportive Housing
Program deficit - - 33,491 {33,491) - - -
Fund balances, end of year 3 - - - 2,032,447 § 106827 3 2,139,274 % 1,835,113

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009
2010 2009
" Cash provided by (used in):
Operating:
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 304,161 $ 294017
Adjustments for: _
Amortization of capital assets 489,746 478,706
Amortization of deferred contributions related to _
capital assets {476,610) {471,491)
Change in the following: _
Accounts receivable (35,606} 18,791
Receivable from Winnipeg Regional Heaith Authority {(574,192) 408,688
Inventory (10,559) (10,855)
Prepaid expenses 12,034 (14,462)
Future employee pre-retirement benefits recoverable (361,613) 22,522
Accounts payable 109,781 {110,597)
Accrued liabilities : 327,923 650,154
Advances from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 250,444 (394,885}
Future employee pre-retirement benefits payable 361,613 (22,522}
Deferred contributions received relatad to future periods 4,351 5704
Deferred contributions recognized as revenuein the year (3,210) (6,094)
394,263 847,676
Investing:
increase in deferred contributions related to capital assets 313,195 281,503
Additions to capital assets - (277,311) (212,909)
35,884 68,594
Financing:

Repayments on mortgages (94,547) {86,910)
Increase in cash 335,600 829,360
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3,394,'770 2,565,410
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $3,730,370 $3,394,770
Supplemental cash flow information:

Cash and cash equivalents is comprised of the following:

Cash $ 1,831,751 $ 3,394,770
Cash equivalents 1,898,619 ' -

$ 3,730,370 $ 3,394,770

Interest received $ 6,411 $ 64,075
Interest paid 243,355 250,988

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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CENTRE TACHE CENTRE

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2010

General:

Centre Taché Centre (the Corporation) was incorporated on July 9, 1968 under the laws of Manitoba
as Taché Nursing Centre Hospitalier Taché Inc. and operates under the name Centre Taché Centre.
The Corporation functions as'a bilingual, long-term care facility dedicated to the elderly, chronically ill
and disabled. The Centre also provides a respite program, as part of the operating fund, a day centre
program and provides care services for the Supportive Housing Program.

1. Significant accounting policies:
(a) Revenue recognition:;

_ The Corporation is funded primarily by the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (WRHA) in
accordance with a Service Purchase Agreement. The current Service Purchase Agreement
will expire March 31, 2012. As the care provider for the Supportive Housing Program at
Chez Nous and Windsor Park Place, the Corporation receives funding from WRHA in
accordance with a Service Purchase Agreement created May 1, 2007 which will expire
September 30, 2010. Operating grants are recorded as revenue in the period to which they
relate.

The Corporation follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions as follows:

Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the year in
which the related expenses are incurred. Contributions restricted for the purchase of capital
assets are deferred and amortized into revenue at a rate corresponding with the
amortization rate for the related capital assets. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as
revenue of the appropriate fund when the amount to be received can be reasonably
estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Unrestricted investment income is recognized in the Operating Fund in the year in which it is
earned. Restricted investment income is recognized on an accrual basis and is allocated to
the Internaily Restricted Fund.

Volunteers are an integral part of carrying out the activities of the Corporation. These

contributed services are not recognized in the financial statements because of the difficulty
in determining their fair value.
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CENTRE TACHE CENTRE

Page 6

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(b} Cash and cash equivalents:

()

(d)

{e)

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and investments in term deposits with maturity
of less than 90 days. These short term investments are recorded at cost which

approximates current market value.

Operating deficits or surpluses:

In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Service Purchase Agreement, annual
operating deficits are the responsibility of the Corporation. For both Operating and Adult
Day Program, annual operating surpluses less than 2 percent of the net cost of insured
services are retained by the Corporation. Those surpluses that are retained by the
Corporation are subject to review by the WRHA. Annual operating surpluses in excess of 2
percent of the net cost of insured services are repayable to the WRHA.

Capital assets:

Capital asset purchases are recorded at cost and equipment donations are recorded at fair
market value at the time of receipt. Amortization is recorded for the full year in the year of
acquisition and no amortization is taken in the year of disposal. Amortization of work in
progress commences when construction of the related asset is completed and the asset is
used in the operations of the Corporation. '

Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method at rates which amortize the assets
over their estimated usefut lives. The amortization rates are as follows:

Asset . Rate
Land improvements 5%
Buildings 2%
Equipment and building service equipment

and software licences and fees 6 1/4% to 20%

Leasehold estate:

The value assigned to the leasehold estate is being amortized against the deferred
contribution to which it relates on a siraight-line basis over the 60 year period of the lease.
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CENTRE TACHE CENTRE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

{f)

(@)

Fund accounting:

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses related to the Corporation’s capital assets are
recorded in the Capital Fund.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses related to the Corporation’s ancillary activities are
recorded in the Ancillary Operations Fund.

The Ihternally Restricted Fund represents funds received through donations, interest and
retainable surpluses from .operations. Certain expenditures from the fund require the
approval of the Member of the Corporation, while the remaining expenditures require only
the approval of the Board of Directors. '

All other assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses are reported in the Operating Fund.

Financial instruments;

Initially, all financial assets and liabilities must be recorded on the statement of financial
position at fair value. Subsequent measurement is determined by the classification of each
financial asset and [iability. Financial assets and Habilities held-for-trading are measured at
fair value with gains and losses recognized in excess (deficiency) of revenue over
expenses. Financial instruments classified as held-to-maturity, loans and receivables and
other liabilities are measured at amortized cost. Available-for-sale financial instruments are
measured at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses recognized directly in fund
balances. '

The Corporation designated cash and cash equivalents as held-for-trading; accounts
receivable, receivable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority, employee benefits and
future employee pre-retirement benefits recoverable from Winnipeg Regional Health
Authority as loans and receivables; other assets as available-for-sale; and advances from
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority, accounts payable, accrued liabilities and mortgages
payable as other liabilities. The Corporation does not have held-to-maturity financial
instruments.

Except for held-for-trading designated financial instruments, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets or liabilities are:
accounted for as part of the respective asset or liability's carrying value at inception and
amortized over the expected life of the financial instrument using the effective interest
method. For held-for-trading financial assets and liabilities, transaction costs are recorded in
the statement of operations as incurred.
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Notes o

“Page 8

Financial Statements {continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

{g) Financial instruments {(continued):

The Corporation has adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA)
Handbook Section 3861, Financial Instruments — Disclosure and Presentation. In
accordance with the Accounting Standards Board’'s decision to exempt not-for-profit
organizations from the disclosure requirements with respect to financial instruments
contained within Section 3862, Financial Instruments — Disclosures, and Section 3863,
Financial Instruments — Presentation, the Corporation has elected not to adopt these
standards in the financial statements.

- (h) Inventory:

)

1)

(k)

' Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Employee benefits:

The Corporation records a provision for employee benefits comprised of accrued vacation,
A further provision for future employee pre-retirement benefits, being an actuarial estimate
of the Corporation’s obligation to make a cash payment to certain qualifying employees
based on years of service upon retirement has also been recorded. Funding for portions of
these obligations remains outstanding as disclosed in note 3.

The cost of the Corporation’s employee pre-retirement benefits is accrued as earmed based
on an actuarial estimation.

Income taxes:

The Corporation is a registered charity within the meaning of the /ncome Tax Act and
therefore is exempt from income taxes under Section 149(1) of the Act.

Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires management {o make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabifities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year.. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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CENTRE TACHE CENTRE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

2, Change in accounting policies:

Effective April 1, 2009, the Corporation adopted the CICA’'s amendments to the 4400
Sections of the CICA Handbook. These amendments affect the financial statement
presentation and disclosure requirements for not-for-profit organizations. Adoption of these
recommendations had no significant impact on the financial statements of the Corporation
for the year ended March 31, 2010.

Effective April 1, 2009, the Corporation also adopted the CICA’s amendments to Section
1000 of the CICA Handbook. These amendments clarified the definitions and recognition
criteria of assets, liabilittes and expenses. Adoption of these recommendations had no
effect on the financial statements of the Corporation for the year ended March 31, 2010.

3. Employee benefiis:

(i} The Corporation maintains an employee pre-retirement benefit plan for substantially all of its
employees. The plan provides benefit paymentis to eligible retirees based on length of
service and on career eamings from initial eligibility.

At March 31, 2010, based on an actuarial estimate, the pre-retirement benefit plan's
obligations are estimated to be $2,165,289 (2009 - $1,803,676) for which the Corporation _
has recorded an accrued future employee pre-retirement benefits liability on the statement
of financial position.

- The estimation of the future pre-retirement benefits has been performed using the projected
unit credit service pro-rated on service actuarial cost method. The significant actuarial
assumptions adopted in measuring the Corporation's future employes benefit payable
include mortality and withdrawal rates, a discount rate of 4.90 percent (2009 — 6.70
percent), a rate of salary increase of 4.00 percent (2009 - 3.50 percent) plus an age-related
merit/promotion scale with no provision for disability.

The amount of funding which wili be provided by the WRHA for pre-retirement benefits was
initially determined based on the pre-retirement liability at March 31, 2004, and was
recorded as a long-term receivable on the statement of financial position.

The recoverable has been adjusted, based on direction from WRHA, to include the
incremental increases or decreases in the related liability since 2007, which includes an
interest component. The increase recorded in fiscal 2010 was $361,613 (2009 - decrease
of $22,522) and is recorded in the statement of operations.
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Page 10

Notes o Financial Statements {continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

3.

4,

Employee benefits (continued):

The future employee pre-retirement benefits recoverable from WRHA at March 31, 2010
aggregates $1,784,858 (2009 - $1,423,245) and has no specified terms of repayment.

Prior to 2004, Manitoba Health funded 100 percent of actual pre-retirement benefits paid
over and above the operating grant provided to the Corporation. Beginning April 1, 2005, the
WRHA established a policy of providing additional funding for approximately 70 percent of
actual pre-retirement benefits paid. Actual additional funding provided by WRHA for 2010
was 100 percent (2009 — 65.1 percent) of actual pre-retirement benefits paid. The shortfall
for 2009 of $74,210 was paid from funding received for operations.

(i) The cost of the Corporation’s vacation benefits is accrued when the benefits are earned by
the employees and is included in accrued liabilities on the statement of financial position.
The vacation benefits liability at March 31, 2010 is $1,168,400 (2009 - $1,041,685).

The funding received in each subsequent fiscal year from the Winnipeg Regional Health
Authority includes the employee benefits recoverable of $921,099 as included on the
statement of financial position. The employee benefits recaverable from Winnipeg Regional
Health Authority are maintained at the value of the vacation benefits liability at March 31,
2004.

Receivable from (payable to} Winnipeg Regional Health Authority:

2010 2009
Receivable:

Prior years 3 60,025 5 212,616
Salaries and benefits 1,062,926 553,409
‘Employee pre-retirement benefits 87,042 138,425
Other 32,211 8,042
1,242,204 912,492

Payable: :
Prior years 35,491 217,208
Resident charges 110,983 173,760
Capital interest 664 612
Other 557 595
' 147,695 392,175

Net receivable $ 1,094,509 $ 520,317
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CENTRE TACHE CENTRE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

“Year ended March 31, 2010

4, Receivable from (payable to) Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (continued):

Over/under funding occurs when non-glabal items (including resident fees revenue and interest
expense) are overfunder the amounts budgeted by the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority.
Overfunder funded amounts are payable to/receivable from the Winnipeg Regional Health

Authority,

5. Residents' funds in trust:

Residents' funds in trust represents monies held in trust for the residents in the name of the
Corporation and generally do not exceed $400 per resident.

6. Capital assets:

2010 2009

. Accumulated - Net book Net book

Cost amortization value value

Land improvements $ 462,568 $ 356,979 $ 105,589 $ 142,746
Buildings 13,988,263 6,690,807 7,297,456 7,677,343
Building service equipment 1,011,776 502,219 509,557 307,201
Equipment 2,784,116 2,421,976 362,140 346,198
Software licences and fees 198,222 195,544 2,678 4,017
Work in progress 1,322 - 1,322 110,338
- $ 18,446,267 $ 10,167,525 $ 8278742 $ 8,487,843

- 7. Leasehold estate:

The original Centre is situated on property leased from Despins Charities Inc., a corporation
with the same Member of the Corporation, at a rental of $1 per annum. The 60 year lease
expires December 31, 2030. The land is held as a leasehold estate registered under the Real
Property Act in the Winnipeg Land Titles Office. At the termination of the lease, the title to the
land reveris to the lessor.

The 1871 estimated fair market value of the economic rent of the leasehold estate was $16,500
per annum, based on an appraisal made by E. Karl Farstad & Associates Ltd. as of January 17,
1972. The discounted present value of such rental over the 60 year period is estimated to be
$200,000 using an interest factor of 8 % percent per annum. The $200,000 discounted present
value of the lease was recorded in the accounts at December 31, 1971 as an asset with an
offsetting credit to deferred contributions to recognize the value of the donation of the leasehold
estate made by Taché Hospital for Chronic and Geriatric Patients.
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Page 12

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

7.

10.

Leasehold estate (continued):

The addition to the original Centre is situated on two properties leased from Despins Charities
Inc. and the Catholic Health Corporation of Manitoba (CHCM), the Member of the Corporation,
at a rental of $2 per annum. The leases expire December 31, 2030. The land is held as a
leasehold estate registered under the Real Property Act in the Winnipeg Land Titles Office. At
the termination of the lease, the title to the iand reverts to the lessor. No economic value of
these additional leases is reflected in the financial statements.

The Centre also leases additional property from Despins Charities Inc. at a rental of $1 per

. annum. No economic value of this additional lease is reflected in the financial statements.

Bank indebtedness:

At March 31, 2010, the Corporation had a $300,000 authorized line of credit available with no
outstanding borrowings.

Advances from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority:

During the fiscal year the Corporation received funding advances from the Winnipeg Regional

~ Health Authority in the amount of $445,000 for funding commitments relating to the 2009/10

fiscal year. These advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of
repayment. In fiscal 2010, of the $207,236 advances owing at March 31, 2009, $194,556 were
offset against related receivables from the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority and the
remaining $12,680 is included in advances owing at March 31, 2010.

Mortgages payable:

2010 2009
7 718% first mortgage on 1973 construction, payable in monthly $  1,455935 $ 1,517,881
blended payments of $14,783, due April 1, 2023
First mortgage on 1978 construction, payable in monthly blended
payments of $13,375, due February 1, 2028. The effective interest
rate after giving consideration to forgiveness clauses is 8% 1,663,765 1,696,366
' 3,119,700 3,214,247
Current portion 102,859 94,544
$ 3,015,841 $ 3,119,703
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

10.

11.

Mortgages payable (continued):

Both mortgages are payable to the Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation.

Principal repayments required over the next five years and thereafter are as foliows:

Page 13

2011 102,859
2012 111,917
2013 121,784
2014 132,533
2015 144,244
Thereafter 2,606,363

$ 3,119,700

Deferred contributions:

{a) Expenses.of future periods:

Deferfed contributions related to expenses of future periods represent unspent externally
restricted grants and donations for resident programs.

2010 2009

Balance, beginning of year _ $ 13,264 $ 13,654

Add amount received related to future periods 4,351 5,704
Less amount recognized as revenue in the year (3,210) {6,094)

$ 14,405 5 13,264

{b) Capital assets:

Deferred capital contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized amount
and unspent amount of donations and grants received for the purchase of capital assets.
The amortization of these contributions is recorded as revenue in the statement of

operations.
2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 56086,568 $ 5,796,556
Additional contributions received 313,195 281,503
Less amounts amoertized to revenue (476,610) (471,491)

$ 5,443,153 $ 5,606,568
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

11. Deferred contributions {continued):

The balance of unamortized capital contributions related to capital assets consists of the

following:
2010 2009
| Unamortized capital contributions used o
purchase assets $ 5,121,358 $ 5,289,524
Unspent contributions:
Equipment reserve 256,328 223,910
Major repairs 51,633 79,330
Bonations 13,834 13,804
$ 5443153 $ 5,606,568
12. Capital fund:
2010 2009
Capital assets $ 8,278,742 $ 8,487,843
Leasehold estate 69,143 72,477
8,347,885 8,660,320
Amount financed by:
Deferred contributions (5,121,358) (5,289,524)
Mortgages (3,119,700) (3,214,247)
$ 108,827 $ 56,549
13. Internally restricted fund:
2010 2009
To be expended only with the approval of the
Member of the Corporation $ 1,721,395 $ 1,525,008
Other internal projects ' 311,052 253,558
$ 2,032,447 $ 1,778,564
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

14.

15.

Related party transactions:
Foundation:

An amount of $26,000 (2009 - $50,000) was funded by Les Amis de Taché Friends
Incorporated, a corporation with the same Member of the Corporation.

Shared and contributed services:

The Corporation and Foyer Valade Inc., a corpbration with the same Board of Directors and

‘Member of the Corporation, have an agreement to share the cost of specific employee services

based on the time spent on each entity. The Corporation provided services to Foyer Valade inc.
in the amount $241,578 (2009 - $238,893) which is included in shared services revenue. The
Corporation purchased services from Foyer Valade inc. in the amount of $191,996 (2009 -
$210,629) which is included in salaries and wages.

In 2010, in addition to these shared services, the Corporation contributed services to Foyer
Valade Inc. in the amount of nil (2009 - $70,846) free of charge.

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange
amount which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

Employee pension plan:

During the year, the Corporation contributed $938,809 (2009 - $826,021) on behalf of its
employees. Eligible employees of the Corporation are members of the Healthcare Employees
Pension Plan - Manitoba, a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. As individual entities
within the plan are not able to identify their share of the underlying assets and liabilities, the
Corporation is accounting for the plan as a defined contribution plan. The cost of the plan is
recognized based on the contributions required to be made during each period.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan for funding purposes as at December 31, 2007
indicated a solvency deficiency of $61,050,000 that will be funded over five years commencing
calendar 2008 out of current contributions in each respective year. A change in underlying
actuarial assumptions could cause a change in the actuarial value of accrued pension benefits
and required service contributicns. Contribution rates were increased on July 1, 2007 to 6.8
percent of pensionable earnings up to the yearly maximum pensionable eamings limit (YMPE)
and 8.4 percent on earnings in excess of the YMPE. No rate changes have been issued since.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

16.

17.

- 18.

- Ladies Auxiliary - Taché Centre:

The Ladies Auxiliary - Taché Centre operates the gift shop at the Centre. The funds raised are
used to enhance the residents’ environment. The fund balance at March 31, 2010 is $60,146
(2009 - $52,366) and this amount is not included in the Corporation’s financial statements.

Fair value:

The fair value of accounts receivable, receivable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority,

employee benefits recoverable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority, accounts payable,

accrued liabilittes and advances from Winnipeg Regional Health Authorlty approximate their
carrying value due to their immediate or short—term hature.

The fair value of the mortgages payable was not practical to determine due to the underlying
terms and conditions.

The fair, value of the future employee pre-retirement benefits recoverable from Winnipeg
Regional Health Authority approximates its carrying value as the interest component is
comparable to current market rates. The fair value of other assets, representing shares of a
private entity, is not readily determinabie because these shares are neither liquid nor are they

traded in an active market.

Comparative figures:

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the financial statement
presentation adopted in the current year.

Page 1474



CENTRE TACHE CENTRE

Schedule - Expenses

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009
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2010 2009
Amortization $ 489746 3 478,706
Salaries and wages
Resident services:
Nursing administration 3 509,981 § 507,318
Registered nurses 2217712 2,021,582
Licensed practical nurses 1,336,985 1,213,421
Health care and rehab aides 5,676,083 5,004,041
Purchased services 806,735 1,032,554
10,647,496 8,778,916
Activity 258,759 282,661
Adult Day Program 208,771 207,466
Dietary 1,673,412 1,473,123
General administration 1,068,348 - 945,127
Housekeeping 674,299 621,356
Laundry/linen 189,219 180,123
Medical administration fees 59,032 27,998
Occupationat health 52,728 53,638
Occupational therapy 127,139 130,807
Pastoral care 120,089 119,620
Physiotherapy - 90,300 123,130
Plant maintenance 431,003 366,321
Social work 164,455 160,574
Staff development 174,638 175,197
Supportive Housing Program 645,113 115,852
Volunteer coordinator 32,211 31,924
5,869,516 5,014,817
$ 16,517,012 § 14,793,733
Employee benefits: .
-Canada pension plan $ 593,321 § 533,376
Employment insurance 306,565 279,376
Healthcare employees pension plan 938,809 826,021
Other employee benefits 517,771 339,680
Employee pre-retirement benefits 87,042 212,999
Workers' compensation 406,977 327,187
2,850,485 2,518,639
Health and education tax 325,960 282,315
$ 3176445 § 2810954
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Schedule - Expenses (cohtinued)

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009
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2010 2009

Other supplies and expenses:
Printing, stationery and office 36,134 35,499
FPhotocopying 3,966 2,156
Housekeeping and cleaning 23,002 18,874
Paper and disposable 36,110 53,256
Laundry and linen 11,310 6,889
Staff wearing apparel 11,704 12,408
Dietary and cleaning 47,773 22,395
FPurchased services - laundry 244,061 218,533
Other supplies and expenses 48,134 50,368
462,194 420,378

Medical and surgical supplies:
General . 148,039 140,346

Gastronomy 16,676 9,522

Ostomy supplies 6,102 5,564

Incontinence aids 190,762 171,164

361,579 326,596
Drugs:

‘Oxygen and other 7,480 5,279
Food costs 828,333 728,797
Utilities:

Fuel and natural gas 315,488 363,340

Water 135,808 135,719

Electricity 139,714 133,273

591,010 632,332
Telephone and sundry:

Telephone 36,168 56,211

General expenses 54,215 44,630

Staff training 14,617 15,373

Postage 7,430 9,501

112,430 125,715
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Schedule - Expenses (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

2010 2009

 Travel:
Resident travel : $ 137,047 $ 116,569
Resident transportation . 102,488 105,883
Staff _ 6,609 8,038

Board of Directors 1,169 75

$ 247,313 % 230,565

Professional and other fees:

Service bureau fees -3 31616 % 31,205
Audit fees . 24,598 25210
Legal fees 365 6,945
Association membership fees : 20,244 18,881
Other : 74,363 31,569

$ 151,184 § 113,810

" Advertising and pubilic relations $ 10,404 § 14,026
Insurance ' $ 40,347 $ 38,385
Equipment: _ _ :

Service contracts $ 33,106 $ 29,917
Software contracts 63,494 68,450
Equipment maintenance 176,080 175,801
Minor purchases 92,112 40,207

3 364,792 % 314,375

Buildings and grounds:

Building repairs 3 14813 § 189,814
Property taxes 232,162 258,375
Other ' 8,890 7,928

$ 255,865 % 456,117

Interest - mortgages $ 242688 3 250,376
Ancillary operations $ 3,210 § 6,094
Total expenses $ 23862012 $ 21,746,238
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CLINIQUE YOUVILLE CLINIC INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

2. Capital assets:

2010 2009
Accumulated Net book Net book
Cost amortization value value

Furniture and fixiures $ 197,234 $ 112,132 $ 85,102 $ 79,400
Computer equipment 230,628 217,841 12,787 18,267
Leasehold improvements 427,334 121,704 305,630 355,368

$ 855196 $ 451677 $ 403,519 $ 453,035

(@)

(b)

Employee benefit plans:

Employee benefits;

The corporation records a provision for employee benefits including vacation and statutory
holiday entitlements. At March 31, 2010, accounts payable and accrued liabilities includes
employee benefits payable of $140,736 (2009 - $141,169).

During fiscal 2008, WRHA confirmed that it will fund a portion of these employee benefits,
which is limited to the amount estimated at March 31, 2004. Accordingly, the corporation
has recorded a recoverable in the amount of $125,848, representing amounts due from
WRHA, and reflects the estimated liability for accumulated employee benefits at that date.
Each year thereafter, the corporation is expected to fund the change in the liability from
annual funding provided by the WRHA.

Future employee pre-retirement benefits:

The corporation maintains an employee pre-retirement benefit plan for substantially all of its
employees. The plan provides benefit payments to eligible retirees based on length of
service and on career earnings from initial eligibility.

At March 31, 2010, based on an actuarial estimate, the pre-retirement benefit plan’s
obligations are estimated to be approximately $114,531 (2009 - $131,228) for which the
corporation has recorded a fulure employee pre-retirement benefits payable on the
statement of financial position.

The amount of funding which will be provided by the WRHA for pre-retirement benefits was
initially determined based on the pre-retirement liability at March 31, 2004 and was recorded
as a long-term receivable on the statement of financial position.
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Tel/Tél.: 204 956 7200 BDO Canada LLP/s.r.L.

Fax/Téléc.: 204 926 7201 700 - 200 Graham Avenue
Toll-free/ Winnipeg MB R3C 4L5 Canada
Sans frais: 800 268 3337

www.bdo.ca

Auditors' Report

To the Board of Directors of
DONWOOD MANOR PERSONAL CARE HOME INC.

We have audited the statement of financial position of DONWOOD MANOR PERSONAL CARE
HOME INC. as at March 31, 2010 and the statements of operations, changes in net assels and cash
flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Home's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our

audit,

We conducted our audit In accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Home as at March 31, 2010 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

The budget figures presented have not been audited, and are presented for informational purposes
only.,

ED> M‘LP

Chartered Accountants

Winnipeg, Manitoba
May 7, 2010

BD0O Canada LLP, a Canadian mited [fability partnarship, is 4 member of BDO International Limited, a2 UK cempany bmited by guarantee, and forms part of the internaonat 800
aetwork of indepeadent member firms.

BDO Canada s.r.b., une société canadienne & responsabilité limitée, est membre de BDO International Limited, société de droit anglals, et fait partie du réseau international de

sociétés membres indépendantes BDO,
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DONWOOD MANOR PERSONAL CARE HOME INC.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

For the year ended March 31, 2010

Financial Instruments

The Home utilizes various financial instruments.

All transactions related to financial instruments are recorded on
a settlement date basis.

The Home classifies its financial instruments as follows based
on the purpose for which the asset was acquired and follows
the disclosed accounting policy for each category.

Assets/Liability Category Measurement
Due from WRHA Loans and receivables Amortized cost
Accounts

receivable Loans and receivables Amortized cost
Due from related

parties Loans and receivables Amortized cost
Vacation

entitlernents

receivable Loans and receivables Amortized cost
Retirement

obligations

assefs Leans and receivables Amoriized cost
Bank

indebtedness Held for {rading Fair value
Accounts

payable and

aceruals Cther financial liabilities Amortized cost
Advance from

WRHA Other financial liabilities Amortized cost
¢ Held for trading items are carried at fair value, with

changes in their fair value recognized in the statement
of operations.

. Other financial liabllitles are carried at amortized cost,
using the effective interest method.

» Loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost,
using the effective interest rate method, less any
provision for impairment.

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.
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DONWOOD MANOR PERSONAL CARE HOME INC.

For the year ended March 31, 2010

Notes to Financial Statements

1.

Revenue from the WREA

Revenue as per WRHA final funding document (adjusted) $ 4,679,891

Add:
Heaith Care Benefits 47,793
Median rate adjustment 10,340
influenza and pneumococcal immunization 113
MGEU & CUPE 2009/10 93,544
0910 Wages Standardization 6,927
Slaffing increase hours of care 435,047
H1N1 costs 3,954
Pre-retirement funding 2008/09 1,896
Laundry allocation 2009/10 1,232
One on one care 1,035
Median rate final adjustment 2008/09 91,713

693,594

Deduct
Residentilal charges adjustment {3,754)
Insurance deductible {1,500)
Reserve major repairs {3,621)
Adjustment to deferred grants {314)

(9,189)
Revenue from WRHA $ 5,364,296

Page 1505

16



Page 1506



Page 1507



Page 1508



Page 1509



Page 1510



KPMG LLP Telephone (204} 9571770
Chartered Accountants Fex - (204} 9570808
Suite 2000 - One Lombard Ptace © o Internet www.kpmg.ca
Winnipeg MB R3B 0X3
Canada
Page 1

AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Member of Foyer Valade Inc.

We have audited the statement of financial position of Foyer Valade Inc. as at March 31, 2010 and the
statements of operations and changes in fund balances and cash flows for the year then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

in our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Corporation as at March 31, 2010 and the resuits of its operations and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The current year's supplementary information included in the schedule is presented for purposes
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such supplementary
information has been subjecied to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. :

K& 47
s £

Chartered Accountants

Winnipeg, Canada
April 30, 2010

KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a mermber firm of the KPMG )
retwark of indepandent member firms affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP
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FOYER VALADE INC.

Exhibit 1
Statement of Financial Position Page 2
March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009
2010 2009
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 891,157 $ 1,027,857
Accounts receivable 27,134 15,972
Employee benefits recoverable from Winnipeg :
Regional Health Authority (note 3) 288,336 288,336
Receivable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (note 4) 547,445 238,258
Inventory : 45,429 45,891
Prepaid expenses 45,399 41,451
1,844,900 1,657,765
Residents' funds in frust (note 5) 15,269 15,703
Future employee pre-retirement benefits recoverable from _ _
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (note 3) 493,358 455,741
Capital assets {note 6) 10,014,313 10,318,214
$12,3687,840 $12,447 423
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2010 2009

Liabilities, Deferred Contributions and Fund Balances

© Current liabilities:

Bank indebtedness (note 7) S 148,645 $ 173,504
Accounts payable 181,797 124,446
Accrued liabilities 799,895 770,863
Advances from Winnipeg Reginal Health Authority (note 8) 140,731 95,393
Bank loan (note 9) 144,293 165,173
1,415,361 1,329,469
Residents' funds in trust (note 5) 15,269 15,703
Future employee pre-retirement benefits payable {hote 3) 494 145 456,528
509,414 472,231
1,924,775 1,801,700

Deferred contributions for (note 10}: :
Expenses of future periods 3,068 3418
Capital assets 9,690,858 9,966,256
9,693,926 9,969,674

Fund balances:

Capital Fund (note 11) 203,981 155,705
Internally restricted fund (note 12) 545,158 520,344
749,139 676,049
$12,367,840 $12,447 423

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

On behalf of the Board of Directors:

[

7 L
Date L Y {wiipw
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FOYER VALADE INC. Exhibit 2
Staterment of Operations and Changes in Fund Balances Page 3
Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009
Internally
QOperating Ancillary Restricted Capital 2010 2009
Fund Operations Fund Fund Total Total
Revenue: .
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority $ 6985048 § - 3 - $ - § 6985048 % 6,269,561
Resident fees 2,552,142 - - - 2,552,142 2,477,746
9,537,190 - - - 9,537,190 8,747,307
Amortization of deferred
coniributions (note 10) ) - - - 361,275 361,275 364,169
Offset income:
Cafeteria 38,972 - - - 38,972 38,868
Contributed services {ncte 13) - - - - - 70,846
Interest 350 - 4,342 - 4,692 23,255
Donations 5,363 - - - 5,363 10,507
Fundraisers - - 2332 - 2,332 3,541
Parking 35,588 - - - 35,588 34,357
Shared services (note 13) 191,996 - - - 191,996 210,629
Grants 20,954 B - - 20,954 10,000
Recoveries: .
General . 129,655 - - - 129,855 119,757
Angillary operations {note 10) - 2,143 ~ - 2,143 2073
422,878 2,143 6,674 - 431,695 523,833
9,960,068 2,143 6,674 361,275 10,330,160 9,635,309
Expenses:
Amortization - - - 373,028 373,028 370,256
Salaries and wages 7,187,115 - - - 7,187,115 6,582,637
Employee benefits 1,272,315 E - - 1,272,315 1,047,431
Other supplies and expenses 262,466 - 2,786 ' - 265,252 240,059
Medical and surgical supplies 103,822 - - - 103,822 86,423
Drugs 8,638 - - - 8,638 10,272
. Food costs 333,480 - - - 333,480 303,195
Utilities 206,171 - - - 206,171 256,605
Telephone and sundry 38,036 - - - 38,036 41,383
Travel 40,512 - - : - 40,512 32,349
Professional and other fees 58,210 - - - 68,210 68,756
Advertising and public relations ' 8,555 - - - 8,555 11,640
Insurance 24,528 - - - 24,528 23,180
Equipment 105,918 - - - 105,918 162,424
Buildings and grounds 216,010 - - - 216,010 251,364
Interest 3,337 - - . - 3,337 6,893
Ancillary cperations - 2,143 - - 2,143 2,073
9,879,113 2,143 2,786 373,028 10,257,070 9,495,940
Excess (deficiency) of revenue ]
over expenses hefore the undernoted 80,955 - 3,888 (11,753) 73,090 138,369
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority
prior year adjustment - - - - - (12,083}

Winnipeg Regional Health Authority
future employee benefits

recoverable (note 3) 37,617 - - - 37,617 22,440
| Future employee pre-retirament )
i benefits obligation (note 3) (37.617) - - - (37,617) (22,440)
| Excess (deficiency) of revenue
OVEr @Xpenses 80,955 - 3,888 {11,753) 73,090 126,306
Fund balances, beginning of year - - 520,344 155,705 676,049 548,743
Transfer to Capital Fund (60,029) - - 60,029 - -
Transfer of operating surplus (20,926) - 20,926 - - -
Fund balances, end of year 3 - $ - 3 545,158 $ 203,981 § 749,139 3 676,049

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Exhibit 3

Page 4
Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended March 31, 2010 with comparative figure for 2009
2010 2009
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating:
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 73,000 $ 126,306
Adjustments for:
Amortization of capital assets 373,028 370,256
Amortization of deferred contributions related to
capital assets (361,275) (364,169)
Change in the following:
Accounts receivable (11,162) 7,609
Receivable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (308,187) (34,692)
Inventory 462 (9,093)
Prepaid expenses (3,948) (674)
Future employee pre-retirement benefits recoverable (37,617) (22,440}
Accounts payable ‘ 57,351 (18,986)
Accrued liabilities . 29,032 46,148
Advances from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 45,338 {122,274)
Future employee pre-retirement benefits payable 37,617 22,440
Deferred contributions received related to future periods 1,793 2,422
Deferred contributions recognized as revenue in the year (2,143) {2,073)
: (107,621) 780
Investing:
Increase in deferred contributions related to capital assets 85,877 126,791
Additions to capital assets (69,127) {83,135)
16,750 43,656
Financing:
Bank indebtedness (24,949) (10,014)
Repayments on bank loan (20,880) (20,880)
{(45,829) (30,824)
Increase (decrease) in cash (136,700} 13,542
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,027,857 1,014,315
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 891,157 $1,027,857
Suppltemental cash flow information:
Cash and cash equivalents is comprised of the following:
Cash $ 411,157 $ 1,027,857
Cash equivalents 480,000 -
$ 891,157 $ 1,027,857
Interest received $ 2,062 $ 23,255
Interest paid 3,337 6,893

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Page 5

FOYER VALADE INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2010

General:

Foyer Valade Inc. (the Corporation) was established January 22, 1976 under the laws of Manitoba as
Foyer St. Boniface Inc. - St. Boniface Home Inc. and subsequently changed its name to Foyer Valade
Inc. in 1988 to coincide with the relocation of the facility to River Road. The Corporation functions as a
long-term care facility mandated by the Provincial government to provide services to the French
speaking elderly, chronically ill and disabled. ‘

1. Significant accounting policies:
(a) Revenue recognition:

The Corporation is funded primarily by the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (WRHA) in
accordance with a Service Purchase Agreement. The current Service Purchase Agreement
will expire March 31, 2012. Operating grants are recorded as revenue in the period to which
they relate. ' :

The Corporation follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions as follows:

Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the year in which
the related expenses are incurred. Contributions restricted for the purchase of capital assets
are deferred and amortized into revenue at a rate corresponding with the amortization rate for
the refated capital assets. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the
appropriate fund when the amount to be received can be reaéonab!y estimated and collection
is reasonably assured. '

Unrestricted investment income is recognized in the Operating Fund in the year in which it is
eamed. Restricted investment income is recognized on an accrual basis and is allocated to the
appropriate category in the Internally Restricted Fund. '

Volunteers are an integral part of carrying out the activities of the Corporation. These

contributed services are not recognized in the financial statements because of the difficulty in
determining their fair value.
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Page 6

FOYER VALADE INC.

Notes to Financial Statements {continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

1.  Significant accounting policies (continued):

(b)

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and investments in term deposits with maturity of
less than 90 days. These short term investments are recorded at cost which approximates
current market value.

{c} Operating deficits or surpluses:

(d)

(e)

In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Service Purchase Agreement, annual
operating deficits are the responsibility of the Corporation. Annual operating surpluses less
than 2 percent of the net cost of insured services are retained by the Corporation. Those
surpluses that are retained by the Corporation are subject to review by the WRHA. Annual
operating surpluses in excess of 2 percent of the net cost of insured services are repayable to
the WRHA.

Capital assets:
Capital asset purchases are recorded at cost and equipment donations are recorded at fair
market value at the time of receipt. Amortization is recorded for the full year in the year of

acquisition and no amortization is taken in the year of disposal.

Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method at rates which amortize the assets
over their estimated useful lives. The amortization rates are as follows:

Asset Rate
Building 2% to0 2.5%
Equipment and building service equipment : 6 %% to 20%

Fund accounting:

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses related to the Corporation’s capital assets are
recorded in the Capital Fund.

Assets, llabllltles revenues and expenses related to the Corporation’s ancnlary activities are
recorded in Ancillary Operations Fund.
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FOYER VALADE INC.

Page 7

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year.ended March 31, 2010

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(e)

Fund accounting (continued):

The Intemally Restricted Fund represents funds received through donations, interest and
retainable surpluses from operations. Certain expenditures from the fund require the approval
of the Member of the Corporation, while the remaining expenditures require only the approval
of the Board of Directors.

All other assets, _Iiabilitieé, revenues and expenses are recorded in the Operating Fund.

Financial instruments:

Initially, all financial assets and liabiliies must be recorded on the statement of financial
position at fair value. Subsequent measurement is determined by the classification of each
financial asset and liability. Financial assets and liabilities held-for-trading are measured at fair
value with gains and losses recognized in excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses.
Financial instruments classified as held-to-maturity, loans and receivables and other liabilities
are measured at amortized cost. Available-for-sale financial instruments are measured at fair
value, with unrealized gains and losses recognized directly in fund balances.

The Corporation designated cash and cash equivalents and bank indebtedness as held-for-
trading, accounts receivable, receivable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority, employee
benefits and future employee pre-retirement benefits recoverable from the Winnipeg Regional
Health Authority as loans and receivables; and advances from Winnipeg Regional Health
Authority, accounts payable, accrued liabilites and bank loan as other liabilities. The
Corporation does not have held-to-maturity or avallable-for-sale financial instruments.

Except for held-for-trading designated financial instruments, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets or liabilities are accounted for as
part of the respective asset or liability's carrying value at inception and amortized over the
expected life of the financial instrument using the effective interest method. For held-for-
trading financial assets and liabilities, transaction costs are recorded in the statement of
operations as incurred. '

The Corporation has adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA)
Handbook Section 3861, Financial instruments — Disclosure and Presentation. In accordance
with the Accounting Standards Board's decision to exempt not-for-profit organizations from the
disclosure requirements with respect to financial instruments contained within Section 3862,
Financiai Instruments — Disclosures, and Section 3863, Financial Instruments — Presentation,
the Corporation has elected not to adopt these standards in the financial statements.
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FOYER VALADE INC.

Page 8

Notes to Financiai Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

1.

Significant accounting policies {continued):

{g) Inventory:

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

(h) Employee benefits:

(i)

()

The Corporation records a provision for employee benefits comprised of accrued vacation. A
further provision for future employee pre-retirement benefits, being an actuarial estimate of the
Corporation’s obligation fo make a cash payment to certain qualifying employees based on
years of service upon retirement, has also been recorded. Funding for portions of these
obligations remains outstanding as disclosed in note 3.

The cost of the Corporation’s employee pre-retirement benefits is accrued as earned based on
an actuarial estimation. ' '

Income taxes:

The Corporation is a registered charity within the meaning of the /ncome Tax Act and therefore
is exempt from income taxes under Section 149(1) of the Act.

Use of estimétes:

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Change in accounting policies:

Effective April 1, 2009, the Corporation adopted the CICA’'s amendments to the 4400 Sections of
the CICA Handbook. These amendments affect the financial statement presentation and
disclosure requirements for not-for-profit organizations. Adoption of these recommendations had

ho significant impact on the financial statements of the Corporation for the year ended March 31,

2010.

Effective April 1, 2009, the Corporation also adopted the CICA's amendments to Section 1000 of
the CICA Handbook. These amendments ciarified the definitions and recognition criteria of assets,
liabilities and expenses. Adoption of these recommendations had no effect on the financial
statements of the Corporation for the year ended March 31, 2010.

Page 1519



Page 9

FOYER VALADE INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

3.

' Employee benefits:

(i) The Corporation maintains an employee pre-retirement benefit plan for substantially all of its

employees. The plan provides benefit payments to eligible retirees based on length of service
and on career earnings from initial eligibility.

At March 31, 2010, based on an actuarial estimate, the pre-retirement benefit plan's
cbligations are estimated to be $494,145 (2008 - $456,528) for which the Corporation has
recorded an accrued future employee pre-retirement benefits liability on the statement of
financial position.

The estimation of the future pre-retirement benefits has been performed using the projected
unit credit service pro-rated on service actuarial cost method. The significant actuarial
assumptions adopted in measuring the Corporation’s future employee benefit payable include
mortality and withdrawal rates, a discount rate of 4.90 percent (2009 — 6.70 percent), a rate of
salary increase of 4.00 percent (2009 - 3.50 percent} plus an age-related merit/promotion
scale with no provision for disability. ' '

The amount of funding which will be provided by the WRHA for pre-retirement benefits was
initially determined based on the pre-retirement liability at March 31, 2004, and was recorded
as a long-term receivable on the statement of financial position.

The recoverable has been adjusted, based on direction from WRHA, to include the
incremental increases in the related liability since 2007, which includes an interest component.
The increase recorded in fiscal 2010 was $37,617 (2009 - $22,440) and is recorded in the
statement of operations.

The future employee pre-retirement benefits recoverable .from WRHA at March 31, 2010
aggregates $493,358 (2009 - $455,741) and has no specified terms of repayment.

Prior to 2004, Manitoba Health funded 100 percent of actual pre-retirement benefits paid over and
above the operating grant provided to the Corporation. Beginning April 1, 2005, the WRHA
established a policy of providing additional funding for approximately 70 percent of actual pre-
retirement benefits paid. Actual additional funding provided by the WRHA for 2010 was 100
percent {2009 — 65.1 percent) of actual pre-retirement benefits paid. The shorifall for 2008 of

$15,898 was paid from funding received for operations.
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Page 10

FOYER VALADE INC.

Notes to Financial Statements {(continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

3.

4.

Employee benefits (continued):

(i) The cost of the Corporation’s vacation benefits is accrued when the benefits are earned by the
employees and is included in accrued liabilities on the statement of financial position. The vacation
benefits liability at March 31, 2010 is $427,686 (2009 - $364,173).

The funding received in each subsequent fiscal year from the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority
inciudes the employee benefits recoverable of $288,336 as included on the statement of financial
position. The employee benefits recoverable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority are
maintained at the value of the vacation benefits liability at March 31, 2004.

Receivable from {payable to) Winnipeg Regional Health Authority:

2010 2008

Receivable:
Prior years $ 42 159 $ 42,159
Salaries and benefits 461,617 291,122
Employee pre-retirement benefits - 84,383 29,656
Other 57,369 81,226
645,528 444 163

Payable:

Prior years 85,135 116,710
Resident fees 11,643 87,746
Interest 1,305 1,449
98,083 205,905

Net receivable $ 547,445 $ 238,258

Over/under funding occurs when non-global items (including resident fees revenue and interest
expense) are over/lunder the amounts budgeted by the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority.
Over/under funded amounts are payable to/receivable from the Winnipeg Regional Health
Authority.

Residents’ funds in trust;

Residents' funds in trust represents monies held in trust for the residents in the name of the
Corporation and generally do not exceed $400 per resident.
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FOYER VALADE INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

Page 11

Capital assets:

2010 2009

Accumulated Net Net

Cost amortization book value "~ hook value

Building $ 13,302,590 $ 3,799,197 $ 9,503,393 $ 9,815,119
Building service equipment 127,736 42,294 85,442 85,766
Equipment 1,750,539 1,325,061 425478 417,329
‘Software licenses and fees 86,209 86,209 - -
$ 15,267,074 $ 5,252,761 $ 10,014,313 $10,318,214

Bank indebtedness:

At March 31, 2010, the Corporation had an authorized line of credit of $200,000 which was used to
finance a portion of the Corporation’s contribution towards the 38 bed addition. The line of credit
bears interest at the bank's prime rate less 0.25 percent per annum. Interest is payable monthly in
arrears and the principal is payable on demand. Les Amis de Valade Inc., a corporation with the
same Member of the Corporation, has also provided a guarantee as security for this loan.

The Corporation has an additional $100,000 authorized line of credit available with no outstanding
borrowings.

Advances from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority:

During the fiscal year, the Corporation received funding advances from the Winnipeg Regicnal
Health Authority in the amount of $135,000 for funding commitments relating to the 2009/10 fiscal
year. These advances are unsecured, non-interest béaring and have no fixed terms of repayment.
In fiscal 2010, of the $95,393 advances owing at March 31, 2009, $89,662 were offset against
related receivables from the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority and the remaining $5,731 is
included in advances owing at March 31, 2010.

Bank loan:
The bank loan is held by La Caisse Populaire de Saint-Boniface Limitée, is repayable on demand,
is supported by a borrowing resolution of the Board of Directors together with borrowing approval

from the WRHA, and bears interest at the Caisse Populaire’'s prime lending rate minus 0.50
percent. The loan is being repaid at $1,740 monthly, plus interest.
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Page 12

FOYER VALADE INC.

Notes to Financial Statements {continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

10. Deferred contributions:
(a) Expenses of future periods:

Deferred contributions related to expenses of future periods represent unspent externally
restricted grants and donations for separate programs.

2010 2009

Balance, beginning of year 5 3,418 3 3,069
Add amount received related to future periods 1,793 2,422
Less amount recognized as revenue in the year (2,143) (2,073)
$ 3,068 $ 3,418

{(b) Capital assets:

Deferred capital contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized amount and
unspent amount of donations, grants and pledges received or receivable for the purchase of
capital assets. The amortization of these contributions is recorded as revenue in the statement

of operations.
2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 9,966,256 $ 10,203,634
_ Add contributions received 85,877 126,791
~ Less amounts amortized to revenue {361,275) (364,169)
$ 9,690,858 $ 9,966,256

On February 28, 2007, the Province of Manitoba approved the consolidation of $5,200,000 of
the Corporation’s borrowings with its Department of Finance. The advance has been recorded
as a deferred contribution.

The advance received is governed by a promissory note payable to the Province of Manitoba
which bears interest at 5.1 percent and required monthly principal payments of $21,667 plus
interest. At March 31, 2010, the outstanding principal balance on the note was $4,398,334
(2009 - $4,658,334). No further funding is expected to be received with respect to this
obligation and no revenue or expense is recorded in connection with its extinguishment,
except for the amortization of the deferred contribution.
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FOYER VALADE INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

Page 13

10.  Deferred contributions (continued):

The balance of unamortized capital contributions related to capital assets consists of the

following:

2010 2009
Unamortized capital contributions used to
purchase assets $ 9,517,394 $ 9,823,742
Unspent contributions:
Equipment reserve 137,908 110,958
Major repairs 35,556 31,556
$ 9,690,858 $ 9,966,256
11. Capital fund:
2010 2009
Capital assets $ 10,014,313 $ 10,318,214
Amount financed by: .
Deferred contributions (9,517,394) {9,823,742)
Bank loan (144,293) (165,173)
Line of credit {148,645) (173,594)
$ 203,981 3 165,705
12. Internally restricted fund:
2010 2009
To be expended only with the approval of the Member
of the Corporation $ 506,949 $ 481,741
‘Other internal projects 38,209 38,603
$ 545,158 $ 520,344
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FOYER VALADE INC.

DRAFT Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

13.

14.

Related party transactions:
Foundation:

An amount of $10,000 (2009 - $10,000} was funded by Les Amis de Vatade Inc., a corporation with
the same Member of the Corporation. In fiscal 2010 and 2009, these amounts were used to repay
bank indebtedness. ' :

Shared and contributed services:

The Corporation and Centre Taché Centre, a corporation with the same Board of Directors and
Member of the Corporation, have an agreement to share the cost of specific employee services
based on the time spent on each entity. The Corporation provided services to Centre Taché
Centre in the amount of $191,996 (2009 - $210,629). The Corporation purchased services from
Centre Taché Centre in the amount of $241,578 (2009 - $238,893) which is included in salaries
and wages.

In 2010, 'in addition to these shared services, Cenfre Taché Centre contributed services to the
Corporation in the amount of nil (2009 - $70,846) free of charge.

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange
amount which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

Employee pension pian:

Buring the year, the Corporation contributed $352,110 (2009 - $317,043) on behalf of its
employees. Eligible employees of the Corporation are members of the Healthcare Employees
Pension Plan - Manitoba, a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. As individual entities
within the plan are not able to identify their share of the underlying assets and liabilities, the
Corporation is accounting for the plan as a defined contribution plan. The cost of the plan is
recognized based on the contributions required to be made during each period.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan for funding purposes as at December 31, 2007
indicated a solvency deficiency of $61,050,000 that will be funded over five years commencing
calendar 2008 out of current contributions in each respective year. A change in underlying actuarial
assumptions could cause a change in the actuarial value of accrued pension benefits and required
service contributions. Contribution rates were increased on July 1, 2007 to 6.8 percent of
pensionable earnings up to the yearly maximum pensionable eamings limit (YMPE) and 8.4
percent on earnings in excess of the YMPE. No rate changes have been issued since.
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FOYER VALADE INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year'ended March 31, 2010 .

15.

16.

17.

Fair value:

The fair values of accounts receivable, receivable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority,
employee benefits recoverable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority, accounts payable,

~accrued liabilities, advances from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority and bank loan approximate

their carrying value due to their immediate or short-term nature.

The fair value of the future employee pre-retirement benefits recoverable from the Winnipeg
Regional Health Authority approximates its carrying value as the interest component is comparable
to current market rates. '

Leasehold estate:

The facility is situated on property leased from Despins Charities Inc., a corporation with the same
Member of the Corporation, at a rentai of $1 per annum. The sixly year lease expires June 30,
2046. The land is held as a leasehold estate registered under The Real Property Act in the
Winnipeg Land Titles Office. At the termination of the lease, the title to the land reverts to the
tessor. No economic value of this lease is reflected in the financial statements.

Comparative figures:

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the financial statement

~ presentation adopted in the current year.
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Schedule - Expenses

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

Page 16

2010 2009
Amortization $ 373,028 $ 370,256

Salaries and wages:

Resident services:

Nursing administration $ 159,521 3 262,791
Registered nurses 1,004,737 911,833
Licenced practical nurses 658,742 634,802
Heaith care and rehab aides 2,669,065 2,276,790
Purchased services 635,696 589,043
5,117,761 4,675,259
Activity 126,506 103,370
Dietary 594,234 551,697
General administration 472,393 411,922
Housekeeping 280,059 280,718
Laundry/linen 83,113 76,783
Medical administration fees 18,762 3,000
Occupational health 23,697 23,859
Occupational therapy 31,755 30,665
Pastoral care 64,870 62,606
Physiotherapy 20,238 40,181
Plant maintenance 140,165 146,089
Social work 41,942 38,505
Staff development 115,734 84,589
Volunteer coordinator 55,886 53,384
2,069,354 1,807,378
$ 7,187,115 $ 6,582,637

Empioyee benefits;
Canada pension plan $ 241,317 $ 220,065
Employment insurance 126,083 116,617
Healthcare employees pension plan 352,110 317,043
Other employee benefits 215,211 134,181
Employee pre-retirement benefits 84,383 45,554
Workers' compensation 119,156 88,446
1,138,260 921,906
Health and education tax 134,055 125,525
$ 1272315 $ 1,047,431

Page 1527



Page 17

FOYER VALADE INC.

Schedule - Expenses (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

2010 2009
Other supplies and expenses: :

Printing, stationery and office 3 12003 § 16,499

Photocopying 2,746 2,071

Housekeeping and cleaning ) 11,624 10,100

Paper and disposable 21,991 18,962

Laundry and linen 6,104 6,092

Staff wearing apparel 14,744 13,935

Dietary and cleaning _ 18,080 22,710

Purchased service - laundry 109,945 97,968

Other supplies and expenses 68,015 51,722

$ 265252 $ 240,059
Medical and surgical supplies: : _

General $ 47,688 $ 30,998

Gastronomy 441 555

Incontinence aids 55,783 54,870

$ 103822 % 86,423
Drugs:

Oxygen and other ' _ $ 8,638 $ 10,272
Food costs . $ 333480 $ 303,195
Utilities:

Natural gas $ 60,878 $ 100,366

Water _ 54,248 67,199

Electricity - 91,045 89,040

$ 206,171 $ 256,605
Telephone and sundry:

Telephone ' $ 16,882 $ 16,786

General expenses 14,744 16,805

Staff training : 3,389 3,670

Postage 3,021 4122

$ 38,036 $ 41,383
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Schedule - Expenses (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

Page 18

2010 2009
Travel:
Resident travel 3 5,615 $ 4,338
Resident transportation 31,12 24,506
Staff 3,785 3,505
$ 40,512 $ 32,349
Professional and other fees:
Service bureau fees $ 16,321 $ 14,202
Audit fees 10,642 17,913
Legal fees 2,431 3,605
Association membership fees 11,849 10,473
Other 26,967 22473
$ 68,210 $ 68,756
Advertising and public refations $ 8,555 $ 11,840
Insurance $ 24,528 $ 23,180
Equi'pment:
Service contracts $ 23,798 $ 18,374
Software contracts 27,286 33,758
Equipment maintenancce 17,789 31,460
Minor purchases 37,045 78,832
$ 105,918 $ 162,424
Buildings and grounds:
Building repairs $ 60,971 $ 68,797
Property taxes 155,039 184 567
$ 216,010 $ 251,364
Interest % 3,337 $ 6,893
Ancillary operations 3 2,143 $ 2073
Total expenses $ 10,257,070 $ 9,496,940
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KPMG LLP Telephene (204} 9571770

Chartered Accountants Fax (204} 957-0808
Suite 2000 - One Lembard Place Intermnet wanw kpmy.ca
Winnipeg MB R3B 0X3

Canada

AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Board of Directors of Fred Douglas Socisty inc.

We have audited the statement of financial position of Fred Douglas Personal Care Home, a Division
of Fred Douglas Society inc., as at March 31, 2010 and the statements of operations, changes in net
assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Division's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overalt financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Division as at March 31, 2010 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as
a whole. The current year's supplementary information included in the schedule is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

L 448
bt

Chartered Accountants

Winnipeg, Canada
May 14, 2010

KPRAG LLP is a Canadian | mited Labity partnersh'p and a membaer firm of the KEAMG
ratwork of independent member firms athated with KPMG Internationa), & Swiss cooperatwe
¥PWMG Canada providas services to KPMG LLF
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME

A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC.
Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

2010 2009
Assets
Current assets;
Cash (note 3) $ 69,074 $ 43,449
Accounts receivable (note 4) 485,080 468,851
Inventories and prepaid expenses 35,039 35,965
Employee benefits recoverable from Winnipeg
Regional Health Authority {note 12} 355,603 355,603
Short-term investments {note 5) 67,250 110,086
Receivable from related entities {(note 6) 85,000 85,000
1,107,046 1,008,954
Investments (note 5) 194,969 191,591
Receivable from related entities (note 6} 521,096 495 519
Future employee pre-relirement benefits recoverable from
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority [note 12(i)] 712,198 565,977
Capital assets (note 7} 4,217,784 4,341,339
$ 6,753,003 $ 6,693,380
Liabilities, Deferred Contributions and Net Assets
Current liabilities:
Bank indebtedness (nole 3) $ 216,429 $ 297,623
Accounis payable and accrued liabilities 880,263 775,888
Payable to Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 175,477 86,844
Payabfe to residents 17,013 20,809
Current portion of long-term debt (note 8) 102,145 277,112
1,491,327 1,458,276
Future employee pre-retirement benefits payable [note 12(i)] 685,216 538,995
Long-term debt (note 8) 285,075 299,850
Deferred contributions {note 9):
Donations 11,544 11,544
Expenses of future periods 11,275 10,564
Capital assets 3,192,096 3,283,666
Equipment reserve 1,170 22,543
Reserve for major repairs 101,676 150,833
3,317,761 3,479,250
Net assels:
Unrestricted 247,876 172,879
Invesled in capital asssts (hote 10) 725,838 744,130
973,714 917,009
Commitment {note 13}
$ 6,753,003 $ 6,693,380
See accompanying notes to financiai statements.
On behalf oftm-Baard:
Director Director
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME

A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC

Statement of Operations

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

2010 2009
Revenue:
Winnipeg Regional Heaith Authority - Operating $ 6,397,639 $ 5,759,626
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority - Adult Day Program 200,952 191,112
Resident charges 2,042,370 1,900,653
Participant charges - Aduit Day Program 32,951 32,212
Donations and grants 9,078 16,743
Amortization of deferred contributions (note 9) 286,285 261,615
8,969,275 8,161,961
Other income:
Ancillary 5,255 11,998
nvestment 12,992 17,910
Cafeteria 44,933 42 572
Other 27,687 21,262
90,867 93,742
Total revenue 9,060,142 8,255,703
Expenses:
Operating 8,566,673 7,924,594
Adult Day Program 235,583 225270
Amortization of capital assets 201,181 193,099
9,003,437 8,342,963
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses
befaore the undernoted 56,705 (87,260)
Future employee pre-retirement benefits [note 12(i)] (146,221) 11,212
Funding for employee pre-retirement benefits payable [note 12(i)) 146,221 {11,212)
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ 56,705 $  (87,2860)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME

A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC.
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

Invested
in capital 2010 2009
Unrestricted assets Total Total
Net assets, beginning of year $ 172,879 $ 744130 $ 917,009 $ 1,004,269
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenses 74,997 (18,292) 56,705 {87,260)
Net assets, end of year $ 247876 $ 725838 & 973,714 $ 917,009

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME

A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SCCIETY INC.
Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

2010 2009
Operating activities:
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ 56,705 5 (87,260}
Adjustments for:
Amortization of capital assets 201,181 193,099
Amortization of deferred contributions
related to capital assets {185,443} (177,361)
Change in the following:
Restricted cash {25,625} 68,167
Accounts receivable {26,229) (64,342)
Inventories and prepaid expenses 926 (5,547)
Future employee pre-retirement benefits recoverabie
from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (146,221) 11,212
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 114,375 (36,806)
Payable to Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 88,633 {189,446)
Payable to residents {3,798) 2,577
Future employee pre-retirement benefits payable 146,221 (11,212)
Net increase in deferred confributions related to donations,
expenses of future periods, and reserve for major repairs {48,546) (27,954)
172,181 (324,873)
Investing activities:
Purchase of capital assets (77,6286) (87,488)
Decraase (increase) in investments 39,458 (87,217)
Change in receivable from related entities:
Fred Douglas Heritage House Inc. 91,479 143,382
Other {117,056) 9,876
(63,745) (21,447)
Financing activities:
Deferred contributions received for capital assets
and equipment reserves 72,500 70,696
Repayment of iong-term debt (99,742) {107,778)
(27,242) (37,082)
Increase (decrease) in cash 81,194 {383,402)
Cash {bank indebtedness), beginning of year (297,623) 856,779
Bank indebiedness, end of year (note 3) $  {216,429) $ (297,623)
Supplementary cash flow information:
Interest paid 3 30,225 $ 39,698
Interest received 18,247 29,908

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME

A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC.
Notes to FFinancial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2010

General:

Fred Douglas Personai Care Home, a Division of Fred Douglas Society Inc. (the Division) operates a
136-bed personal care home and 90-space adult day program in Winnipeg, Manitoba. Fred Douglas
Society Inc. is an outreach ministry of the United Church of Canada.

The information contained in these financial statements is the property of Fred Douglas Society Inc,
and may not be combined, consolidated or in any way modified without the explicit written
authorization of the Chief Executive Officer of Fred Douglas Soclety Inc.

1. Significant accounting policies:
{a) Basis of presentation:

These financial statements include only the assets, liabilities, operations and net assets of
the Division. These financial statemenis have been prepared solely for the purposes of
management. As these financial statements have not been prepared for general purposes,
readers may require further information. Non-consolidated financial statements of Fred
Douglas Socisty Inc. have been prepared for distribution to the Board of Directors.

(b} Revenue recognition:

The Division follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions, which includes
government funding. '

The Division is funded primarily by the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (WRHA) in
accordance with a Service Purchase Agreement. Operating granis are recorded as revenue
in the period to which they relate. The Division's Service Purchase Agreement with the
WRHA will expire March 31, 2012.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Externally restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related
expenses are recognized. Contributions restricted for the purchase of capital assets are
deferred and amortized into revenue on a straight-line basis at a rate corresponding with the
amortization rate for the related capital assets.

Investment income includes interest income and realized and unrealized investment gains
and losses.
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME

A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

o

Operating deficits or surpluses:

In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Service Purchase Agreement, annual
operating deficits of the Division are the responsibility of Fred Douglas Society Inc. (the
“Society”). Any operating surpluses of the Division are subject to review by the WRHA. The
surplus the Society may retain is the greater of 50 percent of the Division's operating
surplus and 2 percent of the Division’s global budget as provided by the WRHA, in any fiscal
year. The remaining operating surplus in any fiscal year is repayable to the WRHA.

Financial instruments:

Initially, all financial assets and liabilities are recorded on the statement of financial position
at fair value. Subsequent measurement is determined by the classification of each financial
asset and lfability. Financial assets and liabilities held-for-trading are measured at fair value
with gains and iosses recognized in excess (deficiency} of revenue over expenses.
Financial instruments classified as held-to-maturity, loans and receivables and other
liabilittes are measured at amorlized cost. Available-for-sale financial instruments are
measured at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses recognized directly in net asset
balances.

The Division designates cash, bank indebtedness, short-term investments and investments
as held-for-trading; accounts receivable, employee benefits recoverable from Winnipeg
Regional Health Authority, receivable from related entities and future employee pre-
retirement benefits recoverable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority as loans and
receivables; and accounts payable and accrued liabilities, payable to Winnipeg Regional
Health Authority, payable to residents and long-term debt as other liabilities. The Division
has neither available-for-sale nor held-to-maturity instruments.

Fair value of investments is based on period end quoted market prices. The change in the
difference between the fair value and the cost of investments at the beginning and end of
each year is reflected in investment income in the statement of operations. Investments of
the Division are pooled with the investments from Fred Douglfas Apartments, a Division of
Fred Douglas Society inc. The income on the investments is allocated to each division in
proportion to the respective amounts invested by each division throughout the year.

Except for held-for-trading designated financial instruments, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets or liabilities are
accounted for as part of the respective asset or liability's carrying value at inception and
amortized over the expected life of the financial instrument using the effective interest
method. For held-for-trading financial assets and liabilities, transaction costs are recorded in
the statement of operations as incurred.
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME

A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):
{h) Income taxes:

Fred Douglas Society Inc. is exempt from tax under Section 149 of the Income Tax Act.

(i) Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial staterments requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounis of assets and iiabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of reventes and expenses during the year. Actual resuits could differ from those
estimates,

2, Changes in accounting policies:

Effective April 1, 2009, the Division adopted the CICA’s amendments to the 4400 Sections of
the CICA Handbook. These amendmenis affect the financial statement presentation and
disclosure requirements for not-for-profit organizations, Adoption of these recommendations
had no significant impact on the financial statements of the Division for the year ending March
31, 2010.

Effective April 1, 2009 the Division adopted the CICA’s amendments to Section 1000 of the
CICA Handbook. These amendments clarified the definitions and recognition criteria of assets,
liabilities and expenses. Adoption of these recommendations had no effect on the financial
statements of the Division for the year ending March 31, 2010.

3.  Cash (bank indebtedness):

2010 2009
Bank indebtedness - unrestricted $  {216,429) 5 (297,623)
Restricted cash 69,074 43,449

$ (147,355) & (254,174)

Restricted cash, along with restricted investments disclosed in note 5, represents cash held for
deferred contributions related to donations, expenses of future periods, equipment reserve and
reserve for major repairs as well as cash held in trust for residents.
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME

A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

3. Cash (bank indebtedness) (continued):

The Division has a demand revolving credit facility with a maximum limit of $500,000. The
operating credit line bears interest at prime rate. The facility is secured the same as disclosed in
note 8 on the demand term loan. At March 31, 2010, the Division has utilized $55,594 (2009 -

$118,200) of their facility.

4, Accounts receivable;

2010 2009
Accounts receivable $ 8,060 $ 8,458
Receivable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority:
Pre-retirement leave 166,381 121,794
MNU contract increases - 214,959
MGEU contract increases 337,461 -
Hours of care increase 100,017 182,967
Group heaith benefit funding 51,155 -
Resident charges {170,999) {77.418)
Other 13,005 18,091
$ 495,080 $ 468,851
5, Investments:
2010 2009
Average Fair Average Fair
effective yield value sffective yield value
Government invesiment
certificates 4.25% $ 241,314 4.43% $ 239488
Money market fund 20,906 62,189
262,219 301,677
Current portion, shown as short-term
invesiments 67,250 110,086
$ 194,969 $ 191,591

The government investment certificates mature during fiscal years 2011 to 2015.
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME

A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC.

Notes to Financial Statements {continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

5. Investments {continued):

The alfocation of investments between unrestricted and restricted is as follows;

2010 2009
Unrastricted investments $ 188,615 $ 128,733
Restricted investments 73,604 172,944

$ 262219 $ 301677

6. Receivable from related entities:

The receivable from related entities is as follows:

2010 2009
Fred Douglas Heritage House Inc.:
Advances receivable, net of allowance of $23,371
(2009 - $78,743) $ 81,031 $ 86,461
Demand debenture receivable 177,370 263,419
Fred Douglas Foundation, Inc. 21,794 14,459
fred Douglas Apartments 18,5156 9,983
Fred Douglas Residence/Courts 294,721 206,197
Fred Douglas Society Inc. 12,665 ~
606,096 580,519
Current portion of demand debenture receivable 85,000 85,000

$ 521,096 $ 495519

Fred Douglas Heritage House Inc. is an organization controlled by Fred Douglas Society Inc.
The advances receivable from Fred Douglas Heritage House Inc. bear interest at prime rate
and are repayable out of available working capital. The advances are secured by the same
security as disclosed for the demand debenture receivable. Interest charged on the advances
during the year was $2,545 (2009 - $8,141).

The demand debenture receivable from Fred Douglas Heritage House inc. is due on demand,
bears interest at prime rate, requires monthly principal and interest payments of $7,600 and is
secured by a second morigage on the leasehold interests of Fred Douglas Heritage House Inc.
During the year, the Division charged interest of $5,150 (2009 - $13,881) on the demand
debenture receivable. The Division has waived its right to demand repayment of the advances
receivable and $92,370 of the demand debenture receivable prior to April 1, 2011.
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME

A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC.

Notes (o Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

6. Receivable from related entities (continued):

Fred Douglas Foundation, Inc. is an organization over which Fred Douglas Society Inc.
exercises significant influence. Fred Douglas Apartments and Fred Douglas Residence/Courts
are divisions of Fred Douglas Society Inc. The receivables from these entities are non-interest

bearing, with no fixed terms of repayment and are unsecured.

7. Capital assets:

2010 2009
Accumulated Net book Net book
Cost “amortization value value
Land $ 17,137 $ - $ 17,137 $ 17,137
Buildings 9,535,875 5,626,731 3,908,944 4,051,449
Furniture and equipment 1,673,156 1,381,453 291,703 272,753
$ 11,225,968 $ 7.008,184 $ 4,217,784 $ 4,341,339
8. Long-term debt:
2010 2009
7.75% mortgage, Canada Mortgage and Housing
Corporation, payable $3,085 monthly including
principal and interest, secured by a mortgage
against the property located at 1275 Burrows
Avenue, maturing October 1, 2022 $ 299,850 $ 313,543
Royal Bank of Canada demand term loan, interest
at bank prime, payable $7,600 monthly including
principal and interest, maturing September 30,
2010 177,370 263,419
477,220 576,962
Current portion of long-term debt 192,145 277,112
$ 285,075 $ 299850

The demand term loan is secured by a general security agreement and a second charge
collateral mortgage against the property located at 1275 Burrows Avenue.
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME

A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC.

Notes to Financial Statements {continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

8. Long-term debt (continued):

Principal due over the next five years and thereafter is as follows:;

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
Thereafter

$ 192,145

15,942
17,201
18,550
20,027
213,355

9. Deferred contributions:

{a) Donations:

Deferred contributions related to donations represent restricted funding received for specific

improvement projects and enhancements fo resident living.

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year ] 11,544 $ 7,516
Contributions received - 7,755
Amounts recognized as revenue in the year - (3,727)
Balance, end of year $ 11,544 $ 11,544

(b) Expenses of future periods:

Deferred contributions related 1o expenses of future periods represent restricted funding
received for future expenses related to insurance deductibles and claims.

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 10,564 3 9,320
Contributions received 1,512 1,488
Amounts recognized as revenue in the year (801) {244)
Balance, end of year $ 11,275 3 10,564
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME

A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC.

Notes to Financial Statements {continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

9.  Deferred contributions (continued):
{c} Capital assets:

Deferred contributions refated to capital assets represent the unamortized amount of grants
and other contributions received for the purchase of capital assets.

2010 2009

Balance, beginning of year $ 3,283,666 $ 3,360,843
Transfer from deferred contributions - equipment

reserve 45,173 53,288

Contributions received 48,700 46,896

Amounts amortized to revenue in the year {185,443) (177,361)

Balance, end of year $ 3,192,096 $ 3,283,666

{(d) Equipment reserve:

Deferred contributions related to equipment reserve represent unspent contributions for the
future purchase of capital assets. When the capital assets are purchased, an equivalent
amount is transferred from this reserve to the deferred contributions related to capital

assels.

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 22,543 $ 52,031
Contributions received 23,800 23,800
Transfer to deferred contributions - capital assets (45,173) (53,288)
Balance, end of year $ 1,170 $ 22,543

{e) Reserve for major repairs:

Deferred contributions related to reserve for major repairs represent restricted funding
received for the future purchase of equipment replacement and major repairs.

2010 2008
Balance, beginning of year $ 150,933 $ 184,159
Contributions received 50,784 50,784
Amounts amortized to revenue in the year (100,041) {84,010)
Balance, end of year $ 101,876 $ 150,833
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME

A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

10. Invested in capital assets:

invested in capital assets is calculated as follows:

2010 2009

Capital assets $ 4,217,784 $ 4,341,339
Deferred contributions (3,192,096) (3,283,666)
Long-term debt {299,850) (313,543)
$ 725,838 $ 744130

11.  Related party transactions:

During the year, the Division received $2,000 (2009 - $8,377) in funding for improvements and
resident services, and nil (2009 - $5,995) in funding for capital assets from Fred Douglas

Foundation, inc.

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange
amount which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

12.  Fufure employee benefits and employee benefits:

(i) The Division maintains an employee pre-retirement benefit plan for substantially all of its

employees. The plan provides benefit payments to eligible retirees based on length of
service and on career earnings from initial eligibility.

At March 31, 2010, based on an actuarial estimate, the pre-retirement benefit plan's
obligations are estimated to be approximately $685,216 (2009 - $538,995) for which the
Division has provided an accrued future employee pre-retirement benefits liability on the
statement of financial position.

The amount of funding which will be provided by the WRHA for pre-retirement benefits was
initially determined based on the pre-refirement liability at March 31, 2004, and was
recorded as a long-term receivable on the statement of financial position. The recoverable
has been adjusted, based on direction from WRHA, to include the incremental increases or
decreases in the related liability for fiscal years 2007-2010, which includes an interest
component. The increase recorded in fiscal 2010 was $146,221 (2009 - decrease of
$11,212) and is recorded in the statement of operations.

The future employee pre-retirement benefits recoverable from WRHA at March 31, 2010
aggregates $712,198 (2009 - $565,977) and has no specified terms of repayment.
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME

A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

12.  Future employee benefits and employee benefits (continued):

(i)

Prior to 2004, Manitoba Health funded 100 percent of actual pre-retirement benefits paid
over and above the operating grant provided to the Division. Beginning April 1, 2005, the
WRHA established a policy of providing additional funding for approximately 70 percent of
actual pre-retirement benefits paid. Actual additional funding provided by WRHA for 2010
was 100 percent (2009 - 65.1 percent) of actual pre-retirement benefits paid. The shortfall
for 2010 of nil {2009 - $8,383) was paid from funding received for operations,

In summary, information about the Division’s employee pre-retirement benefit plan is as
follows:

2010 2009
Net benefit cost expensed in statement of operations:
Benefits paid $ 34,587 $ 24,020
Future employee pre-retirement benefits 146,221 (11,212}
WRHA additional funding for pre-retirement benefits
paid 34,587 15,637
WRHA funding for change in pre-retirement benefits
payable 146,221 {(11,212)
Future employee pre-retirement benefits payable 685,216 538,995

All eligible employees of the Division are members of the Healthcare Employees Pension
Plan - Manitoba, a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. As individual entities within
the plan are not able to identify their share of the underlying assets and liabilities, the
Division is accounting for the plan as a defined contribution plan. The cost of the plan is
recognized based on the contributions required to be made during each period.

During the year, the Division contributed $366,587 (2009 - $339,894) on behalf of its
employees. The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan as at December 31, 2007
indicated a solvency deficiency of $61,050,000 that wili be funded over five years
commencing calendar 2008 out of current contributions in each respective year. A change
in underlying actuarial assumptions could cause a change in the actuarial value of accrued
pension benefils and required service contributions. Confribution rates are 6.8 percent of
pensionable earnings up to the yearly maximum pensionable earnings limit (YMPE) and 8.4
percent on earnings in excess of the YMPE. No rates changes have been issued during
fiscal 2010 or 2008.

Page 1545




FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME

A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

12,

13.

14.

Future employee benefits and employee benefits {continued):

(i) The cost of the Division’s vacation benefits is accrued when the benefits are earned by the
employees and is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the statement of
financial position. The vacation benefits liability at March 31, 2010 is $458,952 (2009 -
$426,345).

The funding received in each subsequent fiscal year from the Winnipeg Regional Health
Authority includes the employee benefits recoverable of $355,603 as included on the
statement of financial position. The employee benefits recoverable from Winnipeg Regional
Health Authorily is maintained at the value of the vacation benefits liability at March 31,
2004,

Commitment:

On April 1, 2009, the Division entered into a service purchase agreement for transportation
service for the aduit day program for a three year period, with an option to extend for one
additional year. The annual service costs under this agreement are approximately $100,000.

Fair value:

The fair value of accounts receivable, employee benefits recoverable from Winnipeg Regional
Health Authority, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, payable to Winnipeg Regional Health
Authority and payabile to residents approximate their carrying value due to the short term nature
of these instruments.

The fair value of long-term debt is approximately $507,000 (2009 - $562,000) compared o its
carrying value of $477,220 (2009 - $576,962). Fair value of long-term debt has been determined
using future payments of principal and interest of the actual outstanding long-term debt
discounted at current interest rates available to the Division.

The fair value of the future employee pre-retirement benefits recoverable from Winnipeg
Regional Health Authority approximates its carrying value as the interest component is

comparable to current market rates.

The fair value of the receivable from related entities is not practical to determine due to its
underlying terms and conditions.
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FRED DOUGIL.AS PERSONAL CARE HOME

A DIVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC.

Schedule - Operating Expenses

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

2010 2009
Nursing services:
Medical supplies.and services 48,407 41,079
Resident transportation 27,048 24,657
Incontinence supplies 56,020 55,357
Nursing administration 16,385 2,952
147,860 124,045
Resident services:
Activities 4,584 6,917
Other 13,289 14,084
17,873 21,001
General administration:
Advertising 3,408 7,011
Audit and professional fees 49,060 22618
Bad debt {recovery) (65,372) 1,073
Bank charges and interest 2,628 2,675
Bonding and insurance 5,063 7,128
Data processing and communications 52 117 41,395
Delivery and courier 1,880 1,891
Equipment iease and maintenance 20,250 25,112
Meetings and miscellaneous 10,307 12,417
Labor refations 545 2,324
Licenses and membership fees 8,770 5,696
Postage 4,065 4,431
Printing, stationery and office supplies 13,045 11,760
Staff and resident events and appreciation 16,003 14,092
Travel 1,453 1,569
132,122 161,092
Dietary:
Food 277,303 278,945
Glassware and cutlery 2,622 4,038
Supplies 20,131 20,441
299,956 303,424
Laundry:
Supplies 7,034 5,841
Linen:
Supplies and service 105,384 92,013
Housekeeping:
Supplies 27,850 22,839
Carried forward 738,079 730,255
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FRED DOUGLAS PERSONAL CARE HOME

A DWVISION OF FRED DOUGLAS SOCIETY INC.

Schedule - Operating Expenses {continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

2010 2009
Brought forward $ 738,079 $ 730,255
Physical plant.
Operations:
Electricity 94,408 93,177
Natural gas 87,063 109,779
Insurance 10,680 10,408
Taxes 49,760 55,924
Water 64,950 62,698
Maintenance and repairs:
Buildings and grotnds 192,987 140,167
Equipment 33,232 37,979
Other 5,896 5,371
Bank loans interest 5,150 13,881
Long-term debt interest 23,357 24,366
567,483 553,748
Salaries:
Nursing 4,302,961 3,921,887
Administration 421,047 438,837
Resident services 229,377 231,374
Dietary 563,574 503,136
Support services 469,655 440,683
Employee henefits 1,239,214 1,083,756
Accrued vacation 35,283 20,918
7,261,111 6,640,591
Total operating expenses $ 8,566,673 $ 7,924,594
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STEFANSON LEE ROMANIUK Page 1

CHARTERED ACCOUNMTANTS

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Middlechurch Home of Winnipeg Inc.

We have audited the non-consolidated statement of financial position of Middlechurch Home
of Winnipeg Inc. as at March 31, 2010 and the non-consolidated statements of operations,
changes in net assets and cash fiows for the year then ended. These financial statements
are the responsibility of Middlechurch Home's management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our auditin accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit aiso includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

In our. opinion, these non-consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Middlechurch Home of Winnipeg Inc. as at March 31, 2010
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Winnipeg, Manitoba

May 7, 2010 Chartered Accountants
*Services provided by:
Kenneth John Lee Chartered Accountant Inc.
Brent R. Stefanson Chartered Accountant Inc.
Phillip A. Romaniuk Chartered Accountant Inc. 1151 PORTAGE AVENUE, WINNIPEG, MANITOBA R3G0S9 TELEPHONE 204/775-8975 FAX 783-4926

Page 1645



MIDDLECHURCH HOME OF WINNIPEG INC.

Non-Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
March 31, 2010

Page 2

2010 2009
Assets
Cash $ 461,516 475,806
Restricted cash (note 3) 281,671 252,791
Accounts receivable 17,160 26,888
Receivable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (note 4) 760,253 528,381
Vacation pay recoverable (note 13) 487,714 487,714
Prepaid expenses 51,232 52,033
Inventory 45,627 41,738
Current portion of long-term receivables (note 5) 59,220 59,220
Due from Residents’ Trust Fund 3,578 -
2,167,971 1,924,571
Long-term receivables (note 5) 78,541 137,761
Employee future pre-retirement behefits recoverable (note 12) 795,441 712,797
Property and equipment (note 6) 6,605,095 -~ 6,932,257
$ 9,547,048 9,707,386
Liabilities, Deferred Contributions and Net Assets
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 695,540 679,146
Advances payable (note 8) 265,413 211,220
Vacation payable (note 13) 761,541 743,388
Due to Residents’ Trust Fund - 2,262
Current portion of long-term debt (note 9) 84,348 82,948
1,806,842 1,718,964
Long-term debt (note 9) 328,853 413,401
Employee future pre-retirement benefits payable (note 12) 818,592 735,948
Deferred contributions (note 10)
Expenses for future periods 31,165 19,473
Property and equipment 5,152,438 5,437,782
8,137,890 8,325,568
Net assets
Invested in property and equipment 1,094,249 1,226,967
Internally restricted
Donation 242,220 208,113
Auxiliary 5,848 9,731
Unrestricted 66,841 (62,993)
1,409,158 1,381,818
$ 9,547,048 9,707,386

APPROVED BY THE BOARD:

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR
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Page 3

MIDDLECHURCH HOME OF WINNIPEG INC.

Non-Consolidated Statement of Operations

for the zear ended March 31, 2010

Internaily
Invested in D&ittr___iﬂ_@_'d 2010 2008
Property and onation an
Equipment Auxiliary Unrestricted Total Total
Revenue
Residential charges $ - - - 3,287,968 3,287,968 3,200,000
Adult Day Program recoveries - - 34,327 34,327 32,566
- - 3,322,295 3,322,295 3,232,566
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority
Baseline funding 23,928 - 9,205,175 9,229,103 8,492,205
Community service program - - 46,585 46,585 46,585
Adult Day Program - - 260,382 260,382 198,000
23,928 - 9,512,142 9,536,070 - 8,736,790
Recoveries and other revenue - - 285,766 285,766 294,288
Amortization of deferred contributions related
to property and equipment (note 10) 464,747 - - 464,747 500,914
Interest income - 661 2,188 2,849 26,828
Donation revenue - 105,640 - 105,640 103,248
Auxiliary donations and other revenue - 5129 - 5,129 6413
Total revenue ' 488,675 111,430 13,122,391 13,722,496 12,901,047
Total expenses (Schedule 1) 637,677 69,722 12,920,916 13,628,315 12,791,420
Excess (Deficiency) of revenue over expenses,
before the undernoted (149,002) 41,708 201,475 94,181 109,627
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority employee
future pre-retirement benefits recoverable - - 82,644 82,644 5,186
Employee future pre-retirement benefits expense - - (82.,644) (82,644) (5,186)

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses $  (149,002) 41,708 201,475 94,181 109,627
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MIDDLECHURCH HOME OF WINNIPEG INC.

Non-Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets
for te ear ended Marc 31, 2010 _

Invested in

_P_g‘)ﬂ_ny—gw? gmea:td Internally Restricted  Unrestricted % ]2'_%
Donation Auxiliary

Balance, beginning of year $ 1,226,967 208,113 9,731 (62,993) 1,381,818 1,272,191
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses (149,002) 38,337 3,371 201,475 94,181 109,627
Transfer of funds for reserve repayment - 4,800 - (4,800) - -
Transfer of funds for purchase of equipment 16,284 (9,030) (7,254) - - -
Amount repayable to the Winnipeg Regional Health

Authority (note 2) - - - (66,841)  (66,841) -
Balance, end of year $ 1,094,249 242220 5,848 66,841 1,409‘,158 1,381,818
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MIDDLECHURCH HOME OF WINNIPEG INC.

Non-Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year endeMrc ,210

2010 2009
Cash from operating activities
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 94,181 108,627
Adjustments for non-cash items
Amortization of capital assetfs 637,677 624,560
Amortization of deferred contributions (464,747) (500,914)

267,111 233,273

Increase in deferred contributions relating to expenses for future

periods, net 11,692 (3,977)

Change in the following . .
Accounts receivable : 8,728 (8,738)
Receivable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (231,872) (208,719)
Prepaid expenses 800 (16,559)
Inventory , (3,889) (1,108)
Restricted cash (28,880) 68,270
Employee future pre-retirement benefits recoverable (82,644) (5,186)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 16,394 77,661
Advances payable 54,193 (212,030)
Vacation payable 18,153 85,517
Due to residents’ trust fund (2,262) 2,262
Due from residents’ trust fund (3,578) 831
Employee future pre-retirement benefits payable 82,644 5,186

107,580 16,782

Financing and investing activities

Repayments on long-term debt (83,148) (89,142)
Change in long-term receivables 58,220 76,533
Contributions received related to property and equipment 175,403 101,558
Purchase of property and equipment (210,514) (219,833)
Repayment of surplus (66,841) -

(121,880) (140,884)

Decrease in cash (14,290) (124,102)
Cash position, beginning of year 475,806 598,808
Cash position, end of year $ 461516 475,806
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MIDDLECHURCH HOME OF WINNIPEG INC.

Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

1.

Nature of Operations:

Middlechurch Home of Winnipeg Inc. (Middlechurch Home) was incorporated, without share
capital, under the laws of Manitoba on April 29, 1884. Middlechurch Home provides residential care
services and as a registered charity, under the Income Tax Act, is exempt from income taxes.

Significant accounting policies:

a) Basis of presentation:
Middlechurch on the Red Inc.
Middlechurch Home has controlling interest in Middlechurch on the Red Inc., (MORI) by
virtue of its ability to appoint three of the five members of it's Board of Directors and
Middlechurch Home is the sponsor of MORI in operating a life-lease apartment complex.
MORI has not been consolidated in Middiechurch Home’s financial statements. Financial

statements of MORI! are available upon request. A financial summary at March 31, 2010
and 2009 and for the years then ended are as follows:

2010 009
Financial position
Total assets $ 4,732,787 4,385,978
Total liabilities $ 4,457,903 4,132,926
Total net assets 274,884 253,053

$ 4,732,787 4385979

Results of operations:

Total revenue $ 331,102 330,510
Total expenses 309,270 297,928
Excess of revenue over expense $ 21,832 32,582
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MIDDLECHURCH HOME OF WINNIPEG INC.

Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

Mrc 1, 2010

Revenue recognition:

Middlechurch Home follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions, which
include donations and government grants.

Middiechurch Home is funded primarily by the Province of Manitoba in accordance with
budget arrangements established by the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (WRHA).
Operating grants are recorded as revenue in the period to which they relate. Middlechurch
Home's Service Purchase Agreement with the WRHA continues in effect until March 31,
2012.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasenably assured.

Externally restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related
expenses are recognized. Contributions restricted for the purchase of property and
equipment are deferred and amortized into revenue at a rate corresponding with the
amortization rate for the related property and equipment.

Restricted investment income is recognized as revenue in the year in which the related
expenses are recognized. Unrestricted investmentincomeis recognized as revenue when
earned. ‘

Revenue from residential and other services is recognized when the services are provided
or the goods are sold.

Inventory

Inventory, which consists mainly of medical supplies, is valued at cost, on a first-in first-out
basis.

Property and equipment

Purchased property and equipment are recorded at cost. Contributed property and
equipment are recorded at fair value at the date of contribution. Repairs and maintenance
costs are charged to expense. Betterments which extend the estimated life of an asset are
capitalized. When property and equipment no longer contributes to Middlechurch Home's
ability to provide services, its carrying amount is written-down to its residual vajue.

Prop-erty and equipment are amortized on a straight-line basis using the foilowing annual
rates:

Land improvements 20 years
Buildings 30, 40 and 50 years
Computer equipment and

furniture and equipment 5-10 years
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Page 8

MIDDLECHURCH HOME OF WINNIPEG INC.

Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2010

e)

Operating surplus or deficit

In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Service Purchase Agreement, annual
operating deficits are the responsibility of Middlechurch Home. Middlechurch Home may
retain 50% of the operating surplus to a maximum of 1% of the current year operating
expenditures as provided by the WRHA. The remaining operating surplus is repayable to
the WRHA.

Contributed services

A substantial number of volunteers contribute a significant amount of their time each year.
Because of the difficulty of determining the fair value, contributed services are not
recognized in the financial statements.

Employee future pre-retirement benefits

The cost of Middlechurch Home's employee future pre-retirement benefits are accrued as
earned based on an actuarial estimation. The estimation of the employee future pre-
retirement benefits has been performed using the projected unit credit service pro-rated on
service actuarial cost method.

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring Middlechurch Home’s
employee future pre-retirement benefits payable include mortality and withdrawal rates, a
discount rate of 4.9% (2008 - 6.7%), a rate of salary increase of 4.0% (2009 - 3.5%), plus
an age-related merit/promotion scale with no provision for disability.

Internally restricted net assets:

Internally restricted net assets represents transactions and contributions related to
donations and auxiliary activities. All expenditures require approval of the Board of
Directors.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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MIDDLECHURCH HOME OF WINNIPEG INC.

Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
ac 31,2010

Page 9

3. Restricted cash: 2010 2009
Restricted for capital asset replacement $ 16,531 31,857
Restricted for expenses for future periods 12,791 3,090
Internally restricted

Donation 246,501 208,113
Auxiliary 5,848 9,731
$ 281671 252,791

4, Receivable from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority: 2010 2009

Receivable relating to
Employee retirement benefits $ 250,183 172,317
Salaries and other 766,606 609,171
1,016,789 781,488

Payable relating to-

Resident charges 189,695 253,107
Surplus repayment 66.841 -
$ 760,253 528.381

5. Long-term receivables: 2010 2009

Long-term receivables from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority
Fire sprinkler system $ 97,504 117,004
Roof resurfacing 40,257 79,977
137,761 196,981
Current portion 58,220 59,220
$ 78,541 137.761
6. Property and equipment: 2010 2009
Accumulated
Cost Amortization Net Net
Land $ 1 - 1 1
Land improvements
Courtyard 593,617 494,727 98,890 128,750
Personal Care Home 819,884 737,985 81,999 122,998
Buildings
Personal Care Home 13,379,573 7,903,752 5,475,821 5,832,512
Sewage Treatment Plant 663,575 287,018 376,557 398,707
Garage 50,612 22,774 27,838 30,368
Computer equipment and furniture 3,631,594 3,187,605 443,989 418,921
$19,138,956 12,633,861 6,505,095 6,832,257
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MIDDLECHURCH HOME OF WINNIPEG INC.

Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2010
L .

7. Operating line of credit:

Middlechurch Home has a demand operating line of credit with a maximum limit of $350,000 and
bears interest at bank prime rate. The security on the operating line of credit is the same as the
security disclosed in note 9 on the term loans with the Royal Bank of Canada. The operating line
of credit was not utilized at March 31, 2010 and 2009.

8. Advances payable:

Advances payable from the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and have no fixed terms of repayment. g

9. Long-term debt: 2010 2009
Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation, mortgage payable with
monthly payments of $3,360 including interest at 5.75%, maturing in
2018 $ 275,440 299,368

Royal Bank of Canada term loan, with monthly payments of $1,625
including interest at prime less 0.50%, maturing December 2013,
supported by a letter of comfort from WRHA 97,504 117,004

Royal Bank of Canada term loan, with monthly payments of $3,310
plus interest at prime less 0.50%, maturing March 2011, supported by

a letter of comfort from WHRA 40,257 79,977
413,201 496,349
Current portion 84,348 82,948

$ 328853 413401

Principal payments due in each of the next five years and thereafter are approximately as follows:

2011 $ 84,348
2012 46,649
2013 47,683
2014 49,347
2015 51,113
2016 and thereafter 134,061
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MIDDLECHURCH HOME OF WINNIPEG INC.

Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31,2010

10.

11.

Deferred contributions:
Expenses for future periods

Deferred contributions related to expenses for future periods represent unspent externally restricted
grants for authorized repairs and maintenance.

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 19,473 23,450
Additional confributions received 16,996 11,695
Less amount transferred to deferred contributions - property and
equipment (5,304) (15.672)

31,165 198,473

Property and equipment

Deferred contributions related to property and equipment represent the unspent and unamortized
amount of donations and grants received for the purchase of property and equipment. The balance
of unamortized capital contributions related to property and equipment consists of the following:

Unamortized capital contributions used to purchase property and

equipment $ 5,135,406 5,405,922

Unspent contributions ' 17.032 31.860
$ 5152438 5,437,782

Related party transactions:

During the year, Middlechurch Home had the following transactions with Middlechurch on the Red,
Inc., an organization controlled by Middlechurch Home:

2010 2009
Revenues
Administration fees $ - 8,000
Water charges 5,040 4,800
Insurance fees 4,411 4,245
Maintenance 8,338 8,288

Middlechurch Home exercises significant influence over The Middlechurch Home of Winnipeg
Foundation Inc. (the Foundation) by virtue of its ability to appoint some of the Foundation’s Board
of Directors. The Foundation was established to raise funds for the use of Middiechurch Home.
The Foundation is incorporated under the Canada Corporations Act and is a registered charity
under the Income Tax Act. Net resources of the Foundation amount to $38,673 (2009 - $21,304)
and are available, at the discretion of the Foundation’s Board of Directors, to Middlechurch Home.
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MIDDLECHURCH HOME OF WINNIPEG INC.

Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

12.

13.

14,

15.

March 31,210

Employee benefits:

Middlechurch Home maintains an employee pre-retirement benefit plan for substantially all of its
employees. The amount of funding which will be provided by the WRHA for pre-retirement benefits
was initially based on the pre-retirement liability at March 31, 2004, and was recorded as a long-
term receivable. As at March 31, 2010, the employee future pre-retirement benefits recoverabie
from WRHA aggregates $795,441 (2009 - $712,797) and has no specified payment terms.

All eligible employees of Middlechurch Home are members of the Healthcare employees Pension
Plan - Manitoba, a multi-employer defined pension plan. As individual entities within the plan are
not able to identify their share of the underlying assets and liabilities, Middlechurch Home is
accounting for the plan as a defined contribution plan. During the year, Middlechurch Home
contributed $521,616 (2009 - $493,767) on behalf-of its employees. The most recent actuarial
valuation of the plan as at December 31, 2007 indicated that the plan was fully funded. A change
in the underlying actuarial assumptions could cause a change in the actuarial value of accrued
pension benefits and required service contributions.

Vacation pay:

The cost of Middlechurch Home's vacation benefits is accrued when the benefits are earned by
employees. The vacation liability at March 31, 2010 is $761,541 (2009 - $743,388). The WRHA
has agreed to fund the vacation payable that existed at March 31, 2004 of $487,714.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities:

The carrying value of the long-term receivable from Winnipeg Regional Health authority
approximates its fair value as the terms and conditions of the receivable are comparable to current
market terms and conditions for similar items.

The fair value of long-term debt approximates its carrying value. Fair value of the iong-term debt
has been determined using future payments of principal and interest of the actual outstanding long-
term debt discounted at current interest rates available to Middlechurch Home.

The fair value of the employee future pre-retirement benefits recoverable from Winnipeg Regional
Health authority and employee future pre-retirement benefits payable approximate their carrying
value as the interest component is comparable to current market rates.

The fair value of the Middlechurch Home's other financial assets and financial liabilities
approximates carrying value due to their short term to maturity.

Comparative figures:

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with presentation adopted in the
current year.
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MIDDLECHURCH HOME OF WINNIPEG INC.

Schedule 1 - Schedule of Expenses
fo the year ened March 31, 2010

Internaily
Invested in  Restricted -
roperty and Donation and 2010 2009
Eérg_p_ﬁy_gl;ia Em:nntd Auxiliary  Unrestricted Total @
Expenses
Salaries $ - 41,208 8,808,111 8,849,319 8,593,057
Employee benefits - - 1,603,625 1,603,625 1,488,173
Manitoba Payroll tax - - 186,892 186,892 178,251
Medical supplies - - 27,331 27,331 26,395
Incontinent supplies ) - - 100,615 100,615 102,972
Purchased services - - 107,774 107,774 119,491
Other supplies and expenses - -~ 1,293,182 1,293,182 1,040,300
Shop and tavern - - 17,715 17,715 16,803
Professional fees - - 15,562 15,562 25,267
Plant maintenance - - 400,493 400,493 233,683
Cafeteria - - 43,486 43,486 48,972
Miscellaneous

Donation - 26,757 - 26,757 17,064
Auxiliary - 1,757 - 1,757 8,868
Amortization of property and equipment 637,677 - - 637,677 624,560
Interest on long-term debt - - 21,423 21,423 29,480
637,677 69,722 12,626,209 13,333,608 12,553,336

Adult Day Program
Salaries 83,669 83,669 102,100
Employee benefits 16,697 16,697 18,455
Manitoba Payroll Tax 1,774 1,774 2,198
Food 22,744 22,744 26,482
Transportation 133,368 133,368 70,082
Other supplies 36,455 36,455 18,767
- - 294,707 294,707 238,084
Total expenses $ 637677 69,722 12,920,916 13,628,315 12,791,420
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

500 - FIVE DONALD STREET
WINNIPEG, MANITOBA
R3L 2T4

TEL: (204) 284-7060
FAX: (204) 284-7105

Auditors’ Report

To the Directors of
Nine Circles Community Heaith Centre inc.

We have audited the statement of financial position of Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc. as at
March 31, 2010 and the statements of financiai activities and changes in fund balances for the year then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Organization's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Except as explained in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

in common with many charitable organizations, Nine Circles Community Heaith Centre Inc. derives part of
its revenues from the generai public in the form of contributions and fundraising the completeness of
which is not susceptible of satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly, our verification of these revenues
was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of the Organization and we were not able to determine
whether any adjustments might be necessary to contributions and fundraising, excess of revenues over
expenses, current assets and changes in fund balances.

In our opinion, except as explained above and the effect of adjustments, if any, which we might have
determined to be necessary had we been able to satisfy ourselves concerning the completeness of those
revenues referred to in the preceding paragraph, these financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Organization as at March 31, 2010 and the results of its operations,
the changes in its fund balances and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian

generally accepted accounting principles.
Winnipeg, Canada / é s

May 14, 2010 Chartered Accountants
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Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.
Statement of Financial Activities

Year Ended March 31 2010 2009
Ed
Operating Capital Mousseau
Fund Fund Fund Total Total
Revenues
Winnipeg Regional
Health Authority $3,569,422 $ -5 - $3,569,422 $2,540,166
AIDS Community
Action Program 221,999 - - 221,999 303,000
Grants 167,123 - - 167,123 255,681
Interest income 23,397 - 397 23,794 35,409
Donations 12,132 - - 12,132 13,230
Other 8,000 - - 8,000 1,233
Amortization of
deferred contributions - 12,015 - 12,015 29,689
4,002,073 12,015 397 _4,014,485 _3.178.408
Expenses
Operating Fund
(Page 11) 3,724,527 - - 3,724,527 2,981,041
Amortization - 14,534 - 14,534 32,467
Interest on capital lease - 4861 - 4.861 888

3.724 527 19,395

3,743,922 _ 3014396

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenses
before under noted items 277,546 (7,380) 397 270,563 164,012

Pre-retirement
leave (Note 10)
Recovery (expense) 30,242 -
Current year (increase)
reduction of obligation (33,984) -

30,242 (5,034)

(33,984) 6,820

Excess (deficiency) of

revenues over expenses § 273804 $ (7,380) $ 397 $ 266,821 $ 165798

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.
Statement of Changes in Fund Balances

March 31 2010 2009
Invested Ed
Unrestricted  in Capital Mousseau
Funds Assets Fund Total Total
Fund balance, beginning
of year $ 482490 % 5,346 $ 8092 $ 495928 $ 330,130
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenses 273,804 (7,380) 397 266,821 165,798
Transfer to Capital Fund (16.077) 16,077 - - -

Fund balance, end of year $ 740217 $§ 14,043 $ 8489 $ 762,749 $ 4950928

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.
Statement of Financial Position

March 31 2010 2009
(Note 15)
Assets
Current
Cash and short-term investments (Note 3) $1,587,780 $1,398,881
Receivables 108,465 122,900
Due from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 522,953 114,275
Prepaids 5,646 5415
2,224,844 1,641,471
Long-term investments 138,752 138,354
Capital assets (Note 4) 76,102 89,637
$2.439.698 $1.869.462
Liabilities
Current
Payables and accruals $ 496,926 $ 250,757
Funds held in trust (Note 5) 13,519 15,470
Deferred contributions
General operations (Note 6) 849,664 802,219
Current portion of obligation under capital lease (Note 7) 15,696 15,696
1,375,805 1,084,142
Deferred contributions
Related to capital assets (Note 8) 6,419 18,434
Restricted contributions (Note 9) 130,262 130,262
Pre-retirement leave (Note 10) 124,519 90,535
Obligation under capital lease (Note 7) 39,944 50,161
1,676,949 1.373.534
Fund Balances
Operating Fund 740,217 482,490
Capital Fund 14,043 5,346
Ed Mousseau Fund 8.489 8,092
762,749 495 928
$2,439.698 $1,.869.462
Commitments (Notes 11)
Qn_betvatfof the Board
_ Director Director

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

1. Nature of operations

Nine Circles Community Health Centre inc. is a local community health centre operating
programs and performing services designed to meet specific community needs.

The Organization was formed in 1991, is an incorporated not-for-profit entity and is a
registered charity under the Income Tax Act.

2, Significant accounting policies

The Organization follows accounting principles generally accepted in Canada in preparing its
financial statements. The significant accounting policies used are as follows:

a) Fund accounting

Revenues and expenses related to program delivery and administrative activities are reported
in the Operating Fund.

The Capital Fund reports the revenues and expenses related to the Organization's capital
assets.

The Ed Mousseau Fund reports the revenues and expenses related to funding contributed by
Ed Mousseau to be used for special purposes.

b)  Revenue recognition

The Organization follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.

Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses
are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund
when received or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and
collection is reasonably assured.

c) Capital assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Amortization is provided at rates designed to
write off the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Equipment 5 years straight-line
Computer equipment 4 years straight-line
Computer software 4 years straight-line
Leasehoids Over the life of the lease

Equipment under capital lease 10 years straight-line

Amortization expense is reported in the Capital Fund.

hooke

& partners

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Page 1682



Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

2, Significant accounting policies (cont.)
d) Investments

Short-term investments are classified as held-to-maturity financial assets. The short-term
investments are comprised of non-redeemable Guaranteed Investment Certificates and are
recorded at amortized cost.

Long-term investments are classified as held-for-trading financial assets. The long-term
investments are comprised of money market funds and are recorded at market value based on
bid prices at year end. Changes in fair value are the result of interest income and are
recognized in the statement of financial activities when earned.

e}  Accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during
the reported period. These estimates are reviewed periodically and are reported in earnings in
the period in which they become known. Actual resuits could differ from these estimates.

f) Financial instruments

The Organization's financial instruments consist of cash and short-term investments,
receivables, long-term investments, payables and accruals, funds held in trust, pre-retirement
leave and obligation under capital lease. The fair values of cash, receivables, payables and
accruals, funds held in trust, pre-retirement leave and obligation under capital lease
approximate their carrying values. It is management's opinion that the Organization is not
exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risk arising from these financial instruments.

3. Cash and short-term investments

Cash and short-term investments consist of:

2010 2009
Cash $ 627,536 $ 918,631
Cash held in trust 10,244 14,653
Assiniboine Credit Union GIC, bearing interest at 1.5%,
maturing and renewed annually on March 19th 200,000 465,597
Assiniboine Credit Union GIC, bearing interest at 2.0%,
maturing and renewed annually on March 19th 750,000 -

$1,587,780 $1,398.881

hooke
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Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

4, Capital assets
2010 2009

Accumulated Net Net
Cost Amortization Book Value Book Value

Equipment $ 52077 $ 50474 $ 1,603 $ 3,213
Computer equipment 72,594 66,004 6,590 11,464
Computer software 34,311 34,311 - -
Leaseholds 87,970 79,670 8,300 8,603
Equipment under capital lease 67,482 7,873 59,609 66,357

$ 314434 $ 238332 $ 76102 $ 89637

5. Funds held in trust

The Organization administers funds on behalf of the PHA Caucus of Manitoba.

6. Deferred contributions

Deferred contributions represent restricted funding and unspent resources externally restricted
for the Operating Fund which relate to the subsequent year.

The changes for the year in the deferred contributions balance are as follows:

2010 2009
Beginning balance $ 802,219 $ 467,581
Grant revenue recognized during the year (179,255) (427,496)
Contributions received during the year 226,700 762,134
Ending balance $ 849664 $ 802219

& partners
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

7. Obligation under capital lease 2010 2009
Obligation under capital lease $ 65,790 $ 81,756
Less: amount representing interest at 8.63% 10,150 15,899

55,640 65,857
Less: current portion of obligation 15,696 15,696

$ 39944 $ 50,161

Approximate future minimum lease payments in the next five years are as follows:

2011 $ 15696
2012 15,696
2013 15,696
2014 15,696
2015 3,006

$ 65790

8. Deferred contributions related to capital assets

Deferred contributions related to capital assets of $6,419 (2009 - $18,434) represent grants
and donations for equipment, computer equipment, computer software and leasehold
improvements. Deferred contributions are amortized in the capital fund on the statement of
financial activities.

9. Restricted contributions

Restricted contributions relate to funding received from Ed Mousseau to be used towards the
capital costs of building housing for those living with HIV/AIDS.
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Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

10. Pre-retirement leave benefits

The Organization has a contractual commitment for the pre-retirement benefits for the
members of the pension plan based on years of service before retirement. During the year
ended March 31, 2006 the organization was instructed by WRHA to record the full obligation.
The Winnipeg Regional Health Authority calculated and advised the organization of the
amount of the obligation. Pre-retirement leave benefits are considered an out-of-globe funding
item, of which the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority has instructed the organization to set up
a receivable for the percentage of the change in the pre-retirement leave obligation that
belongs to Winnipeg Regional Health Authority programs. The change in the accrued pre-
retirement leave benefits are recorded as an expense in the current year. During the year the
obligation increased (decreased) by $33,984 (2009 - $(6,820)).

A portion of the pre-retirement benefits for the current year of $30,242 (2009 - $(5,034)) were
funded by (repayable to) Winnipeg Regional Health Authority during the year.

11. Commitments

The Organization has entered into a lease agreement for its premises expiring on June 30,
2019 with an aggregate minimum annual rental of $238,255 to the period ending June 30,
2014 and an aggregate minimum annual rental of $249,881 for the period thereafter.

The Organization also leases various office equipment.

The minimum lease payments for the next five years is as follows:

2011 $ 247,759

2012 247,460
2013 246,563
2014 246,563
20156 253,205

12. Economic dependence

The volume of financial activity undertaken by Nine Circles Community Health Centre inc. with
its main funding bodies is of sufficient magnitude that the discontinuance of their funding would
endanger the ability of the Organization to continue as a going concern.
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Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

13. Capital disclosures

The Organization considers its capital to be the balance maintained in its Operating Fund

Balance. Capital is invested under the direction of the Board of Directors. The primary objective of
the Organization is to invest its capital in a manner that will allow it to continue as a going concern
and comply with its stated objectives. The Organization is not subject to any externally

imposed requirements of its capital.

14. Statement of cash flows

This statement has not been presented as management does not believe it provides additional
meaningful information.

15. Comparative figures

Certain balances of the preceding year have been reclassified to conform with the current
year's financial statement presentation.

booke
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Nine Circles Community Health Centre Inc.
Schedule of Operating Fund Expenses and Projects

Year Ended March 31 2010 2009
Salaries $1,975,436 $1,604,931
Physician salaries and benefits 741,462 437,930
Employee benefits 303,035 238,236
Health and education tax 43,125 27,298
Medical 31,987 27,081
Purchased and professional services 103,431 187,376
Rent and insurance 230,993 187,534
Maintenance 145,835 127,235
Travel and course fees 40,406 56,578
General expenses 206,037 229,592

3,821,747 3,123,791
Less: recoveries (97,220) (142.750)
$3.724,527 $2.981,041

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Tel/Tél.: 204 956 7200 BDO Canada LLP/s.r.I.
Fax/Téléc.: 204 926 7201 700 - 200 Graham Avenue

Toll-free/Sans frais: 800 268 3337 Winnipeg MB R3C 4L5 Canada
www.bdo.ca

Auditors' Report

To the Directors of
PEMBINA PLACE MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME INC.

We have audited the statement of financial position of the PEMBINA PLACE MENNONITE
PERSONAL CARE HOME INC. as at March 31, 2010 and the statements of operations, changes in
net deficiency and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Home's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Home as at March 31, 2010 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Chartered Accountants

Winnipeg, Manitoba
May 21, 2010

BDO Canada LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO Canada s.r.l., une société canadienne a responsabilité limitée, est membre de BDO International Limited, société de droit anglais, et fait partie du réseau
international de sociétés membres indépendantes BDO.
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PEMBINA PLACE MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME INC.
Statement of Changes in Net Deficiency

For the year ended March 31 2010 2009

Total Total
Net deficiency, beginning of year, as previously reported $ (335,055 $ (226,207)
Correction of an error (Note 2) - (79,605)
Net deficiency, beginning of year, restated (335,055) (305,812)
Deficiency of revenue over expenditures for the year (20,591) (29,243)
Net deficiency, end of year $ (355,646) $ (335,055)
The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 4
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PEMBINA PLACE MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME INC.
Statement of Operations

For the year ended March 31 2010 2009
Revenue
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority $ 2,826,237 $ 2,591,809
Residential charges 907,021 918,098
Other income 2,457 5,803

3,735,715 3,515,710

Expenditures

Drugs and medical supplies 66,538 63,568
Interest 389 9,115
Office and miscellaneous 11,512 16,380
Other supplies and expenses 36,368 43,505
Professional fees 8,259 12,530
Purchased services 589,753 532,904
Repairs and maintenance 6,462 1,458
Resident trust fees 7,318 8,012
Salaries and benefits 2,644,668 2,480,264
Service charges and fees 9,214 9,269
Shared building operation expenses (Note 10) 370,738 362,933
Telephone 4,911 4,830
Travel 176 185

3,756,306 3,544,953

Deficiency of revenue over expenditures before amortization (20,591) (29,243)

Amortization

Deferred contributions (Note 8) 194,153 257,520
Capital assets (194,153) (257,520)
Deficiency of revenue over expenditures for the year $ (20,591) $ (29,243)
The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 5
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PEMBINA PLACE MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME INC.
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended March 31 2010 2009

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Deficiency of revenue over expenditures for the year $ (20,591) $ (29,243)
Adjustment for

Amortization of capital assets 194,153 257,520
173,562 228,277

Changes in non-cash working capital
Accounts receivable (1,989) 11,546
Vacation entitlement receivable (41,804) (14,539)
Inventory (28) (2,650)
Prepaid expenses 2,029 (1,800)
Accounts payable 56,493 (56,995)
Vacation entitlement payable 76,069 34,319
264,332 198,158

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Deferred contributions (93,443) (246,178)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of capital assets (107,372) (2,878)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 63,517 (50,898)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 79,699 130,597
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 143,216 $ 79,699

Represented by:

Cash $ 32,642 $ -
Restricted cash 110,574 121,175
Bank indebtedness - (41,476)

$ 143,216 $ 79,699

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 6
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PEMBINA PLACE MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME INC.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

For the year ended March 31, 2010

Revenue Recognition

The Home follows the deferral method of accounting for
contributions which include donations and government grants.

Under the Health Insurance Act and regulations hereto, the Home is
funded primarily by the Province of Manitoba in accordance with
budget arrangements established by Winnipeg Regional Health
Authority ("WRHA"). Operating grants are recorded as revenue in
the period to which they relate. Grants approved but not received at
the end of an accounting period are accrued. Where a portion of a
grant is related to a future period, it is deferred and recognized in
that subsequent period.

With respect to actual operating results, certain adjustments to
funding will be made by the WRHA after completion of their review
of the Home's accounts as follows:

a) Deficits - The WRHA shall not be responsible for past or future
deficits of the Home in providing the services and debt service
charges for any debt incurred resulting from operating deficits
unless the parties otherwise mutually agree.The WRHA shall not
be responsible for the costs incurred by the Home other than
those set forth in the service purchase agreement.

b) Surpluses - In July 2009 the WRHA agreed that the Home could
retain 100% of surpluses for the next 5 years. After that time,
the Home may unconditionally retain the greater of 50% of its
operating surplus in any fiscal year and 2% of the global budget
indicated in its funding letter from the WRHA for such fiscal
year. Any surplus beyond the foregoing levels shall be remitted
to the WRHA on demand.

Any adjustments will be reflected in the year the final statement of
recommended costs is received from WRHA.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when
received or receivable if the amount to be received can be
reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Externally restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the
year in which the related expenses are recognized. Contributions
restricted for the purchase of capital assets are deferred and
amortized into revenue on a straight-line basis, at a rate
corresponding with the amortization rate for the related capital
assets.

Revenue from the residential services and marketed services is
recognized when the goods are sold or the service is provided.
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PEMBINA PLACE MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME INC.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

For the year ended March 31, 2010

Contributed Services

Inventories

Employee Future Benefits

Financial Instruments

A substantial number of volunteers contribute a significant amount
of their time each year. Because of the difficulty of determining the
fair value, contributed services are not recognized in the financial
statements.

Inventories of supplies are carried at the lower of cost and net
realizable value determined on a first-in, first-out basis.

Pre-retirement entitlement, pension and other employee future
benefit costs are determined using the projected benefit method
prorated on years of service and based on best estimated
assumptions. Commencing with the 2004-2005 fiscal year, out of
globe funding for these costs is not provided by Manitoba Health/
WRHA.

The Home utilizes various financial instruments. Unless otherwise
noted, it is management's opinion that the Home is not exposed to
significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from these
financial instruments and the carrying amounts approximate fair
values.

All transactions related to financial instruments are recorded on a
settlement date basis.

The Home classifies its financial instruments as follows based on
the purpose for which the asset was acquired and follows the
disclosed accounting policy for each category.

Assets/Liability Category Measurement
Cash Held for trading Fair value
Accounts receivable Loans and receivables Amortized cost
Vacation entitlement

receivable Loans and receivables Amortized cost
Retirement obligation

asset Loans and receivables Amortized cost
Accounts payable Other financial liabilities Amortized cost
Accrued vacation

entitlements Other financial liabilities Amortized cost
Accrued retirement

obligation Other financial liabilities Amortized cost
° Held for trading items are carried at fair value, with changes

in their fair value recognized in the statement of operations.

° Other financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost, using
the effective interest method.
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PEMBINA PLACE MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME INC.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

For the year ended March 31, 2010

Financial Instruments

(continued)

Restricted Cash

Use of Estimates

Capital Assets

° Loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost, using
the effective interest rate method, less any provision for
impairment.

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.

Restricted cash balances represent cash segregated for use for
replacement reserves in accordance with the CMHC operating
agreement.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Actual
amounts could differ from those estimates.

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Contributed capital
assets are recorded at fair value at the date of contribution. Repairs
and maintenance costs are charged to expense. Betterments which
extend the estimated useful life of an asset are capitalized. When a
capital asset no longer contributes to the Home's ability to provide
services, its carrying amount is written down to its residual value.

Capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis using the
following annual rates:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10-20%
Leasehold improvements 10%
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PEMBINA PLACE MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME INC.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

For the year ended March 31, 2010

New Accounting
Pronouncements

Recent accounting pronouncements that have been issued but are
not yet effective, and have a potential implication for the Home, are
as follows:

Future for Not-for-Profit Organizations (NPO)

In October 2009, the Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) tentatively
decided that it will propose a choice between the accounting
standards for private enterprises plus the current NPO accounting
standards appropriately modified to fit with those standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards or Public Sector
Accounting Board standards (PSAB) with NPO standards added. The
PSAB agreed that there was sufficient support to develop an NPO
series of standards to add onto the PSAB standards similar to the
current NPO standards, but appropriately modified to fit with PSAB
standards. The two boards are working together and intend to issue
an Exposure Draft for comment in the first half of 2010. Until the
Boards make a final decision, all NPOs will continue to follow the
current Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants Handbook -
Accounting.

The Home continues to monitor the developments in this area and
evaluate the implications of the potential changes in financial
reporting standards.
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PEMBINA PLACE MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

1. Purpose of the Organization

Pembina Place Mennonite Personal Care Home Inc. provides a 57 bed personal care service
at 285 Pembina Highway, Winnipeg, Manitoba. The Home is a Mennonite organization that
demonstrates Christian love by compassionately offering a continuum of wellness, housing
and personal care services for older adults.

2. Correction of an Error

During the year, the Home undertook a study of its capital assets and deferred contributions
and has determined that the amortization of capital assets and deferred contributions
previously reported were misstated based on its accounting policies.  Accordingly
comparative figures on the statement of financial position for the year ended March 31, 2009
have been adjusted as follows:

As previously

reported Adjustment Restated

Accumulated Amortization
Leasehold Improvements $ 2,012,148 $ 257,856 $ 2,270,004
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 305,532 58,282 363,814
Deferred Contributions 595,931 (236,533) 359,398
Net deficiency (255,450) (79,605) (335,055)

3. Accounts Receivable

2010 2009
Receivable from residents $ 11,114 $ 7,677
GST rebate receivable 5,580 5,014
Other 9,223 11,237

$ 25,917 $ 23,928
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PEMBINA PLACE MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

Accrued Vacation Entitlements

The Home records a provision for accrued vacation entitlements. Prior to March 31, 2004
changes in the liability related to vacation were recoverable from Manitoba Health. At that
date, Manitoba Health advised that subsequent to March 31, 2004 all funding related to past
and future vacation entitlement costs would be included in in-globe funding and that the
maximum liability to be recognized by Manitoba Health to facilities would be capped at March
31, 2004 levels. Accordingly, each year as vacation entitlements are paid and earned by the
Home's employees, the related vacation entitlement receivable is collected and re-
established up to this maximum amount.

An analysis of the changes in the vacation entitlements receivable from Manitoba Health is as
follows:

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 121,948 $ 121,948
Net changes in vacation entitlements receivable - -
Balance, end of year $ 121,948 $ 121,948

An analysis of the changes in the accrued vacation entitlements is as follows:

Balance, beginning of year $ 161,705 $ 141,925
Net change in accrued vacation entitlements 34,265 19,780
Balance, end of year $ 195970 $ 161,705

Capital Assets

2010 2009
Accumulated Accumulated
Cost Amortization Cost  Amortization

Leasehold improvements $ 2,477,195 $ 2,442,001 $ 2,479,172 $ 2,270,004
Furniture, fixtures
and equipment 504,785 386,937 394,469 363,814

$ 2,981,980 $ 2,828938 $ 2,873,641 $ 2,633,818

Cost less accumulated
amortization $ 153,042 $ 239,823

Amortization of capital assets for the year ended March 31, 2010 is $194,153 (2009 -
$257,520).
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PEMBINA PLACE MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

6. Bank Overdraft

The organization has a demand credit facility with the Royal Bank, amounting to $50,000
($50,000 in 2009), available for operating needs. The overdraft facility bears interest at the

bank's prime rate, calculated and payable monthly.

7. Accounts Payable

2010 2009

Trade accounts payable $ 37,915 $ 40,932
Salaries and employee benefits payable 82,007 94,416
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 8,839 45,473
Due to related parties 221,451 112,898
$ 350,212 $ 293,719

8. Deferred Contributions

Capital Assets

Deferred capital contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized amount
of grants received for the purchase of capital assets. The amortization of capital

contributions is recorded as revenue in the statement of operations.

Changes in the deferred contribution balance are as follows:

2010

2009

(Restated - Note 2)

Balance, beginning of year, as previously stated $ 236,878 $ 730,510
Correction of an error - (236,533)
Balance, beginning of year, restated 236,878 493,977
Additional contributions received

Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 163,000 257,520
Reserve equipment purchases 110,316 -
Less amounts amortized to revenue (194,153) (257,520)
Contributions applied to debt assumed by Province (163,000) (257,099)
Balance, end of year $ 153,041 $ 236,878
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PEMBINA PLACE MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

8. Deferred Contributions (continued)

Unspent Equipment Funding

Unspent equipment funding related to equipment replacement represent the unspent
amount of funding received for the purchase of equipment. Equipment funding is not
recorded as revenue in the statement of operations.

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 122,520 $ 111,599
Additional contributions received
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 100,710 9,975
Interest received - 1,847
Equipment purchases (110,316) (901)
Balance, end of year 112,914 122,520
Total deferred contributions $ 265,955 $ 359,398
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PEMBINA PLACE MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

9.

Employee Future Benefits

a) Accrued retirement obligation

Based upon collective agreements and/or non-union policy, employees of the Home are
entitled to a pre-retirement leave benefit if they are retiring in accordance with the
provisions of the applicable Home Group Pension Plan. The Home's contractual
commitment is to pay based upon the following:

Four days (pro-rated) of salary per year of service upon retirement if the employee
complies with one of the following conditions:

i. has 10 years service and has reached the age 55

ii. qualifies for the "eighty" rule which is calculated by adding the number of years of
service to the age of the employee

iii. retires at or after age 65

iv. terminates employment at any time due to permanent disability

The Home undertook an actuarial valuation of the pre-retirement leave benefit for
accounting purposes as at March 31, 2010. The significant actuarial assumptions adopted
in measuring the Home's accrued retirement entitlements include mortality and withdrawal
rates, a discount rate of 4.9% (2009 - 6.7%) and a rate of salary increase of 4.0% (2009 -
3.5%) plus age related merit/promotion scale with no provision for disability.

The amount recorded as a receivable from the Province for pre-retirement costs was
initially determined based on the value of the corresponding actuarial liability for pre-
retirement costs as at March 31, 2004. Subsequent to March 31, 2004, the Province has
included in its ongoing annual funding to the Home, an amount equivalent to the change in
the pre-retirement liability, which includes annual interest accretion related to the
receivable. The receivable will be paid by the Province when required.

Commencing in 2006/07, the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority assumed responsibility
for funding the annual increase in the obligation each year. This amount will also be paid
when required and the WRHA holds funding to meet this obligation.

2010 2009

Employee future benefits recoverable from
Manitoba Health $ 83,241 $ 83,241
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 118,928 77,124

$ 202,169 $ 160,365
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PEMBINA PLACE MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

9.

Employee Future Benefits (continued)

a)

b)

Accrued retirement obligation (continued)

An analysis of the changes in the employee benefits payable is as follows:

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 160,365 $ 145,826
Net change in pre-retirement entitlements 41,804 14,539
Balance, end of year $ 202,169 $ 160,365

Pension plan

Substantially all of the employees of the Home are members of the Healthcare Employees
Pension Plan (a successor to the Manitoba Health Organization Inc. Plan) (the "Plan")
which is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan available to all eligible employees
of the participating members of the Plan. Plan members will receive benefits based on the
length of service and on the average of annualized earnings during the best five years of
the last ten years prior to retirement, termination or death, that provides the highest
earnings.

Pension assets consist of investment grade securities. Market and credit risk on these
securities are managed by the Plan by placing Plan assets in trust and through the Plan
investment policy.

Pension expense is based on Plan management's best estimates, in consultation with its
actuaries, of the amount, together with the contribution by employees, required to provide
a high level of assurance that benefits will be fully represented by fund assets at
retirement, as provided by the Plan. The funding objective is for employer contributions to
the Plan to remain a constant percentage of employees' contributions.

Variances between actuarial funding estimates and actual experience may be material
and any differences are generally to be funded by the participating members. The most
recent actuarial valuation of the Plan as at December 31, 2008 indicates the Plan is in a
deficit. The board of the Plan is evaluating what actions, if any, may be required to align
the assets and liabilities, which may include contribution rate increases and/or benefit
reductions. Contributions to the Plan made during the year by the Home on behalf of its
employees amounted to $131,158 (2009 - $117,371) and are included in the statement of
operations.
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PEMBINA PLACE MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

10.

11.

Related Party Transactions

During the year the Home had the following transactions with related organizations:

2010 2009
Salary reimbursements paid $ 232,967 $ -
Shared building operations expenses 370,738 362,933
Management fees paid - 60,000

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange
amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related
parties.

The Manitoba Housing Authority owns the Manitoba Deaf Centre building located at 285
Pembina Highway, Winnipeg, Manitoba. Pembina Place Mennonite Personal Care Home
Inc. has been allotted 31% of building operation expenses for the year ended March 31,
2010.

Accounts payable includes $221,451 (2009 - $112,898) payable to related parties.

Funding of Future Employee Benefits

Effective April 1, 2004 Manitoba Health directed all health care facilities (including non-profit
personal care homes) to discontinue establishing a receivable from Manitoba Health for the
funding of future employee benefits given that the responsibility for payment of same would
be transferred to the WRHA. Contrary to the long-standing practice prior to April 1, 2004, the
WRHA has since directed all health care facilities to record the future employee benefits
liability, but not the corresponding receivable. As explained in Note 9, commencing in 2007,
the WRHA has agreed to fund the change in accrued pre-retirement liability for the WRHA
funded portions; however, they did not agree to fund changes in accrued vacation pay.

The Home has taken the position that Unfunded Future Employee Benefits (which include
Pre-retirement Leave and Vacation Accrual) should be recoverable from the WRHA.

The Home's position is based on the fact that employee benefits are negotiated centrally by
the Labour Relations Secretariat, and the Service Purchase Agreement explicitly states that
the level of funding will be commensurate with any settlement agreed to by the Labour
Relations Secretariat.

Based on this understanding, the corresponding responsibility for the future funding of the
these benefits should be recognized by Manitoba Health to the WRHA and the WRHA to
Winnipeg non-profit personal care homes (including Pembina Place Mennonite Personal Care
Home Inc.).

The Home has expressed considerable concern to the WRHA regarding the impact of the

policy change referred to above, and the manner in which Employee Future Benefit liabilities
are to be funded and recorded in the Home's Audited Financial Statements.
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PEMBINA PLACE MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

12. Capital Management

The Home considers its capital to comprise its Net Deficiency balance. There have been no
changes to what the organization considers to be its capital since the previous period.

The Home manages its capital to ensure it retains sufficient resources to enable it to meet its
obligations for resident care. The determination of this amount is based on historical expense
requirements relative to funding commitments.

13. Financial Risk Management

The Home is exposed to different types of risk in the normal course of operations, including
credit risk and market risk. The Home's objective in risk management is to optimize the risk
return trade-off, within set limits, by applying integrated risk management and control
strategies, policies and procedures throughout the Home's activities.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument fails to discharge an obligation
and causes financial loss to another party. Financial instruments which potentially subject the
Home to credit risk consist principally of accounts receivable.

The Home's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral or other
credit enhancements is as follows:

2010 2009
Accounts receivable $ 25917 $ 23,928
Vacation entitlements receivable 121,948 121,948
Retirement obligations receivable 202,169 160,365

$ 350,034 $ 306,241

Accounts receivable: The Home is not exposed to significant credit risk as the receivable is
spread among a broad client base and payment in full is typically collected when it is due.
The Home establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts that represents its estimate of
potential credit losses. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on management’s
estimates and assumptions regarding current market conditions, customer analysis and
historical payment trends. These factors are considered when determining whether past due
accounts are allowed for or written off.

Vacation entitlements receivable and retirement obligations receivable: The Home is not
exposed to significant credit risk as these receivables are from the Province of Manitoba and
the Regional Health Authority.
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PEMBINA PLACE MENNONITE PERSONAL CARE HOME INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended March 31, 2010

13.

14.

Financial Risk Management (continued)

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate
risk, foreign exchange risk and other price risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. The Home is not exposed to significant interest rate risk.
Its restricted cash is held in short-term or variable rate products and its bank indebtedness is
also at variable rates.

The Home is not exposed to significant foreign currency risk as it does not have any financial
instruments denominated in foreign currency and the number of transactions in foreign
currency are minimal and the Home is not exposed to other price risk.

Fair Value

The carrying values of cash (bank indebtedness), accounts receivable, vacation entitlements
receivable and retirement obligations receivable and accounts payable and accrued liabilities
approximate their fair value due to the relatively short periods to maturity of these items or
because they are receivable or payable on demand.

Comparative Figures

Certain of the prior year's figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's
presentation.
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ST. AMANT INC.

Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

Operating Fund Capitat Fund Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Assets
Current assets:
Cash 3 —~ % 1827974 % 161,202 § 318,877 $ 161,202 § 2,146,851
Funds held in trust for
residents 402,440 342,037 - - 402,440 342,037
Accounts receivable 4,182,487 2,900,938 170,535 - 4,353,022 2,900,838
Inventories 179,289 216,616 - - 179,289 216,616
Prepaid expenses 206,281 218,897 - - 206,281 218,997
Vacation pay

recoverable from
Winnipeg Regional Health
Authority {note 8) 1,461,198 1,461,198 -
Due from St. Amant
Foundation Inc. {note 8) - 904,750 - {295,952} — &08,798
Iinter-fund batances 2,290,210 1,992,066 {2,290,210) (1,992,068) - —
8,721,908 9,864,576 {1,958,473) (1,969,141} 6,763,432 7,895,435

1,461,188 1,461,198

Capitaf assets {note 2) - - 19,647,474 18,483,828 19,647,474 18,483,828

Future employea pre-retirement
benefits recoverable from
Winnipeg Regional Health
Authority {note 8) 1,943,468 1,543,622 - - 1,943,468 1,543,522

$ 10,665,373 $ 11,408,098 § 17,689,001 $ 16,514,687 $ 28,364,374 § 27,922,785
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Deloitte.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
360 Main Street

Suite 2300

Winnipeg MB R3C 3Z3
Canada

Tel: 204-942-0051
Fax: 204-947-9390
www.deloitte.ca

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
St. Joseph's Residence Inc.

We have audited the statement of financial position of St. Joseph's Residence Inc. as at
March 31, 2010 and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the
year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Residence's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of the Residence as at March 31, 2010 and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Mﬁfi O Jole

Chartered Accountants

Winnipeg, Manitoba
May 28, 2010

Membre de / Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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ST. JOSEPH'S RESIDENCE INC.

Statement of Operations
Year ended March 31, 2010

2010 2009
REVENUE
WRHA $ 4,728,842 $ 4344986
Residential charges 1,551,797 1,538,214
Canada Mortgage and
Housing Corporation (Note 7) 35,946 35,946
6,316,585 5,919,146
Amortization of deferred
contributions - capital assets 204,863 162,963
Recoveries - general 40,003 67,723
Cafeteria 13,597 15,893
Interest 15,766 31,228
Donations 36,226 86,126
310,455 363,933
6,627,040 6,283,079
EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 4,493,039 4,267,508
Plant operations and maintenance 328,243 363,823
Employee benefits 901,706 697,566
Dietary 209,994 200,557
General services 191,318 187,009
Special services 38,943 38,890
Depreciation 204,300 183,751
Interest on long term debt 34,126 49,431
Housekeeping, laundry and linen 103,424 98,247
Medical supplies 103,596 95,236
Health and education tax 95,267 91,282
6,703,956 6,273,300
(DEFICIT) SURPLUS BEFORE OTHER ITEMS (76,916) 9,779
Decrease (increase) for unfunded portion
of pre-retirement leave 76,376 (20,924)
DEFICIT FROM WRHA FUNDED PROGRAMS (540) (11,145)
Income (loss) from ancillary operations 51 (8,238)
DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR $ (489) $ (19,383)
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ST. JOSEPH'S RESIDENCE INC.

Statement of Financial Position
As at March 31, 2010

2010 2009
(Restated - Note 15)
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash and certificates of deposit $ 873,200 $ 1,007,580
Cash held in trust 27,819 23,997
Accounts receivable 487,187 410,860
Inventory 21,700 31,844
Prepaid expenses 15,983 17,268
Due from WRHA - vacation pay 248,912 248,912
1,674,801 1,740,461
CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 4) 2,232,523 2,374,683
DUE FROM WRHA - PRE-RETIREMENT LEAVE 629,756 427,722
$ 4,537,080 $ 4,542 866
LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ’ $ 736,250 $ 726,941
Accrued vacation pay 332,634 317,981
Funds held in trust 29,413 24,661
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 6) 176,765 172,378
1,275,062 1,241,961
LONG-TERM DEBT (Note 6) 843,685 1,020,318
ACCRUED PRE-RETIREMENT LEAVE (Note 5) 585,489 459,831
DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS
EXPENSES OF FUTURE PERIODS (Note 10) 11,186 27,722
CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 11) 1,069,580 1,040,613
MAJOR REPAIRS (Note 12) 58,334 58,188
3,843,336 3,848,633
NET ASSETS
INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS (NOTE 13) 334,829 316,210
UNRESTRICTED 358,915 378,023
693,744 694,233
$ 4,537,080 $ 4,542,866
APPROVED BYAHE BOARD
Director
Director
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ST. JOSEPH'S RESIDENCE INC.

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Year ended March 31, 2010

2010 2009
Invested in
Capital Assets Unrestricted Total Total
Balance, beginning of year,
as previously stated $ 316,210 $ 443,206 $ 759,416 $ 778,799
Adjustments for prior year
misstatements (Note 16) - (65,183) (65,183) (65,183)
Balance beginning of year 316,210 378,023 694,233 713,616
Deficit for the year (Note 13) (4,576) 4,087 (489) (19,383)
Investment in capital assets (Note 13) 23,195 (23,195) - -
Balance, end of year $ 334,829 § 358,915 $ 693,744 $ 694,233
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ST. JOSEPH'S RESIDENCE INC.

Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended March 31, 2010

2010 2009
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Deficit for the year $ (489) $ (19,383)
ltems not affecting cash
Depreciation 204,300 183,751
Depreciaiton - ancillary operations 5,139 5,139
Amortization of deferred contributions -
expenses of future periods (86,678) (79,194)
Amortization of deferred contributions - capital assets (204,863) (162,963)
Amortization of deferred contributions - major repairs (11,854) -
(94,445) (72,650)
Changes in non-cash working capital balances
Accounts receivable (76,327) 151,702
Inventory 10,144 (6,578)
Prepaid expenses 1,285 (4,972)
Due from WRHA - pre-retirement leave (202,034) (445)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 9,309 (354,710)
Accrued vacation pay 14,653 22,872
Accrued pre-retirement leave 125,658 8,059
(211,757) (256,722)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Funds held in trust 4,752 3,906
Mortgage repayments (104,446) (100,297)
Term loan repayments (67,800) (67,800)
Additional deferred contributions received
- expenses of future periods 70,142 20,676
- capital assets 233,830 474,599
- major repairs 12,000 12,000
148,478 343,084
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash held in trust (3,822) (9,445)
Capital asset purchases (67,279) (211,889)
(71,101) (221,334)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT (134,380) (134,972)
CASH AND CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT,
BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,007,580 1,142,552
CASH AND CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT,
END OF YEAR $ 873,200 $ 1,007,580
Supplementary information
Interest paid $ 34,493 3 49,808
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ST. JOSEPH’S RESIDENCE INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

1. NATURE OF ORGANIZATION

St. Joseph's Residence Inc. is a not-for-profit corporation, which operates a personal care
home. Effective February 13, 2003, the sponsorship of the Residence was transferred from
the Sisters of the Order of St. Benedict to the Catholic Health Corporation of Manitoba
(CHCM). The Residence is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act and accordingly is
exempt from taxes.

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

On April 1, 2009, the Residence adopted the changes made to Sections 1540, 4400, 4430
and 4460 and the new recommendations of Section 4470 of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants ("CICA") Handbook.

Section 1540 has been amended to include not-for-profit organizations within its scope. As a
result, investing and financing activities must be presented separately.

Section 4400 has been amended in order to eliminate the requirement to treat net assets
invested in capital assets as a separate component of net assets and, instead, permit a not-
for-profit organization to combine investment in capital assets with unrestricted net assets
when no investment in capital assets is internally restricted. As a result, effective April 1,
2009, the Residence has combined the net assets in capital assets balance of $316,210 with
the opening balance of unrestricted net assets in the Statement of Change in Net Assets.

It also clarifies that revenues and expenses must be recognized and presented on a gross
basis when a not-for profit organization is acting as a principal in transactions.

Section 4430 has been amended to specify that smaller organizations that capitalize their
capital assets shall capitalize all classes of capital assets and amortize and write down those
assets in accordance with relevant Handbook Sections.

Section 4460 has been amended to make the language in Section 4460 consistent with
related party transactions, Section 3840.

Section 4470 establishes disclosure standards for a not-for-profit organization that classifies
its expenses by function and allocates its expenses to a number of functions to which the
expenses relate.

The adoption of these new standards had no other significant impact on the financial
statements.
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ST. JOSEPH’S RESIDENCE INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Residence has elected to use the exemption provided by the CICA permitting not-for-
profit organizations not to apply Sections 3862 and 3863 of the CICA Handbook which would
otherwise have applied to the financial statements of the Residence for the year ended March
31, 2010. The Residence applies the requirements of Section 3861 of the CICA Handbook.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles and include the following significant accounting policies:

a)

b)

Revenue recognition

The Residence follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions which include
donations and government grants.

Under the Health Insurance Act and regulations thereto, the Residence is funded
primarily by the Province of Manitoba in accordance with budget arrangements
established by WRHA. Operating grants are recorded as revenue in the period to which
they relate.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably
assured.

Externally restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the
related expenses are recognized. Contributions restricted for the purchase of capital
assets are deferred and amortized into revenue on a straight-line basis, at a rate
corresponding with the amortization rate for the related capital assets.

Capital assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Contributed capital assets are recorded
at fair value at the date of contribution.

Capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful
lives:

Building 50 years

Parking lot 20 years

Furniture and equipment 5, 10 years

Building service equipment 20 Years
Vacation pay

The Residence records the accrued vacation pay entitiement liability. The related
revenue and expense is recorded in the statement of operations for the current year.
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ST. JOSEPH’S RESIDENCE INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

d)

e)

Retirement entitlement obligation

The Residence has a contractual commitment to pay out to employees four days’ salary
per year of service upon retirement if they comply with the following conditions:

i) have ten years service and have reached the age of 55 or

if) qualify for the “eighty” rule which is calculated by adding the number of years of
service to the age of the employee.

The Residence has recorded an accrual based on an actuarial valuation that includes
employees who qualify at the year-end balance sheet date and an estimate for the
remainder of employees who have not yet met the criteria above. The related revenue
and expense is recorded in the statement of operations for the current year.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and their
subsequent measurement is dependent on their classification as described below. Their
classification depends on the purpose, for which the financial instruments were acquired
or issued, their characteristics and the Residence’s designation of such instruments.

Classification

Cash Held for trading
Certificates of deposit Held for trading
Accounts receivable Loans and receivables
Amounts due from WRHA/Manitoba Health Loans and receivables
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Other liabilities
Accrued vacation pay Other liabilities
Long term debt Other liabilities
Held for trading

Held for trading financial assets are financial assets typically acquired for resale prior
to maturity or that are designated as held for trading. They are measured at fair value
at the balance sheet date. Fair value fluctuations including interest earned, interest
accrued, gains and losses realized on disposal and unrealized gains and losses are
included in investment income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are accounted for at amortized cost using the effective interest

method.
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ST. JOSEPH’S RESIDENCE INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

e)

9

h)

Financial instruments (continued)

Other liabilities
Other liabilities are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest method and
include all financial liabilities, other than derivative instruments.

Effective interest method

The Residence uses the effective interest method to recognize interest income or
expense which includes transaction costs or fees, premiums or discounts earned or
incurred for financial instruments.

Provision for operating surplus settlement with WRHA

The Residence records the full amount of its operating surplus as calculated in
accordance with the WRHA guidelines as a provision for settlement with WRHA. The
actual amount of the settlement is determined after a review of the details by Manitoba
Health and negotiation with the Residence. Any difference is recorded subsequently in
the statement of operations in the year of settlement.

Contributed services

Contributed services are recorded at their estimated fair value if the amount can be
reasonably estimated.

Inventory

Inventories of supplies are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value with the
cost being determined on an average basis.

Fair value

The carrying value of the Residence’s financial assets and liabilities reflect their fair
values, unless otherwise disclosed.
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ST. JOSEPH’S RESIDENCE INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)]

Future accounting changes

The Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) will be replacing Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) for publicly accountable profit-oriented enterprise with January 1, 2011 as the
changeover date. While these standards are not developed with reference to not-for-
profit organizations, the AcSB has agreed that a not-for—profit organization can apply
IFRS if that approach meets the needs of the users of its financial statements.

The AcSB is also developing a made in Canada alternative set of financial reporting
standards for private profit-oriented enterprises. The AcSB has agreed to consider
permitting not-for-profit organizations to apply the standards for private enterprises,
together with additional standards addressing their unique transactions and
circumstances.

Accordingly, the needs of not-for-profit organizations will be considered in the
development of the private enterprise standards.

In December 2008, the AcSB and the Public Sector Accounting Board issued a joint
Invitation to Comment, “Financial Reporting by Not-for-Profit Organizations”, to invite
feedback on the future of financial reporting by not-for-profit organizations. The
financial reporting options under consideration by the AcSB include: IFRS, private
enterprise standards and public sector standards. Until the strategy has been
determined and implemented, not-for-profit organizations will continue to apply current
accounting standards.

4. CAPITAL ASSETS

2010 2009

Accumulated Accumulated
Cost Depreciation Cost Depreciation

Land $ 193,965 $ - $ 193,965 $ -
Building 2,994,317 1,601,345 2,994,317 1,480,859
Parking lot 86,781 31,298 86,781 25,564
Furniture and equipment 1,575,720 1,223,656 1,507,433 1,153,208
Building service equipment 316,735 78,696 314,772 62,934
5,167,518 2,934,995 5,097,248 2,722,565

Net Book Value $ 2,232,523 $ 2,374,683

Depreciation expense during the year totalled $209,439 (2009 - $188,890) including $5,139
(2009 - $5,139) recorded in the ancillary operations.
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ST. JOSEPH’S RESIDENCE INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

5. ACCRUED PRE-RETIREMENT LEAVE

The Residence undertook an actuarial valuation of the accrued pre-retirement leave in
accordance with accounting policy (Note 3(d)). The significant actuarial assumptions
adopted in measuring the Residence's accrued pre-retirement leave include mortality and
withdrawal rates, a discount rate of 4.90% (2009 — 6.7%) and a rate of salary increase of
3.5% (2009 - 3.5%) plus age related merit/promotion scale with no adjustment for
disability. Actual payments made during the year for the Residence’s pre-retirement leave
were $29,703 (2009 - $38,133).

6. LONG-TERM DEBT

N
(=]
-
o
N
o
O

|
|

Mortgage, payable to Canada Mortgage and Housing

Corporation, repayable in blended monthly

instalments of $11,017, interest rate of 4.17%

per annum, due May 1, 2015 $ 613,992 $ 718,438

Term loan, payable to Toronto Dominion Bank, repayable
in monthly principal payments of $2,705, plus interest at
prime minus 0.75% per annum, due October 31, 2014 144,357 176,817

Term loan, payable to Toronto Dominion Bank, repayable
in monthly principal payments of $2,945, plus interest at

prime minus 0.75% per annum, due August 31, 2018 262,101 297,441
Total long-term debt 1,020,450 1,192,696
Current portion 176,765 172,378

$ 843,685 $ 1,020,318

The mortgage with the Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation is secured by a security
agreement covering all land, buildings, furniture and equipment and assignment of all
residential charges. The term loans are secured by a Letter of Comfort from Manitoba Health.

The principal repayments in each of the next five years are as follows:

Mortgage Term Loans Total

2011 $ 108,965 $ 67,800 $ 176,765

2012 113,536 67,800 181,336

2013 118,297 67,800 186,097

2014 123,260 67,800 191,060

2015 128,430 54,275 182,705
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ST. JOSEPH’S RESIDENCE INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

7. CANADA MORTGAGE AND HOUSING PAYMENTS

The Residence has received federal assistance through Canada Mortgage and Housing
Corporation pursuant to Section 56.1 of the National Housing Act to reduce mortgage interest
expense to 1.5% to enable the project to provide housing to low income individuals. The
amount of assistance received in 2010 was $35,946 (2009 - $35,946).

8. RELATED ENTITIES

a)

b)

The Residence is dependent on the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (WRHA) for
the majority of the funding of its operations. The current net receivable due from
WRHA is $429,951 (2009 - $372,040).

During the current year, St. Joseph's Residence Inc. charged $4,680 (2009 - $4,680)
to the Friends of St. Joseph’s Residence Inc., a related party, for accounting and
administration services.

Friends of St. Joseph's Residence Inc. made donations to St. Joseph's Residence Inc.
totalling $39,742 (2009 - $58,469).

At March 31, 2010 St. Joseph’s Residence Inc. had a receivable from Friends of St.
Joseph's Residence Inc. in the amount of $40,477 (2009 - $60,417).

9. INTEREST RATE AND CREDIT RISK

a)

b)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the adverse consequences of interest rate changes in the
Residence’s cash flows, financial position and income. This risk arises from differences
in the timing and amount of cash flows related to the Residence’s assets. The value of
the Residence’s assets is affected by short-term changes in nominal interest rate and
equity markets.

The term to maturity of the fixed income investments of the Residence are all before the
end of the 2012 calendar year with coupon rates ranging between 0.40% and 5.10%
(2009 —- 0.80% and 4.71%). The fair market value of these fixed income securities as at
March 31, 2010 is $504,698 (2009 — $705,205).

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises when a counterparty does not fully honour its financial or contractual

obligations. The Residence has established credit and investment policies to mitigate
this risk.
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ST. JOSEPH’S RESIDENCE INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

b)  Credit Risk (continued)

Credit risk is increased where a significant portion of the investment portfolio is invested
in securities which have similar characteristics or which are expected to follow similar
variations relating to economic or political conditions. The risk of excess concentration is
mitigated by an investment policy established by the Board of Directors, which sets out
various investment policies.

The majority of the current year's accounts receivable balance consists of related party
amounts and the remainder are resident receivables, which is consistent with the prior
year, and are regarded as low credit risk balances.

10. DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS — EXPENSES OF FUTURE PERIODS

1.

Deferred contributions related to expense of future periods represent the unspent amount
of donations and grants received for expenditures other than the purchase of capital
assets. Amortization is recorded as revenue in the statement of operations and matched
with the related expenses.

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 27,722 $ 86,240
Additional contributions 70,142 20,676
Distribution for expenses (86,678) (79,194)
Balance, end of year $ 11,186 $ 27,722

DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS — CAPITAL ASSETS

Deferred contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized amount and
unspent amount of donations and funding received for the purchase of capital assets. The
amortization of capital contributions is recorded as revenue in the statement of operations.
Changes in the deferred contributions balance are as follows:

2010 2009
Purchased Future

Capital Capital Contributed

Assets Assets Surplus Total Total
Balance beginning
of year $604,837 $174,836 $260,940 $1,040,613 $728,977
Additional
contributions
received 44,084 17,500 61,584 306,502
Debt repayment 172,246 - - 172,248 168,097
Amortization (195,544) - (9,319) (204,863) (162,963)
Balance, end of
year $625,623 $192,336 $251,621 $1,069,580 $1,040,613
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ST. JOSEPH’S RESIDENCE INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

12. DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS - MAJOR REPAIRS

Deferred contributions related to major repairs represent the unamortized amount and
unspent funding received for major repairs. Amounts are recorded as revenue when
applicable expenses are incurred. Changes in the deferred contributions balance are as

follows:
2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 58,188 $ 46,188
Additional contributions 12,000 12,000
Expenditures during the year (11,854) -
Balance, end of year $ 58,334 $ 58,188
13. INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS
Invested in capital assets is calculated as follows:
2010 2008
Capital assets $ 2,232,523 $ 2,374,683
Cash - Future Capital Assets 192,336 174,836
Amounts financed by
Deferred contributions (1,069,580) (1,040,613)
Mortgage payables (613,992) (718,438)
Term loans (406,458) (474,258)
$ 334,829 $ 316,210
Change in net assets invested in capital assets is calculated as follows:
2010 2009
Depreciation of capital assets included in
operations $ (209,439) $ (188,890)
Amortization of deferred contributions
related to capital assets included in
operations 204,863 162,963
$ (4,576) $ (25,927)
Net change in invested in capital assets is as follows:
2010 2009
Purchase of capital assets $ 67,279 $ 211,889
Increase in deferred contributions (216,330) (457,099)
Repayment of term loan 67,800 67,800
Mortgage repayments 104,446 100,297
$ 23,195 § (77,113)
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ST. JOSEPH’S RESIDENCE INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2010

14.

15.

16.

PENSION PLAN

Substantially all of the employees of the Residence are members of the Healthcare
Employees Pension Plan — Manitoba. The Residence’s liability under the pension plan is
limited to the contributions required during the year under the respective agreements.

Employer contributions made to the plan during the year by the Residence amounted to
$272,568 (2009 - $259,650).

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The objective of the Board of Directors of the Residence, when managing capital, is to
safeguard the ability to continue as a going concern. The Board of Directors sets the amount
of capital in proportion to risk. The Board of Directors manages the capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets.

PRIOR YEAR MISSTATEMENT

During the year, the Residence corrected two prior year misstatements that related to WRHA
receivables. The correction to the operating receivable has resulted in a decrease of
$109,450 to Accounts receivable as at March 31, 2009 and a decrease to Net Assets as at
April 1, 2008. The correction to the pre-retirement leave receivable has resulted in an
increase of $44,267 to Due from WRHA — Pre-retirement leave as at March 31, 2009 and an
increase to Net Assets as at April 1, 2008.
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KPMG LLP Telephone (204) 957-1770

Chartered Accountants Fax (204) 957-0808
Suite 2000 - One Lombard Place Internet www.kpmg.ca
Winnipeg MB R3B 0X3

Canada

AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Governing Council of The Salvation Army in Canada

We have audited the statement of financial position of The Salvation Army Golden West Centennial
Lodge as at March 31, 2010 and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows
for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Lodge’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Lodge as at March 31, 2010 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

K& 2P
s

Chartered Accountants

Winnipeg, Canada
May 27, 2010

KPMG LLP, is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of
independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss cooperative.
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE

Statement of Operations

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

WRHA Adult Other Total Internally 2010 2009
services day care services unrestricted restricted Capital Total Total
Revenue
Winnipeg Regional
Health Authority $ 4,878,445 $ 172,008 $ - $ 5050453 $ - - $ 5,050,453 $ 4,634,859
Participant fees - 25,044 - 25,044 - - 25,044 21,901
Residential charges 2,302,893 - - 2,302,893 - - 2,302,893 2,176,060
Contributed services - - 56,868 56,868 - - 56,868 86,400
Amortization of deferred
contributions (note 10) - - - - - 277,120 277,120 279,617
Dietary services 42,765 - - 42,765 - - 42,765 37,702
Red Shield Appeal (note 15) - - 65,000 65,000 - - 65,000 60,000
Donations and fundraising - - - - 67,759 - 67,759 54,941
Other income 22,137 — — 22,137 — — 22,137 37,530
7,246,240 197,052 121,868 7,565,160 67,759 277,120 7,910,039 7,389,010
Expenses:
Administration (note 15) 95,434 - 65,000 160,434 - - 160,434 145,072
Amortization (note 12) - - - - - 285,620 285,620 288,117
Contributed services - - 53,845 53,845 - - 53,845 96,780
Employee benefits 870,464 14,278 - 884,742 - - 884,742 793,627
Interest on long-term debt
(note 11) 33,911 - - 33,911 - - 33,911 57,826
Medical supplies 112,687 - - 112,687 - - 112,687 140,619
Operating expenses 450,449 99,947 - 550,396 30,420 - 580,816 568,840
Payroll tax 104,933 1,598 - 106,531 - - 106,531 101,834
Physical plant 390,678 - - 390,678 - - 390,678 387,128
Pre-retirement leave costs
[note 9(a)] 10,067 - - 10,067 - - 10,067 12,406
Salaries 5,230,408 74,290 - 5,304,698 — - 5,304,698 4,951,893
7,299,031 190,113 118,845 7,607,989 30,420 285,620 7,924,029 7,544,142
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenses $ (52,791) $ 6,939 § 3,023 § (42,829) $ 37,339 (8,500) $ (13,990) $ (155,132)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

Invested in Internally 2010 2009

capital assets restricted Unrestricted Total Total

Balance, beginning of year $ 68,751 $ 99,968 $ (662,076) $ (493,357) $ (338,225)
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over

expenses (8,500) 37,339 (42,829) (13,990) (15,132)

Balance, end of year $ 60,251 $ 137,307 $ (704,905) $ (507,347) $ (493,357)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31, 2010, with comparative figures for 2009

2010 2009
Operating activities:
Deficiency of revenue over expenses (13,990) $ (155,132)
Items not affecting cash:
Amortization of capital assets 285,620 288,117
Amortization of deferred contributions (277,120) (279,617)
(5,490) (146,632)
Changes in non-cash working capital balances:
Accounts receivable 14,948 (11,394)
Prepaid expenses (289) 484
Inventory (9,208) 825
Employee benefits recoverable - 30,868
Future employee pre-retirement benefits recoverable (129,456) (14,957)
Accrued pre-retirement benefits 129,456 14,957
Accrued vacation payable 47,502 20,186
Advances from and due to Winnipeg Regional Health
Authority (34,337) 6,601
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 11,033 43,997
24,159 55,065
Financing activities:
Grants received 2,922 2,731
Additional deferred contributions received 419,238 515,771
Repayments of long-term debt (343,833) (342,333)
78,327 176,169
Investing activities:
Capital asset purchases (82,967) (105,725)
Change in cash held for restricted purposes 33,626 (68,578)
(49,341) (174,303)
Increase (decrease) in cash 53,145 (53,199)
Cash, beginning of year 165,642 218,841
Cash, end of year 218,787 $ 165,642
Supplementary cash flow information:
Interest paid 34,060 $ 58,041

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2010

The Salvation Army Golden West Centennial Lodge (the Lodge) is owned and operated by The
Governing Council of The Salvation Army in Canada pursuant to the Province of Manitoba Acts and
Regulations governing supervisory and personal care homes. It is governed by the Board of
management of Golden West Centennial Lodge and is associated to The Salvation Army Territorial
Headquarters (THQ), the primary charitable entity of the Territory.

The Lodge is a not-for-profit organization under the Income Tax Act and accordingly is exempt from
income taxes under Section 149.

1.

Continuity of operations:

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. The going concern basis of presentation
assumes that the Lodge will continue in operation for the foreseeable future and be able to
realize its assets and discharge its liabilities and commitments in the normal course of
business.

There is doubt about the appropriateness of the use of the going concern assumption as at
March 31, 2010. At March 31, 2010, the Lodge’s current liabilities exceed its current assets by
$930,783 (2009 - $1,268,153). The Lodge also has a net asset deficiency of $507,347 (2009 -
$493,357) at March 31, 2010, mainly as a result of losses from operations in the current and
prior year and fiscal years prior to fiscal 2007.

The ability of the Lodge to continue as a going concern, to realize the carrying value of its
assets and to discharge its liabilities when due is dependent on the continued support of the
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority and the Lodge achieving a break-even or surplus position
in future years.

The financial statements do not reflect adjustments that would be necessary if the going
concern assumption was not appropriate. If the going concern basis was not appropriate for
these financial statements, then adjustments would be necessary in the carrying value of
assets and liabilities, the reported revenues and expenses, and the statement of financial
position classifications used.
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

2.

Significant accounting policies:

The financial statements of the Lodge have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles and include the following significant accounting
policies:

(a)

Revenue recognition:

The Lodge follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions which include
government grants and donations, including donations received from THQ through the
Capital Deposit Account.

The Lodge is funded primarily by the Province of Manitoba in accordance with budget
arrangements established by the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority. Operating grants are
recorded as revenue in the period to which they relate. Grants approved but not received at
the end of a period are accrued. Where a portion of a grant relates to a future period, it is
deferred and recognized in that subsequent period.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Externally restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the
related expenses are recognized. Contributions restricted for the purchase of capital assets
are deferred and amortized into revenue on a straight-line basis, at a rate corresponding
with the amortization rate for the related capital assets.

Capital assets:

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Contributed capital assets are recorded at
fair value at the date of contribution. Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to
expense. Betterments which extend the estimated useful life of an asset are capitalized.
When a capital asset no longer contributes to the Lodge’s ability to provide services, its
carrying amount is written down to its residual value.
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

2.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(c)

(e)

Capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful
lives:

Asset Term
Buildings 50 years
Building expansion 30 years
Major equipment 10 years
Nurse call system 10 years
Roof expansion 10 years
Office furniture and equipment 5-10 years
Computer hardware and software 3 years

Vacation pay:

The Lodge records the accrued vacation pay entitlement liability in the statement of
financial position. Any change in the liability is recorded in the statement of operations.

Contributed services:
Contributed services are recorded at their estimated fair value, except for volunteers. A
substantial number of volunteers contribute a significant amount of their time each year.

Because of the difficulty of determining the fair value, volunteer services are not recognized
in the financial statements.

Pre-retirement benefit obligation:

The Lodge has a contractual commitment to pay out to employees four days salary per
year of service upon retirement if they comply with any of the following conditions:

(i) have ten years of service and have reached the age of 55; or

(i) qualify for the eighty rule which is calculated by adding the number of years service to
the age of the employee; or

(iii) retire at or after the age 65; or

(iv) terminate employment at any time due to permanent disability.
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

2.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

The Lodge has recorded an accrual basis on an actuarial valuation that includes
employees who qualify at the year end balance sheet date and an estimate for the
remainder of employees who have not yet met the criteria above. Funding for the pre-
retirement entitlement is partially recoverable from the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority
(note 9).

Due from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority - employee future benefits:

The Lodge records a provision for future employee benefits including accrued vacation
payable and accrued pre-retirement benefits. For certain employees, funding for future
employee benefits is recoverable from the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority (WRHA) as
a component of salary costs in the period in which the expenditures are made.

Vacation entitlements and pre-retirement entittements that will be funded by the WRHA
have been recorded on the statement of financial position as recoverable from the WRHA.

Internally restricted net assets:

Internally restricted net assets represent the following:

(i) funds which have been received through donations and have been internally restricted
by the Lodge’s Board of Management; and

(i) funds received from fundraising activities for specific programs within the Lodge.
These funds can be utilized at the discretion of the Executive Director.

The Board of Management approves transfers of funds to internally restricted net assets
from the unrestricted net deficiency to cover the cost of accumulated expenditures that
relate to the projects for which internal restrictions were established.

Financial instruments:

Financial assets and liabilities held-for-trading are measured at fair value with gains and
losses recognized in excess of revenue over expenses. Financial instruments classified as
held-to-maturity, loans and receivables and other liabilities are measured at amortized cost.
Available-for-sale financial instruments are measured at fair value, with unrealized gains
and losses recognized directly in net assets.
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

2.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

Cash and cash held for restricted purposes are designated as held-for-trading. Accounts
receivable, employee pre-retirement benefits and future employee benefits recoverable
from WRHA and deferred grant receivable are classified as loans and receivables.
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities, advances from and amounts due to WRHA,
accrued vacation payable, demand loans payable and long-term debt are classified as
other liabilities. The Lodge has neither available-for-sale nor held-to-maturity instruments.

For held-for-trading financial assets, transaction costs are recorded in the statement of
operations as incurred.

The Lodge has adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) Handbook
Section 3861, Financial Instruments - Disclosure and Presentation. In accordance with the
Accounting Standards Board’s decision to exempt not-for-profit organizations from the
disclosure requirements with respect to financial instruments contained within Section
3862, Financial Instruments - Disclosures, and Section 3863, Financial Instruments -
Presentation, the Lodge has elected not to adopt these standards in its financial
statements.

Allocation of fundraising/general administration expenses:

The Lodge classifies expenses on the statement of operations by function. The Lodge does
not allocate expenses between functions in the statement of operations.

Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

2.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(k) Change in accounting policies:

(i)

Amendments to accounting standards that apply to not-for-profit organizations:

Effective April 1, 2009, the Lodge adopted the CICA amendments to Section 4400 of
the CICA Handbook. Amongst other items, these amendments eliminate the
requirement to show net assets invested in capital assets as a separate component of
net assets, clarify the requirement for revenue and expenses to be presented on a
gross basis when the not-for-profit organization is acting as principal and require a
statement of cash flows. As a result of adoption of these recommendations the Lodge
has changed the presentation of the statement of operations for the year ended
March 31, 2010.

Amendments to Section 1000, Financial Statement Concepts:

Effective April 1, 2009, the Lodge adopted the CICA amendments to Section 1000 of
the CICA Handbook. These amendments clarified the criteria for recognition of an
asset or liability, removing the ability to recognize assets or liabilities solely on the basis
of matching of revenue and expense items. Adoption of these recommendations had
no effect on the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2010.

Financial instruments:

(a) Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk to the Lodge’s earnings that arises from fluctuations in interest
rates and the degree of volatility of these rates. The Lodge does not use derivative
instruments to reduce the risk.

Credit risk:

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counterparty will fail to perform its obligations.
However, most of the Lodge’s accounts receivables are amounts due from government
funding authorities, which minimizes credit risk.

Fair value

The fair value of accounts receivable, employee benefits recoverable from WRHA, accrued
vacation payable, advances from and amounts due to WRHA, and accounts payable and
accrued liabilities approximate their carrying value due to their short-term maturity.
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

3. Financial instruments (continued):

The fair values of deferred grant receivable, demand loans payable, and long-term debt
approximate their carrying values as their interest rates are comparable to market values.

4. Cash:

2010 2009
Cash $ 201,531 93,930
THQ general deposit account 17,256 71,712
$ 218,787 165,642

5. Cash held for restricted purposes:
2010 2009
THQ Capital Deposit Account (CDA) $ 65,311 122,240
Internally restricted net assets [note 2(g)] 92,670 69,367
$ 157,981 191,607

Funds held in the capital deposit account represent funds that are restricted for capital
purposes; however, these funds can be withdrawn for operating purposes with agreement of
Divisional Headquarters (DHQ), provided the foreseeable capital needs of the Lodge have

been met.
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

6.

Capital assets:

2010 2009

Accumulated Net book Net book

Cost amortization value value

Land $ 55,159 $ - $ 55,159 $ 55,159

Buildings 998,208 797,822 200,386 220,349

Building expansion 5,744,613 3,351,087 2,393,526 2,585,012

Major equipment 305,697 100,578 205,119 164,239

Nurse call system 165,263 11,020 154,243 159,754

Roof expansion 220,032 123,674 96,358 118,362

Office furniture and

equipment 244,209 221,625 22,584 40,922
Computer hardware and

software 41,252 17,791 23,461 9,692

$ 7,774,433 $ 4,623,597 $ 3,150,836 $ 3,353,489

Title to the Lodge’s land and buildings is held by the Governing Council of the Salvation Army,
which owns and operates the Lodge.

Deferred grant receivable:

The Province of Manitoba has arranged for the Lodge to receive a grant of $86,350 to be
amortized at 6 7/8 percent interest annually for 50 years (maturing 2020). The annual payment
is $6,060 including principal and interest.

Current liabilities:

(a) Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of:

2010 2009

Accounts payable $ 159,815 $ 77,668
Accrued salaries and benefits 295,113 366,078
Accrued interest 2,000 2,149
$ 456,928 $ 445,895
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

8.

9.

Current liabilities (continued):

(b) Advances from and amounts due to WRHA:

During the fiscal year, the Lodge received advances from the WRHA in the amount of
$145,000 (2009 - $167,390) for funding commitments relating to wage settlements for the
2009/10 fiscal year. These advances are included in amounts due to the WRHA and are
unsecured and non-interest bearing. In subsequent years, the advances owing the WRHA,
are offset by the WRHA against funds paid for current funding commitments.

Employee benefits:

(a) Pre-retirement benefits:

The Lodge has undertaken an actuarial valuation as of March 31, 2010 of the accrued pre-
retirement entitlements. The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the
authority’s accrued pre-retirement entitlements include mortality and withdrawal rates, a
discount rate of 4.9 percent (2009 - 6.70 percent) and a rate of salary increase of 4.0
percent (2009 - 3.5 percent) plus age related merit/promotion scale and a factor ranging
from 0 — 3.0 percent (2009 - 0 - 1.3 percent) for disability. Actual payments made during
the year for the Lodge’s pre-retirement entitlements were $10,067 (2009 - $12,406).

The amount of funding which will be provided by the WRHA for future retirement benefits
was initially determined based on the future pre-retirement benefits payable at March 31,
2004, and was recorded as amounts recoverable from the WRHA. The recoverable has
been adjusted, based on direction from the WRHA, to include the incremental increases in
the related liability for fiscal 2007, 2008 and 2009, which include an interest component.
The future employee pre-retirement benefits recoverable from WRHA of $449,217 at
March 31, 2010 (2009 - $319,761) has no specified terms of repayment.

The fair value of the future employee benefits recoverable from WRHA approximates its
carrying value as the interest component described above is comparable to current market
rates.

(b) Vacation pay:

Each year, the WRHA funds a portion of the vacation pay liability of the Lodge, which is
limited to the amount established at March 31, 2004 of $271,682. This amount is included
in employee benefits recoverable from WRHA on the statement of financial position.
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

10. Deferred contributions:

Deferred contributions related to capital assets and major repairs represent the unamortized
amount of donations and funding received for the purchase of capital assets and repairs. These
contributions were received primarily from Manitoba Health and the WRHA, and also through

the CDA (note 5).

The amortization of capital contributions is recorded as revenue in the statement of operations.

Changes in the deferred contributions balance are as follows:

2010 2009
Purchased Future capital
capital  purchases and
assets major repairs Total Total
Balance, beginning of year $ 2,230,924 $ 196,535 $ 2,427,459 $ 2,191,305
Additional contributions
received:
Mortgage/loan payments
(note 11) 343,833 - 343,833 342,333
Capital assets and
major repairs - 91,007 91,007 177,992
Other - 6,269 6,269 1,290
2,574,757 293,811 2,868,568 2,712,920
Transfers as a result of
capital asset purchases 82,967 (82,967) - -
Maijor repairs - (21,871) (21,871) (444)
Amortization (277,120) - (277,120) (279,617)
Additional loan payments - - - (5,400)
Balance, end of year $ 2,380,604 $ 188,973 $ 2,569,577 $ 2,427,459

Contributions received for capital assets and major repairs includes $32,202 received through
the Salvation Army CDA (2009 - $107,422).
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

1.

Long-term debt:

2010 2009
Bank demand instalment loan, interest at prime less V2%,
repayable $24,700 monthly, plus interest, secured by
letter of comfort from Manitoba Health, maturing April
2011 322,100 $ 618,500
Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation, mortgage
payable, interest at 6 7/8%, repayable $3,966 monthly,
including principal and interest, maturing 2020 350,978 373,931
Bank demand instalment loan, interest at prime less V2%,
repayable $2,040 monthly, plus interest, secured by
letter of comfort from Manitoba Health, maturing 2011 36,903 61,383
709,981 1,053,814
Current portion 388,961 702,835
321,020 $ 350,979

Principal and interest payments are funded by the Province of Manitoba via the WRHA.

Principal payments are recorded in deferred contributions (note 10).

Principal payments expected in the next five years are as follows:

2011 $ 345438
2012 64,399
2013 28,113
2014 30,079
2015 32,183

$ 500,212

During the year, interest expense relating to the debt funded amounted to $33,911 (2009 -

$57,826).
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

12

13.

14.

Invested in capital assets:
Investment in capital assets is calculated as follows:
2010 2009
Capital assets $ 3,150,836 $ 3,353,489
Amounts financed by:
Deferred contributions - purchased capital
assets (note 10) (2,380,604) (2,230,924)
Long-term debt (709,981) (1,053,814)
Balance, end of year $ 60,251 $ 68,751
Internally restricted funds:
The internally restricted fund balances comprise the following:
2010 2009
Donations $ 123,979 $ 88,599
Programs 13,328 11,369
$ 137,307 $ 99,968

Pension plan:

Substantially all of the employees of the Lodge are members of the Healthcare Employees
Pension Plan (the Plan), which is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan available to all
eligible employees of the participating facilities. Plan members will receive benefits based on
the length of services and on the average of annualized earnings calculated on the best five of
the eleven consecutive years prior to retirement, termination, or death, that provide the highest
earnings. The costs of the benefit plan are not allocated to the individual facilities. As a result,
individual participating facilities are not able to identify their share of the underlying assets and

liabilities and accordingly, the plan is accounted for as a defined contribution plan.
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THE SALVATION ARMY GOLDEN WEST CENTENNIAL LODGE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2010

14.

15.

16.

Pension plan (continued):

Variances between actuarial funding estimates and actual experience may be material and any
differences are generally to be funded by the participating members. The most recent actuarial
valuation of the Plan as at December 31, 2007 reported the Plan had a solvency deficiency of
$61,050,000 that will be funded over five years commencing calendar 2008 out of current
contributions in each respective year. The deficiency will be funded by special payments out of
current contributions. Contributions to the Plan made during the year by the Lodge on behalf of
its employees amounted to $288,157 (2009 - $276,670) and are included in employee benefits
expense in the statement of operations.

Related party transactions:

During the year, the Lodge had the following transactions and balances with The Salvation
Army:

2010 2009
Red Shield Appeal funding designated for supervision $ 65,000 $ 60,000
Territorial Headquarters supervision expense 65,000 50,000

Comparative figures:

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the financial statement
presentation adopted in the current year.
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500 - FIVE DONALD STREET
WINNIPEG, MANITOBA
R3L 2T4

TEL: {204) 284-7060
FAX: (204) 284-7105

Auditors’ Report

To the Directors of
Women's Health Clinic Inc.

We have audited the statement of financial position of Women'’s Health Clinic Inc. as at March 31, 2010
and the statements of financial activities, changes in fund balances and cash flows for the year then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Organization's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Except as explained in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In common with many charitable organizations, Women's Health Clinic Inc. derives part of its revenues
from the general public in the form of contributions and fundraising the completeness of which is not
susceptible of satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly, our verification of these revenues was limited to
the amounts recorded in the records of the Organization and we were not able to determine whether any
adjustments might be necessary to contributions and fundraising, excess of revenues over expenses,
current assets and changes in fund balances.

In our opinion, except as explained above and the effect of adjustments, if any, which we might have
determined to be necessary had we been able to satisfy ourselves concerning the completeness of those
revenues referred to in the preceding paragraph, these financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Organization as at March 31, 2010 and the results of its operations,
the changes in its fund balances and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian

generally accepted accounting principles.
Winnipeg, Canada W ¢ /

May 20, 2010 Chartered Accountants
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Women's Health Clinic Inc.

Statement of Financial Activities
Year Ended March 31 2010 2009

Operating  Donation Capital

Fund Fund Fund Total Total
Revenues
Winnipeg Regional
Heaith Authority
Fixed payments $3,073,261 $ - % - $3,073,261 $2,897,977
Capital payments - - 17,836 17,836 17,375
United Way of Winnipeg 221,384 2,700 - 224,084 213,548
Province of Manitoba 355,451 3,953 - 359,404 202,239
Medical supplies 73,779 4,126 - 77,905 90,160
Membership 2,005 - - 2,005 970
Miscellaneous 4,761 - - 4,761 39,172
Investment income - 5,437 - 5,437 14,223
Heaith Canada 21,931 - - 21,931 126,586
The Winnipeg Foundation 11,176 - - 11,176 40,646
Annual general meeting 840 - - 840 830
Fee for service 373,887 - - 373,887 332,536
Contributions and
fundraising - 23,223 15,631 38,854 43,287
Rent - - 33,900 33,900 18.900
4,138,475 39,439 67,367 _4,245,281 4,038,449
Expenses
Operating Fund
(Page 11) 4,040,488 - - 4,040,488 3,852,561
Donation Fund
(Page 12) - 22,869 - 22,869 65,146
Amortization - - 75,954 75,954 65,096
Interest on mortgage - - 13,428 13,428 25,857

4,040,488 22,869 89382 _4.152,739 _4,008,660

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenses

before under noted items 97,987 16,570 (22,015) 92,542 29,789
Pre-retirement leave (Note 11)

Current year recovery 54,136 - - 54,136 14,216

Expense (54,136) - - (54,136) (14.216)

Excess (deficiency) of

revenues over expenses 97 987 16570 $ (22.015) $§ 92542 §$ 29789

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Women's Health Clinic Inc.

Statement of Changes in Fund Balances
March 31 2010 2009

Operating  Donation Capital
Fund Fund Fund Total Total

Fund balance, beginning
of year $ 242,169 $ 141,021 $ (64,125) $ 319,066 $ 289,276

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenses 97 987 16.570 (22,015) 92,542 29,789

Fund balance, end of year $ 340,156 167 591 §_(86,140) 411607 $ 319,065

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Women's Health Clinic Inc.
Statement of Financial Position

March 31 2010 2009
(Note 13)
Assets
Current
Cash (Note 3) $ 631,253 $ 977,860
Receivables 575,225 312,324
Due from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 189,500 98,377
Inventories 23,699 32,603
Prepaids 11,484 12,415

1,431,161 1,433,579
Capital assets (Note 4) 924,308 924,126

2 355 469 2 357 705

Liabilities

Current
Payables and accruals $ 493,165 $ 603,988
In Trust for Disabled Women's Network 256 256
Deferred revenue 10,969 9,995
Deferred contributions

Operating Fund (Note 5) 435,249 411,207

Demand loans (Note 7) 504,598 553,067

1,444,237 1,678,613

Deferred contributions
Related to capital assets (Note 6) 258,680 273,318
Pre-retirement leave (Note 11) 240,945 186,809

1,943.862 2.038.640
Fund Balances

Operating Fund 340,156 242,169
Donation Fund 157,591 141,021
Capital Fund (86,140) (64,125)

411,607 319,065

2 355 469 2 357 705

On behalf of the Board

Director Director

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Women's Health Clinic Inc.

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended March 31 2010 2009

Cash derived from (applied to)

Operating
Excess of revenues over expenses $ 92,542 $ 29,789
Amortization 75,954 65,096
Amortization of deferred contributions (33.467) (28,368)

135,029 66,517
Change in non-cash operating assets and liabilities (Note 8) (375,860) 146.046

(240.831) 212,563

Investing
Purchase of capital assets (76,136) (34,806)
Funding received to purchase capital assets 18,829 11,216
(57,307) (23,590)

Financing
Repayment of demand loan (48.469) (36,063)
Net (decrease) increase in cash (346,607) 152,910
Cash, beginning of year 977.860 824,950
Cash, end of year $ 631,253 977 860

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Women's Health Clinic Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

1. Nature of operations

Women's Health Clinic Inc. is a Community Health Centre based on principles of feminism,
equity and diversity. The Organization works towards promoting the health and well-being of
women. The approach to health is to facilitate empowerment, choice and action.

The Organization was formed in 1981, is an incorporated not-for-profit entity and is a
registered charity under the Income Tax Act.

2, Significant accounting policies

The Organization follows accounting principles generally accepted in Canada in preparing its
financial statements. The significant accounting policies used are as follows:

a) Fund accounting

Revenues and expenses related to program delivery and administrative activities are reported
in the Operating Fund.

The Donation Fund reports all donations and fundraising activities. The resources of this fund
are disbursed subject to the Board of Directors' approval or relevant restrictions.

The Capital Fund reports the assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses related to the
Organization's capital assets.

b) Revenue recognition

Women's Health Clinic Inc. follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.
Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate fund in the year in which
the related expenses are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the

appropriate fund when received or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably
estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

c) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value with cost being determined
on a first-in, first-out basis.

d) Capital assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded in the Capital Fund at cost. Contributed capital assets
are recorded in the Capital Fund at the fair value at the date of contribution.
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Women's Health Clinic Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

2. Significant accounting policies (cont.)

e) Amortization

Amortization is provided at rates designed to write off the assets over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Building and improvements 10 - 25 years  straight-line
Computers 5 years straight-line
Furniture and fixtures 10 years straight-line
Security system 10 years straight-line
Medical equipment 5 years straight-line

Amortization expense is reported in the Capital Fund.
f) Accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during
the reported period. These estimates are reviewed periodically and are reported in earnings in
the period in which they become known. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

g) Financial instruments

The Organization's financial instruments consist of cash, receivables, due from Winnipeg
Regional Health Authority, payables and accruals, funds held in trust, demand loans, and pre-
retirement leave. The fair values of cash, receivables, due from Winnipeg Regional Health
Authority, payables and accruals, funds held in trust, demand loans, and pre-retirement leave
approximate their carrying values. Itis management's opinion that the Organization is not
exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risk arising from these financial instruments.

3. Cash

The Organization has a line of credit in the amount of $25,000 which is not being used at
March 31, 2010 nor at March 31, 2008,
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Women's Health Clinic Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

4. Capital assets
2010 2009
Accumulated Net Net
Cost Amortization Book Value Book Value

Land $ 130,000 § - $ 130,000 $ 130,000
Building and improvements 940,922 242,692 698,230 708,157
Computers 64,559 35,410 29,149 32,686
Furniture and fixtures 53,480 39,208 14,272 16,498
Security system 46,719 25,400 21,319 24,863
Medical equipment 47.746 16,408 31,338 11,922

1283426 $ 350118 § 924308 § 924126

5. Deferred contributions

Deferred contributions represent restricted funding and unspent resources externally restricted
for the Operating Fund which relate to the subsequent year.

2010 2009
Health Canada $ 3127 §$ 4,846
United Way of Winnipeg - 6,674
Province of Manitoba 5,194 8,546
Winnipeg Regional Health Authority 376,371 361,487
Heaithy Child Manitoba 10,126 10,126
Winnipeg Foundation 18,877 12,140
CWHN 1,500 1,500
Healthy Baby 20,054 5,888

$ 435249 $ 411207

6. Deferred contributions related to capital assets

Deferred contributions related to capital assets of $258,680 (2009 - $273,318) represent
grants and donations for building, computers, furniture and fixtures and medical equipment.
Deferred contributions are amortized on the statement of financial activities.
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Women's Health Ciinic Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

7. Demand loans

Mortgage, payable to Assiniboine Credit Union, interest at prime

rate plus 1/4%, repayable in biended monthly installments

of $4,960, due on demand $ 504,598
Loan, payable to Assiniboine Credit Union, interest at prime

rate plus 1/4%, repayable in blended monthly installments

of $200, due on demand -

2010 2009

$ 550,722

2,345

$ 504,598 $ 553,067

The Organization's land and building are pledged as security for the debt.

Principal repayments of the demand loan obligation estimated to be required in each of the

next five years are as follows:

2011 $ 30,355
2012 32,041
2013 33,933
2014 35,837
2015 38,058

170 324

Change in non-cash operating assets and liabilities

2010 2009
Receivables and due from Winnipeg Regional Health Authority $ (354,024) $ (109,945)
Inventories 8,904 (2,387)
Prepaids 931 (3,602)
Payables and accruals (56,687) 181,352
Funds held in trust - 166
Deferred revenue and deferred contributions 25,016 80,462

375860 $ 146,046

9. Economic dependence

The volume of financial activity undertaken by Women's Heaith Clinic Inc. with its main funding
bodies is of sufficient magnitude that the discontinuance of their funding would endanger the

ability of the Organization to continue as a going concern.
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Women's Health Clinic Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2010

10. Endowment fund

In 2002 the Organization established an Endowment Fund to be held in perpetuity at The
Winnipeg Foundation. Interest revenue earned by this fund is available to the Women's Health
Clinic annually to support general operations. As of March 31, 2010, the Organization's
contributions to the Endowment Fund totaled $83,529 (2009 - $74,112). The market value of
the Endowment Fund at March 31, 2010 is $137,427 (2009 - $99,286).

11. Pre-retirement leave benefits

The Organization has a contractual commitment for the pre-retirement benefits for the
members of the pension plan based on years of service before retirement. During the year
ended March 31, 2006 the Organization was instructed by WRHA to record the full obligation.
The Winnipeg Regional Health Authority calculated and advised the Organization of the
amount of the obligation. Pre-retirement leave benefits are considered an out-of-globe funding
item, of which the Winnipeg Regional Health Authority has instructed the Organization to set
up a receivable for the percentage of the change in the pre-retirement leave obligation that
belongs to Winnipeg Regional Health Authority programs. The change in the accrued pre-
retirement leave benefits are recorded as an expense in the current year. During the year the
obligation increased by $54,136 (2009 - $14,216).

A portion of the pre-retirement benefits for the current year of $54,136 (2009 - $14,216) were
funded by Winnipeg Regional Health Authority during the year.

12. Capital disclosures

The Organization considers its capital to be the balance maintained in its Operating Fund

Balance. Capital is invested under the direction of the Board of Directors. The primary objective of
the Organization is to invest its capital in a manner that will allow it to continue as a going concern
and comply with its stated objectives. The Organization is not subject to any externally

imposed requirements of its capital.

13. Comparative figures

Certain balances of the preceding year have been reclassified to conform with the current
year's financial statement presentation.
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Women's Health Clinic Inc.

Schedule of Operating Fund Expenses

Year Ended March 31 2010 2009
Salaries $2,654,759 $2,409,490
Employee benefits 363,148 323,998
Purchased services 443,752 437,210
Community relations 17,179 18,598
Association membership fees 2,919 1,103
Bad debt (recovery) - (177)
Insurance 9,402 3,044
Postage 12,033 16,728
Printing, stationery and office supplies 68,618 89,010
Professional fees 14,826 20,177
Accounting and computer fees 7,835 16,288
Staff recruitment 6,160 699
Staff training 6,625 14,218
Telephone 31,278 32,076
Other supplies 27,571 39,467
Medical and surgical supplies 122,767 101,484
Purchases of medical supplies inventories 104,759 94,646
Repairs and maintenance 67,242 34,024
Health education materials 6,631 6,914
Occupancy costs 97,984 106,473
Utilities 55,941 70,629
Volunteer services 552 702
Lectures and honorariums 181 468
Travel 18,326 15,292
$4,040,488 $3,852,561

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Women's Health Clinic Inc.
Schedule of Donation Fund Expenses

Year Ended March 31 2010 2009
Volunteer appreciation $ 561 $ 3,987
Fundraising 7,391 10,295
Programs 5,500 36,905
Winnipeg Foundation "Women's Health Clinic Fund" (Note 10) 9,417 13,959

$ 22869 $ 65146

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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